
 

 

North Devon Council 
Brynsworthy Environment Centre 
Barnstaple 
North Devon   EX31 3NP 
 

K. Miles 

Chief Executive. 
 

 
 

STRATEGY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
 
A meeting of the  Strategy and Resources Committee will be held in the Barum Room - 
Brynsworthy on MONDAY, 5TH DECEMBER, 2022 at 10.00 am. 
 
(NOTE: A location plan for the Brynsworthy Environment Centre is attached to the 
agenda front pages. For meetings held at Brynsworthy only, you can join the meeting 
virtually via Microsoft Teams. There are also limited spaces to attend the meeting in 
person. Please check the Council’s website for the latest information regarding the 
arrangements that are in place and the requirement to book a place 2 working days prior 
to the meeting.) Taking part in meetings (northdevon.gov.uk) 
 
 
Members of the Strategy and Resources 
Committee 

Councillor Worden (Chair) 

 
Councillors Crabb, Knight, Lane, Lofthouse, Patrinos, Pearson, Prowse, L. Spear, 
Wilkinson and Yabsley 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

1.   Apologies for absence   

2.   To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 7 November 
2022 (attached).  (Pages 5 - 18) 

3.   Items brought forward which in the opinion of the Chair should be considered by 
the meeting as a matter of urgency.   

4.   Declarations of Interests.   

 (Please telephone the Corporate and Community Services team to prepare a form 
for your signature before the meeting.  Interests must be re-declared when the 
item is called, and Councillors must leave the room if necessary). 

 

5.   To agree the agenda between Part 'A' and Part 'B' (Confidential Restricted 
Information).   

PART 'A' 

6.   Introduction of an Animal Licensing Policy  (Pages 19 - 56) 

 Report by Public Protection Manager (attached). 
 

Public Document Pack

https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/council/councillors-and-committees/taking-part-in-meetings/


 
 

 
2 

 

7.   Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver Qualification Standards  (Pages 57 
- 64) 

 Report by the Public Protection Manager (attached). 
 

8.   Review of North Devon Council (Off Street Parking Places) Order  (Pages 65 - 
178) 

 Report by Car Parks Manager (attached). 
 

9.   Lynton Agency Performance Review  (Pages 179 - 192) 

 Report by Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive (attached). 
 

PART 'B' (CONFIDENTIAL RESTRICTED INFORMATION) 

Nil. 
 
 
 

 

If you have any enquiries about this agenda, please contact Corporate and 
Community Services, telephone 01271 388253 

 
 
 

25.11.22 
 



 
 

 
3 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

North Devon Council protocol on recording/filming at Council meetings 
 
The Council is committed to openness and transparency in its decision-making. 
Recording is permitted at Council meetings that are open to the public. The Council 
understands that some members of the public attending its meetings may not wish to be 
recorded. The Chairman of the meeting will make sure any request not to be recorded is 
respected.  
 
The rules that the Council will apply are:  
 

1. The recording must be overt (clearly visible to anyone at the meeting) and must 
not disrupt proceedings. The Council will put signs up at any meeting where we 
know recording is taking place.  

 
2. The Chairman of the meeting has absolute discretion to stop or suspend recording 

if, in their opinion, continuing to do so would prejudice proceedings at the meeting 
or if the person recording is in breach of these rules.  

 
3. We will ask for recording to stop if the meeting goes into ‘part B’ where the public 

is excluded for confidentiality reasons. In such a case, the person filming should 
leave the room ensuring all recording equipment is switched off. 

 
4. Any member of the public has the right not to be recorded. We ensure that 

agendas for, and signage at, Council meetings make it clear that recording can 
take place – anyone not wishing to be recorded must advise the Chairman at the 
earliest opportunity.  

 
5. The recording should not be edited in a way that could lead to misinterpretation or 

misrepresentation of the proceedings or in a way that ridicules or shows a lack of 
respect for those in the recording. The Council would expect any recording in 
breach of these rules to be removed from public view.  

 
Notes for guidance: 
 
Please contact either our Corporate and Community Services team or our 
Communications team in advance of the meeting you wish to record at so we can make 
all the necessary arrangements for you on the day.  
 
For more information contact the Corporate and Community Services team on 01271 
388253 or email memberservices@northdevon.gov.uk or the Communications Team 
on 01271 388278, email communications@northdevon.gov.uk. 



 
 

 
4 

 

 
 
North Devon Council offices at Brynsworthy, the full address is:  
Brynsworthy Environment Centre (BEC), Roundswell,  
Barnstaple, Devon, EX31 3NP. 
 
Sat Nav postcode is EX31 3NS. 
 
At the Roundswell roundabout take the exit onto the B3232, after about ½ mile take the 
first right, BEC is about ½ a mile on the right. 
 
Drive into the site, visitors parking is in front of the main building on the left hand side.  
 
On arrival at the main entrance, please dial 8253 for Corporate and Community Services. 
 
 

 
 



 

Strategy and Resources Committee - 7 November 2022 
 

1 
 

NORTH DEVON COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of a meeting of Strategy and Resources Committee held in the Barum Room 
- Brynsworthy on Monday, 7th November, 2022 at 10.00 am 
 
PRESENT: Members: 

 
 Councillor Worden (Chair) 

 
 Councillors Knight, Lane, Patrinos, Pearson, Prowse, L. Spear and 

Wilkinson 
 

 Officers: 
 

 Chief Executive, Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive, 
Senior Solicitor and Monitoring Officer, Property Manager, Service 
Manager (Refuse and Recycling), Head of Customer Focus, Head of 
Environmental Enhancement, Public Protection Manager and 
Housing Enabling Officer 
 

 Also Present in person: 
 

 Councillors  D. Spear and Tucker 
 

  
  
 
   
 

56.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Lofthouse and Yabsley. 

57.   TO APPROVE AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE 
MEETING HELD ON 5TH SEPTEMBER 2022 
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 5 September 2022 (circulated 
previously) be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 

58.   ITEMS BROUGHT FORWARD WHICH IN THE OPINION OF THE 
CHAIR SHOULD BE CONSIDERED BY THE MEETING AS A 
MATTER OF URGENCY. 
 

The Chair asked Members of the Committee to stay back after the end of the 
meeting for an informal briefing. 

59.   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS. 
 

The following declaration of interest was announced: 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 
Strategy and Resources Committee - 7 November 2022 

 
 

 
2 

 

Councillor Netti Pearson declared an other registrable interest in item 12, 
Bicclescombe Nursery Site as she was a founding member of the Ilfracombe 
Community Land Trust. 

60.   ORDER OF AGENDA 
 

RESOLVED that to allow the member of the public and external contractor to be able 
to leave the meeting that item 12, Bicclescombe Nursery Site be prior to item 6, Mid-
Year Treasury Management Report 2022/23 on the agenda. 

61.   BICCLESCOMBE NURSERY SITE 
 

The Committee considered a report by the Property Manager, (circulated previously) 
in respect of Bicclescombe Nursery Site. 
 
The Property Manager highlighted the following to the Committee: 
 

 There had been a lot of input from the Housing Team. 

 In September 2021 the Property Manager successfully bid for funding to allow 
the site to be developed for Self and Custom Build Housing. 

 At that stage contract, terms with a local developer had been agreed but had 
not proceeded through completion and the purchaser withdrew from the 
acquisition. 

 This site would create potentially 17 socially rented units for the town of 
Ilfracombe. 

 The site presented development challenges with the topography of the site 
being most difficult due to the substantial changes in levels. 

 Consideration had been given to the retention of an existing building on the 
site.  The location of the building would make it’s separation from the main 
site a barrier and create further difficulty to the main schemes of development.  
The passing of this building to the Ilfracombe Community Land Trust would 
discharge risks for the Council and would generate a further capital receipt. 

 
Councillor Pearson addressed the Committee briefly on her aspirations for the site 
and then left the room during the consideration of this item. 
 
Terry Elliott, member of Ilfracombe Community Land Trust addressed the committee. 
 
The Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive advised that any future 
capital receipt from this scheme could be ring fenced to replenish the Community 
Housing Fund initiative budget but would need to come forward as a separate report 
for Member decision and that decision could not be taken today. 
 
The Chief Executive added that a report on the topic of Community Led 
Developments would be presented to a future meeting of the Strategy and 
Resources committee and could be added to that report. 
 
The Property Manager confirmed that the units being built on the site were for 
socially rented tenants and not for open market sale. 
 

Page 6

Agenda Item 2



 
Strategy and Resources Committee - 7 November 2022 

 
 

 
3 

 

RESOLVED that: 
 

(a)  the Bicclescombe Nursery Site be passed by disposal of freehold to the 
Ilfracombe Community Land Trust and the Community Land Trust in 
partnership with the chosen Registered Housing Provider for the development 
of Custom Build Social Housing in association with Middlemarch as facilitator;   

(b) The Community Land Trust actively lead the project to enable community 
development; and   

(c) The negotiation of capital receipt be carried out in conjunction with the Chief 
Executive. 

62.   MID-YEAR TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT 2022 - 23 
 

The Committee considered a report by Director of Resources and Deputy Chief 
Executive (circulated previously) regarding the Mid-Year Treasury Management 
Report for 2022-23. 
 
The Head of Governance highlighted the following: 
 

 The Council was required through regulations issued under the Local 
Government Act 2003 to produce a mid-year treasury report reviewing 
treasury management activities and the prudential and treasury indicators for 
2022/23.  

 Council approved the Treasury Management Strategy Statement for 2022/23 
on 23 February 2022. 

 The underlying Treasury Management Strategy Statement, previously 
approved, required updating in light of economic and operational movements 
during the year.   

 The proposed changes, as set out in 4.1 of the report, were as follows; 
 Capital Financing Requirement, original estimate of £29.3m was now 

revised to £25m. 
 Operational Boundary, original estimate of £24.7m was now revised to 

£10.5m. 
 Maturity Structure of borrowing between 12 months to 2 years – upper 

limit, original estimate of 60%, was now revised to 70%. 

 Section 4.3 of the report provided further information on the Capital Financial 
Requirement and the Operational Boundary. The change to the upper 
borrowing limit between 12 months and 2 years would allow greater flexibility 
for short-term borrowing given the current interest rate forecast. 

 Revised estimates for capital expenditure and the changes since the capital 
programme was agreed as part of the budget as detailed in paragraph 4.2 of 
the report. 

 Changes to the capital-financing requirement as detailed in paragraph 4.3 of 
the report. The forecast Capital Financing Requirement had decreased by 
circa £4.3m from the original budget. This was due to the re-profiling of the 
capital programme with expenditure being slipped to future financial years for 
projects such as Seven Brethren redevelopment and Green Lanes capital 
improvements. 

 The forecast external Public Works Loan Board borrowing had decreased by 
£13.5m from the original budget in part by the reduced capital expenditure as 

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



 
Strategy and Resources Committee - 7 November 2022 

 
 

 
4 

 

above and higher yearend cash flow balance projections. Section 4.5 looked 
at the borrowing strategy in more detail. 

 Annual Investment Strategy as detailed in paragraph 4.8 of the report. The 
Council held £17m of investments as at 30 September 2022 (£18m at 31 
March 2022) and the investment portfolio yield for the first six months of the 
year was 0.59% against the benchmark 7 day SONIA of 1.19%. 

 
 
RECOMMENDED:  
 
(a) That the changes to the prudential indicators be approved; and 
(b) That the report and the treasury activity be noted. 

63.   PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT Q2 REPORT 
2022 - 23 
 

The Committee considered a report by the Director of Resources and Deputy Chief 
Executive, (circulated previously) regarding the Performance and Financial 
Management for Quarter 2 of 2022/23. 
The Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive highlighted the following: 

 The revenue budget for 2022/23 was approved at Council on 23 February 
2022 at £13,721,640. 

 As at 30 September 2022, the latest forecast net budget was £13,681,640, 
which produced a forecast budget surplus of £40,000. Details were shown in 
“Appendix A – Variations in the Revenue Budget”. 

 The original budget for 2022/23 included a forecast to achieve £250,000 worth 
of salary vacancy savings.  The current position forecasts the Council would 
achieve £441,000.  The additional £191,000 was due to timings of filling the 
capacity building posts throughout the year, which were approved as part of 
the original 2022/23 budget. 

 Temporary Accommodation was under additional cost pressure due to the 
increase in homelessness cases; the in-year impact of this £200,000 forecast 
increase in costs had been mitigated by utilising balances from the 
Homelessness earmarked reserve.  Whilst this alleviated the pressure this 
year, it does mean this one-off amount from the homelessness reserve could 
not be utilised for other homelessness initiatives. 

 Within the joint Building Control Services, partnership with Mid Devon District 
Council there had been a decline in income, and due to challenges in 
recruiting to vacant posts, an increase in the use of agency staffing costs 
which had negatively impacted the trading account.  The Council was now 
forecasting a net deficit of £67,000; this included utilising a £50,000 
contribution from the Building Control reserve built up through prior year 
trading surpluses. 

 Further to the report to Strategy and Resources Committee on 4 July 2022, 
which detailed the in-year inflationary pressures that the Council were likely to 
experience this year, most of those forecasts were still in line with the July 
2022 forecast; with the exception of the potential additional employee costs 
from the staff pay award being negotiated which was now being predicted at a 
higher cost following the National Employers pay offer to the Unions. 

Page 8

Agenda Item 2



 
Strategy and Resources Committee - 7 November 2022 

 
 

 
5 

 

 The largest variance, as detailed within Appendix A, was the £804,000 
National pay award potential additional staffing costs over and above the 
£280,000 already built into the base budget; this estimate was based on the 
offered pay award put forward to the Unions by the National Employers pay 
review body for the 2022-23 year. The pay offer was based upon £1,925 per 
full time equivalent employee. 

 Other inflationary pressures built into the forecast included additional fuel 
costs across the Council’s fleet of £104,000 and additional energy costs of 
£63,000. 

 The inflationary cost pressures mentioned were looking to be funded in-year 
through utilisation of the budget management reserve; this reserve, which was 
set aside to deal with fluctuations within the budget and built up over the last 
couple of financial years, had provided the Council with the protection needed 
in 2022/23.  Moving forwards to future years 2023/24 onwards, the Council 
would not have the benefit of this level of protection and the inflationary 
pressures being experienced this year would continue onto the future year’s 
budget gap previously highlighted to Members. 

 The other significant in-year cost pressure that had not been included in the 
current figures was the award of costs claim in relation to the Yelland planning 
appeal; once this amount was known a report would be brought to Members 
detailing the award of costs amount and setting out how the Council would be 
funding this cost.   

 As at 31 March 2022 the Collection Fund reserve balance was £5,722,000 as 
detailed in paragraphs 4.1.11 and 4.1.12 of the report. 

 This reserve included a £4,523,000 balance that would be utilised in 2022/23 
and 2023/24 to mitigate timing differences of business rate reliefs awarded in 
2021/22 and an in-year £400,000 transfer into the budget management 
reserve to replenish this reserve balance to help mitigate future budget 
fluctuations, thus leaving the fund reserve with a residual balance of £800,000 
protection against future volatility.  This level of reserve protected the Council 
against a 40% share of a £2million overall Business Rates income volatility. 

 At the 30 September 2022 total external borrowing was £3,000,000.  This had 
resulted in a forecast £160,000 reduction in loan interest payments in 2022/23 
and it was proposed to place this amount into a new Treasury Management 
reserve to mitigate against higher interest rates moving into the 2023/24 
financial year. 

 The recommended level of general fund balance was 5%-10% of the council’s 
net revenue budget £686,082 to £1,372,164.  The forecast general fund 
reserve at 31 March 2023 was £1,211,000, which was a level of 8.8%. 

 “Appendix B – Movement in reserves and Balances” detailed the movements 
to and from earmarked reserves in 2022/23. 

 A residual balance of around £30,000 from the Economic Financial Hardship 
earmarked reserve was being utilised to launch a Community Warm Spaces 
Fund.  This fund was aimed at not-for-profit community groups to help them 
providing a warm space for members of the community to access. 

 Full details of the Strategic Contingency Reserve movements and 
commitments were shown at “Appendix C – Strategic Contingency Reserve”. 

 The 2022/23 Capital Programme was detailed at “Appendix D – Capital 
Programme 2022/23”. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 2



 
Strategy and Resources Committee - 7 November 2022 

 
 

 
6 

 

 The Budget and Financial Framework report to Full Council 23 February 
2022, outlined the Capital Programme for the 2022/23 financial year of 
£15,833,023.  Project underspend of £2,031,062 was bought forward from 
2021/22 year and further variations of £873,280 were approved as part of the 
performance and financial management report to Strategy and Resources 
Committee, to produce a revised 2022/23 Capital Programme of £18,737,365. 

 Overall variations of £5,924,591 were proposed to the 2022/23 Capital 
Programme as detailed in paragraph 4.4.3 of the report. 

 Actual spend on the 2022/23 Capital Programme as at 30 September 2022 
was £3,502,949. 

 The overall Capital Programme for 2022/23 to 2025/26 was £29,122,631 and 
the break down detail was shown at paragraph 4.4.7 of the report. 

 A successful PAG capital bid for the Harbour infrastructure had secured 
external funding of £216,235.  The Water Sports Centre Commercial Complex 
at Ilfracombe had also successfully been awarded capital budget of £177,328 
which would allow the further provision of storage space for users of the 
Centre.  This additional storage would increase usage of the Water Sports 
Centre and create additional financial viability for the centre associated café. 

 The Programme of £29,122,631 was funded by Capital Receipts / Borrowing 
(£11,119,824), External Grants and Contributions (£15,259,161), and 
Reserves (£2,743,646). 

 It was recommended that the following funds be released from the 2022/23 
Capital Programme: 

 All S106 schemes approved at Strategy and Resources Committee on 
5 September 2022, total £278,462. 

 Harbour Infrastructure PAG bid £430,489. 
 Water Sports Commercial Complex £177,328. 
 ICT VDI Licenses £70,000. 
 Fremington Quay River Wall repair £51,348. 
 Seven Brethren Flood Defence £1,150,000. 

 Treasury Management as detailed in paragraph 4.5 of the report. 

 Debt Management as detailed in paragraph 4.6 of the report. 

 General Debtors as detailed in paragraph 4.7 of the report.   
 The debt, aged 3 weeks to 6 months above, included a one off invoice 

for £1,150,000 raised on 8th September 2022 in relation to flood 
defence contributions. Without this one-off invoice, the total 
outstanding debt would have been £1,420,000 a reduction in aged debt 
of £494,000 from the previous year (reduction of 26%). 

 Performance information as detailed in Appendix E of the report. 
In response to a question about the drop in domestic waste and recycling figure.  
The Head of Environmental Enhancement advised that the service had struggled 
with staffing coverage.  The Council’s social media platforms were being used to 
advertise vacancies. 
In response to questions, the Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive 
advised the following: 

 Information on the land ownership at the Fremington Quay site could be 
confirmed. 

 The debtor invoice of £1,150,000 had to be raised to allow payment of the 
funds from the Solicitors. 

Page 10

Agenda Item 2



 
Strategy and Resources Committee - 7 November 2022 

 
 

 
7 

 

 The Trade Waste service was provided by the Council so would not be shown 
as separate financial accounts.  If there was a variation in budgeted figures 
then this would be reported as part of this report. 

 The Building control services charging structure was being reviewed to ensure 
it was still competitive and covering the cost of providing the service. 

 The number of agency staff being used to fill gaps in the planning team was 
currently three.  A recruitment drive was currently underway but the market 
was very challenging. 

 
 
RESOLVED:  
(a) That the actions being taken to ensure that performance was at the desired level 

be noted;  
(b) That the contributions to/from earmarked reserves be approved as detailed in 

section 4.2 of the report;  
(c) That the movement on the Strategic Contingency Reserve as detailed in section 

4.3 of the report be noted;   
(d) That funds be released for the capital schemes listed as detailed in section 

4.4.11 of the report;  
(e) That the sections dealing with Treasury Management (section 4.5 of the report), 

and Debt Management (sections 4.6 and 4.7 of the report) be noted and 
 
RECOMMENDED: 
 

(f) That Council approve the variations to the Capital Programme 2022/23 to 
2025/26 as detailed in sections 4.4.3 of the report. 

64.   ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY - PROGRESS ON IMPLEMENTATION 
 

The Committee considered a report by the Sustainability and Climate Officer 
(circulated previously) regarding the Environmental Policy – Progress on 
Implementation. 
 
The Head of Environmental Enhancement highlighted the following to the 
Committee: 
 

 This report was a requirement of the Environment Policy’s objectives, namely 
to regularly review and report on progress. 

 Investigation was ongoing to install solar panels at Brynsworthy, Barnstaple 
and the Pannier Market, Barnstaple 

 Further Low Carbon Skills Funding had been obtained to produce heat 
decarbonisation plans for Council owned and tenanted properties. 

 In adapting to climate change the Local Government Association Adaptation 
Toolkit had been supported and an adaptation plan for Devon, Cornwall and 
the Isles of Scilly was being developed. 

 The Yeo Valley Community Woodland extension was going ahead with the 
planting of 19,000 trees this planting season (starting December 2022). 

 
In response to questions, the Head of Environmental Enhancement gave the 
following replies: 

Page 11

Agenda Item 2



 
Strategy and Resources Committee - 7 November 2022 

 
 

 
8 

 

 

 The report was realistic in terms of what we could achieve and within the 
budget available. 

 There was no completion date on some projects at present, due to their 
complexity and wide ranging scope.  Lots of research and baselining had 
taken place over the last year and the pace of delivery would pick up now that 
the initial 12-month baseline had completed.  The baseline gave a clear 
picture of what the Carbon footprint of the Council looked like and where 
action was needed to be taken. 

 
RESOLVED, that the progress of the Environment Policy be noted. 

65.   ADOPTION OF WORKS IN DEFAULT POLICY 
 

The Committee considered a report by the Legal Services Officer (circulated 
previously), regarding the Adoption of Works in Default Policy. 
 
The Senior Solicitor highlighted the following to the Committee: 
 

 This policy sets out the procedures officers should take if works fall into 
default. 

 The adoption of this policy would fulfil an audit requirement to have such a 
policy in place. 

 The policy provided information on who decided when works were in default, 
and the enforcement action that should be taken. 

 The policy also set out at what level and how the Council would work in 
partnership with other bodies in terms of works in default. 

 
RESOLVED that the Works in Default Policy be adopted. 

66.   ADJOURNMENT OF MEETING 
 

RESOLVED that it being 11.22 am the meeting be adjourned due to the noise 
disturbance outside the building. 
 
RESOLVED that it being 11.30 am the meeting reconvene. 

67.   ENERGY COMPANY OBLIGATION (ECO) 
 

The Committee considered a report by the Service Lead – Home Adaptations, 
Improvements and Energy Efficiency, (circulated previously) regarding the Energy 
Company Obligation. 
 
The Service Lead – Home Adaptations, Improvements and Energy Efficiency 
highlighted the following to the Committee: 
 

 The Government Energy Efficient Scheme started in April 2013. 

 In 2017 the Local Authority Flexible Eligibility was introduced into the scheme.  
This allowed Councils to set their own eligibility criteria for private sector 
residents not in receipt of any state benefits. 

Page 12

Agenda Item 2



 
Strategy and Resources Committee - 7 November 2022 

 
 

 
9 

 

 The criteria for eligibility was published in a Statement of Intent and must 
support vulnerable people in, or at risk of fuel poverty. 

 The Council issued its first Statement of Intent in August 2018 which was 
amended in January 2021. 

 Most declarations signed off were for insulation improvements (loft and/or 
cavity), first time central heating and boiler replacements. 

 Since 2018 there had been 800 declarations signed off and unfortunately a 
significant drop during the two years of the pandemic. 

 The latest version of the scheme, Energy Company Obligation 4, would run 
until March 2026.  Its primary aim was to support low-income households to 
upgrade their homes and took a fabric first approach. 

 One of the most significant changes in this scheme was the requirement for 
homes at an F or G Energy Performance Certificate (EPC) rating to be 
improved to D. 

 The Energy Company Obligation 4 scheme outlined four separate routes to 
identify low-income and vulnerable households that could be used under the 
Local Authority Flexible eligibility. 

 North Devon Council would initially be using Route 1 – Household Income.  
Households living in private tenure in band D, E, F or G homes and with a 
gross annual income less than £31,000, but aimed to utilise all four routes as 
detailed in paragraph 4.8 of the report. 

 An online application form was being developed with relevant verification 
check processes. 

 The Council would be considering charging a nominal fee for declarations 
signed, to be levied at the approved installer with the understanding that this 
cost would not be passed onto the household. 

 The Council will ensure a Best Practice for trading standards around ECO 
Flex/other retrofit grant schemes with the signing of the Charter. 

 
In response to questions, the Service Lead – Home Adaptations, Improvements and 
Energy Efficiency advised the following: 
 

 It was not always possible to find local traders able to carry out the works. 

 The Council could instruct the providers to target certain areas i.e. Victorian 
era properties. 

 The number of declarations signed off only related to those households not 
eligible under ECO standard eligibility criteria and that it would be important to 
promote effectively the new ECO 4 scheme. 

 
RESOLVED that: 
 

(a) The revised Statement of Intent, as shown in Appendix A of the report be 
adopted; 
 

(b) The Head of Planning, Housing and Health be given delegated authority to 
evaluate, and if relevant implement the charging for declarations signed, 
following consultation with the Lead Member for Housing; and 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 2



 
Strategy and Resources Committee - 7 November 2022 

 
 

 
10 

 

(c) That the Lead Member for Housing be authorised to act as a signatory of 
the Charter – best practice for trading standards around Energy Company 
Obligation Flex and or other retrofit grant schemes. 

68.   HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE LICENSING POLICY 
AMENDMENTS 
 

The Committee considered a report by the Public Protection Manager (circulated 
previously) regarding Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 
Amendments. 
 
The Public Protection Manager highlighted the following to the Committee: 
 

 The Licensing and Community Safety Committee at its meeting on 22 
September 2022 considered the results of a public consultation exercise 
carried out on the proposed changes to the Hackney Carriage and Private 
Hire Licensing policy. 

 The Council received 52 responses, which were shown in full at Appendix B 
of the report. 

 The amendments proposed as a result of the consultation responses included 
the following: 

 Amendment to the proposal to update vehicle age criteria, with the 
proposal to reduce the upper age limit for first plating to three years 
amended to maintaining the current five year upper age limit, but with 
the additional criteria of the vehicle being compliant with the Euro 6 
emission standard; 

 Changes to the proposal to introduce an upper age-limit for renewal, 
from an age-related-criteria (10 years maximum), to an emission-
related-criteria.  “Vehicles must comply with the Euro 6 emission 
standard or above) or recognised UK equivalent)”.  It was also 
proposed to delay the implementation of this policy point until 1 
January 2026 to take account of the financial impact of Covid-19, and 
the current volatility in used-car prices; and 

 Similarly, for wheelchair accessible vehicles the proposal had also 
been amended to an emission rather than age-related-criteria.  “Diesel 
vehicles must comply with the Euro 5 emission standard or above (or 
recognised UK equivalent).  Petrol vehicles must comply with the Euro 
4 emission standard or above (or recognised UK equivalent)”. 

 In addition to the proposed amendments as a result of the consultation 
exercise a number of other minor amendments were being proposed for 
approval, as detailed in paragraph 4.6 of the report. 

 
RESOLVED that the revised Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy as 
detailed at Appendix A of the report, be approved. 

69.   BRINGING THE THREE WEEKLY COLLECTIONS TRIAL TO AN 
END 
 

The Committee considered a report by the Service Manager (Refuse and Recycling), 
(circulated previously), regarding Bringing the Three Weekly Collections Trial to an 
End. 

Page 14

Agenda Item 2



 
Strategy and Resources Committee - 7 November 2022 

 
 

 
11 

 

 
The Service Manager (Refuse and Recycling) highlighted the following to the 
Committee: 
 

 In 2017, the Council selected 3,500 properties (as detailed at Appendix 1 of 
the report) to take part in a three-weekly recycling trial. These properties in 
and around Barnstaple had their black bins collected every three weeks and 
their (unlimited) recycling collected weekly. The trial aimed to reduce black 
refuse and increase recycling. 

 The trial had now run for 5 years but had initially meant to run for six months. 

 The Council was currently experiencing difficulties in maintaining an efficient 
and effective recycling service across the district due to resource issues and 
was not yet in a position to roll out three-weekly collections across the district. 
If the trial were brought to a close and Council reverted to fortnightly black bin 
collections across the district, crews and drivers could be reallocated to 
recycling rounds. 

 There were benefits to the trial but at present the Council did not have the 
resources available to handle the volume of recycling to be collected. 

 Ending the three-weekly trial would bring everyone in the district under the 
same service. 

 
In response to a question on how the end of the trial was better than continuing with 
it.  The Service Manager (Refuse and Recycling) explained that bringing the whole 
district in line with the same frequency collections meant all the crews could be 
deployed more efficiently and resolve the operational issues currently experienced. 
 
In response to concerns over communities who had worked hard to reduce waste 
and recycle more taking a step backwards.  The Chief Executive advised that the 
capacity and resources were not currently available to cope with the situation as it 
was.  The idea of moving to three weekly collections had not been abandoned but 
the Council needed the time to improve resources. 
 
The Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive added that there was a 
commitment to improving the service infrastructure with £750,000 already earmarked 
in the approved Capital Programme towards the investment.  A report would be 
presented to members detailing the upgrades that were required at a future full 
council meeting. 
 
In response to a question about not disenchanting the public from recycling and 
allowing extra containers to be collected.  The Head of Environmental Enhancement 
responded that it was important to allow everyone to recycle. 
 
RESOLVED that: 
 

(a) The three weekly trial be brought to a close, with black bin collections returning 
to fortnightly in line with the rest of the district; 

(b) Drivers, crews and vehicles from the trial area rounds be redeployed on 
recycling rounds; and 

Page 15

Agenda Item 2



 
Strategy and Resources Committee - 7 November 2022 

 
 

 
12 

 

(c) The Council evaluate three weekly black bin collections across the whole district 
when recycling rounds were fully resourced, operating satisfactorily and the 
infrastructure is in place to handle the material collected; and 

(d) The infrastructure improvements needed to be agreed in principle and that a 
further report be presented to full Council. 

70.   COUNCIL TAX REDUCTION SCHEME 
 

The Committee considered a report by the Revenues and Benefits Manager, 
(circulated previously) regarding the Council Tax Reduction Scheme. 
 
The Head of Customer Focus highlighted the following: 
 

 In April 2013, as part of the national welfare reform, the Government 
changed the way financial support for Council Tax was managed. This meant 
that the national Council Tax Benefit system, which helped people with low 
incomes meet their Council Tax obligations, was replaced by new Council Tax 
Reduction schemes designed, administered and managed by Local 
Authorities. 

 This change did not affect pension age claimants whose scheme was 
prescribed by central Government. 

 Each year the scheme was reviewed. The Devon Revenues and 

Benefits Officers Group work together in reviewing schemes across the 

County. 

 Since 2013, the majority of authorities have required all working age 

applicants to pay a minimum payment. In North Devon our working age 

applicants pay at least 20 per cent of their charge. 

 Working age applicants in the Teignbridge District Council area still 
receive 100 per cent support towards their Council Tax.  As with many 
Council’s nationwide, other Devon Councils are now considering increasing 
support to 100 per cent for those households on the lowest of incomes. The 
proposal for 2023-2024 is that we at North Devon increase ours. 

 In addition its proposed to disregard emergency increases in 

national welfare benefits and certain crisis payments paid to taxpayers. 

 Many households had struggled to pay the minimum 20 percent contribution. 
This had led to additional costs being added to the balance on Council Tax 
bills, court and enforcement action and, in many cases, the amounts 
demanded were eventually written off as they were deemed uncollectable.  

 There were 520 households who had an attachment to their benefits with a 
further 836 households awaiting an attachment to their benefit to collect 
unpaid council tax. 

 The Council undertook a comprehensive consultation on the proposals 

during the period 7 September 2022 – 19 October 2022. This consultation 
was promoted in the following ways; 

 Press release in local newspaper; 
 North Devon Council website; and  
 On Social media accounts such as Facebook and Twitter. 

 A total of 96 responses to the consultation were received. The results were 
shown in full, in Appendix B. The majority of responses received were in 
favour of the proposed changes. 

Page 16

Agenda Item 2



 
Strategy and Resources Committee - 7 November 2022 

 
 

 
13 

 

 Precepting Authorities and the local Citizens Advice were also consulted and 
their responses, where received, are shown in Appendix C (Fire service) and 
Appendix D (Devon County Council). 

 An increase in the cost of the scheme, although this was offset in part by 
reduced cost of resource in the collection of unpaid Council Tax. 

 The Council Tax collection rate currently budgeted for in North Devon was 97 
percent. It was higher but the adoption of the Council Tax Reduction scheme 
in 2013; saw collection rates overall start to fall. This was because collecting 
the 20 percent Council Tax from the poorest families was a challenge. These 
debts were proving to be very difficult to collect.  The impact from this within 
the current collection fund was an ever-growing debt in this area, together 
with increased bad debt provision – so this was a growing cost within the 
collection fund.  These proposals would enable the Council to free up 
resources to concentrate on increasing the tax base and recovering 
collectable debt. 

 
The Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive added that the overall 
collection rate would likely continue to decrease if a change was not made.  The 
response from Devon County Council, shown in Appendix D of the report, in relation 
to the proposed changes, reassurances had been given to Devon County Council 
that the collection rates would likely increase as a result of the amendments to the 
scheme. 
 
RECOMMENDED that: 
   
(a) The Council Tax Reduction scheme, as detailed at Appendix A of the report, to help 

households on the lowest incomes be adopted; and 
 

(b) The amendment to include disregards for any emergency increases in national welfare 
benefits and certain crisis payments made to taxpayers (Local Welfare Provision). 

71.   URGENT DECISIONS TAKEN BY THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 

The Committee noted the urgent decisions that had been made by the Chief 
Executive in accordance with paragraph 3.45, Annex 2, part 3 of the Constitution 
(circulated previously) regarding the North Devon Policy Household Support Fund 3 
and the urgent works to 47 High Street, Green Lanes, Barnstaple. 
 
Chair 
The meeting ended at 12.20 pm 
 
NOTE: These minutes will be confirmed as a correct record at the next meeting of 
the Committee. 
 

Page 17

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



CONSULTATION CHECKLIST 
 

Report to: Strategy and Resources  

Date: 8 December 2022  

Topic: Animal Welfare Policy    

Author: Katy Nicholls  

 
 
Consultee Date 

consulted 
Consultee comments, and any 
response by author (in italics) 

Date signed off 
by consultee 

Lead Member if 
appointed 

N/A   

Ward Member(s) 
(if relates to a 
small area) 

N/A   

Legal 08.11.22 Adam Tape – no comments from me 11.11.22 

Finance 08.11.22 Jon Triggs – fine with me also.  08.11.22 

 

Head of Service  08.11.22 No comment  

Equality Impact 
and Needs 
Assessment  

14.11.22 Forwarded  

 

 

Environmental 
Donna Sibley  

08.11.22 Thanks this is obviously fine.  09.11.22 

Human 
Resources 

N/A N/A  

Others - list 08.11.22 Cllr David Worden – fine by me 

Ken Miles – no comment 

08.11.22 

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



 

North Devon Council 

Report Date: 5th December 2022 

Topic: Introduction of an Animal Licensing Policy  

Report by: Katy Nicholls, Public Protection Manager 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1. The purpose of this report is to seek to adopt a new Animal Licensing Policy 

found at Appendix A. 

 

2.1 RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1.1 Further to a recommendation made by Licensing and Community 

Safety Licensing Committee during their meeting of the 11 October 

2022, it is RECOMMENDED that Strategy and Resources Committee: 

 

2.1.1.1 Approve the introduction of a new animal licensing 

Policy in line with Appendix A to come into effect on 

the 1st January 2023.  

 

3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

3.1 To bring into effect a policy to aid applicants, licence holders and the Council. 

The aim being to provide transparency of the expectations for applicants and 

licence holders and to increase the robustness of the Council’s approach and 

procedures in respect of its animal welfare and animal licensing responsibilities. 

 

4 REPORT 

4.1 The Licensing and Community Safety Committee during their meeting of 10th 

May considered and approved a public consultation on a proposed North Devon 

Council Animal Licensing Policy.  

 

4.2 This policy set out details pertaining to enforcement and interpretation of 

legislative requirements and other matters such as: 

 

 how the Licensing Authority will administer the Animal Activity Star Rating 

Scheme in North Devon, including details of the time period proposed before 

a licence holder can be re-inspected to re-evaluate their star rating (3-month 

stand still period); 

 the procedure for appeals against the star rating awarded; and 

 details on how the suitability of applicants will be determined including DBS 

check requirements, and guidance on the relevance of criminal convictions; 

Page 21

Agenda Item 6
Appendix a



 
 

4.3 The Authority received some 61 responses in relation to the consultation 

exercise.  

 

4.4 Officers carefully considered all of the consultation responses received and 

drafted several amendments to the proposed policy. Amendments to the policy 

following the consultation include: 

 

- Minor amendment to the proposal to appoint an independent Vet to 

undertake hiring out horses activity inspections who will be independent 

and not one that is retained by the applicant / licence holder. The 

proposed amendment is that an independent vet will be used “wherever 

reasonably practicable”, and acknowledges that due to the relatively small 

number of specialist equine Vets in Devon, it may not always be possible 

or reasonable, to contract an independent Vet; 

- In relation to applicants who disclose relevant convictions the Policy has 

been amended to direct these applications to a Licensing Sub-Committee 

for determination. In the case of offences for animal cruelty, Licensing 

offences, or offences involving sex, indecency, or exploitation, the 

recommendation to the Licensing Sub-Committee will be to refuse the 

application, whereas for other relevant offences the recommendation will 

also be to refuse the application where the offences fall within the 

timeframes since conviction/ sentencing set out in the draft policy. It is 

proposed that Officers retain delegated powers to refuse applications 

where applicants are judged to fail to meet minimum welfare standards 

upon inspection; 

- It is proposed that the requirement for applicants for renewal to undertake 

a basic DBS disclosure as part of their application be delayed (suggested 

now until 1st April 2023 to enable adequate notice of the new 

arrangements to be communicated in good time within renewal 

documentation); 

- Amendment to requirement for applicants to provide evidence of a 

commercial trade waste agreement, to allow for some degree of Officer 

judgement where an application is from a small-scale operation or is likely 

to produce very small volumes of waste. 

4.5  During their meeting of the 11 October 2022, Licensing and Community 

Safety Licensing Committee considered the policy with the above outlined 

amendments, and made recommendation to Strategy and Resources 

Committee for its approval and implementation.  

 

5 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Page 22

Agenda Item 6
Appendix a



 
5.1 Any financial costs which are reduced or incurred through the approval of a new 

policy will be taken into account when calculating fees for animal related 

licences. 

 

5.2 Other costs related to the proposed policy amendments will be borne directly by 

licence holders. 

 

6 EQUALITIES ASSESSMENT 

6.1 The impact of the proposals is considered to be largely neutral. An Equality 

Impact Assessment has been undertaken. 

7. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT 

7.1  An environmental assessment has been undertaken and revealed a neutral 

impact. 

8 CONSTITUTIONAL CONTEXT 

8.1  Article of Part 3 Annexe 1 paragraph:4b 

8.2   Referred or delegated power?: Delegated. 

9 STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 

9.1 This report contains no confidential information or exempt information under 

the provisions of Schedule 12A of 1972 Act. 

10 BACKGROUND PAPERS 

10.1 The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report: 

(The background papers are available for inspection and kept by the author of 

the report). 

 The Animal Welfare (Licensing of Activities Involving Animals) (England) 

Regulations 2018 

 Animal activity licensing process: statutory guidance for local authorities 

 

11 STATEMENT OF INTERNAL ADVICE 

a. The author (below) confirms that advice has been taken from all 

appropriate Councillors and Officers: Katy Nicholls, Public Protection 

Manager 08.11.22 

Page 23

Agenda Item 6
Appendix a



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

            Animal Licensing Policy 2022 
 
 

 
Published by 

 
The Licensing Team 

Environmental Health & Housing Services 
North Devon Council 

Lynton House 
Barnstaple EX31 1DG 

 
Version 1.0 effective from 1 January 2023 

 

 

Telephone: 01271 388870 
customerservices@northdevon.gov.uk 

 
https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/licensing 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 25

Agenda Item 6
Appendix b

file:///C:/Users/User/Documents/North%20Devon/Animal%20Policy/customerservices@northdevon.gov.uk
https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/licensing


2 
 

Contents 
Section 1: Purpose ................................................................................................................ 3 

Section 2: Scope of Policy .................................................................................................... 3 

Section 3 The Legislative Framework ................................................................................... 3 

Section 4: Enforcement of the policy ..................................................................................... 5 

Section 5: Policy Application ............................................................................................... 76 

Section 6: The Animal Activity Star Rating Scheme .............................................................. 8 

Section 7: Suitability of Applicants....................................................................................... 12 

Section 8. Fees ................................................................................................................... 14 

Section 9. Application Process ........................................................................................ 1514 

Section 10. Powers of Inspectors .................................................................................... 1615 

Section 11. If a Licence Holder Dies ................................................................................... 16 

Section 12. Additional information ................................................................................... 1716 

Appendix A. Providing or Arranging Provision of Boarding for Cats or Dogs ................... 1817 

Appendix B. Selling Animals as Pets Licensing ............................................................... 2019 

Appendix C. Hiring out horses licensing .......................................................................... 2120 

Appendix D. Dog Breeding Licensing .............................................................................. 2221 

Appendix E. Keeping or Training Animals for Exhibition Licensing ...................................... 22 

Appendix F. Dangerous Wild Animal Licensing ............................................................... 2423 

Appendix G. Zoo Licensing ............................................................................................. 2726 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 26

Agenda Item 6
Appendix b



3 
 

Section 1: Purpose 
1.1 North Devon Council has statutory responsibilities for the licensing of a number of 

activities relating to the welfare of animals under the Animal Welfare (Licensing of 

Activities Involving Animals) (England) Regulations 2018, the Dangerous Wild Animals 

Act 1976, and the Zoo Licensing Act 1981. These pieces of legislation are aimed at 

protecting the welfare and safety of animals and those that interact with them and make 

it an offence for any person to possess, own, or keep animals in order to carry out 

certain businesses, or have possession of certain animals without first being licensed by 

the Council. 

 

1.2 The Council is required to ensure that: 

 licence holders are suitably inspected/ assessed against the regulation 

requirements; 

 individuals who apply for a licence and do not meet the regulation requirements 

for the grant of a new licence are refused a licence; 

 appropriate enforcement action is taken against operators carrying out, 

attempting to carry on, or knowingly allowing a licensable activity to be done 

without a licence or in contravention of regulations or licence conditions; 

 licences are not granted to individuals that are already disqualified from holding a 

licence or have previously had one revoked; 

 

 

 

Section 2: Scope of Policy 
2.1 This policy sets out the general principles that the Council will follow in relation to the 

provision and enforcement of animal licensing. The Policy describes the types of animal 

licensing matters that are likely to occur and how the Council will deal with them. 

2.2 The Council will also have regard to any statutory guidance issued in relation to any of 

the primary animal licensing Acts and associated Regulations. 

2.3 This Policy will ensure that the Council carries out its animal licensing responsibilities in 

a consistent and fair manner. 

 

Section 3 The Legislative Framework 
3.1 The Animal Welfare Act 2006 (“the Act”) consolidated and updated a range of previous 

legislation to promote the welfare of animals. This Act is the principal piece of legislation 

aimed at protecting animal welfare in England and Wales, and established set welfare 

standards that must be maintained by all people who are responsible for an animal. The Act 

also places responsibilities on to numerous enforcement agencies, including local 

authorities. 

3.2 The Act introduced a ‘duty of care’ on any person that is responsible for an animal to 

ensure that the needs of that animal are met, and created an offence of failing to provide for 

those needs. The Act also increased the penalties for animal abuse allowing the courts to 

disqualify a person from being in charge of animals. Any person disqualified under the Act is 

also disqualified from holding a licence under any of the animal licensing Regulations. 

Page 27

Agenda Item 6
Appendix b



4 
 

3.3 The Act gives powers to the Secretary of State for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs 

to pass regulations that may repeal or amend any of the primary licensing Acts or create 

new forms of licences, and these powers were used to create the Animal Welfare (Licensing 

of Activities Involving Animals) (England) Regulations 2018.  

3.4 Section 9 of the Animal Welfare Act 2006 creates five overarching principles of animal 

welfare. The Act refers to these as the ‘five needs’ of all animals. It is the duty of any person 

responsible for an animal to ensure that each of these five needs are met. 

3.5 The ‘five needs’ are:  

 The need for a suitable environment (by providing an appropriate environment, including 

shelter and a comfortable resting area);  

 The need for a suitable diet (by ready access, where appropriate, to fresh water and a diet 

to maintain full health);  

 The need to be able to exhibit normal behaviour patterns (by providing sufficient space, 

proper facilities and the company of an animal of its own kind, where appropriate);  

 Any need to be housed with, or apart from, other animals (by providing the company of an 

animal of its own kind, where appropriate); and  

 The need to be protected from pain, suffering, injury and disease (by prevention or rapid 

diagnosis and treatment, and ensuring conditions and treatment which avoid mental 

suffering). 

3.6 The Animal Welfare (Licensing of Activities Involving Animals) (England) Regulations 

2018 came into force in October 2018 and are made under section 13(7) and 13(8) of the 

Animal Welfare Act 2006. The regulations update and replace legislation for selling animals 

as pets, dog and cat boarding, dog breeding and riding establishments. In addition to this it 

introduces, for the first time, a licence regime for keeping and training animals for exhibition. 

Under Schedule 1 of the regulation, a licensable activity means one of five activities 

involving animals: 

 Selling animals as pets 

 Providing for or arranging for the provision of boarding for cats or dogs 

 Hiring out horses 

 Dog breeding 

 Keeping or training animals for exhibition 

 

3.7 The Dangerous Wild Animals Act 1976 dictates that a licence is required from the 

Council to keep certain animals that are considered wild, dangerous or exotic. A full list of 

animals that need a licence can be seen here: 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2007/2465/schedule/made. 

3.8 The Council does not support the licensing of primates under the Dangerous Wild 

Animals Act 1976 as ‘pets’ to live in the domestic premises. The Council recognises that 

primates are highly intelligent and can be potentially dangerous animals with complex needs 

that are highly unlikely to be met within a domestic environment.  

Page 28

Agenda Item 6
Appendix b

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2007/2465/schedule/made


5 
 

3.9 The Zoo Licensing Act 1981 dictates that a licence is required from the Council to display 

wild animals to the public for at least 7 days a year, in a place that is not a circus or a pet 

shop. 

 

Section 4: Enforcement of the policy 
4.1 The Council will seek to ensure compliance with the legislation outlined above and will 

carry out its duty in an appropriate and consistent manner according to the following 

principles:  

 seek to achieve compliance in an accountable, consistent, proportional, and transparent 

manner as stated in the stated in Section 2(3) of the Legislative and Regulatory Reform Act 

2006. Our enforcement activities will also be targeted at those cases in which action is 

required to ensure compliance;  

 seek to assist businesses and others in meeting their legal obligations through provision of 

reasonable assistance and advice, and aim to be clear, open and helpful in its approach to 

enforcement;  

 focus on prevention rather than cure, and in the context of animal licensing, in particular 

focus on risks to animal welfare;  

 seek to target enforcement resources at areas of highest risk to animal welfare and public 

safety, including non-compliant businesses and individuals/ partnerships;  

 take robust action against those who knowingly contravene the law or act irresponsibly;  

 where appropriate work in partnership with other regulatory or enforcement agencies to 

solve problems. Such bodies include the RSPCA, Police and Trading Standards. 

4.2 In carrying out its enforcement duties, the Council has adopted an enforcement policy, 

which is available to view here: link to follow 

4.3 We aim to achieve and maintain a consistent approach when we investigate complaints 

and make our decisions regarding enforcement. In reaching any decision we will consider, 

potentially amongst other things, the following criteria:  

 The seriousness of any offences or breach of conditions;  

 The previous compliance record of the business/ individual/ partnership; 

 The possible consequence(s) of non-compliance  

 The likely effectiveness of the various enforcement options available; and 

 The risk to the welfare of animals and/or the public; 

 

Suspension, Variation and Revocation of a licence 

4.4 Local Authorities can vary an animal activity licence at any time. This Council will 

consider varying licences where a variation will likely have a positive impact on animal 

welfare, or address an issue which was adversely impacting on animal welfare. This Council 

will seek to engage with Licence Holders to ensure that any variations are both reasonable 

and practical. 

Page 29

Agenda Item 6
Appendix b



6 
 

4.5 This Council will also give consideration to suspending, varying, or revoking a licence 

without the consent of the Licence Holder where: 

• the licence conditions are not being complied with; 

• regulations are breached; 

• information supplied by the licence holder is false or misleading; 

• it is necessary to protect the welfare of an animal; 

4.6 This Council will take a graduated approach to considering these measures, and in all 

instances will first consider if compliance and protection of animal welfare can be achieved 

by variation of the licence. Where it is not considered possible to achieve this via licence 

variation then suspension or revocation will be considered, in particular where poor 

standards of animal welfare are identified, or where the Licence Holder has a previous poor 

compliance record. 

4.7 Where a licence is varied, suspended, or revoked, the Council will provide notice of this 

in writing, and include the following information: 

• the reasoning behind the decision; 

• when the change will come into effect; 

• the licence holder’s rights (including how to appeal the decision); 

• specific details of any works/ issues requiring resolution before a suspension can be 

lifted; 

4.8 A suspension, variation or revocation of a licence will ordinarily take effect 7 working 

days after the decision has been issued to the licence holder. The exception to this is where 

the reason for the action is to protect animal welfare, in which case the effect of the notice is 

immediate (via powers conferred on the Licensing Authority under Section 16 (2) of the 

Animal Welfare (Licensing of Activities Involving Animals) (England) Regulations 2018). 

4.9 During the 7 days before the notice takes effect (unless the notice has immediate effect), 

the Licence Holder can make written representation to the Council. The Council will then 

consider these representations, provide a respond within 7 working days, and either: 

• Continue with the licence suspension, variation or revocation; or 

• Cancel the decision to make changes to the licence 

 

4.10 Licence Holders have 28 days to appeal against the decision, and if the licence is 

suspended or revoked cannot trade again until the suspension or revocation is lifted 

following: 

 the Council being satisfied that licence conditions are being met; or 

 the first-tier tribunal finding in favour of the Licence Holder that the Council’s decision 

was incorrect; 

 

Page 30

Agenda Item 6
Appendix b



7 
 

Section 5: Policy Application 
5.1 The Animal Welfare Act 2006 and associated Regulations outline individual application 

requirements and mandatory conditions that the Council must be satisfied with before it can 

grant a licence. The Animal Welfare (Licensing of Activities Involving Animals) (England) 

Regulations 2018 gives the Council powers to apply conditions to each Licence it grants in 

addition to the mandatory conditions set out in the statutory guidance for each category of 

animal activity licence. 

5.2 The principal purpose of requiring a licence is to safeguard animal welfare, and the 

Council will keep this objective in mind at all times when undertaking its animal licensing 

duties. 

5.3 The Council will inspect premises in accordance with legislative requirements, veterinary 

advice and any statutory codes of practice before issuing or renewing a licence. Inspections 

will involve both programmed/ announced inspections as well as unannounced inspections 

such as to provide confidence as to the level of compliance of a licence holder/ applicant. 

Whether an inspection needs to be announced or unannounced depends on the reason for 

the inspection. For example, if there’s a complaint or information that an animal’s welfare is 

at risk it is likely that an inspector will make unannounced re-inspections to make sure 

compliance is checked thoroughly.  

5.4 Where appropriate or required (such as the case with riding stables and initial dog 

breeding inspections), inspections will be carried out with a qualified/ registered vet. Where 

inspections identify areas of concern which cannot be addressed by the licence conditions, 

officers will consider the use of the Animal Welfare Act 2006 and/or liaise with other 

organisations such as the RSPCA. 

5.5 The Council will make reasonable efforts to investigate reports and intelligence relating 

to unlicensed establishments and/or breaches of conditions, respond to any issues, and 

where necessary take enforcement action in-line with the Councils Enforcement Policy.  

5.6 When carrying out its functions under the primary licensing Acts the Council will seek to 

promote the following objectives:  

 The five needs as set out in the Animal Welfare Act 

  Public safety  

 Integration with other relevant strategies and legal requirements  

 Positive relations with licence holders and proportionate regulation 

5.7 In addition to the danger to the welfare of animals by unlicensed or irresponsible animal 

owners, there is also a danger that may arise to members of the public. For example, poor 

standards of hygiene could lead to a risk of diseases spreading and affecting other members 

of the public and their animals. Additionally, licence holders that permit members of the 

public onto their premises have a legal duty to ensure that they do not put them at risk of 

illness or injury. Public safety will therefore be a paramount consideration by the Council at 

all times. 

5.8 In addition to being licensed to carry out animal activities a licence holder and their 

premises may need to comply with other legislation such as planning and building 

regulations. Where the appropriate permissions or consents are not in place, or where they 

are being breached, the Council may take enforcement action which could lead the closure 

Page 31

Agenda Item 6
Appendix b



8 
 

of such premises and consequently adversely impact on the welfare of any animals 

accommodated there. As a result the Council will not grant a licence where the appropriate 

planning permissions or building control consents are not in place, or may revoke a licence 

where such legislation, regulation or conditions are breached. 

5.9 The statutory guidance accompanying each of the primary licensing regulations state 

clearly the mandatory conditions and minimum standards which the Council must be 

satisfied are complied with before any licence is granted. Where the relevant Licensing 

Officer is not satisfied that the relevant legal requirements and mandatory conditions are 

met, or where an Environmental Health Officer of the Council or Veterinary Surgeon has 

raised concerns that the legal requirements or standards are not met, or unlikely to be met, 

the applicant for the licence will be notified. The applicant will have the opportunity to 

address these matters in the hope of satisfying the relevant criteria. 

5.10 If the relevant Licensing Officer feels that an application should be refused, they will 

providesubmit a letterreport to the applicant explaining the reasons for refusal, and a notice 

of refusal detailing how the decision can be appealed. a Licensing Sub-Committee to determine 

the matter. 

Section 6: The Animal Activity Star Rating Scheme 
6.1 For animal activities other than keeping or training animals for exhibition a star rating will 

be given.  

6.2 In Line with Statutory Guidance to Local authorities, applicants will be given a star rating 

ranging from 1 to 5, based on their compliance history and the results of their inspection. 

This also applies if an applicant asks for a re-inspection. 

6.3 Applicants/ Licence holders should be aware that the Council may amend their star 

rating after a routine revisit or unannounced inspection. For example, a star rating could go 

down after an unannounced inspection to investigate an animal welfare complaint. 

6.4 The Council will provide feedback on the star rating they have given following 

inspections which will include the following:  

 The star rating 

 Details of why this rating was given. This will include a list of the higher standards 

that the business currently fails to meet, or a list of the minimum standards that the 

business is failing to meet if it is considered to be in the minor failing category.  

 Details of the appeals process and the deadline by which an appeal must be made 

 

Granting or renewing a licence: risk-based approach 

6.5 In determining the star rating of a business the Council will adopt a risk-based approach. 

The Council will consider the following matters as part of its risk-based approach: 

 The compliance history of the individual applying for the licence – poorer compliance 

history will be interpreted as higher risk 

 The animal welfare standards observed - whether they have minor failings, follow 

minimum standards or already operate at a higher standard 

Page 32

Agenda Item 6
Appendix b



9 
 

6.6 In addition to the above The Council will also consider the following questions based on 

the inspection and on records of past compliance: 

 Does the applicant/ business meet the minimum standards? 

 Does the applicant/ business meet the higher standards? 

 Is the applicant/ business low or higher risk? 

 

 

 

The Animal activity star rating system 

              Minor Failings                                 Minimum standards                          Higher standards 

Low      1 star rating, 1 year licence,        3 star-rating, 2-year licence,         5-star rating, 3-year licence 

risk       at least 1 unannounced visit       at least 1 unannounced visit         at least 1 unannounced visit                                   

              within 12 months                          within 24 months                            within 36 months 

 

High     1 star rating, 1 year licence,         2-star rating, 1 year licence           4-star rating, 2-year licence 

Risk      at Least 1 unannounced visit       at least 1 unannounced visit        at least 1 unannounced visit 

              within 12 months                          within 12 months                            within 24 months 

 

6.7 New applicants that do not have one year of compliance history with a local authority or 

a UKAS-accredited body will be automatically rated as high risk. The length of time the 

licence is granted for in these instances will depend on whether the new applicant meets the 

specified higher standards of animal welfare, or the minimum standards. 

6.8 For renewal applications, the length of time the licence is granted for will depend on their 

risk rating and welfare standards at inspection. The licence length can be up to 3 years. 

6.9 Where any failings compromise the welfare of animals a licence will not be granted or 

renewed.  

6.10 All of the minimum standards outlined in the relevant licensable animal activity guides 

must also be met. Failure to do so will lead to refusal to grant or renew the licence.  

6.11 In cases where Licence holders conduct multiple types of animal activity categories, 

they will only receive one rating to cover all of the activities they undertake. Each activity will 

be considered and rated separately before the final score is awarded overall. In accordance 

with the statutory guidance to Local Authorities, the star rating will be rounded down if the 

licence holder is operating with lower standards for one activity than another. For example, if 

an applicant meets the higher standards for dog breeding and the minimum standards for 

dog boarding, the overall score will reflect the lower of the two. 

6.12 As per the risk scoring matrix set out above, the Animal Activity rating scheme requires 

inspections to be carried out during the term of a licence, and the star rating may be varied 

at that time if the level of compliance identified at that time has gone up or down.  

Page 33

Agenda Item 6
Appendix b



10 
 

6.13 For the activity of hiring out horses, there is a requirement for an annual inspection by a 

Veterinarian listed on the Royal College of Veterinary Surgeons Riding Establishments 

Inspectorate List. It is the Council’s policy wherever reasonably practicable to appoint the 

Veterinarian to undertake the inspection who will be independent and not one that is 

retained by the applicant / licence holder. 

Exception: keeping or training animals for exhibition  

6.14 As stated above, the only exception to the risk-based approach is for the activity of 

keeping or training animals for exhibition. All licences for the activity of keeping or training 

animals for exhibition can be granted for 3 years. This is done on the basis that these 

activities have been subject to a simple registration system. A risk assessment is not 

undertaken for this animal activity as a star rating is not issued.  

 

Higher standards 

6.15 Optional higher standards have also been set out in the relevant animal activity guides, 

and achieving compliance with the higher standards is the only way of obtaining a 4- or 5-

star rating. 

6.16 In order to qualify for consideration at the higher standard, the applicant/ business must 

meet: 

 100% of the higher standards classified in the guidance as required; 

 50% (or more) of the higher standards classified in the guidance as optional. 

 

Star rating appeal procedure  

6.17 Before considering an appeal against a star rating awarded licence holders are strongly 

encouraged to discuss the rating with the inspecting Officer first. The Officer will already 

have provided a detailed written explanation of the rating awarded, and will be happy to 

explain this further. In many instances this may resolve the matter and avoid the need for an 

appeal.  

6.18 In order to appeal against a star rating the applicant should contact North Devon 

Council in writing within 21 days of receiving their rating, clearly setting out how they think 

that the rating awarded does not reflect the animal welfare standards and risk level at the 

time of inspection via the following address/ email address: 

FAO Licensing Lead Officer, Licensing Team, North Devon Council, Barnstaple, Devon, 

EX32 2GR 

Licensing@northdevon.gov.uk  

 6.19 Appeals will be determined by a senior Officer (Public Protection ManagerLicensing 

Lead Officer or Head of PlanningEnvironmental Health and Housing and HealthServices), 

within 21 days of receiving the appeal, and may involve the following: 

 Review of inspection notes, inspection report, and comparison of those documents 

with the appeal documents; 

 Review of the past compliance history of the licence holder; 

 A further visit to the Licenced Premises; 

Page 34

Agenda Item 6
Appendix b

mailto:Licensing@northdevon.gov.uk


11 
 

 Additional advice from relevant animal welfare experts (for example specialist 

veterinary advice, or dog behaviour therapist input); 

6.20 The cost of any additional inspections or specialist support/ advice will be borne by the 

appeal applicant except where the appeal results in a higher rating being awarded, in which 

case the cost will be borne by the Council.  

6.21 If an appeal applicant disagrees with the outcome of the appeal, then they can make a 

corporate complaint via the link below, or refer the matter to the Local Government 

Ombudsman: 

https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/council/feedback-complaints-whistleblowing-and-

insurance/complaints-procedure/ 

 

Refusing a licence  

6.22 Local Authorities are required to refuse a licence/ renewal application in the following 

circumstances: 

 If they consider that the applicant cannot meet the mandatory licence conditions and 

minimum standards; 

 If they are concerned that issuing the licence may negatively impact on animal 

welfare; 

 If the housing, staffing or management are inadequate for the animals’ wellbeing or 

for the activity or facility to be run properly; 

 If an operator who has been disqualified from holding a licence previously under 

Section 34 or 42 of the Animal Welfare Act 2006. 

6.23 The Council may also refuse a Licence If it determines that the applicant is not a fit and 

proper person, for example where the applicant has relevant offences as listed in Section 7 

below. 

6.24 In such circumstances the Council will provide the applicant with a notice of refusal 

which will clearly set out the reasons for the application being refused, and detail how the 

applicant can appeal against the decision (appeal to a First Tier Tribunal (General 

Regulatory Chamber), within 28 days of receiving the notice of refusal).  

 

Reinspection requests  

6.25 Licence Holders given a rating between 1-star and 4-stars who have accepted their 

rating but have made improvements since that time can request a reinspection for a re-

rating. A minimum period of three months must have elapsed between the rating being 

issued, and the date of reinspection. The reasoning for this is that it is considered that if 

improvements can be sustained for a period of three months or more, then they are more 

likely to be sustained in the longer term of the licence. A Licence holder can apply for a 

reinspection prior to the three-month standstill period being up, but the reinspection itself will 

not be undertaken until at least three months has elapsed.  

6.26 Requests for reinspection should be made in writing and include the following: 

 an outline of the reasons why the licence holder feels they should receive a 

reinspection; 

Page 35

Agenda Item 6
Appendix b

https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/council/feedback-complaints-whistleblowing-and-insurance/complaints-procedure/
https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/council/feedback-complaints-whistleblowing-and-insurance/complaints-procedure/


12 
 

 details of the improvements made to compliance or welfare since the inspection;  

 supporting evidence, if appropriate, for example photographs and invoices for works 

undertaken/ items purchased; 

6.27 If the case for reinspection made by the Licence Holder is not substantiated or 

insufficient evidence is provided, then the Council may refuse the request to reinspect. If the 

request is refused then the Licence holder will be provided with a written explanation 

including details of the outstanding matters requiring attention before a reinspection will be 

undertaken. 

6.28 Where a request for reinspection is accepted by the Council then a reinspection will be 

undertaken within three months of the request being received.  

6.29 Reinspection visits may be undertaken either announced or unannounced (depending 

on the original inspection findings and the type of premises involved), and Licence Holders 

should be aware that depending on the re-inspection findings their star rating may go up, 

down, or remain the same. 

6.30 There is no limit on the number of re-inspections that can be requested, but in each 

case the request for reinspection must include the information set out above. The Licence 

holder will be required to pay the current inspection fee for the re-inspection, and will be 

liable for an additional charge where a veterinarian is also required to be in attendance. 

 

Section 7: Suitability of Applicants 
7.1 In accordance with the Animal Welfare (Licensing of Activities Involving Animals) 

(England) Regulations 2018, any individual who carries on a licensable activity will be 

designated as the ‘operator’ of the business and can apply for a licence, providing they are 

not already disqualified from holding a licence in accordance with the Regulations. 

7.2 In order to ensure compliance with our duties to ensure that an individual has not been 

disqualified from holding a licence the Council will require new applicants to provide a basic 

disclosure certificate (DBS) alongside their application. The Disclosure and Barring Service 

certificate must be marked with an issue date no more than 3 calendar months before the 

date of application.  

7.3 Existing Licence holders will be required to provide a basic disclosure certificate as part 

of their renewal application from 1st April  2023 onwards. As with new applicants the 

Disclosure and Barring Service certificate must be dated no more than 3 calendar months 

before the date of application. 

7.4 A Basic Disclosure will be required of all those applicants listed in the application 

(individuals, partners, and directors). 

7.5 DBS checks must show that the applicant (or applicants) are not disqualified from 

holding a licence, and/or hold no relevant convictions which may affect whether they are a ‘fit 

and proper’ person to hold a licence. 

7.6 A licence will only be granted where the Council is satisfied that the applicant is a fit and 

proper person to be the operator for the animal licence applied for. Fitness and propriety to 

hold a licence is a familiar concept within licensing, but is not legally defined within the 

context of animal licensing. For the purpose of this Policy, the Council will consider a ‘fit and 

proper person’ to be an individual who can demonstrate upon application that they have:  

Page 36

Agenda Item 6
Appendix b



13 
 

 the right to work in the UK  

 no relevant convictions  

 not been disqualified from holding a licence  

 the knowledge, experience, compliance history and ability to give reasonable confidence 

that they can comply with licence conditions and safeguard the welfare of animals in their 

care  

 made suitable management and training arrangements to ensure the safety and welfare of 

any staff and/or members of the public who may be affected by the licensed activity. 

 7.7 This does not limit the scope of the fitness and propriety assessment and the Council 

may take into account other matters considered relevant to the licensing process. 

Relevance of convictions  

7.8 The purpose of this section is to offer guidance on how the Council will determine 

whether an applicant or licence holder is suitable to either be granted a licence in the first 

place or retain a licence under the Regulations. In all cases, the Licensing Authority will 

consider the conviction or behaviour in question and what weight should be attached to it, 

and each and every case will be determined on its own merits, and in the light of these 

guidelines. 

7.9 In addition to the nature of the offence, the quantity of matters and the period over which 

they were committed will also be considered. Patterns of repeated unacceptable or criminal 

behaviour are likely to cause greater concern than isolated occurrences as such patterns 

can demonstrate a propensity for such behaviour or offending. 

7.10 Most applicants or licensees will have no convictions and that is clearly the ideal 

situation. In relation to other people, it is accepted that human beings do make mistakes and 

lapse in their conduct for a variety of reasons, and it is further accepted that many learn from 

experience and do not go on to commit further offences. Accordingly, in many cases an 

isolated conviction, especially if committed some time ago, may not prevent the grant or 

renewal of a licence. 

7.11 Where a situation is not covered by these guidelines, the Licensing Authority will 

consider the matter from first principles and determine the fitness and propriety of the 

individual. 

7.12 Where an applicant or licensee has been convicted of any offence that is related to 

animal cruelty or suffering the recommendation to the Licensing Sub-Committee will be to 

refuse the application for a licence, or in the case of an existing licence holder revoke the 

licence. The reason for this is that the main purpose of the Animal Licensing Regulations is 

to ensure the welfare of animals, and as such these types of offences are highly relevant. 

7.13 The Council will also not normally grant a licence to a person with one (or more) 

conviction for any offence that is related to licensing as these offences demonstrate a 

disregard for licensing processes and procedures. In such cases the recommendation to the 

Licensing Sub-Committee will be to refuse the application for a licence, or in the case of an 

existing licence holder revoke the licence. 

7.14 In addition to the above, the Council also has wider obligations to safeguard both 

children and vulnerable adults. These obligations arise from the Children Act 2004; and the 

Care Act 2014. As a result, the recommendation to the Licensing Sub-Committee will be to 

Page 37

Agenda Item 6
Appendix b



14 
 

refuse the application for a licence, or in the case of an existing licence holder revoke the 

licence where an applicant or licence holder hasCouncil will not grant a licence to a person 

with  a conviction for Sex and indecency offences or exploitation offences (abuse, 

exploitation, use or treatment of another individual irrespective of whether the victim or 

victims were adults or children).  

7.15 In relation to single convictions, the following minimum time periods should elapse 

following completion of the sentence (or the date of conviction if a fine was imposed) before 

a licence will be granted or renewed without referral to a Licensing Sub-Committee. Where 

the time period that has elapsed following completion of the sentence (or the date of 

conviction if a fine was imposed) is less than the time periods listed below, the 

recommendation to the Licensing Sub-Committee will be to refuse the application. This 

places public safety as a highthe priority while enabling past offenders to sufficiently 

evidence that they have been successfully rehabilitated so that they might obtain or retain a 

licence: 

 Offences involving violence- 10 years; 

 Possession of a weapon- 7 years; 

 Offences involving dishonesty- 7 years; 

 Offences involving drugs- 10 years 

7.16 Upon receipt of the certificate from the Disclosure & Barring Service, an Officer of the 

Licensing Authority will compare any disclosed information with the adopted policies relating 

to relevance of convictions. Where relevant convictions are disclosed the application will be 

referred to and determine whether the applicant should be referred to a Licensing Sub -

committee for them to determine whether the applicant is fit and proper to hold a licence. 

 

Section 8. Fees 
8.1 The current table of fees for animal licensing can be found on the Council’s webpages:  

https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/council/charges-for-council-facilities-and-

services/environmental-health-and-all-licensing-fees/ 

8.2 In accordance with relevant legislation on fees and charges by a public authority, the 

fees for each licence are made up of two parts, Part A and Part B. Part A covers the direct 

costs associated with processing the application and is payable on submission of the 

application. Part B covers the costs associated with the running of the licensing function. 

This includes dealing with complaints, enforcement and general administration. This fee is 

payable once a licence has been granted but must be paid before the licence becomes 

operational and valid (the licence will not be issued until such time as Part B of the fee has 

been paid in full). 

8.3 In the event that following payment of the Part A fee, the Council determines not to issue 

a licence (in accordance with the rationale set out in Section 6 and 7 above), then no refund 

will be issued, as the Council will have incurred reasonable costs in determining the 

application whether the licence is issued or not.  

8.4 Establishments licensed to hire out horses are required to have an annual veterinary 

inspection, the cost of which will be charged to the licence holder after the inspection has 

Page 38

Agenda Item 6
Appendix b



15 
 

taken place, unless it is part of the licence renewal application, in which case, please refer to 

section 9.2 

 

Section 9. Application Process 
9.1 Licence applications must be submitted on the relevant application form, accompanied 

by any supporting information requested (such as a basic disclosure certificate and proof of 

right to work), and with the application fee paid (the Part A fee). Inspection of the proposed 

licenced premises to determine the suitability for licensing will only be undertaken once the 

above requirements have been satisfied.  

9.2 In the case of an application for breeding of dogs (grant applications only unless 

exceptional circumstances), and hiring out horses (grant and renewal applications), the 

required veterinary fee will also need to be paid prior to any inspection being undertaken.  

9.3 Once a valid application has been received (all relevant information received/ included, 

and Part A fees paid), the Council will in accordance with statutory guidance for animal 

activity licensing undertake the following: 

 Consider whether the conduct displayed by the applicant indicates that they are a fit 

and proper person to carry out the licensable activity and meet the licence conditions.  

 Inspect the site of the licensable activity and assess if it is likely to meet the licence 

conditions. The inspection will be completed by a suitably qualified inspector (as well 

as a veterinarian for the initial inspection of a dog breeding establishment, or a listed 

veterinarian for inspections of horse-riding establishments). The inspector will 

prepare a report, in accordance with the requirements of the Regulations, to be 

submitted to the Council following their inspection. 

 The inspector’s report will contain information about the operator, any relevant 

premises, any relevant records, the condition of any animals and any other relevant 

matter, and state whether or not the inspector considers that the licence conditions 

will be met. 

9.4 The inspecting Officers recommendation whether or not to issue a licence will principally 

be based on the standards witnessed at the time of inspection.  

9.4 If the Inspecting Officer recommends that a Licence should be issued then the applicant 

will be contacted to request the Part B element of the fees be paid. Following receipt of the 

Part B fee, the Licence will be issued, accompanied with a covering lettern inspection report 

which will contain a detailed written explanation of the star rating awarded. 

9.5 Although not a statutory requirement, the Council will aim to provide licence holders with 

3 months’ notice of when their licence is due to expire. Licence holders must then submit an 

application at least 10 weeks before their licence expires to continue the activity without a 

break. It is the licence holder’s responsibility to ensure that any renewal application is made 

in good time, and the Council cannot be held responsible for any delays or lapses of a 

licence caused by an incomplete or late application. 

 

Page 39

Agenda Item 6
Appendix b



16 
 

Section 10. Powers of Inspectors 
10.1 Section 30 of the Animal Welfare Act 2006 allows local authorities to prosecute for any 

offences under that Act. Prosecution proceedings will be considered in accordance with the 

Council Enforcement Policy.  

10.2 The Animal Welfare (Licensing of Activities Involving Animals) (England) Regulations 

2018, introduced a range of enforcement powers to allow the Council to issue a suspension, 

variation or revocation notice where licence conditions are not being complied with; where 

there is a breach of the regulations; or issues relating to the protection of the welfare of an 

animal (as set out further in Section 4 previously). 

10.2 Anyone who carries on any of the licensable activities without a licence is committing a 

criminal offence and is liable to imprisonment for a term of up to six months, a fine or both. 

10.3 It is a criminal offence to breach any licence condition. It is also a criminal offence not to 

comply with an inspector’s request with regards to taking a sample from an animal. 

10.4 It is a criminal offence to obstruct an inspector who has been appointed by a local 

authority to enforce the Regulations. Committing any of these offences could result in an 

unlimited fine. 

10.5 Inspectors have a right of entry to premises for the purpose of undertaking a licence 

inspection or checking whether an animal activity licence is required. An inspector does not 

have right of entry to any part of site premises used as a private dwelling, unless they give 

24 hours’ notice to the occupier. Section 62 of the Animal Welfare Act 2006 contains a 

definition of what would constitute a private dwelling, and an Inspector may enter this part of 

the premises without 24-hours-notice if given permission by the occupier. Where a request 

for entry is refused, Section 23 of the Animal Welfare Act makes provision for application for 

a warrant of entry.  

10.6 The Regulations also make provision for the inspectors to take samples for laboratory 

testing from any animals on premises occupied by an operator, for the purposes of ensuring 

the licence conditions are being complied with. A licence holder must comply with any 

reasonable request of an inspector to facilitate the identification and examination of an 

animal and the taking of samples and, in particular, must arrange the suitable restraint of an 

animal if requested by an inspector (the provision for sampling is primarily aimed at 

veterinarians carrying out inspections on behalf of the Council). 

 

Section 11. If a Licence Holder Dies 
11.1 If a licence holder dies, the procedure in regulation 12 of the Animal Welfare (Licensing 

of Activities Involving Animals) (England) Regulations 2018 applies. This allows the personal 

representative of the deceased to take on the licence, provided that they inform the local 

authority within 28 days of the death that they are now the operators of the licensable 

activity. 

11.2 The licence will remain in place for 3 months from the death of the former licence 

holder, or for the rest of the time it was due to remain in force if that time period is shorter. 

11.3 The new licence holder should apply for a new licence one month before the expiry of 

this new period. If the personal representative does not notify the local authority within 28 

Page 40

Agenda Item 6
Appendix b



17 
 

days of the death of the licence holder, the licence will cease to have effect after those 28 

days. 

11.4 The Council will give consideration to extending the 3-month period up to 6 months if 

requested by the representative and if they believe this time is needed to wind up the estate 

of the former licence holder. 

 

Section 12. Additional information  
12.1 The Council has additional information available online, including application forms, 

guidance documents and details on conditions. These can be seen here: 

https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/animal-licences/ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 41

Agenda Item 6
Appendix b

https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/animal-licences/


18 
 

 

 

Appendix A. Providing or Arranging Provision of Boarding for Cats or 

Dogs 
 

A1. All dog and cat boarding activities need a licence if they are carried out as a commercial 

business. Further information on whether an activity would be considered a commercial 

business is contained in the relevant statutory guidance which the Council will have regard 

to. 

A2. To be in scope, they must:  

 provide housing for other people’s dogs or cats, where the provision of that housing 

is part or solely the activity of the business  

 arrange housing for other people’s dogs - for example, businesses which connect pet 

owners with people willing to look after their animals for no fee, just minor expenses 

 provide overnight housing for cats in purpose-built cattery units 

 home board cats, when they are kept in cattery units 

 provide daytime housing for other people’s dogs, as part of, or as the only activity of, 

the business 

A3. An application for a licence must be made to the Council on its application form, which is 

available from the Council’s website: 

https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/animal-licences/animal-

welfare-licences/ 

A4. Before granting a licence the Council must be satisfied that an establishment is 

compliant with at least the minimum standards outlined under the relevant statutory 

guidance: 

- Cat boarding Licensing:  

https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Cat-Boarding-

Guidance.pdf  

- Home boarding for dogs licensing:  

https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Home-

Boarding-for-Dogs-Guidance.pdf 

- Dog day care licensing:  

https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Dog-Day-

Care-Guidance.pdf 

- Dog kennel boarding licensing:  

https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Commercial-

Dog-Boarding-Guidance.pdf 

A5. If the Council are satisfied that the requirements of the statutory guidance 

documents are met, and there are no other concerns about the welfare of animals or the 

objectives of this policy being undermined, the licence will be granted. 

A6. The Council may attach any condition to the licence that it feels are necessary and 

expedient for securing the objectives above. 

Page 42

Agenda Item 6
Appendix b

https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/animal-licences/animal-welfare-licences/
https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/animal-licences/animal-welfare-licences/
https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Cat-Boarding-Guidance.pdf
https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Cat-Boarding-Guidance.pdf
https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Home-Boarding-for-Dogs-Guidance.pdf
https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Home-Boarding-for-Dogs-Guidance.pdf
https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Dog-Day-Care-Guidance.pdf
https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Dog-Day-Care-Guidance.pdf
https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Commercial-Dog-Boarding-Guidance.pdf
https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Commercial-Dog-Boarding-Guidance.pdf


19 
 

A7. If the Council have any concerns about the welfare of the animals kept under this 

licence, it may request that a vet conducts a further visit to ascertain if the measures in 

place are acceptable which would be chargeable to the licence holder. 

A8 All dog and cat boarding activities undertaken as a commercial business should have 

a trade waste contract, and inspecting Officers will request evidence of this at the time of 

inspection. For those dog and cat boarding establishments of smaller scale, for the sake 

of clarity, Officers will expect to see evidence of a trade waste contract where 5 or more 

dogs or cats are accommodated at any time.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 43

Agenda Item 6
Appendix b



20 
 

 

Appendix B. Selling Animals as Pets Licensing 
B1 All selling animals as pets activities need a licence if they’re carried out as a commercial 

business. Further information on whether an activity would be considered a commercial 

business is contained in the relevant statutory guidance on selling animals as pets licensing, 

which the Council will have regard to.  This activity licence does not include the sale of 

animals in the course of aquacultural production, or the breeding of dogs (this is a separate 

form of animal activity licence). 

B2 An application for a licence must be made to the Council on its application form, which is 

available from the Council’s website: 

https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/animal-licences/animal-

welfare-licences/ 

B3. Before granting a licence the Council must be satisfied that an establishment is 

compliant with at least the minimum standards outlined under the statutory guidance:  

https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Selling-Animals-as-

Pets-Guidance.pdf 

B4. If the Council are satisfied that the requirements of the statutory guidance document are 

met, and there are no other concerns about the welfare of animals or the objectives of this 

policy being undermined, the licence will be granted. 

B5. The Council may attach any condition to the licence that it feels are necessary and 

expedient for securing the objectives above. 

B6. If the Council have any concerns about the welfare of the animals kept under this 

licence, it may request that a vet conducts a further visit to ascertain if the measures in place 

are acceptable which would be chargeable to the licence holder. 

B7 All selling animals as pets undertaken as a commercial business should have a trade 

waste contract, and inspecting Officers will request evidence of this at the time of inspection.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 44

Agenda Item 6
Appendix b

https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/animal-licences/animal-welfare-licences/
https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/animal-licences/animal-welfare-licences/
https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Selling-Animals-as-Pets-Guidance.pdf
https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Selling-Animals-as-Pets-Guidance.pdf


21 
 

Appendix C. Hiring out horses licensing 
C1 All activities involving hiring out horses for riding, or instruction in riding, need to have a 

licence if they’re carried out as a commercial business. Further information on whether an 

activity would be considered a commercial business is contained in the relevant statutory 

guidance on Hiring out horses licensing, which the Council will have regard to. 

C2 To be in scope they must hire out horses for riding, or instruction in riding. This could 

include:  

- riding schools  

- loan horses  

- hunter hirelings  

- pony and donkey rides  

- polo instruction  

- pony parties where the ponies are ridden 

C3 For the hiring of horses, a listed Veterinarian must be appointed for the initial inspection, 

for a renewal inspection, and for the annual inspection for the hiring of horses. It is the 

Council’s policy wherever reasonably practicable to appoint athe Veterinarian to undertake 

the inspection who will be independent and not one that is retained by the applicant / licence 

holder. 

C4 An application for a licence must be made to the Council on its application form, which is 

available from the Council’s website: 

https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/animal-licences/animal-

welfare-licences/ 

C5 Before granting a licence the Council must be satisfied that an establishment is compliant 

with at least the minimum standards outlined under the statutory guidance: 

https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Hiring-Out-of-Horses-

Guidance.pdf 

C6 If the Council are satisfied that the requirements of the statutory guidance document are 

met, and there are no other concerns about the welfare of animals or the objectives of this 

policy being undermined, the licence will be granted. 

C7 The Council may attach any condition to the licence that it feels are necessary and 

expedient for securing the objectives above. 

C8 If the Council have any concerns about the welfare of the animals kept under this licence, 

it may request that a vet conducts a further visit to ascertain if the measures in place are 

acceptable which would be chargeable to the licence holder. 

C9 WhereAll hiring out horses is undertaken as a commercial business Officers will 

generally require the business to should have a trade waste contract, and inspecting Officers 

will request evidence of this at the time of inspection. Smaller scale operations that are able 

to show evidence of satisfactory recycling and waste control may be exempted from being 

required to have a trade waste contract. 

 
 

 

Page 45

Agenda Item 6
Appendix b

https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/animal-licences/animal-welfare-licences/
https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/animal-licences/animal-welfare-licences/
https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Hiring-Out-of-Horses-Guidance.pdf
https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Hiring-Out-of-Horses-Guidance.pdf


22 
 

Appendix D. Dog Breeding Licensing 
D1 All activities involving dog breeding, need to have a licence if they’re carried out as a 

commercial business. Further information on whether an activity would be considered a 

commercial business is contained in the relevant statutory guidance on dog breeding 

licensing, which the Council will have regard to. In particular, there is a limit on the number of 

litters that dog breeders can have without a licence unless a breeder can prove that they will 

not sell any of the puppies from these litters as puppies or adults. 

D2 To be in scope, they must:  

 breed 3 or more litters of puppies per year (unless they can show that none of the 

puppies have been sold as puppies or adults)  

 be breeding puppies and advertising a business of selling them (as defined under the 

business test) 

D3 A vet must be appointed for the initial inspection for the licensed application for the 

breeding of dogs. It is the Council’s policy to appoint the Veterinarian to undertake the 

inspection who will be independent and not one that is retained by the applicant / licence 

holder. 

D4 An application for a licence must be made to the Council on its application form, which is 

available from the Council’s website: 

https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/animal-licences/animal-

welfare-licences/ 

D5 Before granting a licence the Council must be satisfied that an establishment is compliant 

with at least the minimum standards outlined under the statutory guidance: 

https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Dog-Breeding-

Guidance.pdf 

D6 If the Council are satisfied that the requirements of the statutory guidance document are 

met, and there are no other concerns about the welfare of animals or the objectives of this 

policy being undermined, the licence will be granted. 

D7 The Council may attach any condition to the licence that it feels are necessary and 

expedient for securing the objectives above. 

D8 If the Council have any concerns about the welfare of the animals kept under this licence, 

it may request that a vet conducts a further visit to ascertain if the measures in place are 

acceptable which would be chargeable to the licence holder. 

D9 All dog breeding undertaken as a commercial business should have a trade waste 

contract, and inspecting Officers will request evidence of this at the time of inspection. 

Appendix E. Keeping or Training Animals for Exhibition Licensing 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 46

Agenda Item 6
Appendix b

https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/animal-licences/animal-welfare-licences/
https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/animal-licences/animal-welfare-licences/
https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Dog-Breeding-Guidance.pdf
https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Dog-Breeding-Guidance.pdf


23 
 

Appendix E. Keeping and Training Animals for Exhibition 
E1 All keeping or training animals for exhibition activities need a licence if they’re carried out 

as a commercial business. Further information on whether an activity would be considered a 

commercial business is contained in the relevant statutory guidance on keeping or training 

animals for exhibition activities. 

E2 An application for a licence must be made to the Council on its application form, which is 

available from the Council’s website: 

https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/animal-licences/animal-

welfare-licences/ 

E3. Before granting a licence the Council must be satisfied that an establishment is 

compliant with at least the minimum standards outlined under the statutory guidance:  

https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Keeping-or-Training-

Animals-for-Exhibition-Guidance.pdf 

E4 If the Council are satisfied that the requirements of the statutory guidance document are 

met, and there are no other concerns about the welfare of animals or the objectives of this 

policy being undermined, the licence will be granted. 

E5 The Council may attach any condition to the licence that it feels are necessary and 

expedient for securing the objectives above. 

E6 If the Council have any concerns about the welfare of the animals kept under this licence, 

it may request that a vet conducts a further visit to ascertain if the measures in place are 

acceptable which would be chargeable to the licence holder. 

E7 As stated in Section 6 above, the Council is not required to undertake a risk rating in 

relation to licences for the activity of keeping or training animals for exhibition, and as such 

no star rating will be issued for these licences. All licences for the activity of keeping or 

training animals for exhibition are granted for 3 years. 

E8 All undertaken as a commercial business should have a trade waste contract, and 

inspecting Officers will request evidence of this at the time of inspection. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 47

Agenda Item 6
Appendix b

https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/animal-licences/animal-welfare-licences/
https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/animal-licences/animal-welfare-licences/
https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Keeping-or-Training-Animals-for-Exhibition-Guidance.pdf
https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Keeping-or-Training-Animals-for-Exhibition-Guidance.pdf


24 
 

 

 

Appendix F. Dangerous Wild Animal Licensing 
F1 Anyone who keeps an animal scheduled as a dangerous wild animal must be licensed 

under the Dangerous Wild Animals Act 1976. A full list of animals that need a licence can be 

seen here: http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2007/2465/schedule/made.  

F2 The Dangerous Wild Animals Act (DWA) of 1976 aims to ensure that where private 

individuals keep dangerous wild animals they do so in circumstances which create no risk to 

the public and safeguard the welfare of the animals. 

F3 When applications for a DWA licence are received, the Council will instruct a suitably 

experienced Veterinarian and/or other relevant professionals to obtain the appropriate 

advice to ensure that any special needs of the animal are fulfilled and the applicant is a 

suitable person to hold such a licence. The Council must also be satisfied that it would not 

be contrary to public interest on the grounds of safety or nuisance. Special needs in this 

context mean the suitability of accommodation, heating, lighting and appropriate foodstuffs 

and enrichment for the species identified in the application. 

F4 A person is held to be the keeper of the animal if they have it in their possession. The 

assumption of possession continues even if the animal escapes or it is being transported. 

This removes the need for carriers or veterinary surgeons to be licensed. 

F5 An application for a Dangerous Wild Animal licence must be made to the Council on its 

application form, which is available on the Council’s website along with detailed guidance 

notes: 

https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/animal-licences/animal-

welfare-licences/ 

F6 In order to ensure compliance with our duties to ensure that an individual has not been 

disqualified from holding a licence, upon application the Council will require the applicant for 

a DWA Licence to provide a basic disclosure (DBS) certificate issued within 3 months of the 

date of application. This check will then be required on a rolling 3-year basis. 

F7 Once the Council receives an application for the grant or renewal of a licence it will do the 

following before granting or renewing a licence:  

• The Council will ensure that the applicant has not been disqualified from keeping 

dangerous wild animals.  

• An Officer of the Council will inspect the relevant premises in conjunction with a suitably 

experienced Veterinarian/ animal expert and assess if it is likely to meet the requirements of 

the legislation.  

• Inspection reports will contain information about the suitability of the accommodation, 

suitability of the applicant in terms of their handling skill / experience and their views on 

qualification relating to species. The vet/ expert will also consider the animal’s ability to 

express their natural behaviour, and the knowledge of the owner to promote the animal’s 

welfare. The report will then be sent to the Council for consideration.  

• Ensure that the appropriate fees have been paid. 

F8 The Council will not grant a licence unless it is satisfied that:  

Page 48

Agenda Item 6
Appendix b

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2007/2465/schedule/made
https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/animal-licences/animal-welfare-licences/
https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/animal-licences/animal-welfare-licences/


25 
 

 it would not be contrary to the public interest on the grounds of safety, nuisance or 

otherwise  

 you are deemed to be a suitable person to hold a licence and are adequately insured  

 animals will be held in secure accommodation to prevent them from escaping  

 accommodation for animals is suitable with regards to the construction, size, temperature 

lighting, ventilation, drainage and cleanliness, and which is suitable for the number of 

animals proposed to be held in the accommodation  

 animals are provided with adequate food, drink and bedding materials and will be visited at 

suitable intervals  

 appropriate steps will be taken for the protection of any animal concerned in case of fire or 

other emergency  

 appropriate steps will be taken to prevent and control the spread of infectious diseases  

 while any animal is at the premises where it will normally be held, its accommodation is 

such that it can take adequate exercise. 

F9 Where the Council determines that a licence shall be granted it is a requirement of the 

legislation to apply several mandatory licence conditions that shall apply for the duration of 

the licence:  

- the animal shall be kept by no person other than such person or persons as is or are 

specified (whether by name or description) in the licence; 

- the animal shall normally be held at such premises as are specified in the licence; 

- the animal shall not be moved from those premises or shall only be moved from them 

in such circumstances as are specified in the licence; 

- the person to whom the licence is granted shall hold a current insurance policy which 

insures him and any other person entitled to keep the animal under the authority of 

the licence against liability for any damage which may be caused by the animal; and 

- the terms of any such policy shall be satisfactory in the opinion of the authority; 

F10 The Council may also, in granting a licence under this legislation, specify such 

conditions on the licence as it thinks fit. The Council will give careful consideration to 

additional conditions proposed for a licence, including the comments of the Veterinarian/ 

expert on any proposed conditions. Where the Council places conditions on a licence they 

will be based, wherever practicable, on existing codes of best practice and industry 

standards. At all times the Council will bear in mind it’s primary objectives in relation to 

Dangerous Wild Animal Licensing, which are to protect the public, and also to ensure 

appropriate animal welfare standards. 

F11 Where a condition is applied on a licence to permit an animal to be, for any continuous 

period exceeding 72 hours, at premises outside the area of the Council, the Council will 

contact the local authority in whose area those premises are situated. 

F12 The Council is permitted by regulations to vary licenses at any time by specifying new 

conditions, or amending or revoking previously applied conditions. Where variation of the 

licence conditions is proposed by the licence holder, the variation of the licence will have 

immediate effect. In other cases, the Licence Holder will be given a reasonable period of 

time to familiarise themselves with the new requirements and ensure compliance.  

Page 49

Agenda Item 6
Appendix b



26 
 

F13 Applicants/ licence holders have a right of appeal against the refusal, revocation, or 

variation of the licence. Appeals should be made to the Magistrates Court within 21 days of 

receiving notification of the refusal/ revocation/ variation. 

F14 In the event of the death of a licence holder the licence shall continue in force for a 

period of 28- days as if it had been granted to the personal representatives of the deceased, 

and if an application is made for a new licence within the 28-day period, the licence shall be 

deemed to be still in force pending the grant or refusal of that application. 

F15 Premises licensed under the Dangerous Wild Animals Act are not risk rated and 

licences, if issued, are valid for 2 years.  

F16 Although not a statutory requirement, the Council will aim to provide licence holders with 

approximately 4 months’ notice of when their licence is due to expire. Licence holders must 

then submit an application at least 10 weeks before their licence expires. It is the licence 

holder’s responsibility to ensure that any renewal application is made in good time, and the 

Council cannot be held responsible for any delays or lapses of a licence caused by an 

incomplete or late application.  

F17 Provided that a valid application is received prior to the expiry the licence, the licence 

shall be deemed to be still in force pending the grant or refusal of the said application, and if 

it is granted the new licence shall commence from the date of the expiry of the last licence. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 50

Agenda Item 6
Appendix b



27 
 

 

Appendix G. Zoo Licensing 
 

Do you need a zoo licence from North Devon Council?  

G1 If you intend to operate a zoo in the North Devon area, it will be necessary for you to gain 

a zoo licence from the Council.  

G2 The Zoo Licensing Act 1981 defines a "zoo" as an establishment where wild animals are 

kept for exhibition to the public other than for purposes of a circus or in a pet shop (separate 

licences are required). This Act applies to any zoo, which members of the public have 

access to, with or without an admission charge, on more than seven days in any 12 months. 

G3 An application for a Zoo licence must be made to the Council on its application form, 

which is available on the Council’s website along with detailed guidance notes: 

https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/animal-licences/zoo-licences/ 

Application process 

G4 The licensing of zoos is a specialist field and the regulations are complex. The Council 

works in close partnership with DEFRA. Details on the legislation and the Secretary of 

State's Standards of Modern Zoo Practice can be found on the DEFRA website: 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/zoo-licensing-act-1981-guide-to-the-act-s-

provisions 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/secretary-of-state-s-standards-of-modern-zoo-

practice 

G5 If you are thinking of setting up a zoo, we recommend you contact us first for advice and 

guidance. The Council cannot consider an application unless at least two months notice of 

the application has been given, plus details have been published in a local and national 

newspaper, and a notice has been placed at the site. Once this period of time has lapsed, an 

application form can be submitted along with the current fee. 

G6 Before the Council can grant a licence for a zoo, it must be satisfied that:  

 the establishment will not injuriously affect the health and safety of people living in the 

neighbourhood  

 the establishment will not affect the preservation of law and order 

  the accommodation, staffing and management are adequate for the proper care and well-

being of the animals 

G7 The Council will consult the following in relation to your application:   

 Police  

 Fire authority  

 Governing body of any national institute concerned with the operation of zoos  

 Planning authority  

Page 51

Agenda Item 6
Appendix b

https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/animal-licences/zoo-licences/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/zoo-licensing-act-1981-guide-to-the-act-s-provisions
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/zoo-licensing-act-1981-guide-to-the-act-s-provisions
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/secretary-of-state-s-standards-of-modern-zoo-practice
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/secretary-of-state-s-standards-of-modern-zoo-practice


28 
 

 The Council's Health and Safety team 

G8 The Council will arrange an inspection by a consultant inspector from a list of suitable 

inspectors nominated by the Secretary of State. The inspector will produce a report of their 

findings and, based on the report and other considerations, the local authority will grant or 

refuse to grant a licence. This process may involve determination by the Council’s Licensing 

Committee. If your licence is refused, you will receive a written statement of the grounds for 

refusal. 

The applicant 

G9 may refuse to grant a licence if you, or any director, manager, secretary or other similar 

officer of the body, or any person employed as a keeper in the zoo, has been convicted of an 

offence under the Zoo Licensing Act 1981 or an offence under any of the following involving 

the ill-treatment of animals: 

 the Protection of Animals Acts 1911 to 1964  

 the Protection of Animals (Scotland) Acts 1912 to 1964  

 the Pet Animals Act 1951  

 the Animals (Cruel Poisons) Act 1962 

 the Animal Boarding Establishments Act 1963  

 the Riding Establishments Act 1964 and 1970  

 the Breeding of Dogs Act 1973  

 the Dangerous Wild Animals Act 1976  

 the Endangered Species (Import and Export) Act 1976  

 part I of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 

 sections 4, 5, 6(1) and (2), 7 to 9 and 11 of the Animal Welfare Act 2006 

 section 13(6) of the Animal Welfare Act 2006, so far as the offence arises from the 

contravention of section 13(1) of that Act in relation to dog breeding in Wales 

 section 13(6) of the Animal Welfare Act 2006, so far as the offence arises from the 

contravention of section 13(1) of that Act in relation to the carrying on of an activity in 

England; 

 the Animal Welfare (Breeding of Dogs) (Wales) Regulations 2014 

 Animal Welfare (Licensing of Activities Involving Animals) (England) Regulations 2018 

 sections 28C or 28F(16) of the Animal Health Act 1981 

 sections 19 to 24, 25(7), 29 or 40(11) of the Animal Health and Welfare (Scotland) Act 

2006 

G10 In order to ensure compliance with our duties to ensure that an individual has not been 

disqualified from holding a licence, upon application the Council will require any director, 

manager, secretary or other similar officer of the body, or any person employed as a keeper 

Page 52

Agenda Item 6
Appendix b



29 
 

in the zoo, to provide a basic disclosure (DBS) certificate issued within 3 months of the date 

of application. This check will then be required on a rolling 3-year basis. 

Planning requirements  

G11 When applying for a licence, you will need to consider whether planning permission is 

required for the proposed licensed activity. You should contact the Council’s Planning and 

Development Services on 01271 388288 to discuss whether permission will be needed. In 

the event that planning permission is required then any decision to grant a zoo licence will 

be suspended until such time as the planning application has been granted.  

Licences 

G12 Each original licence will run for four years, with consecutive renewals running for six 

years. Failure or late application for renewal may invalidate any public liability insurance for 

the premises. A copy of the licence must be displayed at every public entrance of the 

establishment. 

G13 Changes to the licence, for example name changes and ownership changes, can be 

carried out at the request of the operator. A licence can also be transferred to another 

person with the approval of the Council (a basic disclosure certificate will be required for the 

proposed new licence holder). There is an application form for the transfer of a licence, 

which must be submitted with the relevant fee. The application can be found via the link to 

the Council webpages above.  

G14 In the event of a licence holder dying, the licence shall be deemed to be granted to their 

personal representatives and will remain in force for up to three months, or longer with our 

approval. 

G15 For small zoos, or for a zoo exhibiting only a small number of different kinds of animals, 

the Secretary of State has powers to relax the requirements of the Act. In such instances the 

Council can seek a direction that the Act shall not apply at all (Section 14(1)(a)) or that 

certain category of inspection is not required (Section 14(1)(b)). 

G16 Alternatively, on applying to the Secretary of State for a zoo licence, you may be 

granted a dispensation (Section 14(2)) to reduce the number of inspectors to a reasonable 

level for a small establishment. This will not reduce the zoo’s obligation to achieve the levels 

of animal welfare and public safety set out in the Secretary of State’s Standards. 

What conditions will be attached to a licence?  

G17 The Zoo Licensing Act 1981 specifies various conservation measures that must be 

undertaken by a zoo and these will be attached as conditions to a zoo licence (conditions 

are available on our website- see link above). 

G18 North Devon Council also has discretion to attach any conditions it deems necessary or 

desirable for the proper conduct of the zoo. 

G19 The Secretary of State issues guidance of standards of practice that zoos should meet 

which apply in England. Copies of the Secretary of State’s Standards of Modern Zoo 

Practice are available on the DEFRA website via the link above. 

Inspection types 

Periodic inspections 

Page 53

Agenda Item 6
Appendix b



30 
 

G20 Periodic inspections by inspectors appointed by the Secretary of State will take place at 

the following intervals: 

 in the case of an original licence, an inspection will be carried out in the first year and no 

later than six months before the end of the fourth year  

 in the case of a renewal inspection in the third year and no later than six months before the 

end of the sixth year 

G21 Up to three inspectors appointed by North Devon Council will visit the premises and at 

least one of these will be a qualified veterinary surgeon or practitioner. Meanwhile, up to two 

may be nominated from the Secretary of State approved list. Only one is necessary if they 

fulfil both of the requirements above. 

G22 North Devon Council will give you at least 28 days-notice of our intention to inspect your 

premises and will inform you of the names of the inspectors. You can in turn appeal against 

all or any of them. 

G23 As the zoo operator, you may allow three representatives to accompany the inspection 

team. The inspection team will submit a report to North Devon Council who will in turn send 

a copy to you within a month of its receipt. 

Special inspections 

G24 North Devon Council has the right to make special inspections in any circumstances, 

which in our opinion call for investigation. As the zoo operator, you must be given notice of 

the purpose and scope of the inspection and if the investigation involves animal inspection, 

at least one inspector will be a qualified vet with experience of zoos and zoo animals.  

Informal inspections 

G25 In any calendar year where no other inspection has taken place, an informal inspection 

will be carried out by an appointed person from North Devon Council. 

Renewing a licence 

G26 North Devon Council will give at least nine months-notice of the expiry date of your 

licence. Your application to renew the licence should then be made at least six months 

before the expiry of the existing licence. 

Records required to be kept  

G27 The records required to be kept by a zoo will be largely dependent on the conditions 

imposed on a particular operator. However, typical requirements include providing North 

Devon Council with a copy of a zoo’s public liability insurance, annual stock list, intention of 

providing hazardous animals. 

Offences and penalties  

G28 The following offences and penalties are created under Section 19 of the Zoo Licensing 

Act 1981:  

 operating a zoo without a licence in contravention of the Act  

 failing without reasonable excuse to comply with any conditions of a licence  

 intentionally obstructing an inspector in the course of an inspection  

Page 54

Agenda Item 6
Appendix b



31 
 

 intentionally obstructing someone who is authorised in accordance with Section 16G to 

enter the premises of a permanently closed zoos or a dwelling within the zoo grounds  

 failing without reasonable excuse with a direction issued under section 16A(2)(d) to close a 

zoo or part of it to the public for a period not exceeding two years  

 failing without reasonable excuse to comply with a zoo closure direction  

 failing without reasonable excuse to supply information requested by the local authority 

about the care or disposal of zoo animals in the event of a zoo closure  

 failing without reasonable excuse and without the agreement of the authority, to dispose of 

any animal kept at a permanently closed zoo before the plan in section 16E(2) has been 

approved by the authority, or other than in accordance with the agreed plan  

 failing without reasonable excuse to comply with a direction issued under section 16E(6) 

(direction about the welfare or disposal of animals kept in a permanently closed zoo)  

 failing without reasonable excuse to display the zoo licence or a copy at each entrance of 

the zoo 

G29 Under Section 19(4), if you are found guilty of any offence above, you are liable to a 

fine of level 4 (currently £2,500), except obstructing an inspector, failing to supply 

information about the care or disposal of zoo animals in the event of zoo closure, or failing to 

display the licence or copy of it at each zoo entrance area for which are liable to a fine of 

level 3 (currently £1,000). 

Rights of entry 

G30 Local authority officers and accompanied by the appointed veterinary surgeon may 

inspect zoo premises, having given 28 days’ notice in writing. There is currently no power of 

entry to unlicensed premises. 

Fees 

G31 A completed application (for the grant, renewal or transfer of a licence) must be 

submitted with the correct fee and in addition the applicant will need to pay any associated 

veterinary fees for DEFRA nominated inspectors. 

How long will it take to process my application?  

G32 We will try to contact you within five days of receiving notice of your intention to apply 

for a licence. If you have not heard from us within this period, please contact us to ensure 

your notice was correctly made and received. We will then have two months to make the 

necessary arrangements in preparation of the next stage in the process. 

G33 It is not possible to provide an exact time period for the grant or refusal of a licence. 

Timescales will vary depending on the size and nature of each individual application. 

Comments gained in the consultation period and from the inspectors report may vary widely, 

and some applications may need to go before the council’s Licensing Committee for 

determination. 

Right of appeal  

G34 If you wish to challenge a refusal to be granted a licence, or any conditions to a licence, 

you can appeal to the magistrates courts. 

Page 55

Agenda Item 6
Appendix b



32 
 

Complaints 

G35 If you want to make a complaint about a zoo premises, please contact us. If you feel we 

have failed to provide you with good service or are concerned about the progress of your 

application, please telephone Customer Services and we will try to resolve any concerns you 

may have. The council also has a formal complaints procedure. 

Further information 

G36 Copies of the Zoo Licensing Act 1981 and Zoo Licensing Act 1981 (Amendment) 

(England and Wales) Regulations 2002 can be found free online via the links below:  

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1981/37/contents 

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2002/3080/contents 

 

G37 Further information on zoos operating in England, as well managing health and safety 

in zoos, is available from DEFRA. 

G38 The Animal Welfare Act 2006, places responsibilities for care and welfare of an animal, 

on persons who are in charge of or are responsible for the animal, whether on a permanent 

or temporary basis. Again, more information is available from DEFRA 

Relevant trade associations 

 World Association of Zoos and Aquariums (WAZA)  

 British and Irish Association of Zoos and Aquariums (BIAZA)  

 Royal College of Veterinary Surgeons (RCVS) 

Page 56

Agenda Item 6
Appendix b

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1981/37/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2002/3080/contents


CONSULTATION CHECKLIST 
 

Report to: Strategy and Resources  

Date: 8 December 2022  

Topic: Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy   

Author: Katy Nicholls  

 
 
Consultee Date 

consulted 
Consultee comments, and any 
response by author (in italics) 

Date signed off 
by consultee 

Lead Member if 
appointed 

N/A   

Ward Member(s) 
(if relates to a 
small area) 

N/A   

Legal 08.11.22 Adam Tape - No comments from me 11.11.22 

Finance 08.11.22 Jon Triggs – fine with me  

8.11.22 

Head of Service  08.11.22 No comments  

Equality Impact 
and Needs 
Assessment  

08.11.22 Forwarded   

 

 

Environmental 
Donna Sibley  

08.11.22 Donna Sibley - Can you please add the 
following comment to section 7 of your 
Committee paper “Amending taxi and 
private hire driver qualification standards 
is judged to have no environmental 
impact.” 

8.11.22 

Human 
Resources 

N/A N/A  

Others - list 08.11.22 Cllr David Worden  

Ken Miles  

8.11.22 

8.11.22 

 

Page 57

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

North Devon Council 

Report Date: 5th December 2022 

Topic: Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver Qualification Standards 

Report by: Katy Nicholls, Public Protection Manager 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1. The purpose of this report is to seek to adopt an amendment to North Devon 

Council’s Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy (7 November 

2022 version) (the ‘policy’) in respect of taxi and private hire driver 

qualification standards.  A copy of the relevant paragraphs of the proposed 

amended policy are found at Appendix A. 

 

2.1 RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1.1 It is RECOMMENDED that Strategy and Resources Committee: 

 

2.1.2 Approve the recommendation of Licensing and Community Safety 

Committee made on the 11 October 2022, namely to ‘retain the 

requirement for a vocationally recognised taxi qualification, but give 

an alternative training option of a new driver training course (either 

the vocationally recognised taxi qualification, or the New Taxi Driver 

Training Course). Again prior to obtaining a licence in the case of the 

new driver course’. As such it is suggested that Strategy and 

Resources Committee approve:  

 

2.1.2.1 a revision of the Council’s Hackney Carriage and 

Private Hire Licensing Policy in line with Appendix 

A.  

 

3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

3.1 To ensure the Council’s policies are regularly reviewed and kept up to date. 

 

3.2 To react to concerns in respect of the length of time taken for prospective 

drivers to gain taxi and private hire driver’s licences.   

 

3.3 To ensure that the taxi and private hire driver licensing standards are 

proportionate and fit for purpose. 

 

 

 

Page 59

Agenda Item 7
Appendix a



 
4 REPORT 

4.1  During their meeting of the 11 October 2022, Licensing and Community  

discussed an email received from a Private Hire Operator which highlighted the 

lengthy period for new driver applicants to become licenced (the letter was also 

published in the September edition of Private Hire and Taxi Monthly).  

4.2  Officers undertook a benchmarking exercise with other Devon and Somerset 

Authorities, and proposed a number of policy amendment options for the 

Committee to consider. 

4.3  After a detailed discussion and debate in respect of five available options, 

Licensing and Community Safety Committee decided to recommend to Strategy 

and Resources the following change to the new driver application process: 

- Applicants to have the option of attending a new licenced driver course OR 

the previous BTEC/ NVQ qualification; 

4.4  The new licenced driver course is shorter format course than the BTEC/ NVQ 

but considered to still cover the most important information for a new licenced 

driver.  

4.5  Officers are in contact with course providers and hope to be in a position to 

approve the first course shortly. Critically, the new licenced driver training 

courses are currently being run every month. 

5 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 Any financial costs which are reduced or incurred through the approval of a new 

policy will be taken into account when calculating fees for taxi related licences. 

6 EQUALITIES ASSESSMENT 

6.1 The impact of the proposals is perceived to be neutral. 

7. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT 

7.1  An environmental assessment has been undertaken which revealed a neutral 

impact. 

8 CONSTITUTIONAL CONTEXT 

8.1  Article of Part 3 Annexe 1 paragraph:4b 

8.2   Referred or delegated power?: Delegated. 

9 STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 

9.1 This report contains no confidential information or exempt information under 

the provisions of Schedule 12A of 1972 Act. 

 

Page 60

Agenda Item 7
Appendix a

https://content.yudu.com/web/43sy4/0A43sy5/PHTMSEPTEMBER2022/html/index.html?page=14&origin=reader


 
10 BACKGROUND PAPERS 

10.1 The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report: 

(The background papers are available for inspection and kept by the author of 

the report). 

 North Devon Council Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing 

Policy. 

 

11 STATEMENT OF INTERNAL ADVICE 

a. The author (below) confirms that advice has been taken from all 

appropriate Councillors and Officers: Katy Nicholls, Public Protection 

Manager 08.11.22 

Page 61

Agenda Item 7
Appendix a



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A 
 
 
North Devon Council Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 
Extract 
 

 
 
Age, Experience and Qualification standards  

  
Whilst there are no age restrictions imposed, the Licensing Authority shall 
not grant a licence to drive a Hackney Carriage to any person unless they 
have held a full driving licence for a period of one year and have passed a 
qualification listed in A and B below: 

 
A 

 

 Driving standard assessment equivalent to the Driver and Vehicle 
Standards Agency taxi driving assessment , or 
 

 The Public Carrying Vehicles Test (or an equivalent or higher 
qualification as approved by the Authority). 

 
B 

 

 BTEC Level 2 Certificate in the Introduction to the Role of the 
Professional Taxi and Private Hire Driver (previously named the BTEC 
Intermediate Award in Transporting Passengers by Taxi and Private 
Hire), or 
 

 A North Devon Council approved New Taxi/Private Hire Driver Training 
Course  

 

 The Edexcel Level 2 NVQ in Road Passenger Vehicle Driving 
(Community, Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Vehicles and Chauffeurs), or 
 

 The Edexcel Level 2 NVQ in Passenger Carrying Vehicle Driving, or 
 

 An equivalent or higher qualification as approved by the Authority. 
 

Although existing drivers are not required to undertake and pass the BTEC 
Intermediate Award in Transporting Passengers by Taxi and Private Hire, 
they are encouraged to undertake and pass these tests. 
 
With effect from 1st March 2022 all prospective applicants for dual Hackney 
carriage/ private hire drivers licences will within 12 months of the licence 
being granted, provide documentary evidence of completing North Devon 
Council approved child sexual exploitation and safeguarding awareness 
training. 
 

Page 63

Agenda Item 7
Appendix b



With effect from 7th November 2022 all licensed taxi and private hire drivers 
must have undertaken or be booked onto North Devon Council approved 
Child Sexual Exploitation and Safeguarding training prior to the 1st January 
2023. 
 
It should be noted that existing drivers who fail to make their renewal 
application on time will be treated as a grant application. All drivers are 
advised to place their licence expiry in their diary and to apply for their 
driver’s renewal in good time. 

 
 
 

Page 64

Agenda Item 7
Appendix b



 

 

North Devon Council 

Report Date: 5 December 2022 

Topic: Review of North Devon Council (Off Street Parking Places) Order 

Report by: Parking Manager 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 Each year the Off Street Parking Order is reviewed to ensure compliance and 

correctness for use. 

1.2  Each year the conditions and charges have been considered by Strategy & 

Resources Committee to maintain compliance and suitability. 

1.3 A summary of the current and proposed new charges for the Off Street 

Parking Order, for both Permits and Pay and Display; is shown in Appendix A. 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

Strategy & Resources Committee to accept the changes requested by parishes and 

include the amendments together with the amended charges for North Devon 

Council Car Parks approved on 23 November by Full Council into the Off Street 

Parking Order. 

2.1  Braunton Parish Council 

Strategy & Resources Committee to accept changes to charges and regulations for 

Caen Street and Chaloners Road car parks and include the amendments into the Off 

Street Parking Order as described below and shown in Appendix B. 

2.2  Combe Martin Parish Council 

Strategy & Resources Committee to accept changes to charges and regulations for 

Cormelles car park, High Street coach/car park, Holdstone Down, Hollands Park, 

Kiln car park and The Parade and include the amendments into the Off Street 

Parking Order as described below and shown in Appendix B. 

2.3  Instow Parish Council 

Strategy & Resources Committee to accept changes to charges and regulations for 

Instow Marine car park and include the amendments into the Off Street Parking 

Order as described below and shown in Appendix B. 

2.4  Lynton & Lynmouth Town Council 

Strategy & Resources Committee to accept changes to charges and regulations for 

Bottom Meadow car park, Upper Valley of Rocks car park, Cross Street car park, 

Valley of Rocks car park, Esplanade car park, Lower Lyndale car park, Upper 

Lyndale car park, Watersmeet car park and Manor Foreshore car park and include 

Page 65

Agenda Item 8



 

 

the amendments into the Off Street Parking Order as described below and shown in 

Appendix B. 

2.5  South Molton Town Council 

1. Strategy & Resources Committee to accept changes to charges and 

regulations for South Molton Central car park, Sheep Pen car park, South 

Molton Coach & Lorry Park and include the amendments into the Off 

Street Parking Order as described below and shown in Appendix B. 

2. South Molton Residents permit to only permit parking in the South Molton 

Central Car Park for clarification purposes. The permit does not allow 

customers to park in any of the other car parks in South Molton and 

managed by North Devon Council. 

 

2.6 North Devon Council Car Parks 

At the Full Council meeting on 23 November 2022, Members approved an 

increase in the level of charges across Off Street Car Parks with effect 

from 15 March 2023.  Strategy & Resources Committee to accept the 

changes to charges and regulations for North Devon Council car parks 

and include the amendments into the Off Street Parking Order as 

described below and shown in Appendix B.  

 

3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

3.1 To update the Off Street parking Order to reflect current needs of Parish, 

Town and District Councils following the annual review.  

 

4. REPORT 

The report is divided between Parish requests and amendments to the current 

order for correctness and North Devon Council requests amendments to the 

current order for correctness.  

 

Terminology used in the main body of text has been reviewed and amended in its 

entirety to increase customer understanding due to it being a public document.  

 

The Definitions have been reviewed and amended. 

 

The Scale of Charges has been reviewed and amended – both the previous and 

amended versions have been provided for comparison.   

 

Page 66

Agenda Item 8



 

 

Boundary maps for all car parks listed on the Off-Street Parking Order have been 

updated. Titles/Deeds have been checked for any changes since last drawing up 

boundary maps. 

 

North Devon Council Amendments  

Request is made to Strategy & Resources Committee to accept and adopt within the 

North Devon (Off Street Parking Places) Order the amendments to the scale of 

charges and regulations for Off Street parking places within the management control 

of North Devon Council, as follows: 

Barnstaple  

1. To accept and adopt the changes to the terminology, definitions and scale of 

charges as shown in Appendix B. 

2. Addition of half an hour charge in Cattle Market, Bear Street and Queen 

Street car parks. 

3. To accept and adopt the creation of a short stay car park on Silver Street, 

within the existing Silver Street permit car park. This will potentially create 

additional income for North Devon Council and utilise the area more 

efficiently. 

4. To accept and adopt the decrease in price for a Silver Street Reserved Permit 

and Loverings Court Reserved Permit bringing it in line with other reserved 

permit prices in the vicinity. 

5. To accept and adopt the addition of Hardaway Head and Portland Buildings 

car parks to the existing Barnstaple Long Stay permit. This will create 

additional income for North Devon Council, give local residents/employees 

more long stay parking choice and utilise the area more efficiently. 

6. To accept and adopt the addition of condition N10 for Bear Street, Belle 

Meadow, Bicton Street, Brynsworthy, Castle Quay, Cattle Market, Cattle 

Market Motorcycle Area, Chivenor Cross, Commercial Road, Congrams 

Close, Coronation Street, Fairview, Hardaway Head, Litchdon Street, 

Loverings Court, Magdalene Lawn, Mill Road, Pathfield Lawn, Paiges Lane, 

Lower Pilton, Lower Pilton reserved, Portland Buildings, Portland Building 

Reserved, Portmarsh Lane, Mill Road, Queen Street, Queen Street 

Motorcycle Area, Richmond Walk, Riverfront, Rolle Quay, Rolle Quay 

Reserved, Rugby Club, Seven Brethren Long Stay, Silver Street, Tarka, Tuly 

Street, Barnstaple Bus Station, Albert Lane, Museum, Bickington, Millennium 

Green, Bakery Way, Church Lake, Swimbridge, Fremington car parks as 

shown in Appendix B, N10 means ‘No sleeping’. 

7. To accept and adopt the addition of motorhome parking at North Walk car 

park. Scale of charge included in Appendix B. 

 

 

 

 

Page 67

Agenda Item 8



 

 

Ilfracombe  

 

1. To accept and adopt the changes to the terminology, definitions and scale of 

charges as shown in Appendix B. 

2. Addition of half an hour charge in Wilder Road car park. 

3. To accept and adopt the addition of condition N10 for Berrynarbor, Adelaide 

Terrace, Bicclescombe, Brookdale, Cheyne Beach, Cove, Hele, Jubilee 

Gardens, Jubilee Gardens Museum, Larkstone Lane, Marine Drive, Oxford 

Grove, Oxford Grove Reserved, Pier, Quay Head, Sea Front and Wilder Road 

car parks as shown in Appendix B, N10 means ‘No sleeping’. 

4. To accept and adopt the addition of motorhome parking at Hillsborough and 

Croyde car parks. Scale of charge in Appendix B. Local campsites who allow 

motorhomes will be consulted as part of the wider public consultation. 

5. Ilfracombe Town Council to adopt charges as per Appendix B for Ropery 

Road car park. 

 

 

Braunton 

1. To accept and adopt the changes to the terminology, definitions and scale of 

charges as shown in Appendix B. 

2. To accept and adopt the addition of condition N10 for Caen Street and 

Chaloners Road car parks as shown in Appendix B, N10 means ‘No sleeping’. 

3. Braunton Parish Council to adopt charges as per Appendix B for Caen Street 

and Chaloners Road car parks. 

 

Combe Martin 

1. To accept and adopt the changes to the terminology, definitions and scale of 

charges as shown in Appendix B. 

2. To accept and adopt the addition of condition N10 for Cormelles car park, 

High Street coach/car park, Holdstone Down, Hollands Park, Kiln car park and 

The Parade car parks as shown in Appendix B, N10 means ‘No sleeping’. 

3. Combe Martin Parish Council charges as per Appendix B for Kiln and Parade 

car parks. 

 

 

Instow 

1. To accept and adopt the changes to the terminology, definitions and scale of 

charges as shown in Appendix B. 

2. To accept and adopt the addition of condition N10 for Marine car park as 

shown in Appendix B, N10 means ‘No sleeping’. 

3. Instow Parish Council to adopt charges as per Appendix B for Marine car 

park. 

 

 

Page 68

Agenda Item 8



 

 

 

Lynton & Lynmouth 

1. To accept and adopt the changes to the terminology, definitions and scale of 

charges as shown in Appendix B. 

2. To accept and adopt the addition of condition N10 for Upper Valley of Rocks 

car park, Cross Street car park, Valley of Rocks car park, Esplanade car park, 

Lower Lyndale car park, Upper Lyndale car park, Watersmeet car park and 

Manor Foreshore car park and The Parade car parks as shown in Appendix 

B, N10 means ‘No sleeping’. 

3. To accept and adopt the addition of motorhome parking at Bottom Meadow 

car park. Scale of charge in Appendix B. Local campsites who allow 

motorhomes will be consulted as part of the wider public consultation. 

4. Lynton Town Council to accept charges as shown in Appendix B for NDC car 

parks (under Agency), Manor Foreshore, Upper Valley of the Rocks and 

Valley of the Rocks. 

 

South Molton 

1. To accept and adopt the changes to the terminology, definitions and scale of 

charges as shown in Appendix B. 

2. To accept and adopt the change to South Molton Resident Permit. The permit 

allows permit holders to park within the South Molton Central car park only. 

The permit does not allow customers to park in any of the other car parks in 

South Molton and managed by North Devon Council. 

3. To accept and adopt the addition of condition N10 for Sheep Pen car park, 

Central car park, Lorry Wash, New Road, Southley Road, East Street or 

Pannier Market car parks as shown in Appendix B, N10 means ‘No sleeping’. 

4. No changes to charging in South Molton Town Council owned car parks. 

 

Mortehoe 

1. To accept and adopt the changes to the terminology, definitions and scale of 

charges as shown in Appendix B. 

2. To accept and adopt the addition of condition N10 for Mortehoe and Mortehoe 

Residents car parks as shown in Appendix B, N10 means ‘No sleeping’.  

3. To accept and adopt the addition of motorhome parking at Mortehoe car park. 

Scale of charge in Appendix B. Local campsites who allow motorhomes will 

be consulted as part of the wider public consultation. 

4. Mortehoe Parish Council to accept change to charges for Marine Drive, 

Woolacombe and Mortehoe Residents car park 

 

Page 69

Agenda Item 8



 

 

5. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

5.1. Since charges were last reviewed the additional costs the Council has 

incurred over the past six years amounts to almost £1.3million.  The annual 

running costs of Car Parks has increased by over £400,000 compared to 

2016-17 when the charges were last increased.   

5.2. The Council were aware of these increased running costs over the past few 

years and there were plans to increase charges incrementally to cover the 

additional costs being seen and these were planned during the years of 

2020-21; 2021-22 and 2022-23.  However, during the Covid-19 pandemic 

and subsequent impacts upon local businesses (both town centre and 

coastal businesses) the Council decided to hold off increasing the charges to 

protect and enable the recovery from the pandemic.  The Council managed 

to absorb the additional budgetary cost for these last few years but this is not 

sustainable into the longer term. 

5.3. The changes to Barnstaple, Ilfracombe, Braunton, Combe Martin, Instow, 

Lynton & Lynmouth, South Molton and Mortehoe car parks will increase 

revenue for NDC, offset the above mentioned increased running costs and 

utilise the car park areas more efficiently. 

6. EQUALITIES ASSESSMENT 

6.1. There are no equalities implications anticipated as a result of this report. 

7. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT 

7.1.  None 

 

8. CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

8.1. What impact, positive or negative, does the subject of this report have on: 

 

8.1.1. The commercialisation agenda:  

The changes to Barnstaple, Ilfracombe, Braunton, Combe Martin, Instow, Lynton 

& Lynmouth, South Molton and Mortehoe charges and car parks will increase 

revenue for NDC, offset the above mentioned increased running costs and utilise 

the car park areas more efficiently. The creation of a short stay car park on Silver 

Street, within the existing Silver Street permit car park will deliver more choice for 

users. The addition of Hardaway Head and Portland Buildings to the long stay 

permits will increase income from long stay permit sales. 

    

8.1.2. Improving customer focus: 

The decrease in price for a Silver Street and Loverings Court Reserved Permits, 

bringing it in line with other reserved permit prices in the vicinity will give customers 

more choice and affordability. The addition of Hardaway Head and Portland 

Page 70

Agenda Item 8



 

 

Buildings to the Long Stay permit increases the choice, capacity and value of 

Barnstaple Town Centre Car Parks. 

8.1.3. Regeneration or economic development 

More choice for businesses/employees with the decrease in price of Silver Street 

and Loverings Court permits and the addition of Hardaway Head and Portland 

Buildings to the Long Stay Permits. The introduction of a new 30 minute charge at 

Bear Street, Cattle Market, Queen Street and Wilder Road car parks allows more 

flexibility for users who may need short visits to our town centres. 

9. CONSTITUTIONAL CONTEXT 

9.1. Article of Part 3 Annexe 1 paragraph: 1 

9.2. Delegated power 

10. STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 

This report contains no confidential information or exempt information under 

the provisions of Schedule 12A of 1972 Act. 

11. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

(a) North Devon (Off Street Parking Places) Order 2019 

(b) North Devon (Off Street Parking Places) (Amendment) Order 2019 

(c) North Devon (Off Street Parking Places) (Amendment) Order 2021 

(d) North Devon (Off Street Parking Places) (Modification) Order 2021 

 

12. STATEMENT OF INTERNAL ADVICE 

The author (below) confirms that advice has been taken from all appropriate 

Councillors and Officers. 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 

Author: Emma Collett  Date: 25th November 2022 

Appendix A - Attached summary of current and proposed new charges 

Appendix B – Attached full copy of North Devon Council (Off Street Parking Places) 

Order 2023 

 

 

 

Page 71

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



Off Street Parking Order 2022 
Summary of Changes 

 
Permit Changes 
 

Permit Type Current 
Charge 

New Charge 

Barnstaple Long Stay Annual  £210.00 £225.00 

Barnstaple Long Stay Quarterly £64.25 £70.00 

Barnstaple Long Stay Monthly £21.45 £25.00 

Barnstaple Rugby Club Annual  £132.00 £140.00 

Barnstaple Rugby Club Quarterly £38.50 £40.00 

Ilfracombe and South Molton Long Stay Annual  £200.00 £225.00 

Ilfracombe and South Molton Long Stay Quarterly £61.25 £70.00 

Ilfracombe and South Molton Long Stay Monthly £20.45 £25.00 

Ilfracombe Winter and Hillsborough/Larkstone 
Annual 

£87.20 £100.00 

Bickington Resident £45.00 £60.00 

Bicton Street/Congrams 
Close/Croyde/Fremington/Hele/Hillsborough/Lower 
Pilton/Morthoe/Oxford Grove/Portmarsh 
Lane/South Molton Resident 

£72.50 £100.00 

Castle Quay Reserved Bay Annual £586.50 £600.00 

Castle Quay Reserved Bay Quarterly £152.00 £170.00 

Loverings Court Reserved Bay £631.50 £500.00 

Coronation Street Reserved Bay £462.00 £500.00 

Lower Pilton Reserved Bay £265.50 £300.00 

Silver Street Reserved Bay £1,175.00 £1,000.00 

Rolle Quay Reserved Bay £448.00 £450.00 

Magdalene Lawn Reserved Bay £160.00 £180.00 

Portland Buildings Reserved Bays £448.00 £500.00 

Portmarsh Lane Reserved Bays £160.00 £180.00 

Oxford Grove Reserved Bays £190.00 £220.00 

4 Day Visitor £12.10 £15.00 

7 Day Visitor £20.80 £25.00 

7 day Visitor Rover £42.00 £50.00 

4 Day Coaches, lorries & motorhomes £26.20 £30.00 

6 Day Coaches, Lorries & motorhomes  £39.40 £45.00 

7 Day Coaches, lorries & motorhomes  £45.90 £55.00 

Business Bickington / Fremington £73.00 £80.00 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 73

Agenda Item 8
Appendix a



Pay and Display 
 
 

Page 74

Agenda Item 8
Appendix a



Car Park(s) Current Charge New Charge 

Barnstaple Short Stay Car Parks – 
Bear St/Belle Meadow/Cattle 
Market/Commercial 
Road/Hardaway Head/Litchdon 
St/North Walk/Paiges 
Lane/Portland Buildings/Queen 
Street/Silver St/Tuly St 
Also includes Green Lanes Car 
Park but this is not on the Off 
Street Parking Order itself 

1hr - £1.10    
2hrs – £2.20   
3hrs - £3.30    
4hrs - £4.40    
5hrs - £5.60    
6hrs - £6.80    
7hrs - £8.00 
8hrs - £9.20 
9hrs - £10.40 
10hrs - £11.60 

1hr - £1.30    
2hrs – £2.60   
3hrs - £3.90    
4hrs - £5.20    
5hrs - £6.50    
6hrs - £7.80    
7hrs - £9.10 
8hrs - £10.40 
9hrs - £11.70 
10hrs - £13.00 

Barnstaple and Ilfracombe (30 
minutes) –Applies in Bear St/Cattle 
Market/Queen St/Wilder Road 

Not Applicable 30 mins - £0.50 

Barnstaple Long Stay Car Parks – 
Bickington/Bicton St/Congrams 
Close/Fair View/Fremington/Lower 
Pilton/Portmarsh Lane/Rugby 
Club/Seven Brethren/Tarka/ Seven 
Brethren Van Park 
Please note not all L/S’s offer 
hourly charges 

1hr - £0.40 
2hrs - £0.80 
3hrs - £1.20 
All Day - £1.70 

1 hr - £0.60 
2 hrs - £1.20 
3 hrs - £1.80 
All Day - £2.50 

Ilfracombe Short Stay Car Parks – 
Wilder Road 

1hr - £1.10    
2hrs – £2.20   
3hrs - £3.30    
4hrs - £4.40    
5hrs - £5.60    
6hrs - £6.80    
7hrs - £8.00 
8hrs - £9.20 
9hrs - £10.40 
10hrs - £11.60 

1hr - £1.30    
2hrs – £2.60   
3hrs - £3.90    
4hrs - £5.20    
5hrs - £6.50    
6hrs - £7.80    
7hrs - £9.10 
8hrs - £10.40 
9hrs - £11.70 
10hrs - £13.00 

Ilfracombe Coastal Short Stay Car 
Parks – Cove/Croyde/Jubilee 
Gardens/Marine Drive/Pier 

1hrs - £1.10    
2hrs – £2.20   
3hrs - £3.30    
4hrs - £4.40    
5hrs - £5.60    
6hrs - £6.80    
7hrs - £8.00 
8hrs - £9.20 
9hrs - £10.40 
10hrs - £11.60 

1hr - £1.50    
2hrs – £3.00   
3hrs - £4.50   
4hrs - £6.00    
5hrs - £7.50    
6hrs - £9.00    
7hrs - £10.50 
8hrs - £12.00 
9hrs - £13.50 
10hrs - £15.00 

Ilfracombe Long Stay Car Parks – 
Hele/Hillsborough 

1hrs - £0.40 
2hrs - £0.80 
3hrs - £1.20 
All Day - £1.70 

1 hr - £0.60 
2 hrs - £1.20 
3 hrs - £1.80 
All Day - £2.50 

   

Page 75

Agenda Item 8
Appendix a



 
Ilfracombe Winter Charges – All 
Ilfracombe Short Stay car parks 

 
1hrs – £0.70   2hrs - 
£1.40 
All Day - £1.70 
 

 
1hrs – £0.80   2hrs - 
£1.60 
All Day - £2.50 
 

South Molton Long Stays – Sheep 
Pen/Central 

£0.50 per hour 
£1.50 All Day 

£0.60 per hour (up to 
£6 per day for Sheep 
Pen) 
£2.50 All Day 

Motorhome Charge (6pm to 8am) 
– North 
Walk/Croyde/Hillsborough/Morthoe 

Not Applicable £15 per night. 
Maximum of 2 nights.  

Medium Stay Car Parks with 
differing structure – 
Brookdale/Larkstone Lane/Oxford 
Grove/Rolle Quay 

1hrs - £1.10 
2hrs - £2.20 
3hrs - £3.30 
All day - £4.40 

1 hr - £1.30 
2 hrs – £2.60 
3 hrs – £3.90 
All Day - £6.00 

Coach/Lorry Parks – Brookdale 
Coach Park/Hillsborough Coach 
Park/Seven Brethren Lorry 
Park/South Molton Coach Park 

Per hour - £1.50 
All day (24hrs) - £8.00 

Per hour - £1.70 
All day (24hrs) - £10.00 

 
 
Agency – Lynton and Lynmouth 
 

Car Park(s) Current Charge New Charge 

Lynton and Lynmouth 
Short Stay Coastal - 
Esplanade 

1hrs - £1.00 
2hrs - £2.20 
3hrs - £3.30 
4hrs - £4.40 
All day - £5.00 

1hr - £1.50    
2hrs – £3.00   
3hrs - £4.50   
4hrs - £6.00    
5hrs - £7.50    
6hrs - £9.00    
7hrs - £10.50 
All day - £12 
 

Lynton and Lynmouth 
Short Stays – Bottom 
Meadow/Cross 
St/Lower 
Lyndale/Upper 
Lyndale/Watersmeet 

1hrs - £1.00 
2hrs - £2.20 
3hrs - £3.30 
4hrs - £4.40 
All day - £5.00 

1hr - £1.30    
2hrs – £2.60   
3hrs - £3.90    
4hrs - £5.20    
5hrs - £6.50    
6hrs - £7.80    
7hrs - £9.10 
All day - £10.00 
 

Motorhome Charge – 
Bottom Meadow Only 

Not Applicable £15 per night. 
Maximum of 2 nights. 

Lower Lyndale – Coach 
and oversized vehicles 

Up to 1hrs - £2.00 
Up to 2hrs - £3.00 
All day - £5.00 

Per hour - £1.70 
All day (24hrs) - £10.00 

LLTC request that the Esplanade is excluded from the coastal charge and a maximum of 
£10 per day. Operating hours of L & L car parks is currently 10am-6pm. 

Page 76

Agenda Item 8
Appendix a



 
 

 

 

  

NORTH DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The North Devon (Off Street Parking Places) Order 2023 
 

Page 77

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  1 
 

CONTENTS 
 

PART 1: GENERAL .................................................................................................. 2 

1. Commencement and Citation ...................................................................... 2 

2.     Revocation .................................................................................................... 2 

3. Interpretation ................................................................................................ 2 

PART 2: USE OF LAND AND PARKING PLACE .................................................... 9 

PART 3: THE USE OF BARNSTAPLE BUS STATION .......................................... 10 

PART 4: CHARGES ............................................................................................... 14 

PART 5: OTHER PROVISIONS .............................................................................. 16 

PART 6: PENALTY CHARGE ................................................................................ 19 

PART 7: GENERAL PROVISIONS ......................................................................... 20 

PART 8: CAR PARKS ............................................................................................ 23 

BARNSTAPLE ................................................................................................. 23 

BRAUNTON .................................................................................................... 44 

COMBE MARTIN ............................................................................................. 48 

CROYDE .......................................................................................................... 52 

ILFRACOMBE ................................................................................................. 52 

INSTOW........................................................................................................... 66 

LANDKEY AND SWIMBRIDGE ....................................................................... 67 

LYNTON AND LYNMOUTH ............................................................................. 68 

MORTEHOE AND WOOLACOMBE ................................................................ 78 

SOUTH MOLTON ............................................................................................ 81 

PART 9: PERMITS ................................................................................................. 86 

CARS ............................................................................................................... 87 

COACHES ....................................................................................................... 89 

LOCAL RESIDENT’S PERMITS (UNRESERVED) .......................................... 89 

EVENING RESIDENT’S PERMITS .................................................................. 91 

BUSINESS PERMITS ...................................................................................... 92 

RESERVED SPACES ...................................................................................... 92 

SCHEDULE ONE .................................................................................................... 94 

SCHEDULE TWO ................................................................................................... 97 

SCHEDULE THREE ............................................................................................... 97 

SCHEDULE FOUR ................................................................................................. 98 

SCHEDULE FIVE ................................................................................................... 99 

SCHEDULE SIX .................................................................................................... 100 

Page 78

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  2 
 

 

 

NORTH DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL  

 

THE NORTH DEVON (OFF STREET PARKING PLACES) 

ORDER 2023 

 

 

PART 1: GENERAL 

 

The NORTH DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL in exercise of its powers under 

Section 32, Section 35 and Section 35(A) of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 

1984 and the Traffic Management Act 2004 and of all other enabling powers, 

with the consent of the County Council of Devon in accordance with Section 

39(3) of the Act and after consulting the Chief Officer of Police in accordance 

with Part III of Schedule 9 to the Act, hereby makes the following Order: 

 

1. Commencement and Citation 

This Order may be cited as the North Devon (Off Street Parking Places) 

Order 2023 and shall come into operation at midnight on ------------------ 

 

2.  Revocation 
 

This Order revokes the: 

(1) North Devon (Off Street Parking Places) Order 2019 

(2) North Devon (Off Street Parking Places) (Amendment) Order 2019 

(3)  North Devon (Off Street Parking Places) (Amendment) Order 2021 

(4) North Devon (Off Street Parking Places) (Modification) Order 2021 

 

3. Interpretation 
 
 

(1) Any reference in this Order to a numbered Article is a reference to the 

Article bearing that number in this Order. 
 

(2) In this Order the following definitions shall apply: 

 

Page 79

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  3 
 

 

 

 

1984 Act means the Road Traffic Regulation Act 

1984 and any statutory re-enactment, 

amendment or replacement thereof 

2004 Act means the Traffic Management Act 2004 

and any statutory re-enactment, 

amendment or replacement thereof 

Authorised Officer means an Officer of the Council 

Barnstaple Bus Station means the Bus Station at Queen Street, 

Barnstaple, Devon shown for identification 

purposes only in part edged red (“the red 

land”) and in part edged blue (“the blue 

land”) on the Plan 

Cashless Payment Service means card payments and contactless 

card payments by using chip and pin or 

tapping a sensor on a Pay and Display 

machine and being issued with a ticket, to 

include tickets purchased via landline 

Civil Enforcement Officer means an officer of the North Devon 

District Council, or any other person 

authorised to issue a PCN or administer 

any parking place as defined by Section 

76 of the Traffic Management Act 2004 

Council means the North Devon District Council of 

Brynsworthy Environment Centre, 

Barnstaple, North Devon 

Day means a 24 (TWENTY FOUR) hour 

period from midnight to the following 

midnight 

Page 80

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  4 
 

1984 Act means the Road Traffic Regulation Act 

1984 and any statutory re-enactment, 

amendment or replacement thereof 

Days of Operation of the Scale of 

Charges 

means the days on which charges apply 

for use of the Parking Places specified 

within Schedule Two 

Designated Stand means a space or position designated 

within Barnstaple Bus Station either by 

markings on the ground or otherwise for 

the setting down and picking up of 

passengers by public service Vehicles 

Driver means the person who is responsible for 

the control of a Vehicle at the time when a 

breach of any of the Articles occurs 

Disabled Badge Holder means a disabled person of a description 

prescribed in Regulation 5 of the Disabled 

Persons (Badges for Motor Vehicles) 

Regulations 1982 as amended 

Disabled Person’s Badge means a badge of a description 

prescribed by Regulation 3(1) of the 

Disabled Persons (Badges for Motor 

Vehicles) Regulations 1982 as amended 

Electric Vehicle means a Plug-in Electric Vehicle or a 

Plug-in Hybrid Vehicle which uses one or 

more electric motors for propulsion and 

whose battery can be recharged by 

plugging it into an external source of 

electric power 

Page 81

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  5 
 

1984 Act means the Road Traffic Regulation Act 

1984 and any statutory re-enactment, 

amendment or replacement thereof 

Electric Vehicle Charging Bay means a parking bay which has been 

marked and signed for the exclusive use 

of an Electric Vehicle whilst that Vehicle is 

being charged by means of an Electric 

Vehicle Charging Point 

Electric Vehicle Charging Point means a purpose built unit designed 

specifically for charging Vehicles 

Hours of Operation of the Scale of 

Charges 

means the hours at which charges apply 

for use of the Parking Places specified 

within Schedule Three 

Long Stay Permit Means a virtual permit that allows the 

holder to park within the ‘Long Stay’ car 

parks specified 

Motor Car shall have the meaning assigned to it by 

Section 253(2) of the Road Traffic Act 

1960 or any statutory re-enactment or 

amendment thereof 

No Return Within ‘x’ Hours means no return to the same Parking 

Place/area is permitted within the 

specified hours of departure from that 

Parking Place/area 

Operating Centre means, in relation to any Vehicle, the 

base or centre at which the Vehicle is 

normally kept, and references to an 

Operating Centre of the holder of an 

operator’s licence are references to any 

place which is an Operating Centre for 

authorised Vehicles under the licence 

Page 82

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  6 
 

1984 Act means the Road Traffic Regulation Act 

1984 and any statutory re-enactment, 

amendment or replacement thereof 

Parking means any Vehicle which is stationary in 

a Parking Place for any period of time 

whether the Vehicle remains unoccupied 

or otherwise, whether the engine is 

disengaged or otherwise, and whether in 

a designated Parking Bay or otherwise 

‘Parking’ and ‘Parked’ shall have the 

same meaning 

Parking Bay means any area of a Parking Place which 

is provided for the Parking of a Vehicle 

and indicated by markings on the surface 

of the Parking Place 

Parking Place means those areas of land specified by 

name and as shown on the Plans in 

Schedule 7 for use as a Parking Place 

Parking Session means a single, continuous time period in 

which a customer pays to Park in a 

Parking Place 

Pay and Display means a parking system in which the 

driver of a Vehicle purchases a ticket 

having parked the Vehicle in the Parking 

Place, from a card and coin-operated 

payment machine and displays it clearly 

on the dashboard of the Vehicle 

PCN means Penalty Charge Notice 

Penalty Charge means a Penalty Charge as defined by 

Section 92 of the Traffic Management Act 

2004 

Permit Shall, where the context so admits include 

virtual reserved and resident’s car parking 

Page 83

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  7 
 

1984 Act means the Road Traffic Regulation Act 

1984 and any statutory re-enactment, 

amendment or replacement thereof 

Permits, and shall further include any 

virtual Permits covering periods of 4 

(FOUR) days, weekly or longer periods 

Permitsmarti Means the platform/system used to 

purchase North Devon District Council car 

park virtual permits 

Public Service Vehicle shall have the meaning assigned to it by 

Section 1 of the Public Passenger 

Vehicles Act 1981 or any statutory re-

enactment or amendment thereof 

Registered Disabled Vehicle means (a) a disabled person’s Vehicle as 

defined by the Local Authority Traffic 

Orders (Exemptions for Disabled 

Persons) (England and Wales) 

Regulations 1986 as amended, which is 

displaying a valid Disabled Person’s 

Badge, or (b) a Vehicle being exempt 

from Vehicle excise duty under clauses 

18, 19 and 20 of Schedule 2 of the 

Vehicle Excise and Registration Act 1994 

and which is displaying the exempt 

Vehicle excise licence issued for that 

Vehicle 

Reserved Bay means a Parking Bay available for use 

only by Vehicles authorised by the 

Council to park within that Parking Bay 

Reserved Permit means a virtual permit issued to a specific 

holder, permitting them to park within a 

designated parking bay, for use only by 

Page 84

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  8 
 

1984 Act means the Road Traffic Regulation Act 

1984 and any statutory re-enactment, 

amendment or replacement thereof 

Vehicles authorised by the Council to park 

within that Parking Bay 

Resident’s Permit means a virtual permit issued to a specific 

holder, permitting them to park within a 

designated parking area, for use only by 

Vehicles authorised by the Council to park 

within that Parking area 

Registered Keeper means the person by whom such Vehicle 

is kept and used as recorded by the 

DVLA at the time of the contravention 

RingGo means parking time purchased via the 

phone application RingGo which issues a 

virtual ticket 

Rover Permit means a virtual permit issued to a specific 

holder, permitting them to park within a 

designated parking areas, for use only by 

Vehicles authorised by the Council to park 

within that Parking area 

Scale of Charges means the charges for use of the Parking 

Places specified within Schedule One 

The Plan means the Plan of Barnstaple Bus Station 

and the other Parking Places specified by 

name in Schedule Seven 

Vehicle means any Vehicle, whether motorised or 

otherwise, and without prejudice to the 

generality of the foregoing shall include 

anything attached to, forming part of or 

being carried on any Vehicle and shall 

also mean any trailer or caravan whether 

attached or unattached 

Page 85

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  9 
 

 

 

PART 2: USE OF LAND AND PARKING PLACE 

 

2.1 Each area of land specified by name in the Schedule may be used, 

subject to the following provisions of this Order as a Parking Place for 

such classes of Vehicles in such positions on such days and during 

such hours as are specified in relation to that area in the Schedule. 

 

2.2 Where in the Schedule a Parking Place is described as available for 

Vehicles of a specified class or in a specified position, the driver of a 

Vehicle shall not permit it to remain in that Parking Place unless it is of 

the class and in the position so specified. 

2.3 The permitted classes of Vehicles must park wholly within a Parking 

Bay set aside for that class of Vehicle. 

 

2.4 Where, within a Parking Place, there is a sign or surface marking which 

indicates that a Parking Bay is available only for a Disabled Badge 

Holder, such indication being either by words or symbols, the driver of 

a Vehicle shall not park it nor permit it to remain in that Parking Bay 

unless the driver or passenger is a Disabled Badge Holder. 

 

2.5  Where, within a Parking Place, there is a sign or surface marking 

which indicates that the Parking Place, Parking Bay or Bays is/are a 

Reserved Bay or Parking Place available for virtual permit holders only, 

or is not available for use by members of the general public, such 

indication being either by words or symbols, the driver of a vehicle shall 

not park it or permit it to remain in that Parking Bay or Parking Place 

unless it is a vehicle authorised by the Council to park in that Parking 

Place or Parking Bay. 

 

2.6  The driver of a vehicle of any class driving, reversing or manoeuvring 

a vehicle in any Parking Place shall not exceed a speed limit of 5 

(FIVE) miles per hour. 

Page 86

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  10 
 

 

2.7  The Articles of this Order shall apply to each and every Parking Place 

for all periods of every day inclusive of bank holidays, irrespective of 

whether there is a charge in force at any time for parking in the Parking 

Place. 

 

2.8 The driver of a vehicle shall not permit it to remain in a Parking Place 

for longer than the maximum period permitted for parking specified in 

the Schedule in relation to that Parking Place. 

 

2.9 Where a Parking Place named in the Schedule has a restriction 

prohibiting a return to that Parking Place within a specified time period, 

the driver of a vehicle shall not permit the vehicle to return to that 

Parking Place within that time period. 

 

PART 3: THE USE OF BARNSTAPLE BUS STATION 

 

3.1 Barnstaple Bus Station (“the Bus Station”) shall be in part used as a 

station for public service vehicles and in part as a Parking Place for 

certain classes of Vehicles subject to the following provisions of this 

Order: 

               (a)   No vehicle other than a Public Service Vehicle shall be     

permitted to use the red land; 

               (b)   All Public Service Vehicles setting down or picking up passengers 

within the red land shall do so only at one of the Designated 

Stands and in accordance with any agreement or arrangement 

entered into with the Council; 

               (c)  The driver of any Public Service Vehicle shall not permit it to 

remain within the red land for longer than 30 minutes, unless 

authorised in writing by the Council; 

               (d) The driver of a Public Service Vehicle shall, on using the red land, 

pay the appropriate charge in accordance with the Scale of 

Page 87

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  11 
 

Charges specified within the Schedule, or such other charge as 

may be agreed in writing with the Council; 

(e)  The Charge referred to in (d) above shall be payable by 

Arrangement as agreed in writing with the Council; 

(f) The blue land shall only be used by customers or clients of the 

“Go North Devon” scheme and shall not be used by any vehicle 

apart from a motor car or a disabled badge holder; 

               (g)   Upon parking the vehicle within the blue land, the driver of the 

same will immediately obtain a parking permit from the “Go North 

Devon” offices and display the same within the windscreen of the 

vehicle; 

(h) Where within the Bus Station there is any sign or surface marking 

indicating that the Bus Station, or any designated stand or space 

is not available for use by any particular vehicle or vehicles/ class 

of vehicle(s), has been closed, the driver of any vehicle shall not 

park it nor permit it to remain in the Bus Station or designated 

stand unless authorised to do so by the Council; 

(i) The provisions of this Order shall apply to the Bus Station for all 

periods of every day, irrespective of bank holidays or weekends; 

(j)   The driver of a vehicle using the Bus Station shall stop the engine 

as soon as the vehicle is in position in the Bus Station and shall 

not start the engine except when about to change the position of 

the vehicle or to depart from the Bus Station; 

           (k)  The driver of any vehicle shall not Park nor be permitted to Park a 

vehicle so unreasonably as to obstruct and/or prevent access to 

any other part of the Bus Station or any designated stand or 

space or so as to become a nuisance to any other user of the Bus 

Station; 

                (l)  Any vehicle in contravention of the provisions of this Order or any 

vehicle which is causing an obstruction or nuisance to other users 

of the Bus Station may be removed from the Bus Station by any 

authorised officer of the Council or on behalf of the Council by any 

authorised servant or agent in manner hereinafter appearing:  

Page 88

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  12 
 

                            (i) the vehicle may be removed by towing or driving the 

vehicle or some other method as the Council, its officers 

or servant may deem appropriate and necessary to 

enable the position of the vehicle to be altered or the 

vehicle to be removed; 

                           (ii)  any person moving, removing or arranging the removal of 

a vehicle by virtue of this section of the Order shall make 

arrangements as he considers reasonably necessary for 

the safety of the vehicle in the place to which it is 

removed; 

                          (iii)  in exercising its powers under this provision of the Order, 

the Council may recover the costs of removal and storage 

of the vehicle from the driver of the vehicle. 

(m)  Notwithstanding the powers contained within the previous    

provision hereof, in the case of a vehicle in respect of which a 

breach of any provision of this Order may have occurred, an 

officer of the Council or any agents or servants of the Council 

may attach to the vehicle or public service vehicle, a PCN which 

shall include the following particulars:  

        (i) the name of the enforcement authority;  

       (ii) the date on which the notice is served;  

                     (iii) the registration mark of the vehicle involved in the 

alleged contravention; 

(iv) the date and time at which the alleged contravention    

occurred; 

                                 (v)  the grounds on which the civil enforcement officer 

serving the notice believed that a penalty charge is 

payable;  

                            (vi)  the amount of the penalty charge;  

                                (vii)  the information that the penalty charge must be paid 

not later than the last day of the period of 28 days 

beginning with the date on which the penalty charge 

notice was served;  

Page 89

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  13 
 

(viii) the information that, if the penalty charge is paid not 

later than the last day of the period of 14 days 

beginning with the date on which the notice is 

served, the penalty charge will be reduced by the 

amount of any applicable discount; 

(ix)   The information that if the penalty charge is not paid 

before the end of the period of 28 days a notice to 

owner may be served by the enforcement authority 

on the owner of the vehicle;  

(x) The manner in which the penalty charge must be 

paid. 

(n)  When a PCN has been attached to a vehicle in accordance with 

any of the foregoing provisions of this Order no person other 

than a person authorised by the Council on their behalf or the 

driver or a person authorised by the driver on their behalf shall 

remove the same from the vehicle; 

(o)       Where in the Bus Station, signs are erected or surface markings 

laid for the purpose of indicating the entrance to or exit from the 

Bus Station or indicating that a vehicle using a parking place 

should proceed in a specified direction within the Bus Station, 

no persons shall drive or permit to be driven any public service 

vehicle so that it enters or leaves the Bus Station otherwise 

than by an entrance or exit so indicated or in a direction other 

than such specified; 

(p)  The Council may at its discretion suspend the operation of this 

Order in relation to the whole or any part of the Bus Station at 

any time and for whatever purpose it deems fit; 

(q)  No person shall cause a nuisance or annoyance to other users 

of the Bus Station or to any Council employee nor interfere in 

any way with nor obstruct or cause to obstruct any part of the 

Bus Station nor any parking bay/area, designated stands, 

signs, meters or notices within the Bus Station; 

Page 90

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  14 
 

(r)  For the purpose of the instigation of proceedings in respect of 

any breach of this Order the person responsible shall be 

deemed to be the registered keeper/ hirer of the vehicle; 

(s)  Where a PCN has been issued and payment of the Penalty 

Charge has not been made within the time stated thereon, the 

Council may instigate proceedings in the Civil Court for the 

recovery of the penalty charge and any reasonable costs 

incurred by the Council in taking such proceedings. 

 

PART 4: CHARGES 

 

4.1  The driver of a vehicle using a parking place shall pay the  

appropriate charge in accordance with the Scale of Charges specified 

in Schedule One provided that no charge shall be payable by the 

driver of a vehicle left in that parking place if either the vehicle 

displays a valid virtual permit issued in respect of that vehicle in 

accordance with the provisions of Paragraph (3) of this Article or, if 

that vehicle is parked in a parking place and remains within the 

parking place only during those days or hours of the day when no 

charge is payable as provided in Schedule One.  

 

4.2 The charge referred to in paragraph 4.1 shall be payable by one of the 

following methods: 

      (a) Pay and Display; or 

      (b) Payment via mobile phone; or 

(c)  some other arrangement as may be agreed in writing with the 

Council. 

            

4.3 The owner of a vehicle may, on application to the Council, purchase a 

virtual permit in respect of a vehicle for a charge ascertained by 

reference to the Schedule and that virtual permit shall be valid in such 

parking places/ areas as are specified thereon during the period for 

which it is issued. The use of the said virtual permit shall be subject to 

Page 91

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  15 
 

the terms of this Order and to any additional terms or conditions 

specified by the council. 

 

4.4      (a)  Any Pay & Display ticket issued upon the payment of the charge in 

accordance with paragraph 4.2(a) ascertained by reference to 

Schedule One shall be maintained and continuously and 

conspicuously displayed inside the windscreen or on the 

dashboard of that vehicle throughout the entire parking period of 

the vehicle in respect of which it was issued or purchased; 

   (b)   Said Pay & Display ticket must remain both visible and legible 

throughout that period to any person examining the vehicle from its 

exterior; 

   (c)    Any virtual Parking Session issued in accordance with paragraph 

4.3 must refer to that parking place/area in which it is parked at the 

time of observation; 

(d)   The Parking Session must be valid for the entire period for which 

the vehicle remains in that parking place/area and should relate to 

the vehicle registration parked during that period. 

 

4.5  A vehicle shall not remain in a Parking Place if it displays any Pay & 

Display ticket or virtual Parking Session referred to in paragraph 4.4 

hereof which has expired or is invalidated either in the circumstances 

described in 4.6 below or if the Parking Session obtained via RingGo 

has expired or for any other reason.  

 

4.6 Tickets referred to in 4.4 above shall not be transferred between 

vehicles, and for the avoidance of doubt, shall become invalid upon 

such a transfer taking place. Tickets purchased by RingGo are only valid 

if they refer to the correct registration number and Parking Place.  

 

4.7 The charges payable in accordance with the Scale of Charges specified 

within Schedule One shall be payable in respect of all vehicles, including 

a Disabled Badge Holder.  

 

Page 92

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  16 
 

PART 5: OTHER PROVISIONS 

 

5.1   The driver of a Motor Vehicle shall comply with the terms of this Order 

and any ancillary matters specified within Schedule Six. 

 

5.2  The driver of a Motor Vehicle using a Parking Place, shall stop the 

engine as soon as the vehicle is in position in the Parking Place and 

shall not start the engine except when about to change the position of 

the vehicle or to depart from the Parking Place. 

 

5.3 No person shall use any part of a Parking Place, or any vehicle left in a 

Parking Place, for the purpose of servicing or washing any vehicle or 

part thereof other than carrying out such repairs as are reasonably 

necessary to enable that vehicle to depart from the Parking Place. 

 

5.4. The driver of a vehicle using a Parking Place shall not sound any horn 

or other similar instrument or cause to be made any loud noise to the 

disturbance or annoyance of users of the Parking Place or occupiers of 

premises or any other person in and around the neighbourhood. 

 

5.5      (a) If a vehicle is left in a Parking Place in a position other than in 

accordance with the provisions of paragraph 4, a person authorised 

by the Council may alter, or cause to be altered, the position of the 

vehicle so that its position is in accordance with said provisions; 

 

(b)  For the purpose of meeting the requirements of an emergency, a 

person authorised by the Council, or a Police Officer in uniform, 

may alter or cause to be altered the position of a vehicle in a 

Parking Place or remove or arrange for the removal of a vehicle 

from a Parking Place. 

 

(c)  Any person altering or causing the alteration of the position of a 

vehicle by virtue of paragraph 5.1, removing or causing the removal 

of a vehicle by virtue of paragraph 5.2 may do so by towing or 

Page 93

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  17 
 

driving the vehicle or in such other manner as he may think 

reasonably necessary to enable the position of the vehicle to be 

altered or the vehicle to be removed. 

 

(d)  Any person moving, removing or arranging the removal of a vehicle 

by virtue of paragraphs 5.2 or 5.3 of this Article shall make such 

arrangements as he considers to be reasonably necessary for the 

safety of the vehicle in the place to which it is removed. 

 

(e)  In exercising any of its powers hereunder, the Council may recover 

from the driver of the vehicle any reasonable costs and expenses 

which are incurred by the Council or its authorised agents. 

 

5.6 In a Parking Place, no person shall: 

(a)  erect, cause or permit to be erected any tent, booth, stand, building 

or other structure without the written consent of the Council; 

(b) light, cause or permit to be lit any fire. 

 

5.7  No person shall use a Parking Place or any Parking Bay when the 

Council have closed that Parking Place or Parking Bay. 

 

5.8 The driver of a vehicle shall not permit that vehicle to be parked in a 

Parking Place, Parking Bay or area which it is stated, either within this 

Order, its Schedules, on signs, on the ground or otherwise to be 

available for reserved parking only or where “No Parking” signs are 

erected or marked out on the ground or in an area marked with cross-

hatch markings on the ground or in a Parking Place, Parking Bay or 

area which has been closed by the Council by any other method. 

 

5.9 The driver of a vehicle shall not permit that vehicle to be parked so 

unreasonably as to obstruct and/or as to prevent access to any other 

Parking Place, Parking Bay or any premises adjoining the Parking 

Place or so as to become a nuisance to any other user of the Parking 

Page 94

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  18 
 

Place. Vehicles are not permitted to park beyond the Parking Bay 

markings. 

 

5.10  (a) No person shall abandon a vehicle within a Parking Place or area. 

 

(b)  For the purposes of paragraph 5.1, a person who leaves a vehicle 

within a Parking Place in such circumstances or for such a period 

that he may reasonably be assumed to have abandoned it, shall be 

deemed to have abandoned it there unless a contrary intention is 

shown. 

 

(c)  If any boat or other article is left in a Parking Place without the 

consent of the Council, the Council may cause a Notice to be 

attached to, or placed near to, the boat or other article requiring the 

removal of the boat or other article within 7 days of the date of the 

Notice. 

 

(d) If any boat or other article shall remain after the expiry of the said 

Notice the Council may remove or cause to be removed the same 

and shall recover any costs incurred in so doing from the owner 

thereof. 

 

5.11    (a) Where an authorised officer has reasonable grounds to believe that 

a vehicle has contravened any of the conditions within this Order, 

they may attach a notice to the vehicle requesting that the vehicle 

be removed from the Parking Place within not less than 24 hours of 

the time that the notice is affixed and that it should not return 

thereto. 

 

(b)  Any vehicle remaining within the Parking Place after the expiry of 

the notice period, can be removed by any authorised Officer of the 

Council or on behalf of the Council by any authorised servant or 

agent in the manner set out in 5.11 above. 

 

Page 95

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  19 
 

(c)  If a vehicle cannot be removed or it is deemed inappropriate for the 

Council to remove the vehicle, then an authorised Officer may 

serve a further notice by leaving it attached to the vehicle advising 

that all rights of occupation of the Parking Place are formally 

withdrawn and that unless the vehicle is removed within 24 hours 

of the date of service then action will be taken forthwith without 

further notice in the appropriate Court to have the vehicle and any 

occupiers removed. 

 

PART 6: PENALTY CHARGE 

 

6.1 In the case of a vehicle in respect of which a breach of this Order may 

have occurred, it shall be the duty of a Civil Enforcement Officer to 

provide notification of a Penalty Charge by notice affixed to the vehicle 

in a conspicuous position, or by notice given to the person appearing 

to be in charge of the vehicle or in such other manner as specified by 

Traffic Management Act 2004. The Penalty Charge Notice (“a PCN”) 

shall include the following particulars:  

 

(a) The name of the enforcement authority; 

 

(b) The date on which the notice is served; 

 

(c) The registration mark of vehicle involved in the alleged 

contravention; 

 

(d) The date and time at which the alleged contravention 

occurred; 

 

(e) The grounds on which the Civil Enforcement Officer serving 

the notice believed that a penalty charge is payable; 

 

(f) The amount of the penalty charge; 

Page 96

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  20 
 

 

(g) The information that the penalty charge must be paid not later 

than the last day of the period of 28 days beginning with the 

date on which the penalty charge notice was served; 

 

(h) The information that, if the penalty charge is paid not later than 

the last day of the period of 14 days beginning with the date 

on which the notice is served, the penalty charge will be 

reduced by the amount of any applicable discount; 

 

(i) The information that if the penalty charge is not paid before 

the end of the period of 28 days a notice to owner may be 

served by the enforcement authority on the owner of the 

vehicle; and 

 

(j) The manner in which the penalty charge must be paid. 

 

6.2  When a PCN has been attached to a vehicle in accordance with any of 

the foregoing provisions of this Order, no person other than a person 

authorised by the Council in that behalf or the driver or a person 

authorised by the driver in that behalf shall remove the same from the 

vehicle. 

 

PART 7: GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

7. Where in a Parking Place signs are erected or surface markings are laid 

for the purpose of: 

 

(a) indicating the entrance to or exit from the Parking Place, 

 

(b) indicating that a vehicle using a Parking Place shall proceed 

in a specified direction within the Parking Place, 

 

Page 97

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  21 
 

no person shall drive or permit to be driven any vehicle: 

 

(i) so that it enters the Parking Place otherwise than by an 

entrance or leaves the Parking Place otherwise than by an exit 

so indicated; or 

 

(ii) in a direction other than so specified. 

 

7.1 No person shall, except with the permission of a person authorised by 

the Council on their behalf, drive or permit to be driven any vehicle in a 

Parking Place for any purpose other than the purpose of parking that 

vehicle in the Parking Place in accordance with the provisions of this 

Order. 

 

7.2 No person shall use a vehicle while it is in a Parking Place in connection 

with the sale of an article to persons in or near the Parking Place or in 

connection with the selling or offering to hire of his skill or services except 

with the prior written consent of the Council. 

 

7.3 No person shall use any part of a Parking Place as an “Operating 

Centre”, within the meaning of the Transport Act 1968, unless the prior 

written consent of the Council in the form of a licence has been granted. 

 

7.4 No person shall deposit or cause to be deposited, any advertising 

handbills, leaflets or circulars on any vehicle in a Parking Place. Without 

prejudice to the generality of this article, a person shall be deemed to be 

causing an advert, handbill, leaflet or circular to be deposited if his 

goods, trade, business or other concerns are being given publicity by the 

advert, handbill, leaflet or circular unless he can prove that it was 

deposited without his consent. 

 

7.5 The Council may, at its discretion, suspend the operation of this Order 

in relation to the whole or any part of any Parking Place at any time and 

for whatever purpose it deems fit. This is without prejudice to the 

Page 98

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  22 
 

Council’s right to close the Parking Place or one or more Parking Bays 

within the Parking Place. 

 

7.6 No person shall cause a nuisance or annoyance to other users of a 

Parking Place or to any Council employee nor interfere in any way with, 

nor obstruct or cause to obstruct, any Parking Place or any Parking Bay, 

sign, meter or notice within any Parking Place. 

 

7.7 Where a PCN has been issued and payment of the Penalty Charge has 

not been made within the time stated thereon, the Council may instigate 

proceedings in the Civil Court for the recovery of the penalty charge and 

any reasonable costs incurred by the Council in taking such 

proceedings.  

 

7.8 For the purpose of the instigation of proceedings in respect of any breach 

of this Order or non-payment of a penalty charge, the person responsible 

shall be deemed to be the Registered Keeper or hirer of the vehicle. 

 

7.9     (a) No vehicle boat or other article or thing shall be left or parked on a 

parking place in such a position as may cause a nuisance or danger 

to the safety of users of the parking place. 

 

(b) Any vehicle boat or other article or thing which has been left in a 

Parking Place in breach of sub-clause (a) hereof may be removed 

from the Parking Place by any person who has been duly authorised 

by the Council. 

 

(c) The Council may make such arrangements as it considers 

reasonable for the safe custody of the vehicle, boat or other article 

or thing. 

 

(d) The Council will, upon being furnished with evidence of ownership, 

return the vehicle boat or other article or thing to the person who 

appears to the Council to be the owner of the same, SUBJECT TO 

Page 99

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  23 
 

payment of the reasonable costs of the Council incurred in removing 

and/or storing the same. 

 

 (e)  Any boat vehicle or other article so removed will be deemed to  

        have been abandoned unless claimed within 3 months of  

        removal. 

 

PART 8: CAR PARKS 

 

N.B. Where a car park has both Pay and Display and Permit 

Holder bays, the text in italics relates to Permit Holders only. 

 

BARNSTAPLE  

 

ALBERT 

LANE (BLUE 

AREA) 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V7) 

 

(V18) 

Motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and motor vehicles not 

exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) 

 

(P7) 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase 

CHARGES (C28) Reserved Parking Only by arrangement with North Devon District Council 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D3) Monday to Saturday inclusive 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H9) 

(H20) 

All hours 

 No overnight parking is permitted 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping 

 

Page 100

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  24 
 

BARNSTAPLE 

BUS STATION 

(RED AREA) 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V19) 

(V15) 

Coaches; 

Public Service Vehicles (excluding Taxis) 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H9) 

(H20) 

All hours 

No overnight parking is permitted 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping 

 

BEAR 

STREET 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE  

(V3) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times; 

CHARGES  (C1) 

 

 

 

(C55) 

1hrs - £1.30   6 hours - £7.80 

2hrs - £2.60   7 hours - £9.10 

3hrs - £3.90   8 hours - £10.40 

4hrs - £5.20   9 hours - £11.70 

5hrs - £6.50  All Day - £13.00 

50p for half an hour 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION  

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION  

(H2) 8.00am to 6.00pm 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping 

 

Page 101

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  25 
 

BELLE 

MEADOW 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE  

(V3) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times  

CHARGES  (C1) 

 

 

 

1hrs - £1.30   6 hours - £7.80 

2hrs - £2.60   7 hours - £9.10 

3hrs - £3.90   8 hours - £10.40 

4hrs - £5.20   9 hours - £11.70 

5hrs - £6.50  All Day - £13.00 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION  

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION  

(H2) 8.00am to 6.00pm 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping 

 

BICTON 

STREET 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V2) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen 

weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) 

 

(P7) 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times; 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase 

CHARGES (C17)  

 

(C29) 

Permit parking for local residents living within ¼ mile radius of the car park  

- £100 per year 

1hrs - £0.60 

2hrs - £0.80 

3hrs - £1.20 

All Day - £2.50 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D3) Monday to Saturday inclusive 

Page 102

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  26 
 

BICTON 

STREET 

  

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H9) 

(H2) 

All hours apply 

8.00am to 6.00pm 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping 

 

BRYNSWORTHY  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3) 

 

(V6) 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

Motor vehicles exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P11) No permits or tickets required 

CHARGES  (C7) Free of charge 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D6) No charges payable on car park for any day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H15) Maximum stay within parking place is 24 hours 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N10) No sleeping 

 

CASTLE 

QUAY 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V2) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen 

weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P7) 

(P9) 

(P20) 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase; 

Parking for general public prohibited except for those with reserved permits; 

Permits issued by North Devon Homes 

CHARGES  (C12) Reserved Permit Parking Only 

Per Quarter – £170.00  

Per Year - £600.00 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

Page 103

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  27 
 

CASTLE 

QUAY 

  

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H9) All hours 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N6) 

 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

Parking for visitors to residents of Castle Quay Court permitted only in bays 

10-19; 

No sleeping 

 

CASTLE 

QUAY 

SLIPWAY 

 

(H21) 

 

Parking prohibited at any time 

 

CATTLE 

MARKET 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) 

 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times 

CHARGES (C1) 

 

 

 

(C51) 

 

(C55) 

1hrs - £1.30   6 hours - £7.80 

2hrs - £2.60   7 hours - £9.10 

3hrs - £3.90   8 hours - £10.40 

4hrs - £5.20   9 hours - £11.70 

5hrs - £6.50  All Day - £13.00 

Solo motorcycles free of charge provided they park in specifically designated 

spaces for their use, otherwise car park scale of charges applies 

50p for half an hour 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H2) 8.00am to 6.00pm 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping 

Page 104

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  28 
 

 

COMMERCIAL 

ROAD 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times  

CHARGES (C1) 1hrs - £1.30   6 hours - £7.80 

2hrs - £2.60   7 hours - £9.10 

3hrs - £3.90   8 hours - £10.40 

4hrs - £5.20   9 hours - £11.70 

5hrs - £6.50  All Day - £13.00 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H2) 8.00am to 6.00pm 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping 

 

CONGRAMS 

CLOSE 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) 

 

(P7) 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;  

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase  

CHARGES (C17)  

 

(C29) 

Permit parking for local residents living within ¼ mile radius of the car park  

- £100 per year 

1hrs - £0.60 

2hrs - £0.80 

3hrs - £1.20 

All Day - £2.50 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D3) Monday to Saturday inclusive 

Page 105

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  29 
 

CONGRAMS 

CLOSE 

  

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H9) 

(H2) 

All hours apply 

8.00am to 6.00pm 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping 

 

CORONATION 

STREET 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V2) Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen 

weight 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P7) 

(P9) 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase 

Parking for general public prohibited except for those with reserved permits 

CHARGES (C21) Reserved Parking Only - £500.00 per year 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H9) All hours 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping 

 

FAIRVIEW   

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V4) Solo motorcycles, motor cars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations, motor 

vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight, hitched trailers and hitched 

caravans. 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) 

 

(P7) 

(P8) 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;  

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase; 

Vehicle with a trailer/caravan must buy a ticket for each bay occupied 

CHARGES (C30) 

(C51) 

£2.50 all day 

Solo motorcycles free of charge provided they park in specifically designated 

spaces for their use, otherwise car park scale of charges applies 

Page 106

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  30 
 

FAIRVIEW   

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D3) Monday to Saturday inclusive 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H2) 8.00am to 6.00pm 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping 

 

HARDAWAY 

HEAD 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) - Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;  

CHARGES (C1) 1hrs - £1.30   6 hours - £7.80 

2hrs - £2.60   7 hours - £9.10 

3hrs - £3.90   8 hours - £10.40 

4hrs - £5.20   9 hours - £11.70 

5hrs - £6.50  All Day - £13.00 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H2) 8.00am to 6.00pm 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping 

 

LITCHDON 

STREET 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

Page 107

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  31 
 

LITCHDON 

STREET 

  

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) 

 

(P7) 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times  

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase 

CHARGES (C1) 1hrs - £1.30   6 hours - £7.80 

2hrs - £2.60   7 hours - £9.10 

3hrs - £3.90   8 hours - £10.40 

4hrs - £5.20   9 hours - £11.70 

5hrs - £6.50  All Day - £13.00 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H2) 8.00am to 6.00pm 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping 

 

LOVERINGS 

COURT 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V2) Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen 

weight 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P7) 

(P9) 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase 

Parking for general public prohibited except for those with reserved permits 

CHARGES (C41) Reserved Parking Only - £500.00 per year 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H9) All hours 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping 

 

Page 108

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  32 
 

LOWER 

PILTON 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V2) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen 

weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) 

 

(P7) 

(P9) 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times; 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase; 

Parking for general public prohibited except for those with reserved permits 

CHARGES (C17) 

 

(C20)  

(C29) 

Permit parking for local residents living within ¼ mile radius of the car park  

- £100 per year 

Reserved Parking Available - £300.00 per year  

1hrs - £0.60 

2hrs - £0.80 

3hrs - £1.20 

All Day - £2.50 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D3) 

(D5) 

Monday to Saturday inclusive 

Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H2) 

(H9) 

8.00am to 6.00pm 

 All hours 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping 

 

MAGDALENE 

LAWN 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V2) Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen 

weight 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P7) 

 (P9) 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase 

Parking for general public prohibited except for those with reserved permits 

CHARGES (C39) Annual Reserved Parking Permit - £180.00 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H9) All hours 

Page 109

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  33 
 

MAGDALENE 

LAWN 

  

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping 

 

MARY 

MAGDALENE 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V2) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen 

weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P7) 

(P9) 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase 

Parking for general public prohibited except for those with reserved permits 

CHARGES  (C7) Free of charge 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D6) No charges payable on car park for any day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H9) All hours 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping 

 

MILL ROAD   

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times 

CHARGES (C35) 1hrs – £0.60 

2hrs – £0.80 

3hrs - £1.20 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D4) Monday to Saturday (Including Bank Holidays) 

Page 110

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  34 
 

MILL ROAD   

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H6) 

(H11) 

(H12) 

10.00am to 4.00pm 

No return within 2 hours  

Maximum stay is 3 hours 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping 

 

NORTH WALK   

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) 

 

(P7) 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times; 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase 

CHARGES (C1) 

 

 

 

(C51) 

 

(C56) 

1hrs - £1.30   6 hours - £7.80 

2hrs - £2.60   7 hours - £9.10 

3hrs - £3.90   8 hours - £10.40 

4hrs - £5.20   9 hours - £11.70 

5hrs - £6.50  All Day - £13.00 

Solo motorcycles free of charge provided they park in specifically designated 

spaces for their use, otherwise car park scale of charges applies 

Motorhome Charge - £15.00 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H2) 8.00am to 6.00pm 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N12) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

Bike Racks 

 

PAIGES LANE   

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

Page 111

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  35 
 

PAIGES LANE   

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times 

CHARGES (C1) 1hrs - £1.30   6 hours - £7.80 

2hrs - £2.60   7 hours - £9.10 

3hrs - £3.90   8 hours - £10.40 

4hrs - £5.20   9 hours - £11.70 

5hrs - £6.50  All Day - £13.00 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H2) 

(H10) 

(H12) 

8.00am to 6.00pm 

Maximum stay within parking place is 1 hour  

No return within 2 hours 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping 

 

PORTLAND 

BUILDINGS 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1)  

 

(P7) 

(P9) 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times; 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase 

Parking for general public prohibited except for those with reserved permits 

CHARGES (C1) 

 

 

 

(C48) 

1hrs - £1.30   6 hours - £7.80 

2hrs - £2.60   7 hours - £9.10 

3hrs - £3.90   8 hours - £10.40 

4hrs - £5.20   9 hours - £11.70 

5hrs - £6.50  All Day - £13.00 

Reserved Parking Available - £500.00 per year 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D3) Charges apply everyday  

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H2) 

(H9)  

8.00am to 6.00pm  

All hours  

Page 112

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  36 
 

PORTLAND 

BUILDINGS 

  

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping 

 

PORTMARSH 

LANE 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1)  

 

(P7) 

(P9) 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times; 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase 

Parking for general public prohibited except for those with reserved permits 

CHARGES (C17)  

 

(C30) 

(C39) 

Permit parking for local residents living within ¼ mile radius of the car park - 

£100 per year  

£2.50 all day 

Annual Reserved Parking Permit - £180.00 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D3) 

(D5) 

Monday to Saturday inclusive 

Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H2) 

(H9) 

8.00am to 6.00pm 

 All hours 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping 

 

QUEEN 

STREET 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) 

(P7) 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times; 

Page 113

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  37 
 

QUEEN 

STREET 

  

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase 

CHARGES (C1) 

 

 

 

(C51) 

 

(C55) 

1hrs - £1.30   6 hours - £7.80 

2hrs - £2.60   7 hours - £9.10 

3hrs - £3.90   8 hours - £10.40 

4hrs - £5.20   9 hours - £11.70 

5hrs - £6.50  All Day - £13.00 

Solo motorcycles free of charge provided they park in specifically designated 

spaces for their use, otherwise car park scale of charges applies; 

50p for half an hour 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H2) 8.00am to 6.00pm 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

(N12) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping; 

Bike Racks 

 

RIVERFRONT H21 Parking prohibited at any time 

 

ROLLE QUAY   

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) 

 

(P7) 

(P9) 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times; 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase; 

Parking for general public prohibited except for those with reserved tickets 

CHARGES (C4) 

 

 

 

(C57) 

Up to 1hrs - £1.30  

Up to 2hrs - £2.20  

Up to 3hrs - £3.30  

Up to 4hrs - £4.40  

Up to 24hrs - £6.00  

Reserved parking - £450.00 per year 

Page 114

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  38 
 

ROLLE QUAY   

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H2) 

(H9)  

8.00am to 6.00pm 

All hours 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

(N12) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping; 

Bike Racks 

 

ROLLE QUAY 

SLIPWAY 

(H21) Parking prohibited at any time 

 

RUGBY CLUB   

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P7) Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase  

CHARGES (C30) 

(C52) 

£2.50 all day 

Permit Parking from Monday to Friday 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D2) Monday to Friday inclusive (Excluding Bank Holidays) 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H6) 10.00am to 4.00pm 

 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping 

 

SEVEN 

BRETHREN  

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V4) Solo motorcycles, motor cars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations, motor 

vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight, hitched trailers and hitched 

caravans 

Page 115

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  39 
 

SEVEN 

BRETHREN  

  

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) 

 

(P7) 

(P8) 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times; 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase; 

A vehicle with a trailer/caravan must buy a ticket for each bay occupied 

CHARGES (C30) £2.50 all day 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D3) Monday to Saturday inclusive 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H2) 8.00am to 6.00pm 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N8) 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

Height Barrier (2.8m); 

No sleeping 

 

SEVEN 

BRETHREN 

VAN AND 

LORRY PARK 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V6) 

(V8) 

(V10) 

(V11) 

 

(V13) 

(V14) 

(V18) 

(V19) 

Motor vehicles exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

Motor homes not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

Light commercial vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight only; 

A total maximum of 4 operating licences for vehicles are allowed on the lorry 

park and no trailers to be licensed for the Lorry Park; 

Motor homes 

Heavy Goods Vehicles (HGV’s); 

No caravans or trailers; 

Coaches 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times 

CHARGES (C5) 

 

(C30) 

Per hour - £1.70 

All day (24hrs) - £10.00 (lorries only) 

£2.50 all day (vans only) 

Page 116

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  40 
 

SEVEN 

BRETHREN 

VAN AND 

LORRY PARK 

  

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D3) 

(D5) 

Monday to Saturday inclusive 

Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

 (H2) 

 (H9) 

(H17) 

8.00am to 6.00pm  

All hours (lorries only) 

Maximum stay is 7 days – no return within 2 hours unless otherwise approved 

by the District Council 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged 

 

SILVER 

STREET 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times 

CHARGES (C1) 1hrs - £1.30   6 hours - £7.80 

2hrs - £2.60   7 hours - £9.10 

3hrs - £3.90   8 hours - £10.40 

4hrs - £5.20   9 hours - £11.70 

5hrs - £6.50  All Day - £13.00 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H9) All hours 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping 

 

Page 117

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  41 
 

SILVER 

STREET 

(RESERVED 

PERMIT 

BAYS) 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V2) 

 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen 

weight 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P7) 

(P9) 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase; 

Parking for general public prohibited except for those with reserved permits. 

CHARGES (C19) Reserved Parking - £1,000 per year 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H9) All hours 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping 

 

TARKA   

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) 

(P7) 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times; 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase 

CHARGES (C29) 1hrs - £0.60 

2hrs - £0.80 

3hrs - £1.20 

All Day - £2.50 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D3) Monday to Saturday inclusive 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H2) 8.00am to 6.00pm 

Page 118

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  42 
 

TARKA   

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N8) 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

Height Barrier (2.8m); 

No sleeping 

 

TULY STREET   

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) 

(P7) 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times; 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase 

CHARGES (C1) 1hrs - £1.30   6 hours - £7.80 

2hrs - £2.60   7 hours - £9.10 

3hrs - £3.90   8 hours - £10.40 

4hrs - £5.20   9 hours - £11.70 

5hrs - £6.50  All Day - £13.00 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H2) 8.00am to 6.00pm 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping 

 

MUSEUM OF 

NORTH 

DEVON 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V2) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen 

weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P7) 

(P9) 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase 

Parking for general public prohibited except for those with reserved permits 

CHARGES (C7) Free of charge 

Page 119

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  43 
 

MUSEUM OF 

NORTH 

DEVON 

  

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D6) No charges payable on car park for any day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H9) All hours  

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping 

 

BICKINGTON 

CAR PARK 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) 

 

(P7) 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase 

CHARGES (C23)  

 

(C29) 

Residents permit available to those living within ¼ miles of the Parking Place - 

£60.00 per year 

1hrs - £0.60 

2hrs - £0.80 

3hrs - £1.20 

All Day - £2.50 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D3) Monday to Saturday inclusive 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H2) 8.00am to 6.00pm 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N8) 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

Height Barrier (2.3m)  

No sleeping 

 

Page 120

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  44 
 

FREMINGTON 

CAR PARK 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) 

 

(P7) 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times; 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase 

 

CHARGES (C17) 

 

(C29) 

Parking for local residents living within ¼ mile radius of the car park - £100 per 

year 

1hrs - £0.60 

2hrs - £0.80 

3hrs - £1.20 

All Day - £2.50 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D3) Monday to Saturday inclusive 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H2) 8.00am to 6.00pm 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping 

 

BRAUNTON 

 

Please note that permits for Braunton Car Parks are issued by Braunton 

Parish Council or the owners of Caen Field Car Park. 

 

 

CAEN 

STREET 

(MAIN RED 

AREA) 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

Page 121

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  45 
 

CAEN 

STREET 

(MAIN RED 

AREA) 

  

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) 

 

(P15) 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times; 

Permits issued by Braunton Parish Council 

CHARGES (C45) 

 

 

 

 

(C51) 

First 30 minutes - £0.30 

Up to 1hrs - £0.80 

Up to 2hrs - £1.50 

Up to 3hrs - £2.30 

Each additional hour - £0.50 

Solo motorcycles free of charge provided they park in specifically designated 

spaces for their use, otherwise car park scale of charges applies 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D3) Monday to Saturday inclusive 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H4) 9.00am to 6.00pm   

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N2) 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

Not owned by NDDC, but operated by NDDC  

No sleeping 

 

CAEN 

STREET 

(BLUE 

OVERFLOW 

AREA) 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) 

 

(P7) 

(P15) 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times; 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase; 

Permits issued by Braunton Parish Council 

Page 122

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  46 
 

CAEN 

STREET 

(BLUE 

OVERFLOW 

AREA) 

  

CHARGES (C38) 

 

(C45) 

From 1 April 2014 

Annual Residents Permit (available for all Parishioners of Braunton) - £175.00 

First 30 minutes - £0.30 

Up to 1hrs - £0.80 

Up to 2hrs - £1.50 

Up to 3hrs - £2.30 

Each additional hour - £0.50 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D3) Monday to Saturday inclusive 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H4) 9.00am to 6.00pm   

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N2) 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

Not owned by NDDC, but operated by NDDC; 

No sleeping 

 

CAEN FIELD 

CAR PARK 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) 

 

(P16) 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times; 

Permits issued by the land owner 

CHARGES (C15) Up to ½ hr – £0.20    Up to 6hrs - £3.60 

Up to 1hrs – £0.60    Up to 7hrs - £4.20 

Up to 2hrs – £1.20    Up to 8hrs - £4.80 

Up to 3hrs – £1.80    Up to 24hrs - £10.00 

Up to 4hrs – £2.40 

Up to 5hrs - £3.00 

Page 123

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  47 
 

CAEN FIELD 

CAR PARK 

  

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H9) All hours  

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N2) 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

Not owned by NDDC, but operated by NDDC; 

No sleeping 

 

CHALONERS 

ROAD 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) 

 

(P15) 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times; 

Permits issued by Braunton Parish Council 

CHARGES (C45) 

 

 

 

 

(C51) 

First 30 minutes - £0.30 

Up to 1hrs - £0.80 

Up to 2hrs - £1.50 

Up to 3hrs - £2.30 

Each additional hour - £0.50 

Solo motorcycles free of charge provided they park in specifically designated 

spaces for their use, otherwise car park scale of charges applies 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D3) Monday to Saturday inclusive 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H4) 9.00am to 6.00pm 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N2) 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

Not owned by NDDC, but operated by NDDC; 

No sleeping 

 

Page 124

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  48 
 

COMBE MARTIN  

 

CORMELLES 

CAR PARK 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) 

 

(P7) 

(P16) 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times; 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase 

Permits issued by the land owner 

CHARGES (C10) Up to 2hrs - £1.00 

Up to 4hrs - £2.00 

Up to 12hrs - £3.00 

Up to 24hrs - £4.00 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H9) All hours 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

 (N3) 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged;  

Owned and operated by Combe Martin Parish Council; 

No sleeping 

 

HIGH STREET 

COACH/CAR 

PARK 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3)  

 

(V9) 

(V18) 

(V19)  

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

Motor homes and campervans not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers; 

Coaches 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) 

 

(P7) 

(P8) 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times; 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase; 

A vehicle with a trailer/caravan must buy a ticket for each bay occupied; 

Page 125

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  49 
 

HIGH STREET 

COACH/CAR 

PARK 

  

(P16) Permits issued by the land owner. 

CHARGES (C31)  

 

(C53) 

Parking by non-transferable permit only after 30 minute free period (except for 

motorhomes and campervans which may park for up to 24hrs for £5.00) 

30 minutes free parking and no return within 2hrs 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H9) All hours  

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N3) 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

Owned and operated by Combe Martin Parish Council; 

No sleeping 

 

HOLDSTONE 

DOWN 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P16) Permits issued by the land owner 

CHARGES (C7) Free of charge 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D6) No charges payable on car park for any day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H9) 

(H18) 

All hours 

Maximum stay is 7 days - no return within 6 hours 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N3) 

(N10) 

 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

Owned and operated by Combe Martin Parish Council; 

No sleeping 

 

 

Page 126

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  50 
 

HOLLANDS 

PARK 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V1) Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P16) Permits issued by the land owner. 

CHARGES (C7) Free of charge 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H18) Maximum stay is 7 days - no return within 6 hours 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N3) 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

Owned and operated by Combe Martin Parish Council; 

No sleeping 

 

KILN CAR 

PARK 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V4) Solo motorcycles, motor cars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations, motor 

vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight, hitched trailers and hitched 

caravans 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P8) 

(P16) 

A vehicle with a trailer/caravan must buy a ticket for each bay occupied; 

Permits issued by the land owner. 

CHARGES (C9) 

 

 

 

(C11) 

From 1 November to 14 March 

Up to 2hrs - £1.00 

Up to 12hrs - £3.00 

All day - £4.00 

From 15 March to 31 October 

Up to 1hrs - £1.30 

Up to 2hrs - £2.60 

Up to 3hrs - £3.90 

Up to 4hrs - £5.20 

Up to 24hrs - £13.00 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

Page 127

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  51 
 

KILN CAR 

PARK 

  

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H9) All hours 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N3) 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

Owned and operated by Combe Martin Parish Council; 

No sleeping 

 

THE PARADE   

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V2) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen 

weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P16) Permits issued by the land owner. 

CHARGES (C9)  

 

 

 

(C11) 

From 1 November to 14 March 

Up to 2hrs - £1.00 

Up to 12hrs - £3.00 

All day - £4.00 

From 15 March to 31 October 

Up to 1hrs - £1.30 

Up to 2hrs - £2.60 

Up to 3hrs - £3.90 

Up to 4hrs - £5.20 

Up to 24hrs - £13.00 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H9) All hours 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N3) 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

Owned and operated by Combe Martin Parish Council; 

No sleeping 

 

Page 128

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  52 
 

CROYDE  

 

CROYDE CAR 

PARK 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3)  

 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

Coaches 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) 

 

(P7) 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times; 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase 

CHARGES (C2) 

 

 

 

 

(C3) 

 

  

(C5) 

 

(C17) 

 

(C56) 

15 March to 31 October 

1hrs - £1.50   6 hours - £9.00 
2hrs - £3.00   7 hours - £10.50 

3hrs - £4.50   8 hours - £12.00 

4hrs - £6.00   9 hours - £13.50 

5hrs - £7.50  All Day - £15.00 

From 1 November to 14 March 

1hrs – £0.80   All Day - £2.50 

2hrs - £1.40 

Per hour - £1.70 

All day (24 hrs) - £10.00 (coaches only) 

Parking for local residents living within ¼ mile radius of the car park - £100 per 

year  

Motorhome Charge - £15.00 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H9) 

(H2) 

All hours (Coaches) 

8.00am to 6.00pm 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged 

 

ILFRACOMBE  
 

Page 129

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  53 
 

ADELAIDE 

TERRACE 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V2) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen 

weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P7) 

(P9) 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase 

Parking for general public prohibited except for those with reserved permits 

CHARGES  (C58) £120 per annum for Adelaide Terrace Resident’s Association Only 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H9) All hours 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping 

 

BERRYNARBOR 

CAR PARK 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V2) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen 

weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P11) No permits or tickets required 

CHARGES (C7) Free of charge 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D6) No charges payable on car park for any day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H9) 

(H15) 

All hours; 

Maximum stay within parking place is 24 hours 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping 

 

Page 130

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  54 
 

BICCLESCOMBE   

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V2) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen 

weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P11) No permits or tickets required 

CHARGES (C7) Free of charge 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D6) No charges payable on car park for any day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H9) 

(H18) 

All hours 

Maximum stay is 7 days - no return within 6 hours 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle 

is an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping 

 

BROOKDALE 

(CARS) 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) 

 

(P7) 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times; 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase 

CHARGES (C3) 

 

 

(C25) 

From 1 November to 14 March 

1hrs – £0.80   All Day - £2.50 

2hrs - £1.40 

From 15 March to 31 October 

1hrs - £1.30 

2hrs - £2.20 

3hrs - £3.30 

All day - £6.00 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H2) 8.00am to 6.00pm 

Page 131

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  55 
 

BROOKDALE 

(CARS) 

  

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping 

 

BROOKDALE 

(LORRIES 

AND 

COACHES) 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V6) 

(V8) 

(V10) 

(V11) 

 

(V13) 

(V14) 

(V18) 

(V19) 

Motor vehicles exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

Motor homes not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

Light commercial vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight only; 

A total maximum of 4 operating licences for vehicles are allowed on the lorry 

park and no trailers to be licensed for the Lorry Park; 

Motor homes 

Heavy Goods Vehicles (HGV’s); 

No caravans or trailers; 

Coaches 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times 

CHARGES (C5) 

 

(C30) 

Per hour - £1.70 

All day (24hrs) - £10 (lorries only) 

£1.70 all day (vans) 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D3) 

(D5) 

Monday to Saturday inclusive 

Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

 (H2) 

 (H9) 

(H17) 

8.00am to 6.00pm  

All hours (lorries only) 

Maximum stay is 7 days – no return within 2 hours unless otherwise approved 

by the District Council 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged 

 

Page 132

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  56 
 

CHEYNE 

BEACH 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V2) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen 

weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P7) 

(P14) 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase 

Permits only issued by Ilfracombe Town Council 

CHARGES (C7) Free of charge 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D6) No charges payable on car park for any day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H9) All hours 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N2) 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

Not owned by NDDC, but operated by NDDC; 

No sleeping 

 

COVE   

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V4) Solo motorcycles, motor cars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations, motor 

vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight, hitched trailers and hitched 

caravans 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) 

(P8) 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times; 

A vehicle with a trailer/caravan must buy a ticket for each bay occupied 

CHARGES (C2) 

 

 

 

 

(C3) 

 

 

(C51) 

15 March to 31 October 

1hrs - £1.50   6 hours - £9.00 
2hrs - £3.00   7 hours - £10.50 

3hrs - £4.50   8 hours - £12.00 

4hrs - £6.00   9 hours - £13.50 

5hrs - £7.50  All Day - £15.00 

From 1 November to 14 March 

1hrs – £0.80   All Day - £2.50 

2hrs - £1.40 

Solo motorcycles free of charge provided they park in specifically designated 

spaces for their use, otherwise car park scale of charges applies 

Page 133

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  57 
 

COVE   

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H2) 8.00am to 6.00pm 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping 

 

HAGGINGTON 

CAR PARK 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P11) No permits or tickets required 

CHARGES (C7) Free of charge 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D6) No charges payable on car park for any day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H9) 

(H18) 

All hours 

Maximum stay is 7 days - no return within 6 hours 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

(N11) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping; 

No camping 

 

HELE   

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V4) Solo motorcycles, motor cars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations, motor 

vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight, hitched trailers and hitched 

caravans 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) 

 

(P7) 

(P8) 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times; 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase; 

A vehicle with a trailer/caravan must buy a ticket for each bay occupied 

Page 134

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  58 
 

HELE   

CHARGES (C17)  

 

(C29) 

Parking for local residents living within ¼ mile radius of the car park - £100  

per year  

1hrs - £0.60 

2hrs - £0.80 

3hrs - £1.20 

All Day - £2.50 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D3) Monday to Saturday inclusive 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H2) 8.00am to 6.00pm 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N8) 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

Height Barrier (2.7m); 

No sleeping 

 

HILLSBOROUGH 

(CARS) 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V4) Solo motorcycles, motor cars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations, 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight, hitched trailers and 

hitched caravans 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) 

 

(P7) 

(P8) 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times; 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase 

A vehicle with a trailer/caravan must buy a ticket for each bay occupied 

CHARGES (C17) 

 

(C29) 

 

 

 

(C56) 

Parking for local residents living within ¼ mile radius of the car park - £100  

per year  

1hrs - £0.60 

2hrs - £0.80 

3hrs - £1.20 

All Day - £2.50 

Motorhome Charge - £15.00 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D3) Monday to Saturday inclusive 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H2) 8.00am to 6.00pm 

Page 135

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  59 
 

HILLSBOROUGH 

(CARS) 

  

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle 

is an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping 

 

HILLSBOROUGH 

LORRIES AND 

VANS 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V6) 

(V8) 

(V10) 

(V11) 

 

(V13) 

(V14) 

(V18) 

(V19) 

Motor vehicles exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

Motor homes not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

Light commercial vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight only; 

A total maximum of 4 operating licences for vehicles are allowed on the 

lorry park and no trailers to be licensed for the Lorry Park; 

Motor homes 

Heavy Goods Vehicles (HGV’s); 

No caravans or trailers; 

Coaches 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times 

CHARGES (C5) 

 

(C30) 

(C56) 

Per hour - £1.70 

All day (24hrs) - £10.00 (lorries only) 

£1.70 all day (vans only) 

Motorhome Charge - £15.00 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D3) 

(D5) 

Monday to Saturday inclusive 

Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

 (H2) 

 (H9) 

(H17) 

8.00am to 6.00pm  

All hours (lorries only) 

Maximum stay is 7 days – no return within 2 hours unless otherwise 

approved by the District Council 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle 

is an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged 

 

Page 136

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  60 
 

JUBILEE 

GARDENS 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

CHARGES 

(P1) 

 

(P7) 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times; 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase 

CHARGES (C2) 

 

 

 

 

(C3) 

15 March to 31 October 

1hrs - £1.50   6 hours - £9.00 
2hrs - £3.00   7 hours - £10.50 

3hrs - £4.50   8 hours - £12.00 

4hrs - £6.00   9 hours - £13.50 

5hrs - £7.50  All Day - £15.00 

From 1 November to 14 March 

1hrs – £0.80   All Day - £2.50 

2hrs - £1.40 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H2) 8.00am to 6.00pm 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle 

is an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping 

 

JUBILEE 

GARDENS 

(MUSEUM 

CAR PARK) 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) 

 

(P7) 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times; 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase 

CHARGES (C35) 1hrs – £0.60 

2hrs – £0.80 

Page 137

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  61 
 

JUBILEE 

GARDENS 

(MUSEUM 

CAR PARK) 

  

3hrs - £1.20 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H2) 

(H11) 

(H12) 

8.00am to 6.00pm 

No return within 2 hours  

Maximum stay is 3 hours 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping 

 

LARKSTONE 

LANE 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1)  

 

(P7) 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times; 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase 

CHARGES (C3) 

 

 

(C25) 

From 1 November to 14 March 

1hrs – £0.80   All Day - £2.50 

2hrs - £1.40 

From 15 March to 31 October 

1hrs - £1.30 

2hrs - £2.20 

3hrs - £3.30 

All day - £6.00 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H2) 8.00am to 6.00pm 

Page 138

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  62 
 

LARKSTONE 

LANE 

  

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N8) 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

Height Barrier (2.8m) 

No sleeping 

 

MARINE 

DRIVE 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V4) 

 

(V16) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations, motor 

vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight and trailers; 

Boats and trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1)  

 

(P7) 

(P8) 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times; 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase; 

A vehicle with a trailer/caravan must buy a ticket for each bay occupied 

CHARGES (C2) 

 

 

 

 

 (C3) 

15 March to 31 October 

1hrs - £1.50   6 hours - £9.00 
2hrs - £3.00   7 hours - £10.50 

3hrs - £4.50   8 hours - £12.00 

4hrs - £6.00   9 hours - £13.50 

5hrs - £7.50  All Day - £15.00 

From 1 November to 14 March 

1hrs – £0.80   All Day - £2.50 

2hrs - £1.40 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H2) 8.00am to 6.00pm 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping 

 

Page 139

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  63 
 

OXFORD 

GROVE 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1)  

 

(P7) 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times; 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase 

CHARGES (C3)  

 

 

(C17)  

 

(C25) 

 

 

 

 

(C40) 

(C51) 

From 1 November to 14 March 

1hrs – £0.80   All Day - £2.50 

2hrs - £1.40 

Parking for local residents living within ¼ mile radius of the car park - £100  

per year  

From 15 March to 31 October 

1hrs - £1.30 

2hrs - £2.20 

3hrs - £3.30 

All day - £6.00 

Annual Reserved Parking Permit - £220.00 

Solo motorcycles free of charge provided they park in specifically designated 

spaces for their use, otherwise car park scale of charges applies 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

 (H2) 

(H9) 

8.00am to 6.00pm 

All hours 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping 

 

PIER   

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times  

Page 140

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  64 
 

PIER   

CHARGES (C2) 

 

 

 

 

(C3) 

 

 

(C51) 

15 March to 31 October 

1hrs - £1.50   6 hours - £9.00 
2hrs - £3.00   7 hours - £10.50 

3hrs - £4.50   8 hours - £12.00 

4hrs - £6.00   9 hours - £13.50 

5hrs - £7.50  All Day - £15.00 

From 1 November to 14 March 

1hrs – £0.80   All Day - £2.50 

2hrs - £1.40 

Solo motorcycles free of charge provided they park in specifically designated 

spaces for their use, otherwise car park scale of charges applies 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H2) 8.00am to 6.00pm 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping 

 

QUAY HEAD (H21) Parking prohibited at any time 

 

ROPERY 

ROAD 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) 

 

(P7) 

(P16) 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times; 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase; 

Permits issued by the land owner 

CHARGES (C49)  

 

 

 

 

15 March to 31 October 

Up to 1hrs - £1.50   Up to 5hrs - £6.40 

Up to 2hrs - £2.80   Up to 6hrs - £7.50 

Up to 3hrs - £4.00   Up to 24hrs - £9.50 

Up to 4hrs - £5.20 

Page 141

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  65 
 

ROPERY 

ROAD 

  

(C50) 1 November to 14 March 

Up to 1hrs - £0.80      

Up to 2hrs - £1.70 

All day - £2.50 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H2)   

 

8am to 6pm 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N2) 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

Not owned by NDDC, but operated by NDDC 

No sleeping 

 

SEA FRONT (H21) Parking prohibited at any time 

 

WILDER 

ROAD 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 
TICKETS 
 

(P1) 

 

(P7) 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times; 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase 

CHARGES (C1) 

 

 

 

 

(C3) 

 

 

(C51) 

 

From 15 March to 31 October 

1hrs - £1.30   6 hours - £7.80 

2hrs - £2.60   7 hours - £9.10 

3hrs - £3.90   8 hours - £10.40 

4hrs - £5.20   9 hours - £11.70 

5hrs - £6.50  All Day - £13.00 

From 1 November to 14 March 

1hrs – £0.80   All Day - £2.50 

2hrs - £1.40 

Solo motorcycles free of charge provided they park in specifically designated 

spaces for their use, otherwise car park scale of charges applies 

Page 142

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  66 
 

WILDER 

ROAD 

  

(C55) 50p for half an hour 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H2) 8.00am to 6.00pm 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping 

 

 

INSTOW  

 

INSTOW 

MARINE CAR 

PARK 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V1) Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) 

 

(P7) 

(P13) 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times; 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase; 

Permits issued by Instow Parish Council. 

CHARGES (C16) 

(C51) 

£1.20 per hour  

Solo motorcycles free of charge provided they park in specifically designated 

spaces for their use, otherwise car park scale of charges applies 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H2) 8.00am to 6.00pm 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N2) 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

Not owned by NDDC, but operated by NDDC; 

No sleeping 

Page 143

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  67 
 

 

LANDKEY AND SWIMBRIDGE  

 

BAKERY WAY   

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V2) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen 

weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P11) No permits or tickets required 

CHARGES  (C7) Free of charge 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D6) No charges payable on car park for any day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H15) Maximum stay within parking place is 24 hours 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N10) No sleeping 

 

CHURCH 

LAKE 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V2) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen 

weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P11) No permits or tickets required 

CHARGES (C7) Free of charge 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D6) No charges payable on car park for any day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H9) 

(H18) 

All hours 

Maximum stay is 7 days - no return within 6 hours 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping 

 

Page 144

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  68 
 

MILLENNIUM 

GREEN 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3) 

 

(V6) 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

Motor vehicles exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P11) No permits or tickets required 

CHARGES  (C7) Free of charge 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D6) No charges payable on car park for any day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H15) Maximum stay within parking place is 24 hours 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N10) No sleeping 

 

SWIMBRIDGE 

CAR PARK 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V2) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen 

weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P11) No permits or tickets required 

CHARGES (C7) Free of charge 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D6) No charges payable on car park for any day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H9)  All hours 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping 

 

LYNTON AND LYNMOUTH  

 

Page 145

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  69 
 

BOTTOM 

MEADOW  

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) 

 

(P7) 

(P17) 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times; 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase; 

Permits issued by Lynton and Lynmouth Town Council 

CHARGES (C6) 

 

 

 

 

(C51) 

 

1hrs - £1.30   6hrs - £7.80 

2hrs - £2.60   7hrs - £9.10 

3hrs - £3.90   All Day - £10.00 

4hrs - £5.20    

5hrs - £6.50   

Solo motorcycles free of charge provided they park in specifically designated 

spaces for their use, otherwise car park scale of charges applies 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H8) 

(H20) 

10.00am to 6.00pm 

No overnight parking is permitted 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N5) 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

Owned by NDDC but operated by Lynton and Lynmouth Town Council; 

No sleeping 

 

BOTTOM 

MEADOW 

(LORRIES, 

MOTOR 

HOMES AND 

COACHES) 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

 (V6) 

(V19) 

(V13) 

(V14) 

Motor vehicles exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

Coaches 

Motor homes 

Heavy Goods Vehicles (HGV’s) 

Page 146

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  70 
 

BOTTOM 

MEADOW 

(LORRIES, 

MOTOR 

HOMES AND 

COACHES) 

  

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) 

 

(P7) 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times; 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase 

CHARGES (C6) 

 

 

 

 

(C56) 

1hrs - £1.30   6hrs - £7.80 

2hrs - £2.60   7hrs - £9.10 

3hrs - £3.90   All Day - £10.00 

4hrs - £5.20    

5hrs - £6.50   

Motorhome Charge - £15.00 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H8)  10.00am to 6.00pm 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N5) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

Owned by NDDC but operated by Lynton and Lynmouth Town Council 

 

CROSS 

STREET 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) 

 

(P7) 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times; 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase 

CHARGES (C6) 

 

 

 

1hrs - £1.30   6hrs - £7.80 

2hrs - £2.60   7hrs - £9.10 

3hrs - £3.90   All Day - £10.00 

4hrs - £5.20    

Page 147

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  71 
 

CROSS 

STREET 

  

 

(C51) 

5hrs - £6.50   

Solo motorcycles free of charge provided they park in specifically designated 

spaces for their use, otherwise car park scale of charges applies 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H8) 

(H20) 

10.00am to 6.00pm 

No overnight parking is permitted 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N5) 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

Owned by NDDC but operated by Lynton and Lynmouth Town Council; 

No sleeping 

 

ESPLANADE   

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS  

(P1) Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times 

CHARGES (C59) 

 

 

 

 

(C51) 

1hrs - £1.50   6hrs - £9.00 

2hrs - £3.00   7hrs - £10.50 

3hrs - £4.50  All Day - £12.00 

4hrs - £6.00     

5hrs - £7.50   

Solo motorcycles free of charge provided they park in specifically designated 

spaces for their use, otherwise car park scale of charges applies 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H8) 

(H20) 

10.00am to 6.00pm 

No overnight parking is permitted 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N5) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

Owned by NDDC but operated by Lynton and Lynmouth Town Council; 

Page 148

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  72 
 

ESPLANADE   

(N10) No sleeping 

 

LOWER 

LYNDALE  

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V4)  

 

 

Solo motorcycles, motor cars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations, motor 

vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight, hitched trailers and hitched 

caravans 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) 

 

(P7) 

(P8) 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times; 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase; 

A vehicle with a trailer/caravan must buy a ticket for each bay occupied 

CHARGES (C6) 

 

 

 

 

(C51) 

 

1hrs - £1.30   6hrs - £7.80 

2hrs - £2.60   7hrs - £9.10 

3hrs - £3.90   All Day - £10.00 

4hrs - £5.20    

5hrs - £6.50   

Solo motorcycles free of charge provided they park in specifically designated 

spaces for their use, otherwise car park scale of charges applies 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H8)  

(H20) 

10.00am to 6.00pm 

No overnight parking is permitted 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N5) 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

Owned by NDDC but operated by Lynton and Lynmouth Town Council; 

No sleeping 

 

Page 149

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  73 
 

LOWER 

LYNDALE 

(LORRIES, 

MOTOR 

HOMES AND 

COACHES) 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V6) 

(V19) 

(V13) 

(V14) 

Motor vehicles exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

Coaches 

Motor homes 

Heavy Goods Vehicles (HGV’s) 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) 

 

(P7) 

(P12) 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times; 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase; 

If parking in car spaces a ticket must be purchased for each bay occupied 

CHARGES (C44) 

 

 

Up to 1hrs - £1.70 

Up to 2hrs - £3.40 

Up to 3hrs - £5.10 

Up to 4hrs - £6.80 

Up to 5hrs - £8.50 

All day - £10.00 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H8)  

(H20) 

10.00am to 6.00pm 

No overnight parking is permitted 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N5) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

Owned by NDDC but operated by Lynton and Lynmouth Town Council 

 

LYNBRIDGE   

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V1) 

(V10) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations; 

Parking for general public prohibited except for those with permits 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P7) Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase 

CHARGES (C18) Permit Holders Only - £235.00 per year 

Page 150

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  74 
 

LYNBRIDGE   

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H9) All hours 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N5) 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

Owned by NDDC but operated by Lynton and Lynmouth Town Council; 

No sleeping 

 

MANOR 

GARDENS 

ROADWAY 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V7) 

 

(V18) 

Motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and motor vehicles not 

exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P11) No permits or tickets required 

CHARGES (C6) 1hrs - £1.30   6hrs - £7.80 

2hrs - £2.60   7hrs - £9.10 

3hrs - £3.90   All Day - £10.00 

4hrs - £5.20    

5hrs - £6.50   

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D6) No charges payable on car park for any day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H8) 10.00am to 6.00pm 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

(N13) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping; 

Owned and operated by Lynton and Lynmouth Town Council 

 

 

SLIPWAY (H21) Parking prohibited at any time 

 

Page 151

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  75 
 

TOWN HALL 

FORECOURT 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V1) Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P5) Free for use by visitors to Town Hall or Tourist Information Office, 

otherwise parking to general public prohibited, except those with reserved 

permits 

CHARGES (C7) Free of charge 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D6) No charges payable on car park for any day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H8) 10.00am to 6.00pm 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N5) 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle 

is an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

Owned by NDDC but operated by Lynton and Lynmouth Town Council; 

No sleeping 

 

UPPER 

LYNDALE 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) 

 

(P7) 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times; 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase 

CHARGES (C6) 

 

 

 

 

(C51) 

1hrs - £1.30   6hrs - £7.80 

2hrs - £2.60   7hrs - £9.10 

3hrs - £3.90   All Day - £10.00 

4hrs - £5.20    

5hrs - £6.50   

Solo motorcycles free of charge provided they park in specifically designated 

spaces for their use, otherwise car park scale of charges applies 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H8) 

(H20) 

10.00am to 6.00pm 

No overnight parking is permitted 

Page 152

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  76 
 

UPPER 

LYNDALE 

  

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N5) 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

Owned by NDDC but operated by Lynton and Lynmouth Town Council; 

No sleeping 

 

UPPER 

VALLEY OF 

THE ROCKS  

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V4) Solo motorcycles, motor cars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations, 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight, hitched trailers and 

hitched caravans 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) 

 

(P7) 

(P8) 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times; 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase; 

A vehicle with a trailer/caravan must buy a ticket for each bay occupied 

CHARGES (C6) 

 

 

 

 

(C51) 

 

1hrs - £1.30   6hrs - £7.80 

2hrs - £2.60   7hrs - £9.10 

3hrs - £3.90   All Day - £10.00 

4hrs - £5.20    

5hrs - £6.50   

Solo motorcycles free of charge provided they park in specifically 

designated spaces for their use, otherwise car park scale of charges applies 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H8) 

(H20) 

10.00am to 6.00pm 

No overnight parking is permitted 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

 (N10) 

(N13) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping 

Owned and operated by Lynton and Lynmouth Town Council 

 

Page 153

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  77 
 

VALLEY OF 

THE ROCKS  

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V4) Solo motorcycles, motor cars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations, motor 

vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight, hitched trailers and hitched 

caravans 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) 

 

(P8)  

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times; 

A vehicle with a trailer/caravan must buy a ticket for each bay occupied 

CHARGES (C6) 

 

 

 

 

(C51) 

1hrs - £1.30   6hrs - £7.80 

2hrs - £2.60   7hrs - £9.10 

3hrs - £3.90   All Day - £10.00 

4hrs - £5.20    

5hrs - £6.50   

Solo motorcycles free of charge provided they park in specifically designated 

spaces for their use, otherwise car park scale of charges applies 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H8) 

(H20) 

10.00am to 6.00pm 

No overnight parking is permitted 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

(N13) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping; 

Owned and operated by Lynton and Lynmouth Town Council 

 

WATERSMEET   

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

CHARGES 

(P1) 

 

(P7) 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times; 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase 

CHARGES (C6) 

 

 

 

1hrs - £1.30   6hrs - £7.80 

2hrs - £2.60   7hrs - £9.10 

3hrs - £3.90   All Day - £10.00 

4hrs - £5.20    

Page 154

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  78 
 

WATERSMEET   

 5hrs - £6.50   

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H8) 

(H20) 

10.00am to 6.00pm 

No overnight parking is permitted 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N5) 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

Owned by NDDC but operated by Lynton and Lynmouth Town Council; 

No sleeping 

 

MORTEHOE AND WOOLACOMBE  

 

MORTEHOE 

CAR PARK 

(INC. 

RESIDENTS) 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V2) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen 

weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1)  

 

(P7) 

(P18) 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times; 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase; 

Permits issued by Mortehoe Parish Council 

CHARGES (C2) 

 

 

 

 

(C3) 

 

 

(C51) 

 

15 March to 31 October 

1hrs - £1.50   6 hours - £9.00 
2hrs - £3.00   7 hours - £10.50 

3hrs - £4.50   8 hours - £12.00 

4hrs - £6.00   9 hours - £13.50 

5hrs - £7.50  All Day - £15.00 

From 1 November to 14 March 

1hrs – £0.80   All Day - £2.50 

2hrs - £1.40 

Solo motorcycles free of charge provided they park in specifically designated 

spaces for their use, otherwise car park scale of charges applies 

Page 155

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  79 
 

MORTEHOE 

CAR PARK 

(INC. 

RESIDENTS) 

  

(C56) 

(C60) 

Motorhome Charge - £15.00 

Permits for residents only - £75 per year 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H2) 08.00am to 6.00pm 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N2) 

(N10) 

(N11) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

Not owned by NDDC, but operated by NDDC; 

No sleeping; 

No Camping 

 

MORTEHOE 

CEMETERY 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 
TICKETS 

(P11) No permits or tickets required 

CHARGES (C7) Free of charge 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D6) No charges payable on car park for any day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H9) 

(H19) 

(H20) 

All hours 

Parking for visitors to Mortehoe Cemetery only. Maximum stay 2 hours 

No overnight parking is permitted 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N2) 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

Not owned by NDDC, but operated by NDDC 

No sleeping 

 

Page 156

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  80 
 

MARINE DRIVE, 

WOOLACOMBE 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3)  

 

(V12) 

(V17) 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No lorries or coaches; 

No horseboxes; 

No caravans or trailers  

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) 

 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times 

CHARGES (C33) All day - £15.00 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day (for period 1.03 – 5.11) 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H1) 

(H20) 

7.00am to 10.00pm 

No overnight parking is permitted 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N4) 

(N10) 

(N11) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

Owned and enforced by Mortehoe Parish Council; 

No sleeping; 

No camping 

 

MEADOW 

PLAYING 

FIELDS 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

CHARGES (C7) Free of charge 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D6) No charges payable on car park for any day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H9) All hours 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping; 

Page 157

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  81 
 

MEADOW 

PLAYING 

FIELDS 

  

(N11) No camping 

 

WOOLACOMBE 

VILLAGE HALL 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V2) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen 

weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P3) 

(P7) 

(P10) 

Parking for village hall users and permit holders only; 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase 

No overnight parking  

CHARGES (C7) Free of charge 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D6) No charges payable on car park for any day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H9) All hours 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N4) 

(N) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

Owned and enforced by Mortehoe Parish Council; 

No sleeping 

 

SOUTH MOLTON  

 

 

CENTRAL 

(LONG STAY) 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V4) Solo motorcycles, motor cars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations, motor 

vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight, hitched trailers and hitched 

caravans 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) 

 

(P7) 

(P8) 

Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times; 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase; 

A vehicle with a trailer/caravan must buy a ticket for each bay occupied 

Page 158

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  82 
 

CENTRAL 

(LONG STAY) 

  

CHARGES (C17) 

 

(C24) 

 

(C51) 

Parking for local residents living within ¼ mile radius of the car park - £100  

per year 

£0.60 per hour 

£2.50 All Day 

Solo motorcycles free of charge provided they park in specifically designated 

spaces for their use, otherwise car park scale of charges applies 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D3) Monday to Saturday inclusive 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H2) 8.00am to 6.00pm 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping 

 

EAST STREET   

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P11) No permits or tickets required (contact South Molton Town Council) 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D6) No charges payable on car park for any day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H9) All hours 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping 

 

LORRY AND 

COACH PARK 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V6) 

(V19) 

Motor vehicles exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

Coaches; 

Motor homes; 

Page 159

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  83 
 

LORRY AND 

COACH PARK 

  

(V13) 

(V14) 

Heavy Goods Vehicles (HGV’s) 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times 

CHARGES (C5) Per hour - £1.70 

All day (24 hrs) - £10.00 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) 

(D7) 

Charges apply every day 

Livestock transporters free of charge on Market Day. Unhitched trailers 

prohibited at all times 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H2) 

(H17) 

8.00am to 6.00pm 

Maximum stay is 7 days – no return within 2 hours unless otherwise approved 

by North Devon District Council 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged 

 

LORRY WASH   

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V6) 

(V14) 

(V19) 

Motor vehicles exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

Heavy Goods Vehicles (HGV’s); 

Coaches 

 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P11) No permits or tickets required 

CHARGES (C7) Free of charge 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D6) No charges payable on car park for any day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H15) Maximum stay within Parking Place is 24 hours 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N7) 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

For washing of vehicles only; 

No sleeping 

 

Page 160

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  84 
 

NEW ROAD   

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P7) 

(P19) 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase; 

Permits issued by South Molton Town Council 

CHARGES (C14) Reserved Parking  

Per Half Year - £200.00 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H9) All hours 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

(N14) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping; 

Owned and operated by South Molton Town Council 

 

PANNIER 

MARKET 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times 

CHARGES (C37) 

(C51) 

£0.60 per hour 

Solo motorcycles free of charge provided they park in specifically designated 

spaces for their use, otherwise car park scale of charges applies 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D3) Monday to Saturday inclusive 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H2) 

(H12) 

8.00am to 6.00pm 

Maximum stay is 3 hours 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping; 

Page 161

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  85 
 

PANNIER 

MARKET 

  

(N14) Owned and operated by South Molton Town Council 

 

SHEEP PEN 

(SHORT 

STAY) 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V2) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen 

weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P1) Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper 

tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times  

CHARGES (C51) 

 

(C61)  

Solo motorcycles free of charge provided they park in specifically designated 

spaces for their use, otherwise car park scale of charges applies; 

1hrs - £0.60   6hrs - £3.60 

2hrs - £1.20   7hrs - £4.20 

3hrs - £1.80   8hrs - £4.80 

4hrs - £2.40   9hrs - £5.40 

5hrs - £3.00    All day - £6.00 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D3) Monday to Saturday inclusive 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H2) 8.00am to 6.00pm 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping 

 

SOUTHLEY 

ROAD 

  

CLASS OF 

VEHICLE 

(V3) 

 

(V18) 

Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and 

motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight; 

No caravans or trailers 

PERMITS AND 

TICKETS 

(P7) 

(P19) 

Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase; 

Permits issued by South Molton Town Council 

CHARGES (C14) Reserved Parking  

Page 162

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  86 
 

SOUTHLEY 

ROAD 

  

Per Half Year - £200.00 

DAYS OF 

OPERATION 

(D5) Charges apply every day 

HOURS OF 

OPERATION 

(H9) All hours 

ANCILLARY 

MATTERS 

(N1) 

 

 

(N10) 

(N14) 

No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is 

an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric 

vehicle charging point and is being charged; 

No sleeping; 

Owned and operated by South Molton Town Council 

 

 

 

8.1 Further conditions to the use of all Parking Places in this Part 8 for 

 overnight sleeping: 

 8.1.1 the maximum permitted stay is two consecutive nights only and 

  no return within 48 hours; 

 8.1.2 motorhomes must not exceed a maximum length of 8 metres; 

 8.1.3 the Parking Charge for the appropriate Parking Place as shown 

  in Schedule One has been paid; 

 8.1.4 the driver of a motorhome must maintain a minimum distance of 

  6 metres from another motorhome; 

 8.1.5 the motorhome must be self-contained. 

 

PART 9: PERMITS 

General Information 

 

The number of vehicle registrations allowed varies between permits. All 

permits (except Reserved Permits) will require the customer to select an 

active vehicle registration via their Permitsmarti account. Except where 

otherwise stated in this Schedule, the charges for Permits are as follows: 

Page 163

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  87 
 

CARS 

 
CAR PARK 
 

 
DURATION 

 
PRICE 

 
AVAILABLE FROM 

 
4 & 7 DAY PERMITS 
 
All North Devon District Council 
Long Stay Car Parks 
 

 
 
7 Days 
 
4 Days 

 
 
£25.00 
 
£15.00 

 
 
 
Permitsmarti 

 
7-DAY ROVER 
 
All North Devon District Council 
Pay and Display Car Parks: 
Barnstaple (excluding Cattle 
Market) 
Croyde 
Ilfracombe (excluding Pier) 
Mortehoe 
South Molton 
Lynton & Lynmouth (excluding 
Lower Lyndale) 
 

 
 
 
 
7 Days 

 
 
 
 
£50.00  

 
 
 
 
Permitsmarti 

 
BARNSTAPLE LONG STAY 
 
Bickington 
Congrams Close 
Fairview 
Fremington 
Hardaway Head 
Lower Pilton 
Portland Buildings 
Portmarsh Lane 
Seven Brethren (Long Stay 
only) 
Rolle Quay 
Tarka 
 

 
 
 
Annual 
 
 
Quarterly 
 
 
Monthly 

 
 
 
£225.00 
 
 
£70.00 
 
 
£25.00 

 
 
 
 
 
Permitsmarti 

 
COMBE MARTIN 
 
All Combe Martin Parish Council 
Car Parks: 
Cormelles 
High Street 
Holdstone Down 
Hollands Park 
Kiln 
Parade 

 
 
 
6 Months 
non-
transferable 
  
 
12 Months 
non-
transferable 
 
 

 
 
 
 
£100.00 
 
 
 
 
£180.00 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Combe Martin Parish 
Council 

Page 164

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  88 
 

6 Months 
transferable 
 
 
4 Days 
 
7 Days 
 
10 Days 

£160.00 
 
 
 
£18.00 
 
£30.00 
 
£40.00 
 

 
ILFRACOMBE LONG STAY 
 
Brookdale (not in Coach Area) 
Hele 
Hillsborough (not in Coach 
Area) 
Larkstone Lane 
Oxford Grove 
Marine Drive (Winter Season 
only) 
 

 
 
 
Annual 
 
 
Quarterly 
 
 
Monthly 
 

 
 
 
£225.00 
 
 
£70.00 
 
 
£25.00 

 
 
 
 
 
Permitsmarti 

 
 
ILFRACOMBE ROPERY ROAD 
 

 
 
Weekly  

 
 
£47.50 

 
 
Ilfracombe Town Council 

 
ILFRACOMBE WINTER 
PERMIT 
 
Brookdale 
Cove 
Hillsborough 
Jubilee Gardens 
Larkstone Lane 
Marine Drive 
Oxford Grove 
Wilder Road 

 
 
 
 
 
1st November 
to 14th March 

 
 
 
 
 
£100.00 

 
 
 
 
Permitsmarti 

 
INSTOW 
 
Marine Drive 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Annual 
Season Ticket 
(April to 
March) 

 
 
 
£150.00 

 
 
 
Instow Parish Council 

  
Annual  

 
£100.00 

 
Permitsmarti 

Page 165

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  89 
 

 

COACHES 
 

 
CAR PARK 
 

 
DURATION 

 
PRICE 

 
AVAILABLE FROM 

 
Barnstaple  
Seven Brethren Lorry 
Park 
Ilfracombe 
Brookdale 
Hillsborough 
South Molton 
South Molton Lorry Park 
 

 

7 Days 

 

6 Days 

 

4 Days 

 

£55.00 

 

£45.00 

 

£30.00 

 

 

 

Permitsmarti 

 

LOCAL RESIDENT’S PERMITS (UNRESERVED) 
 
Only available for residents within a quarter of a mile radius by application.  

LARKSTONE 
LANE/HILLSBOROUGH 
(ILFRACOMBE) 
 

 
LYNTON AND LYNMOUTH 
 
For all motorcars valid in all 
Lynton and Lynmouth Car 
Parks EXCEPT Esplanade and 
Lower Lyndale 
 
 

 
 
 
4 Days 
 
7 Days 
 
 

 
 
 
£15.00 
 
£25.00 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Lynton and Lynmouth 
Town Council  

 
RUGBY CLUB (BARNSTAPLE) 
 

 
Annual 
 
 
Quarterly 
 
 
Monthly 
 

 
£140.00 
 
 
£40.00 
 
 
£12.50 

 
 
 
 
Permitsmarti  

 
SOUTH MOLTON LONG STAY 
 
South Molton Central Car Park 
only 

 
Annual 
 
 
Quarterly 
 
 
Monthly 

 
£225.00 
 
 
£70.00 
 
 
£25.00 
 

 
 
 
 
Permitsmarti 

Page 166

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  90 
 

Maximum of 2 per household. Car registration documents and current utility bill (less 

than 3 months old) will be required. Subject to availability. 

 

 
CAR PARK 
 

 
DURATION 

 
PRICE 

 
AVAILABLE FROM 

 
Bickington 
 

 
Annual 

 
£60.00 

 
Permitsmarti 

 
Bicton Street 
 

 
Annual 

 
£100.00 (max. 7 in 
circulation) 
 

 
Permitsmarti 

 
Congrams Close 
 

 
Annual 

 
£100.00 

 
Permitsmarti 

 
Croyde 
 

 
Annual 

 
£100.00 

 
Permitsmarti 

 
Fremington 
 

 
Annual 

 
£100.00 

 
Permitsmarti 

 
Hele 
 

 
Annual 

 
£100.00 

 
Permitsmarti 

 
Hillsborough 
 

 
Annual 

 
£100.00 

 
Permitsmarti 

 
Lower Pilton 
 

 
Annual 

 
£100.00 

 
Permitsmarti 

 
Marine Drive, 
Woolacombe 
(non-transferable) 

 
Annual 
(Parishioners 
Only) 
 
Annual 
 

 
£55.00 
 
 
 
£130.00 

 
 
 
Mortehoe Parish Council 

 
Mortehoe 
 

 
Annual 

 
£100.00 

 
Permitsmarti 

 
Oxford Grove 
 

 
Annual 

 
£100.00 

 
Permitsmarti 

 
Portmarsh Lane 
 

 
Annual 

 
£100.00 

 
Permitsmarti 

 
South Molton 
 

 
Annual 

 
£100.00 

 
Permitsmarti 

 

Page 167

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  91 
 

EVENING RESIDENT’S PERMITS 
 
For local residents of Barnstaple and Ilfracombe for the nominated long stay car park 
closest to their home, by application. Subject to availability. 
Valid from 4:45pm until Midnight only.  

 
CAR PARK 
 

 
DURATION 

 
PRICE 

 
AVAILABLE FROM 

 
Belle Meadow 
 

 
Annual 

 
£21.00 

 
Permitsmarti 

 
Bickington 
 

 
Annual 

 
£21.00 

 
Permitsmarti 

 
Brookdale 
 

 
Annual 

 
£21.00 

 
Permitsmarti 

 
Congrams Close 
 

 
Annual 

 
£21.00 

 
Permitsmarti 

 
Croyde 
 

 
Annual 

 
£21.00 

 
Permitsmarti 

 
Fairview 
 

 
Annual 

 
£21.00 

 
Permitsmarti 

 
Fremington 
 

 
Annual 

 
£21.00 

 
Permitsmarti 

 
Hele 
 

 
Annual 

 
£21.00 

 
Permitsmarti 

 
Hillsborough 
 

 
Annual 

 
£21.00 

 
Permitsmarti 

 
Larkstone Lane 
 

 
Annual 

 
£21.00 

 
Permitsmarti 

 
Lower Pilton 
 

 
Annual 

 
£21.00 

 
Permitsmarti 

 
Marine Drive 
 

 
Annual 

 
£21.00 

 
Permitsmarti 

 
Mortehoe 
 

 
Annual 

 
£21.00 

 
Permitsmarti 

 
Oxford Grove 
 

 
Annual 

 
£21.00 

 
Permitsmarti 

 
Portmarsh Lane 
 

 
Annual 

 
£21.00 

 
Permitsmarti 

Page 168

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  92 
 

 
CAR PARK 
 

 
DURATION 

 
PRICE 

 
AVAILABLE FROM 

 
Portland Buildings 
 

 
Annual 

 
£21.00 

 
Permitsmarti 

 
Rolle Quay 
 

 
Annual 

 
£21.00 

 
Permitsmarti 

 
Seven Brethren 
 

 
Annual 

 
£21.00 

 
Permitsmarti 

 
South Molton 
 

 
Annual 

 
£21.00 

 
Permitsmarti 

 
Tarka 
 

 
Annual 

 
£21.00 

 
Permitsmarti 

 

BUSINESS PERMITS 
 

 
CAR PARK 
 

 
DURATION 

 
PRICE 

 
AVAILABLE FROM 

 

Bickington and 

Fremington 

 

 

Annual 

 

£80.00 

 

Permitsmarti 

 

Lynton and Lynmouth 

(except Esplanade and 

Lower Lyndale) 

 

 

Annual (April to 

March) 

 

£140.00 

 

Lynton and Lynmouth Town 

Council 

RESERVED SPACES 
 

 
CAR PARK 

 
PRICES 
 

 
Castle Quay – Barnstaple 
 
 

 
£600.00 per annum 
£170.00 per quarter 
 

 
Coronation Street – Barnstaple 
 

 
£500.00 per annum 

  

Page 169

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  93 
 

 
CAR PARK 

 
PRICES 
 

Loverings Court – Barnstaple 
 

£500.00 per annum 

 
Lower Pilton – Barnstaple 
 

 
£300.00 per annum 

 
Magdalene Lawn – Barnstaple 
 

 
£180.00 per annum (proof of residency required) 

 
Portmarsh Lane – Barnstaple 
 

 
£180.00 per annum 

 
Portland Buildings – Barnstaple 
 

 
£500.00 per annum 

 
Rolle Quay – Barnstaple 
 

 
£450.00 per annum 

 
Silver Street – Barnstaple 
 

 
£1,000.00 per annum 

 
Oxford Grove – Ilfracombe 
 

 
£220.00 per annum 

 

 

Penalty Charge referred to in the Conditions hereto: 

 

There are 2 (TWO) levels of penalty charge according to the seriousness of 

the parking contravention. The penalty charge levels are as follows: 

 

Off-Street Higher Band: £70 discounted to £35 if paid within 14 days; 

Off-Street Lower Band: £50 discounted to £25 if paid within 14 days. 

Higher Level Penalty Charge after service of a Charge Certificate:   £105.00 

Lower Level Penalty Charge after service of a Charge Certificate:    £75.00 

 

Full details of the parking contraventions attracting the higher and lower levels 

of penalty charge are available upon request at the Council’s Offices. 

 

Page 170

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  94 
 

SCHEDULE ONE 

SCHEDULE OF CHARGES 

C1 1hrs - £1.30   6hrs - £7.80 

2hrs - £2.60   7hrs - £9.10 

3hrs - £3.90   8hrs - £10.40 

4hrs - £5.20   9hrs - £11.70 

5hrs - £6.50  All Day - £13.00 

C2 15 March to 31 October 
1hrs - £1.50   6hrs - £9.00 
2hrs - £3.00   7hrs - £10.50 

3hrs - £4.50   8hrs - £12.00 

4hrs - £6.00   9hrs - £13.50 

5hrs - £7.50  All Day - £15.00 

C3 1 November to 14 March 
1hrs - £0.80 
2hrs - £1.40 
All day - £2.50 

C4 Up to 1hrs - £1.30  

Up to 2hrs - £2.20  

Up to 3hrs - £3.30  

Up to 4hrs - £4.40  

Up to 24hrs - £6.00  

C5 Per Hour - £1.70  

All Day (24 hours) - £10.00  

C6 1hrs - £1.30   6hrs - £7.80 

2hrs - £2.60   7hrs - £9.10 

3hrs - £3.90    All Day - £10.00 

4hrs - £5.20    

5hrs - £6.50   

C7 Free of Charge C8 1hrs - £1.00  

2hrs - £2.20 

3hrs - £3.30 

4hrs - £4.40 

C9 1 November to 14 March 

Up to 2hrs - £1.00 

Up to 12hrs - £3.00 

All day - £4.00 

C10 Up to 2hrs - £1.00 

Up to 4hrs - £2.00 

Up to 12hrs - £3.00 

Up to 24hrs - £4.00 

C11 15 March to 31 October 

Up to 1hrs - £1.30 

Up to 2hrs - £2.60 

Up to 3hrs - £3.90 

Up to 4hrs - £5.20 

Up to 24hrs - £13.00 

C12 Reserved Permit Parking Only 

£170.00 per quarter 

£600.00 per year 

C13 Up to 3 hrs - £3.30 

Up to 4hrs - £4.40 

All Day - £5.00 

C14 Reserved Parking 

£200.00 per half year 

C15 Up to ½ hr – £0.20    Up to 6hrs - £3.60 

Up to 1hrs – £0.60    Up to 7hrs - £4.20 

Up to 2hrs – £1.20    Up to 8hrs - £4.80 

Up to 3hrs – £1.80    Up to 24hrs - £10.00 

C16 £1.20 per hour 

Page 171

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  95 
 

Up to 4hrs – £2.40 

Up to 5hrs - £3.00  

C17 Permit parking for local residents living 

within ¼ mile radius of the car park  

£100 per year 

C18 Permit Holders Only  

£235.00 per year 

C19 Reserved Parking Available 

£1000.00 per year 

C20 Reserved Parking Available 

£300.00 per year 

C21 Reserved Parking Only 

£500.00 per year 

C22 Reserved Parking 

£631.00 per year 

C23 Resident’s Permit available to those living 

within ¼ miles of the Parking Place  

£60.00 per year 

C24 £0.60 per hour 

£2.50 All Day 

C25 15 March to 31 October 

1hrs - £1.30 

2hrs - £2.20 

3hrs - £3.30 

All Day - £6.00 

C26 1 April to 31 October 

1hrs - £0.50    Overnight - £25.00 

2hrs - £1.00 

3hrs - £2.00 

4hrs - £4.00 

C27 Permits Only from 10pm to 9am C28 Reserved Parking Only by arrangement with 

North Devon District Council 

C29 1hrs - £0.60 

2hrs - £0.80 

3hrs - £1.20 

All Day - £2.50 

C30 £2.50 all day 

C31 Parking by non-transferable Permit only 

after 30 minute free period (except for 

motorhomes and campervans which may 

park for up to 24hrs for £5.00) 

C32 Annual Residential Parking Permit 

£45.00 

C33 All day - £15.00 C34 Reserved Parking Only 

£38.50 per quarter 

£132 per year 

C35 1hrs - £0.60 

2hrs - £0.80 

3hrs - £1.20 

C36 1hrs - £0.20 

£0.50 per hour thereafter 

C37 £0.60 per hour C38 From 1 April 2014 

Annual Resident’s Permit available for all 

Parishioners of Braunton - £175.00 

Page 172

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  96 
 

C39 Annual Reserved Parking Permit 

£180.00 

C40 Annual Reserved Parking Permit 

£220.00 

C41 Reserved Parking Only 

£500.00 per year 

C42 £0.50 per hour and £1.50 All Day 

C43 £1.00 All Day C44 Up to 1hrs - £1.70 

Up to 2hrs - £3.40 

Up to 3hrs - £5.10 

Up to 4hrs - £6.80 

Up to 5hrs - £8.50 

All day - £10.00 

C45 First 30 minutes - £0.30 

Up to 1hrs - £0.80 

Up to 2hrs - £1.50 

Up to 3hrs - £2.30 

Each additional hour - £0.50 

C46 Lost Ticket Charge of £11.60 

C47 2hrs - £1.00 

3hrs - £2.00 

4hrs - £3.00 

All Day - £5.00 

C48 Reserved Parking Available 

£500.00 per year 

C49 15 March to 31 October  

Up to 1hrs - £1.50   Up to 5hrs - £6.40 

Up to 2hrs - £2.80   Up to 6hrs - £7.50 

Up to 3hrs - £4.00   Up to 24hrs - £9.50 

Up to 4hrs - £5.20 

C50 1 November to 14 March 

Up to 1hrs - £0.80      

Up to 2hrs - £1.70  

All day - £2.50 

C51 Solo motorcycles free of charge provided 

they park in specifically designated 

spaces for their use, otherwise car park 

scale of charges applies 

C52 Permit Parking from Monday to Friday 

C53 30 minutes free parking and no return 

within 2hrs 

C54 1 hour £1.10 - Max stay 1 hour, no return 

within 2 hours 

C55 50p for half an hour C56 Motorhome Charge - £15.00 

C57 Reserved Parking - £450.00 per year C58 £120 per annum for Adelaide Terrace 

Resident’s Association Only 

C59 1hrs - £1.50   6hrs - £9.00 

2hrs - £3.00   7hrs - £10.50 

3hrs - £4.50    All Day - £12.00 

C60 Permits for residents only - £75 per year 

Page 173

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  97 
 

 

SCHEDULE TWO 

DAYS OF OPERATION OF THE SCALE OF CHARGES 

 

D1 Monday to Friday inclusive 

D2 Monday to Friday inclusive (excluding Bank Holidays) 

D3 Monday to Saturday inclusive 

D4 Monday to Saturday (including Bank Holidays) 

D5 Charges apply every day 

D6 No charges payable on car park for any day 

D7 Livestock transporters free of charge on Market Day.  Unhitched trailers prohibited at all times 

D8 1 July – 31 August plus 28 ad hoc days 

 

SCHEDULE THREE 

HOURS OF OPERATION OF THE SCALE OF CHARGES 

 

H1 7.00am to 10.00pm 

H2 8.00am to 6.00pm 

H3 8.00am to 8.00pm 

H4 9.00am to 6.00pm 

H5 9.00am to 10.00pm 

H6 10.00am to 4.00pm 

H7 10.00am to 5.30pm 

H8 10.00am to 6.00pm 

H9 All hours 

4hrs - £6.00     

5hrs - £7.50   

C61 1hrs - £0.60   6hrs - £3.60 

2hrs - £1.20   7hrs - £4.20 

3hrs - £1.80   8hrs - £4.80 

4hrs - £2.40   9hrs - £5.40 

5hrs - £3.00    All day - £6.00 

  

Page 174

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  98 
 

H1 7.00am to 10.00pm 

H10 Maximum stay within parking place is 1 hour 

H11 No return within 2 hours 

H12 Maximum stay is 3 hours 

H13 Maximum stay in car park during the day is 4 hours 

H14 Maximum 12 hours stay with no return within 2 hours, applicable every day 

H15 Maximum stay within parking place is 24 hours 

H16 Maximum stay 3 days with no return within 6 hours 

H17 Maximum stay is 7 days – no return within 2 hours unless otherwise approved by North Devon 

District Council 

H18 Maximum stay is 7 days - no return within 6 hours 

H19 Parking for visitors to Mortehoe Cemetery only.  Maximum stay 2 hours 

H20 No overnight parking is permitted 

H21 Parking prohibited at any time 

 

SCHEDULE FOUR 

CLASSES OF VEHICLE 

 

V1 Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations 

V2 Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight  

V3 Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and motor vehicles not 

exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight  

V4 Solo motorcycles, motor cars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations, motor vehicles not 

exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight, hitched trailers and hitched caravans 

V5 Solo motorcycles only 

V6 Motor vehicles exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight 

V7 Motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg 

unladen weight 

V8 Motor homes not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight   

V9 Motor homes and campervans not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight 

V10 Light commercial vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight only 

V11 A total maximum of 4 operating licences for vehicles are allowed on the lorry park and no trailers 

to be licensed for the Lorry Park 

Page 175

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  99 
 

V1 Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations 

V12 No lorries or coaches 

V13 Motor homes 

V14 Heavy Goods Vehicles (HGV’s) 

V15 Public Service Vehicles (excluding Taxis) 

V16 Boats and trailers 

V17 No horseboxes 

V18 No caravans or trailers 

V19 Coaches 

 
 

 

 

 

 

SCHEDULE FIVE 

PERMITS AND TICKETS 

 

P1 Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper tickets must be clearly 

displayed in the vehicle at all times 

P2 Free parking for visitors in specifically designated spaces and permit holders only   

P3 Parking for village hall users and permit holders only 

P4 No ticket necessary.  Loading and unloading permitted for up to a maximum of 10 minutes, 

otherwise no parking permitted.  No return within 1 hour 

P5 Free for use by visitors to Town Hall or Tourist Information Office, otherwise parking to general 

public prohibited, except those with reserved permits 

P6 No ticket required but maximum stay half an hour or such period as agreed by Lynton and 

Lynmouth Town Council 

P7 Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase 

P8 A vehicle with a trailer/caravan must buy a ticket for each bay occupied 

P9 Parking for general public prohibited except for those with reserved permits 

P10 No overnight parking  

P11 No permits or tickets required 

P12 If parking in car spaces a ticket must be purchased for each bay occupied  

Page 176

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  100 
 

P1 Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper tickets must be clearly 

displayed in the vehicle at all times 

P13 Permits issued by Instow Parish Council 

P14 Permits issued by Ilfracombe Town Council 

P15 Permits issued by Braunton Parish Council 

P16 Permits issued by the land owner 

P17 Permits issued by Lynton and Lynmouth Town Council 

P18 Permits issued by Mortehoe Parish Council 

P19 Permits issued by South Molton Town Council 

P20 Permits issued by North Devon Homes 

 

 

 

SCHEDULE SIX 

ANCILLARY MATTERS 

 

N1 No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is an electric vehicle, 

and the vehicle is connected to the electric vehicle charging point and is being charged 

N2 Not owned by NDDC, but operated by NDDC 

N3 Owned and operated by Combe Martin Parish Council 

N4 Owned and enforced by Mortehoe Parish Council 

N5 Owned by NDDC but operated by Lynton and Lynmouth Town Council 

N6 Parking for visitors to residents of Castle Quay Court permitted only in bays 10-19 

N7 Washing of vehicles only 

N8 Height Barrier  

N9 No parking all year except by specific arrangement with North Devon District Council 

N10 No sleeping 

N11 No camping 

N12 Bike Racks 

N13 Owned and operated by Lynton and Lynmouth Town Council 

N14 Owned and operated by South Molton Town Council 

 

 

Page 177

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

  101 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 178

Agenda Item 8
Appendix b



 

 

North Devon Council 

Report Date:  5 December 2022 

Topic:  Lynton Agency Performance Review 

Report by:  Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1. In February 2015 North Devon Council approved the service improvement 

framework to objectively review services to improve the customer experience 

and/or value for money.  A review of the Lynton and Lynmouth agency 

agreement was added to the review programme.   

1.2. Concluding the review process; a report to the meeting of the Executive 3rd 

July 2017 it was approved; 

o That Executive note the annual report and that the actions being 
taken to ensure that performance against the 14 review 
recommendations is at the desired level. 

o That Executive approve to continue with the new revised agency 
agreement with Lynton and Lynmouth Town Council with effect 
1st April 2017 for a period of 3 years, with a formal review on that 
date. 

o That Executive recommends that Council agrees to the 
delegation, to Lynton and Lynmouth Town Council, of the 
harbour authority function reserved to North Devon District 
Council in respect of Lynmouth Harbour 

o That Executive agrees to the delegation, to Lynton and 
Lynmouth Town Council, of the functions reserved to North 
Devon District Council for the administrative area of Lynton and 
Lynmouth Town Council in respect of: 

o the management and enforcement of off street parking 
pursuant to   NDDC’s off-street parking orders; 

o the management and provision of public conveniences; 
o street cleaning; 
o public litter bin refuse collection; 
o grounds and property maintenance; and 
o property management. 

 
1.3. Following a successful agency arrangement being in place for the above 3-

year period, a further report to the meeting of Strategy and Resources on 4 

November 2019 it was approved; 

o That Members approve to continue with the agency agreement 
with Lynton and Lynmouth Town Council with effect 1st April 
2020 for a period of 3 years, with a formal review on that date. 
 

Page 179

Agenda Item 9



 

 

1.4. This report aims to update members on progress against the 14 review 

recommendations put forward by the review team; to receive the financial 

outturn for the agency for the 2020/21 and 2021/22 years and to make 

recommendation about the future delivery of the services for 2023/24 year 

onwards. 

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1. That members note the annual report and that the actions being taken to 

ensure that performance against the 14 review recommendations is at the 

desired level. 

2.2. That members approve North Devon Council entering into a new agency 

agreement with Lynton and Lynmouth Town Council with effect 1st April 2023 

for a period of 3 years, with a formal review on that date. 

2.3. Subject to 2.2 above, that members delegate to the Director of Resources 

and Deputy Chief Executive, in consultation with the Senior Solicitor and 

Monitoring Officer, to agree the terms of the new agency agreement with 

Lynton and Lynmouth Town Council. 

 

3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

3.1. A full review of the agency function has been carried out to determine value 

for money in service provision.  Regular reporting will enable transparency 

over progress and early support and/or intervention if required. 

3.2. If the annual report doesn’t demonstrate and evidence significant progress 

towards the recommendations this will enable North Devon Council to exit 

from the agreement and bring those services back in house. 

3.3. To inform members of actual performance against the review 

recommendations. 

3.4. To ensure the Lynton and Lynmouth Agency is properly and legally set up.  

 

4. REPORT 

4.1. A summary annual report on the agency performance for the period of 2020 

to date and financial outturn from the Lynton and Lynmouth Town Clerk is 

shown in Appendix A. 

4.2. The aim of the agency review that was carried out in 2015 was to: 

o To create a position statement of the Lynton and Lynmouth agency 
agreement 

o To detail any changes from the original agreement 

o To produce a performance report of agreed services and assets 
with any associated issues and risks 

o To provide a cost v benefit analysis against possible future options 

Page 180

Agenda Item 9



 

 

 

4.3. The review team put forward 14 recommendations to ensure moving 

forwards service levels were consistent with the rest of North Devon Council 

services areas and to also deal with the issues and risks highlighted 

throughout the review process. 

4.4. The 14 Recommendations were: 

1. Introduce the port marine safety code to the harbour 
2. A recharging of services in adherence to the Service 

Reporting Code of Practice to improve the accuracy of the 
accounts and justify costs 

3. Budgetary process and approval to spend should be aligned 
to the North Devon Council process 

4. Accounts to be subjected to NDC internal audit programme 
5. Adherence to data protection legislation  
6. Compliance with Environmental Protection Act 1990 with 

regards to street cleaning 
7. Provide technical support for providing North Devon Council 

compliant services 
8. Customers to have the same access to services as North 

Devon Council services 
9. Explore a joint way forward to reduce public convenience 

costs as part delivering the public convenience policy 
10. Improved management for issuing parking fines including 

monitoring of performance 
11. Cash collection and counting to follow North Devon  Council 

procedures 
12. Inclusion of the car parks in the proposed North Devon 

Council car park review 
13. Joint procurement to realise potential savings and 

compliance with EU regulations 
14. Comply with all Health and safety requirements 

 

4.5. Progress against the review recommendations was monitored through the 

Council’s performance management system.   

4.6. The only remaining review recommendation that was outstanding was in 

relation to exploring a joint way forwards to reducing public convenience 

costs.    
4.7. Members are aware of the significant forecast budget gap this Council is 

facing and in working towards bridging these gaps, Members have held 

Budget Working Groups to look at a range of option including looking at if 

there are different ways of delivering some services without impacting upon 

them. 

4.8. Over the past month we have been having discussions with local town and 

parish councils about the potential transfer of the public conveniences 

facilities to them.  We do of course realise that this would pass the financial 

Page 181

Agenda Item 9



 

 

burden for maintaining and cleaning the facilities to the local town or parish 

council and we also realise that in order to fund that impact that could result 

in a need to increase their share of the local tax precept.  

4.9.  We are however mindful that public conveniences are often seen as vital 

facilities in communities and so, our preferred alternative to closure would be 

to transfer those facilities to the relevant town or parish council which is a 

similar approach to that adopted by other Local Authorities in recent years.   

4.10. Members were considering this potential option at the Full Council 

meeting on 23 November 2022 and an update to this option will be provided 

verbally at the Strategy and Resources meeting.   

4.11. It is pleasing to see the above progress that was made in relation to the 
overall review recommendations and it is proposed that we continue with the 
agency agreement with Lynton and Lynmouth Town Council for a further 
period of 3 years from 1 April 2023. 

4.12. Any new agreement will of course be subject to the separate decision 
following discussions around future management of public conveniences; if 
the Member decision is to transfer them over to Town and Parish Councils 
then they would be removed from the agency agreement and the subsequent 
amendment to the agency budget and the removal of these costs which is 
currently budgeted at £90,000 per annum. 

4.13. Under the current agency arrangement it was agreed by Full Council to 
delegate to Lynton and Lynmouth Town Council, the harbour authority 
function in respect of Lynmouth Harbour.  The Ilfracombe Harbourmaster is 
currently carrying out a legal review of the powers in place for both 
Ilfracombe and Lynmouth Harbours which could result in a change to the 
current management of the Harbour in Lynmouth following that review. Any 
such proposed outcomes from this review will be incorporated into the new 
agency agreement from 1 April 2023. 

 

5. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

5.1. Following the agency review, the revised forecast figures presented by 

Lynton and Lynmouth Town Council were projecting a net budget surplus 

(excluding parking fines) of £48,912; which was in line with the in-house 

North Devon Council costing put forward as part of the review process. 

  L&L Agency (old) L&L Agency (new) NDC Solution 

Expenditure -£326,418.00 £-327,651.00 -£248,599.50 

Income £359,651.00 £376,563.00 £  297,431.00 

Surplus £33,233.00 £48,912.00 £48,831.50 

 

 

 

 

Page 182

Agenda Item 9



 

 

5.2. I am pleased to inform members that as outlined in the report from the Lynton 

and Lynmouth Town Clerk that the actual financial performance for 

2021/22 year has resulted in a net surplus of £115,424 which was 

returned to North Devon Council. 

5.3. The previous years’ saw a financial return from the agency as follows; 

o 2018/19 net surplus of £60,177 

o 2019/20 net surplus of £65,843 

o 2020/21 net loss of £505 

o 2021/22 net surplus of £115,424 

5.4. The pandemic year of 2020/21 above saw a significant decline in car park 

income (such as we saw across all NDC car parks) and income was £87,000 

down on the budgeted level.  However, separately North Devon Council 

claimed part of this income loss back through the support the Government 

provided Councils under the scheme for 75% reclaim of net losses on Sales, 

Fees and Charges.  Therefore the above net loss against the agency budget 

would have been mitigated by this separate transaction claim back to the 

Council. 

5.5. The agency accounts for periods 2020/21 and 2021/22 are set out in 

Appendix B (2020/21) and Appendix C (2021/22). 

5.6. As outlined in the report from the Lynton and Lynmouth Town Clerk, the 

projected financial forecast for the current 2022/23 year is in line with the 

agreed budgeted surplus position. 

 

6. EQUALITIES ASSESSMENT 

6.1. There are no equalities implications anticipated as a result of this report.   
 

7. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT 

7.1. There are no environmental implications arising from the proposals within this 

report as this is a continuation of the current arrangements in place.  

 

8. CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

8.1. What impact, positive or negative, does the subject of this report have on: 

8.1.1. The commercialisation agenda – the agency has proven since the 

review was carried out, to positively contribute financially to the Council 

partly due to the economies of scale achieved from the operational 

workforce carrying out planned and response maintenance and the 

logistics of being based more locally. 

8.1.2. Improving customer focus – as outlined in 8.1.1 above and within 

Appendix A (report from Lynton and Lynmouth Town Clerk) the timely 

ability for the local workforce to respond and make minor repairs, sort out 

Page 183

Agenda Item 9



 

 

public health matters plus also for Lynton Town Hall to provide customers 

the ability to collect recycling boxes and wheelie bins etc.. contributes 

towards an efficient customer service.  This reduces staff travel time from 

Brynsworthy to deliver low items of equipment and produces a timely 

outcome for local residents. 

9. CONSTITUTIONAL CONTEXT 

9.1. Article of Part 3 Annexe 1 paragraph (1d). 

9.2. Article 9.4.1 

9.3. Delegated power. 

10. STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 

This report contains no confidential information or exempt information under 

the provisions of Schedule 12A of 1972 Act. 

11. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

The background papers are available for inspection and kept by the author of 

the report. 

12. STATEMENT OF INTERNAL ADVICE 

The author (below) confirms that advice has been taken from all appropriate 

Councillors and Officers:   

Jon Triggs, Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive 

 

 

Page 184

Agenda Item 9



 SUMMARY REPORT OF THE LYNTON AGENCY 

2020 - 2023 
 

This report is issued ahead of the scheduled three year Agency Review (March 
2023) to assure North Devon Council (NDC) of the effective and efficient 
management of its assets in Lynton and Lynmouth under the Agency Agreement.  

 

The key expectation (since 2015 Review) is for Lynton Agency to deliver 
annual surplus of £50,000 on North Devon Council assets in Lynton & 
Lynmouth Parish.  

 

Uniquely, year one of this three year review cycle (20/21), was significantly affected 
by the pandemic. COVID impacted all sectors leading to soaring costs, reduced 
availability of materials and significant impact on finances. ‘Lockdowns’ and social 
restrictions which followed, had a catastrophic impact on tourism, visitor numbers 
were virtually zero, effectively removing the sole income stream - Car Park revenue. 

 

Agency managers however, furloughed staff at appropriate times and successfully 
applied for grants during COVID.  Statutory environmental and essential asset 
maintenance duties were fulfilled and despite zero revenue the Agency managed to 
return a virtually balanced budget March 2021, a surplus being impossible to 
achieve. 

 

After the strictures of 20/21 Lynton Agency had a manic 21/22.  With ‘Staycations’ in 
the ascent, Agency resources were inundated and on occasion, almost overwhelmed 
with visitors. 

 

The year to March 2022 ended with a significant surplus of £115,400.   

 

Half year Agency figures (22/23) currently show a surplus of £101,303 (Q2 Sept). 
However, with Q3 and Q4 being quieter revenue periods this is forecast to finish 
close to the required surplus if car park revenue stays as last year and once 
expenditure on ‘special projects’, outside of budget is vired from capital reserves. 

 

Despite the challenging times and tighter margins it is pleasing to report the average 
Agency surplus over the last five years remains at £54,140, above the expected 
amount in the face of ever increasing costs and rates of inflation. 

 

Agency Business during period 2021 - 2023 

 

Harbour safety regime continues working towards compliance and bringing 
Lynmouth in line with the Port Marine Safety Code.  Lynmouth Harbour User Group 
report quarterly to NDC Harbour Board. Legal research has almost concluded on the 
ownership and designation of Lynmouth Harbour and future licensing, maintenance 
and management protocol are being discussed at this time. Solar navigation lights, 

Page 185

Agenda Item 9
Appendix a



on composite posts are ready to be installed; new mooring rings have been installed; 
damage to ladders has been repaired and redesigned to prevent reoccurrence; 
corroded railings from an old stairway have been removed and an access pad 
created for half tide use; composite railings installed to replace corroded metal 
versions.  Where this work doubles up with activity in Ilfracombe Harbour full 
economies of scale are being achieved. 

 

A joint location marine survey was undertaken to chart Ilfracombe and Lynmouth 
Harbours. This informed the decision regarding ‘storm loss’ of 40m Causeway at its 
seaward end. Legal Unit engaged in the process, with Head of Resources, 
Harbourmaster and Lynton Agency, ultimately deciding to make good the asset as is 
now, rather than reconstruct all 40m 

 

Remedial works were undertaken to the upper slipway flood defences following 
complaint by Town Clerk to Environment Agency about shoddy work and 
deteriorating installation of drainage, raised wall and mortar after only months in 
place. 

 

The main slipway is currently being repaired by Agency workforce, under guidance 
of NDC Senior Engineer, where edging quoins on the slipway have moved. Scaffold 
and machinery are in use but otherwise cost is for ‘materials only’ on this project, 
as with the majority of works on NDC assets locally, as Agency workforce 
have the skills and capacity to complete these works. 

 

Earlier in the review period, when Agency workforce completed full refurbishment of 
Lower Lyndale toilets, they undertook partial demolition and rebuild of a substantial 
retaining wall and replacement safety fence in Cross Street Car Park, Lynton. 
Latterly, in response to NDC asset inspection, they have installed a safety fence 
system, including Armco barriers also in Cross Street. (All of these ‘materials cost’ 
only) 

 

Two further walls, in Watersmeet Car Park in danger of collapsing, were repaired 
after a period of monitoring confirmed they were moving and presented a public 
hazard. 

 

In other Car Parks there has been white lining and new space configurations applied 
after wear and tear to previous installations (Lower Lyndale) and 21m x 5m of 
resurfacing in Upper Lyndale where long term water damage had eroded the 
surface.  

 

After significant liaison with supplier of Car Park machines all have been upgraded 
with 4G modem to cope with cashless transactions in such a difficult area for mobile 
connectivity (600ft cliffs don’t help) One essential piece of work saw installation of a 
direct Ethernet connection from a local property to the first machine in Esplanade 
Car Park, resolving data connectivity in the area and reducing impact on local 
businesses from tourists seeking cash to park without making a purchase. 

Page 186

Agenda Item 9
Appendix a



Performance issues relating to parking matters are reviewed monthly in a liaison 
meeting between Town Clerk and NDC Car Park Manager. 

 

CEO performance is in line with colleagues across the District.  Agency CEO has 
been praised by public and Council locally for a number of CPR and medical 
emergencies in or proximate to the Car Parks, plus the extensive tourist information 
service they provide to customers using Agency Car Parks in the Lyn Valley. 

 

Similarly, the Agency workforce regularly receive plaudits for the quality and 
customer friendly nature of their performance and work ethic.  Their timely ability to 
make minor repairs (Toilet doors damaged), sort out public health issues (blocked 
sewer from toilets) and design new installations (harbour ladders) is invaluable and 
further exemplifies their value to Lynton Agency and the local community 
service they provide. 

 

With the Head of Environmental Enhancement - Corporate and Community settled in 
role, monthly performance meetings are planned with them and Waste and 
Recycling manager to ensure economies of scale, reduced impact on BEC based 
staff and local service delivery are being applied efficiently.  

 

Benefits highlighted at 2015 review are still being realised. NDC Customer Services 
advise customers to attend Lynton Town Hall and collect recycling items, Wheelie 
Bins etc. thereby reducing NDC travel times and staff absence from BEC just to 
deliver low numbers of items. We believe more efficiencies can be achieved in this 
area. 

 

Street sweeping rota was reviewed and renewed May 2022. Good levels of 
cleanliness and compliance with environmental legislation are evident through 
random inspection routines and public feedback. Agency staff continue to manage 
and service 56 Litter Bins and 15 Dog Poo Bins in the Parish. 

 

Since the last review report Lynton Tennis Club successfully completed maintenance 
issues raised by an Agency asset inspection. The courts and grounds in the Lynton 
complex are now very well maintained. Similarly, Lynton Bowls Club secured grants 
(incl. LLTC) and made much needed repairs to the Clubhouse building.   

 

Some major capital projects are currently under consideration by the Agency and 
NDC Estates team including Lynbridge Car Park; Harbour slipway fabrication; 
Retaining wall supporting the rear yard behind Lynton Town Hall; Causeway rebuild 
under Flood Defence grant application; [scope] reclaiming Lynmouth sea pool and 
reinforcement of Flood Defences along Lynmouth seaward boundary. 

 

Lynton & Lynmouth Town Council and Agency staff would like to thank NDC and its 
officers for the continued working relationship and regular meetings to manage and 
support Agency business in Lynton and Lynmouth. 

 

Page 187

Agenda Item 9
Appendix a



Kevin A Harris: Town Clerk 

Lynton and Lynmouth Town Council 

October 2022 

Page 188

Agenda Item 9
Appendix a



LYNTON & LYNMOUTH TOWN COUNCIL

BUDGET MONITORING STATEMENT - Q4 2020/21 - AGENCY - to March 2021

2019/20 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21
Services

Budget
VarianceActual Actual Budget Forecast Budget Significant Actual/Budgct VaraiancesC £ £ £ £ £

YTD YTD YTD Full Year Feast Full Year Feast Full Year Feast

Parks & Gardens
Income *593 640 640 640 640 0
Expenditure (456) 92
Net Income/Expenditure 634 184 92 184 02 92
Allocation of Depot/Establishment 57$(9,869)
Surplus/(Deficit) (9,685) 866110,389)

Public Conveniennces
Income 22,222 3,267 0 3,267 0 3,267 Lyndale toilets Refurb
Expenditure (38.032) 12,386 Covid closure savings £15,5k, partly offset Lyndale refurb £3.2k
Net Income/Expenditure (34,765) 15,653
Allocation of Depot/Establishment 1,531(26,927)
Surplus/(Deficit) (61,692) 17,184

Foreshore & Harbour
Income 3,416 3,807 3.421 3,807 ',421 386 Mooring income
Expenditure (3,620) \607: Repairs savings £4.9k partly offset byPMS Compliance Audit £1.3k,227.
Net Income/Expenditure 188 187 3,997.
Allocation of Depot/Establishment (20.165) 42< 1,261
Surplus/(Deficit) (19.978 ) (25,232) 5,254

Other Income
Income - Picket Gate Quany/Telescopes 2,809 2,700 2,800 2,700 2.600
Expenditure 0 0
Net income/Expenditure 2,809 2,700 2,800 2,700 7,600
Allocation of Depot/Establishment 0 0
Surplus/(Deficit) 2,809 2,700 2,800 2,700 2,800

1

P
age 189

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix b



LYNTON & LYNMOUTH TOWN COUNCIL

BUDGET MONITORING STATEMENT - Q4 2020/21 - AGENCY - to March 2021

2019/20 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21

Services
Budget

VarianceActual Actual ForecastBudget Budget Significant Actual/Budget Varaiances£ £ £ £ £ £
YTD YTD YTD Full Year Feast Full Year Feast Full Year Feast

Car Parks
Income 332,532 247.096 333,926 247,096 333,926 Re Covid restrictions
Expenditure (88,554) 7.529 Savings re Covid restrictions
Net Income/Expenditure 242,768 158,542 237,843 158,542 237,843
Allocation of Depot/Establishment (17.485) } ,063
Surplus/<Deficit) 224,005 141,058 219,296 219,296141,057

Lynton Courts
Income 826 826 826 826 -26 0
Expenditure (22)
Net Incoma/Expenditure 804 804 803 804 803 1
Allocation of Depot/Establishment 0 o 0 0 0 0
Surplus/(Deficlt) 804 804 803 804 803 1

Street Sweeping
Income 0 959 0 959 0 950
Expenditure (30.425) 2,434 Re covid restrictions
Net Income/Expenditure (29.466) 3,393
Allocation of Depot/Establishment (24.246) 1.333
SurplusZ(Deficit ) (15,013; (53,7121 (53,712) 4,72663 437

Total
Income 362,498 259,295 341,613 259,295 341,613 Re Covid restrictions
Expenditure (161,109) 26.040 Re Covid restrictions
Net Income/Expenditure 172,348 98,187 154,455 98,186 154,455
Allocation of Depot/Establishment (98,691) 5,763

Surplus for the Year 65,871 50 001 (505 ) 50 001

2

P
age 190

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix b



LYNTON & LYNMOUTH TOWN COUNCIL

BUDGET MONITORING STATEMENT - Q4 2021/22 - AGENCY - to March 2022

2021/22 2021/22 2021/222020/21 2021/22 2021/22

Services Budget
VarianceBudgetActual Actual Budget Forecast Significant Actual/Budget Varaiances££ ££ £ £

Full Year Feast Full Year Feast Full Year FeastYTD YTDYTD

Parks & Gardens
640Income 640 640 640 «40 0

Expenditure (180) 373
Net Income/Expenditure 87 Bt 373184 4 0 460
Allocation of Depot/Establishment 449(10,232)

Surplus/(Deficit) *21(9,772)9.772 ) (10.554JI*.MR)

Public Conveniennces
Income 3,267 00 0 0 0

(46,766) PC Business rates saving £6.3k, Cleaning savings £3kExpenditure
10.472Net Income/Expenditure (46.766)

Allocation of Depot/Establishment (27.907) 1 196
Surplus/(Deficit) 11,558(74,673) (86.341|(51.592; (74.573) >41

Foreshore 8. Harbour
Income 3.807 3,926 3.921 3,926 5v-.:i

Causeway & Harbour Lights £2.7k, Silt removal saving £0.7kExpenditure (9.136) '4
Net Income/Expenditure 187 (5,210) 8£4

970Allocation of Depot/Establishment (20,928)

Surplus/(Deflcit) (26,138)(19.f78| (25.138 ( 25 1741 (814|

Other Income
2,700Income - Picket Gate Quany/Telescopes 2.700 2.7C0 2.800 . 800

Expenditure 0 0

Net Income/Expenditure 2,700 2.7C0 2.000 2,700 2.BOO

0 0Allocation of Depot/Establishment
2.800Surplus/(Deficlt) 2,700 2,800 2,7002,700 noo:

1

P
age 191

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix c



LYNTON & LYNMOUTH TOWN COUNCIL

BUDGET MONITORING STATEMENT - Q4 2021/22 - AGENCY - to March 2022

2021/22 2021/22 2021/222020/21 2021/22 2021/22

Service* Budget
VarianceBudgetActual Budget ForecastActual Significant Actual/Budget Varaiances£ £ ££ £ £

Full Year Feast Full Year FeastFull Year FeastYTD YTD YTD
Car Parks

53,50' Improved Car Park Income398,380 344,880247,096 398,379 344,880Income

Staff savings £4.7k I, Flowbird m/c upgrade £7k, commission £1.9kExpenditure (100,813)

50,30'Net Income/Expenditure 158,542 297,567 247.267 297,567 247,267
821Allocation of Depot/Establishment (18,138)

Surplus/(Deficlt) 228,308 51,121141,057 279,428 228,308 279,429

Lynton Courts

Income 826 826 826826 826 0

Expenditure (23) 0

Net Income/Expenditure 804 803 803 803 B09 o
Allocation of Depot/Establishment 0 00 0 00
Surplu8/(Deflclt) 103804 803 803 803 0

Street Sweeping
959 0 0 0Income 0 0

1,780 general savingsExpenditure (31.807)

1.78HNet Income/Expenditure (31.807)

Allocation of Depot/Establishment (25.117) 1,048

712)Surplus/(Deflctt) (56,924) 1(9,752 2,828(58.924] (59.752 :

Total
353.067259.295 406,471 406,472 53,105Income 353,067

-.536Expenditure (188,725)

Net Income/Expenditure 38,186 217,747 156,806 217,747 156,806 60,941
Allocation of Depot/Establishment 4,483(102,323)

Surplus for the Year 115.424 50,000 115424 50 000 65-424

2

P
age 192

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix c


	Agenda
	2 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 7 November 2022 (attached).
	6 Introduction of an Animal Licensing Policy
	2022.12.05 Animal Licensing Policy Report
	2022.12.05 Appendix A Animal Policy
	Structure Bookmarks
	     
	     
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	Animal Licensing Policy 2022

	Animal Licensing Policy 2022

	 

	 
	 
	 
	Published by

	 
	The Licensing Team

	Environmental Health & Housing Services

	North Devon Council

	Lynton House

	Barnstaple EX31 1DG

	 
	Version 1.0 effective from 1 January 2023

	 
	 
	Telephone: 01271 388870

	Telephone: 01271 388870

	customerservices@northdevon.gov.uk

	customerservices@northdevon.gov.uk


	 

	 
	https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/licensing
	https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/licensing
	https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/licensing

	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	Contents

	Contents

	Section 1: Purpose
	Section 1: Purpose
	Section 1: Purpose

	................................................................................................
	................ 3

	 

	Section 2: Scope of Policy 
	Section 2: Scope of Policy 
	Section 2: Scope of Policy 

	................................................................................................
	.... 3

	 

	Section 3 The Legislative Framework 
	Section 3 The Legislative Framework 
	Section 3 The Legislative Framework 

	................................................................
	................... 3

	 

	Section 4: Enforcement of the policy 
	Section 4: Enforcement of the policy 
	Section 4: Enforcement of the policy 

	................................................................
	..................... 5

	 

	Section 5: Policy Application ............................................................................................... 76

	Section 5: Policy Application ............................................................................................... 76

	Section 5: Policy Application ............................................................................................... 76


	 

	Section 6: The Animal Activity Star Rating Scheme 
	Section 6: The Animal Activity Star Rating Scheme 
	Section 6: The Animal Activity Star Rating Scheme 

	................................
	.............................. 8

	 

	Section 7: Suitability of Applicants....................................................................................... 12

	Section 7: Suitability of Applicants....................................................................................... 12

	Section 7: Suitability of Applicants....................................................................................... 12


	 

	Section 8. Fees................................................................................................................... 14

	Section 8. Fees................................................................................................................... 14

	Section 8. Fees................................................................................................................... 14


	 

	Section 9. Application Process........................................................................................ 1514

	Section 9. Application Process........................................................................................ 1514

	Section 9. Application Process........................................................................................ 1514


	 

	Section 10. Powers of Inspectors.................................................................................... 1615

	Section 10. Powers of Inspectors.................................................................................... 1615

	Section 10. Powers of Inspectors.................................................................................... 1615


	 

	Section 11. If a Licence Holder Dies ................................................................................... 16

	Section 11. If a Licence Holder Dies ................................................................................... 16

	Section 11. If a Licence Holder Dies ................................................................................... 16


	 

	Section 12. Additional information................................................................................... 1716

	Section 12. Additional information................................................................................... 1716

	Section 12. Additional information................................................................................... 1716


	 

	Appendix A. Providing or Arranging Provision of Boarding for Cats or Dogs ................... 1817

	Appendix A. Providing or Arranging Provision of Boarding for Cats or Dogs ................... 1817

	Appendix A. Providing or Arranging Provision of Boarding for Cats or Dogs ................... 1817


	 

	Appendix B. Selling Animals as Pets Licensing............................................................... 2019

	Appendix B. Selling Animals as Pets Licensing............................................................... 2019

	Appendix B. Selling Animals as Pets Licensing............................................................... 2019


	 

	Appendix C. Hiring out horses licensing.......................................................................... 2120

	Appendix C. Hiring out horses licensing.......................................................................... 2120

	Appendix C. Hiring out horses licensing.......................................................................... 2120


	 

	Appendix D. Dog Breeding Licensing.............................................................................. 2221

	Appendix D. Dog Breeding Licensing.............................................................................. 2221

	Appendix D. Dog Breeding Licensing.............................................................................. 2221


	 

	Appendix E. Keeping or Training Animals for Exhibition Licensing...................................... 22

	Appendix E. Keeping or Training Animals for Exhibition Licensing...................................... 22

	Appendix E. Keeping or Training Animals for Exhibition Licensing...................................... 22


	 

	Appendix F. Dangerous Wild Animal Licensing............................................................... 2423

	Appendix F. Dangerous Wild Animal Licensing............................................................... 2423

	Appendix F. Dangerous Wild Animal Licensing............................................................... 2423


	 

	Appendix G. Zoo Licensing ............................................................................................. 2726
	Appendix G. Zoo Licensing ............................................................................................. 2726
	Appendix G. Zoo Licensing ............................................................................................. 2726

	 

	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	Section 1: Purpose

	1.1 North Devon Council has statutory responsibilities for the licensing of a number of
activities relating to the welfare of animals under the Animal Welfare (Licensing of
Activities Involving Animals) (England) Regulations 2018, the Dangerous Wild Animals
Act 1976, and the Zoo Licensing Act 1981. These pieces of legislation are aimed at
protecting the welfare and safety of animals and those that interact with them and make
it an offence for any person to possess, own, or keep animals in order to carry out
certain businesses, or have possession of certain animals without first being licensed by
the Council.

	1.1 North Devon Council has statutory responsibilities for the licensing of a number of
activities relating to the welfare of animals under the Animal Welfare (Licensing of
Activities Involving Animals) (England) Regulations 2018, the Dangerous Wild Animals
Act 1976, and the Zoo Licensing Act 1981. These pieces of legislation are aimed at
protecting the welfare and safety of animals and those that interact with them and make
it an offence for any person to possess, own, or keep animals in order to carry out
certain businesses, or have possession of certain animals without first being licensed by
the Council.

	1.1 North Devon Council has statutory responsibilities for the licensing of a number of
activities relating to the welfare of animals under the Animal Welfare (Licensing of
Activities Involving Animals) (England) Regulations 2018, the Dangerous Wild Animals
Act 1976, and the Zoo Licensing Act 1981. These pieces of legislation are aimed at
protecting the welfare and safety of animals and those that interact with them and make
it an offence for any person to possess, own, or keep animals in order to carry out
certain businesses, or have possession of certain animals without first being licensed by
the Council.

	1.1 North Devon Council has statutory responsibilities for the licensing of a number of
activities relating to the welfare of animals under the Animal Welfare (Licensing of
Activities Involving Animals) (England) Regulations 2018, the Dangerous Wild Animals
Act 1976, and the Zoo Licensing Act 1981. These pieces of legislation are aimed at
protecting the welfare and safety of animals and those that interact with them and make
it an offence for any person to possess, own, or keep animals in order to carry out
certain businesses, or have possession of certain animals without first being licensed by
the Council.




	 
	1.2 The Council is required to ensure that:

	1.2 The Council is required to ensure that:

	1.2 The Council is required to ensure that:

	1.2 The Council is required to ensure that:



	 licence holders are suitably inspected/ assessed against the regulation
requirements;

	 licence holders are suitably inspected/ assessed against the regulation
requirements;


	 individuals who apply for a licence and do not meet the regulation requirements
for the grant of a new licence are refused a licence;

	 individuals who apply for a licence and do not meet the regulation requirements
for the grant of a new licence are refused a licence;


	 appropriate enforcement action is taken against operators carrying out,
attempting to carry on, or knowingly allowing a licensable activity to be done
without a licence or in contravention of regulations or licence conditions;

	 appropriate enforcement action is taken against operators carrying out,
attempting to carry on, or knowingly allowing a licensable activity to be done
without a licence or in contravention of regulations or licence conditions;


	 licences are not granted to individuals that are already disqualified from holding a
licence or have previously had one revoked;

	 licences are not granted to individuals that are already disqualified from holding a
licence or have previously had one revoked;



	 
	 
	 
	Section 2: Scope of Policy

	2.1 This policy sets out the general principles that the Council will follow in relation to the
provision and enforcement of animal licensing. The Policy describes the types of animal
licensing matters that are likely to occur and how the Council will deal with them.

	2.2 The Council will also have regard to any statutory guidance issued in relation to any of
the primary animal licensing Acts and associated Regulations.

	2.3 This Policy will ensure that the Council carries out its animal licensing responsibilities in
a consistent and fair manner.

	 
	Section 3 The Legislative Framework

	3.1 The Animal Welfare Act 2006 (“the Act”) consolidated and updated a range of previous
legislation to promote the welfare of animals. This Act is the principal piece of legislation
aimed at protecting animal welfare in England and Wales, and established set welfare
standards that must be maintained by all people who are responsible for an animal. The Act
also places responsibilities on to numerous enforcement agencies, including local
authorities.

	3.2 The Act introduced a ‘duty of care’ on any person that is responsible for an animal to
ensure that the needs of that animal are met, and created an offence of failing to provide for
those needs. The Act also increased the penalties for animal abuse allowing the courts to
disqualify a person from being in charge of animals. Any person disqualified under the Act is
also disqualified from holding a licence under any of the animal licensing Regulations.
	3.3 The Act gives powers to the Secretary of State for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs
to pass regulations that may repeal or amend any of the primary licensing Acts or create
new forms of licences, and these powers were used to create the Animal Welfare (Licensing
of Activities Involving Animals) (England) Regulations 2018.

	3.4 Section 9 of the Animal Welfare Act 2006 creates five overarching principles of animal
welfare. The Act refers to these as the ‘five needs’ of all animals. It is the duty of any person
responsible for an animal to ensure that each of these five needs are met.

	3.5 The ‘five needs’ are:

	 The need for a suitable environment (by providing an appropriate environment, including
shelter and a comfortable resting area);

	 The need for a suitable diet (by ready access, where appropriate, to fresh water and a diet
to maintain full health);

	 The need to be able to exhibit normal behaviour patterns (by providing sufficient space,
proper facilities and the company of an animal of its own kind, where appropriate);

	 Any need to be housed with, or apart from, other animals (by providing the company of an
animal of its own kind, where appropriate); and

	 The need to be protected from pain, suffering, injury and disease (by prevention or rapid
diagnosis and treatment, and ensuring conditions and treatment which avoid mental
suffering).

	3.6 The Animal Welfare (Licensing of Activities Involving Animals) (England) Regulations
2018 came into force in October 2018 and are made under section 13(7) and 13(8) of the
Animal Welfare Act 2006. The regulations update and replace legislation for selling animals
as pets, dog and cat boarding, dog breeding and riding establishments. In addition to this it
introduces, for the first time, a licence regime for keeping and training animals for exhibition.

	Under Schedule 1 of the regulation, a licensable activity means one of five activities
involving animals:

	 Selling animals as pets

	 Selling animals as pets

	 Selling animals as pets


	 Providing for or arranging for the provision of boarding for cats or dogs

	 Providing for or arranging for the provision of boarding for cats or dogs


	 Hiring out horses

	 Hiring out horses


	 Dog breeding

	 Dog breeding


	 Keeping or training animals for exhibition

	 Keeping or training animals for exhibition



	 
	3.7 The Dangerous Wild Animals Act 1976 dictates that a licence is required from the
Council to keep certain animals that are considered wild, dangerous or exotic. A full list of
animals that need a licence can be seen here:

	3.7 The Dangerous Wild Animals Act 1976 dictates that a licence is required from the
Council to keep certain animals that are considered wild, dangerous or exotic. A full list of
animals that need a licence can be seen here:

	http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2007/2465/schedule/made
	http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2007/2465/schedule/made

	.


	3.8 The Council does not support the licensing of primates under the Dangerous Wild
Animals Act 1976 as ‘pets’ to live in the domestic premises. The Council recognises that
primates are highly intelligent and can be potentially dangerous animals with complex needs
that are highly unlikely to be met within a domestic environment.
	3.9 The Zoo Licensing Act 1981 dictates that a licence is required from the Council to display
wild animals to the public for at least 7 days a year, in a place that is not a circus or a pet
shop.

	 
	Section 4: Enforcement of the policy

	4.1 The Council will seek to ensure compliance with the legislation outlined above and will
carry out its duty in an appropriate and consistent manner according to the following
principles:

	 seek to achieve compliance in an accountable, consistent, proportional, and transparent
manner as stated in the stated in Section 2(3) of the Legislative and Regulatory Reform Act
2006. Our enforcement activities will also be targeted at those cases in which action is
required to ensure compliance;
 
	 seek to assist businesses and others in meeting their legal obligations through provision of
reasonable assistance and advice, and aim to be clear, open and helpful in its approach to
enforcement;

	 focus on prevention rather than cure, and in the context of animal licensing, in particular
focus on risks to animal welfare;

	 seek to target enforcement resources at areas of highest risk to animal welfare and public
safety, including non-compliant businesses and individuals/ partnerships;

	 take robust action against those who knowingly contravene the law or act irresponsibly;

	 where appropriate work in partnership with other regulatory or enforcement agencies to
solve problems. Such bodies include the RSPCA, Police and Trading Standards.

	4.2 In carrying out its enforcement duties, the Council has adopted an enforcement policy,
which is available to view here: link to follow
 
	4.3 We aim to achieve and maintain a consistent approach when we investigate complaints
and make our decisions regarding enforcement. In reaching any decision we will consider,
potentially amongst other things, the following criteria:

	 The seriousness of any offences or breach of conditions;

	 The previous compliance record of the business/ individual/ partnership;

	 The possible consequence(s) of non-compliance

	 The likely effectiveness of the various enforcement options available; and

	 The risk to the welfare of animals and/or the public;

	 
	Suspension, Variation and Revocation of a licence

	4.4 Local Authorities can vary an animal activity licence at any time. This Council will
consider varying licences where a variation will likely have a positive impact on animal
welfare, or address an issue which was adversely impacting on animal welfare. This Council
will seek to engage with Licence Holders to ensure that any variations are both reasonable
and practical.
	4.5 This Council will also give consideration to suspending, varying, or revoking a licence
without the consent of the Licence Holder where:

	• the licence conditions are not being complied with;

	• regulations are breached;

	• information supplied by the licence holder is false or misleading;

	• it is necessary to protect the welfare of an animal;

	4.6 This Council will take a graduated approach to considering these measures, and in all
instances will first consider if compliance and protection of animal welfare can be achieved
by variation of the licence. Where it is not considered possible to achieve this via licence
variation then suspension or revocation will be considered, in particular where poor
standards of animal welfare are identified, or where the Licence Holder has a previous poor
compliance record.

	4.7 Where a licence is varied, suspended, or revoked, the Council will provide notice of this
in writing, and include the following information:

	• the reasoning behind the decision;

	• when the change will come into effect;

	• the licence holder’s rights (including how to appeal the decision);

	• specific details of any works/ issues requiring resolution before a suspension can be
lifted;

	4.8 A suspension, variation or revocation of a licence will ordinarily take effect 7 working
days after the decision has been issued to the licence holder. The exception to this is where
the reason for the action is to protect animal welfare, in which case the effect of the notice is
immediate (via powers conferred on the Licensing Authority under Section 16 (2) of the
Animal Welfare (Licensing of Activities Involving Animals) (England) Regulations 2018).

	4.9 During the 7 days before the notice takes effect (unless the notice has immediate effect),
the Licence Holder can make written representation to the Council. The Council will then
consider these representations, provide a respond within 7 working days, and either:

	• Continue with the licence suspension, variation or revocation; or

	• Cancel the decision to make changes to the licence

	 
	4.10 Licence Holders have 28 days to appeal against the decision, and if the licence is
suspended or revoked cannot trade again until the suspension or revocation is lifted
following:

	 the Council being satisfied that licence conditions are being met; or

	 the Council being satisfied that licence conditions are being met; or

	 the Council being satisfied that licence conditions are being met; or


	 the first-tier tribunal finding in favour of the Licence Holder that the Council’s decision
was incorrect;
	 the first-tier tribunal finding in favour of the Licence Holder that the Council’s decision
was incorrect;


	 
	Section 5: Policy Application

	5.1 The Animal Welfare Act 2006 and associated Regulations outline individual application
requirements and mandatory conditions that the Council must be satisfied with before it can
grant a licence. The Animal Welfare (Licensing of Activities Involving Animals) (England)
Regulations 2018 gives the Council powers to apply conditions to each Licence it grants in
addition to the mandatory conditions set out in the statutory guidance for each category of
animal activity licence.

	5.2 The principal purpose of requiring a licence is to safeguard animal welfare, and the
Council will keep this objective in mind at all times when undertaking its animal licensing
duties.

	5.3 The Council will inspect premises in accordance with legislative requirements, veterinary
advice and any statutory codes of practice before issuing or renewing a licence. Inspections
will involve both programmed/ announced inspections as well as unannounced inspections
such as to provide confidence as to the level of compliance of a licence holder/ applicant.
Whether an inspection needs to be announced or unannounced depends on the reason for
the inspection. For example, if there’s a complaint or information that an animal’s welfare is
at risk it is likely that an inspector will make unannounced re-inspections to make sure
compliance is checked thoroughly.

	5.4 Where appropriate or required (such as the case with riding stables and initial dog
breeding inspections), inspections will be carried out with a qualified/ registered vet. Where
inspections identify areas of concern which cannot be addressed by the licence conditions,
officers will consider the use of the Animal Welfare Act 2006 and/or liaise with other
organisations such as the RSPCA.

	5.5 The Council will make reasonable efforts to investigate reports and intelligence relating
to unlicensed establishments and/or breaches of conditions, respond to any issues, and
where necessary take enforcement action in-line with the Councils Enforcement Policy.

	5.6 When carrying out its functions under the primary licensing Acts the Council will seek to
promote the following objectives:

	 The five needs as set out in the Animal Welfare Act

	 Public safety

	 Integration with other relevant strategies and legal requirements

	 Positive relations with licence holders and proportionate regulation

	5.7 In addition to the danger to the welfare of animals by unlicensed or irresponsible animal
owners, there is also a danger that may arise to members of the public. For example, poor
standards of hygiene could lead to a risk of diseases spreading and affecting other members
of the public and their animals. Additionally, licence holders that permit members of the
public onto their premises have a legal duty to ensure that they do not put them at risk of
illness or injury. Public safety will therefore be a paramount consideration by the Council at
all times.

	5.8 In addition to being licensed to carry out animal activities a licence holder and their
premises may need to comply with other legislation such as planning and building
regulations. Where the appropriate permissions or consents are not in place, or where they
are being breached, the Council may take enforcement action which could lead the closure
	of such premises and consequently adversely impact on the welfare of any animals
accommodated there. As a result the Council will not grant a licence where the appropriate
planning permissions or building control consents are not in place, or may revoke a licence
where such legislation, regulation or conditions are breached.

	5.9 The statutory guidance accompanying each of the primary licensing regulations state
clearly the mandatory conditions and minimum standards which the Council must be
satisfied are complied with before any licence is granted. Where the relevant Licensing
Officer is not satisfied that the relevant legal requirements and mandatory conditions are
met, or where an Environmental Health Officer of the Council or Veterinary Surgeon has
raised concerns that the legal requirements or standards are not met, or unlikely to be met,
the applicant for the licence will be notified. The applicant will have the opportunity to
address these matters in the hope of satisfying the relevant criteria.

	5.10 If the relevant Licensing Officer feels that an application should be refused, they will
providesubmit a letterreport to the applicant explaining the reasons for refusal, and a notice
of refusal detailing how the decision can be appealed. a Licensing Sub-Committee to determine
the matter.

	Section 6: The Animal Activity Star Rating Scheme

	6.1 For animal activities other than keeping or training animals for exhibition a star rating will
be given.

	6.2 In Line with Statutory Guidance to Local authorities, applicants will be given a star rating
ranging from 1 to 5, based on their compliance history and the results of their inspection.
This also applies if an applicant asks for a re-inspection.

	6.3 Applicants/ Licence holders should be aware that the Council may amend their star
rating after a routine revisit or unannounced inspection. For example, a star rating could go
down after an unannounced inspection to investigate an animal welfare complaint.

	6.4 The Council will provide feedback on the star rating they have given following
inspections which will include the following:

	 The star rating

	 The star rating

	 The star rating


	 Details of why this rating was given. This will include a list of the higher standards
that the business currently fails to meet, or a list of the minimum standards that the
business is failing to meet if it is considered to be in the minor failing category.

	 Details of why this rating was given. This will include a list of the higher standards
that the business currently fails to meet, or a list of the minimum standards that the
business is failing to meet if it is considered to be in the minor failing category.


	 Details of the appeals process and the deadline by which an appeal must be made

	 Details of the appeals process and the deadline by which an appeal must be made



	 
	Granting or renewing a licence: risk-based approach

	6.5 In determining the star rating of a business the Council will adopt a risk-based approach.
The Council will consider the following matters as part of its risk-based approach:

	L
	Span
	 The compliance history of the individual applying for the licence – poorer compliance
history will be interpreted as higher risk

	 The compliance history of the individual applying for the licence – poorer compliance
history will be interpreted as higher risk


	 The animal welfare standards observed - whether they have minor failings, follow
minimum standards or already operate at a higher standard
	 The animal welfare standards observed - whether they have minor failings, follow
minimum standards or already operate at a higher standard


	6.6 In addition to the above The Council will also consider the following questions based on
the inspection and on records of past compliance:

	 Does the applicant/ business meet the minimum standards?

	 Does the applicant/ business meet the minimum standards?

	 Does the applicant/ business meet the minimum standards?


	 Does the applicant/ business meet the higher standards?

	 Does the applicant/ business meet the higher standards?


	 Is the applicant/ business low or higher risk?

	 Is the applicant/ business low or higher risk?



	 
	 
	 
	The Animal activity star rating system

	Minor Failings Minimum standards Higher standards

	Low 1 star rating, 1 year licence, 3 star-rating, 2-year licence, 5-star rating, 3-year licence

	risk at least 1 unannounced visit at least 1 unannounced visit at least 1 unannounced visit

	within 12 months within 24 months within 36 months

	 
	High 1 star rating, 1 year licence, 2-star rating, 1 year licence 4-star rating, 2-year licence

	Risk at Least 1 unannounced visit at least 1 unannounced visit at least 1 unannounced visit

	within 12 months within 12 months within 24 months

	 
	6.7 New applicants that do not have one year of compliance history with a local authority or
a UKAS-accredited body will be automatically rated as high risk. The length of time the
licence is granted for in these instances will depend on whether the new applicant meets the
specified higher standards of animal welfare, or the minimum standards.

	6.8 For renewal applications, the length of time the licence is granted for will depend on their
risk rating and welfare standards at inspection. The licence length can be up to 3 years.

	6.9 Where any failings compromise the welfare of animals a licence will not be granted or
renewed.

	6.10 All of the minimum standards outlined in the relevant licensable animal activity guides
must also be met. Failure to do so will lead to refusal to grant or renew the licence.

	6.11 In cases where Licence holders conduct multiple types of animal activity categories,
they will only receive one rating to cover all of the activities they undertake. Each activity will
be considered and rated separately before the final score is awarded overall. In accordance
with the statutory guidance to Local Authorities, the star rating will be rounded down if the
licence holder is operating with lower standards for one activity than another. For example, if
an applicant meets the higher standards for dog breeding and the minimum standards for
dog boarding, the overall score will reflect the lower of the two.

	6.12 As per the risk scoring matrix set out above, the Animal Activity rating scheme requires
inspections to be carried out during the term of a licence, and the star rating may be varied
at that time if the level of compliance identified at that time has gone up or down.
	6.13 For the activity of hiring out horses, there is a requirement for an annual inspection by a
Veterinarian listed on the Royal College of Veterinary Surgeons Riding Establishments
Inspectorate List. It is the Council’s policy wherever reasonably practicable to appoint the
Veterinarian to undertake the inspection who will be independent and not one that is
retained by the applicant / licence holder.

	Exception: keeping or training animals for exhibition

	6.14 As stated above, the only exception to the risk-based approach is for the activity of
keeping or training animals for exhibition. All licences for the activity of keeping or training
animals for exhibition can be granted for 3 years. This is done on the basis that these
activities have been subject to a simple registration system. A risk assessment is not
undertaken for this animal activity as a star rating is not issued.

	 
	Higher standards

	6.15 Optional higher standards have also been set out in the relevant animal activity guides,
and achieving compliance with the higher standards is the only way of obtaining a 4- or 5-
star rating.

	6.16 In order to qualify for consideration at the higher standard, the applicant/ business must
meet:

	 100% of the higher standards classified in the guidance as required;

	 100% of the higher standards classified in the guidance as required;

	 100% of the higher standards classified in the guidance as required;


	 50% (or more) of the higher standards classified in the guidance as optional.

	 50% (or more) of the higher standards classified in the guidance as optional.



	 
	Star rating appeal procedure

	6.17 Before considering an appeal against a star rating awarded licence holders are strongly
encouraged to discuss the rating with the inspecting Officer first. The Officer will already
have provided a detailed written explanation of the rating awarded, and will be happy to
explain this further. In many instances this may resolve the matter and avoid the need for an
appeal.

	6.18 In order to appeal against a star rating the applicant should contact North Devon
Council in writing within 21 days of receiving their rating, clearly setting out how they think
that the rating awarded does not reflect the animal welfare standards and risk level at the
time of inspection via the following address/ email address:

	FAO Licensing Lead Officer, Licensing Team, North Devon Council, Barnstaple, Devon,
EX32 2GR

	Licensing@northdevon.gov.uk

	Licensing@northdevon.gov.uk

	Licensing@northdevon.gov.uk


	  

	6.19 Appeals will be determined by a senior Officer (Public Protection ManagerLicensing
Lead Officer or Head of PlanningEnvironmental Health and Housing and HealthServices),
within 21 days of receiving the appeal, and may involve the following:

	L
	Span
	 Review of inspection notes, inspection report, and comparison of those documents
with the appeal documents;

	 Review of inspection notes, inspection report, and comparison of those documents
with the appeal documents;


	 Review of the past compliance history of the licence holder;

	 Review of the past compliance history of the licence holder;


	 A further visit to the Licenced Premises;
	 A further visit to the Licenced Premises;


	 Additional advice from relevant animal welfare experts (for example specialist
veterinary advice, or dog behaviour therapist input);

	 Additional advice from relevant animal welfare experts (for example specialist
veterinary advice, or dog behaviour therapist input);

	 Additional advice from relevant animal welfare experts (for example specialist
veterinary advice, or dog behaviour therapist input);



	6.20 The cost of any additional inspections or specialist support/ advice will be borne by the
appeal applicant except where the appeal results in a higher rating being awarded, in which
case the cost will be borne by the Council.

	6.21 If an appeal applicant disagrees with the outcome of the appeal, then they can make a
corporate complaint via the link below, or refer the matter to the Local Government
Ombudsman:

	https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/council/feedback-complaints-whistleblowing-and�insurance/complaints-procedure/

	https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/council/feedback-complaints-whistleblowing-and�insurance/complaints-procedure/

	https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/council/feedback-complaints-whistleblowing-and�insurance/complaints-procedure/


	 

	 
	Refusing a licence

	6.22 Local Authorities are required to refuse a licence/ renewal application in the following
circumstances:

	 If they consider that the applicant cannot meet the mandatory licence conditions and
minimum standards;

	 If they consider that the applicant cannot meet the mandatory licence conditions and
minimum standards;

	 If they consider that the applicant cannot meet the mandatory licence conditions and
minimum standards;


	 If they are concerned that issuing the licence may negatively impact on animal
welfare;

	 If they are concerned that issuing the licence may negatively impact on animal
welfare;


	 If the housing, staffing or management are inadequate for the animals’ wellbeing or
for the activity or facility to be run properly;

	 If the housing, staffing or management are inadequate for the animals’ wellbeing or
for the activity or facility to be run properly;


	 If an operator who has been disqualified from holding a licence previously under
Section 34 or 42 of the Animal Welfare Act 2006.

	 If an operator who has been disqualified from holding a licence previously under
Section 34 or 42 of the Animal Welfare Act 2006.



	6.23 The Council may also refuse a Licence If it determines that the applicant is not a fit and
proper person, for example where the applicant has relevant offences as listed in Section 7
below.

	6.24 In such circumstances the Council will provide the applicant with a notice of refusal
which will clearly set out the reasons for the application being refused, and detail how the
applicant can appeal against the decision (appeal to a First Tier Tribunal (General
Regulatory Chamber), within 28 days of receiving the notice of refusal).

	 
	Reinspection requests

	6.25 Licence Holders given a rating between 1-star and 4-stars who have accepted their
rating but have made improvements since that time can request a reinspection for a re�rating. A minimum period of three months must have elapsed between the rating being
issued, and the date of reinspection. The reasoning for this is that it is considered that if
improvements can be sustained for a period of three months or more, then they are more
likely to be sustained in the longer term of the licence. A Licence holder can apply for a
reinspection prior to the three-month standstill period being up, but the reinspection itself will
not be undertaken until at least three months has elapsed.

	6.26 Requests for reinspection should be made in writing and include the following:

	 an outline of the reasons why the licence holder feels they should receive a
reinspection;
	 an outline of the reasons why the licence holder feels they should receive a
reinspection;
	 an outline of the reasons why the licence holder feels they should receive a
reinspection;


	 details of the improvements made to compliance or welfare since the inspection;

	 details of the improvements made to compliance or welfare since the inspection;

	 details of the improvements made to compliance or welfare since the inspection;


	 supporting evidence, if appropriate, for example photographs and invoices for works
undertaken/ items purchased;

	 supporting evidence, if appropriate, for example photographs and invoices for works
undertaken/ items purchased;



	6.27 If the case for reinspection made by the Licence Holder is not substantiated or
insufficient evidence is provided, then the Council may refuse the request to reinspect. If the
request is refused then the Licence holder will be provided with a written explanation
including details of the outstanding matters requiring attention before a reinspection will be
undertaken.

	6.28 Where a request for reinspection is accepted by the Council then a reinspection will be
undertaken within three months of the request being received.

	6.29 Reinspection visits may be undertaken either announced or unannounced (depending
on the original inspection findings and the type of premises involved), and Licence Holders
should be aware that depending on the re-inspection findings their star rating may go up,
down, or remain the same.

	6.30 There is no limit on the number of re-inspections that can be requested, but in each
case the request for reinspection must include the information set out above. The Licence
holder will be required to pay the current inspection fee for the re-inspection, and will be
liable for an additional charge where a veterinarian is also required to be in attendance.

	 
	Section 7: Suitability of Applicants

	7.1 In accordance with the Animal Welfare (Licensing of Activities Involving Animals)
(England) Regulations 2018, any individual who carries on a licensable activity will be
designated as the ‘operator’ of the business and can apply for a licence, providing they are
not already disqualified from holding a licence in accordance with the Regulations.

	7.2 In order to ensure compliance with our duties to ensure that an individual has not been
disqualified from holding a licence the Council will require new applicants to provide a basic
disclosure certificate (DBS) alongside their application. The Disclosure and Barring Service
certificate must be marked with an issue date no more than 3 calendar months before the
date of application.

	7.3 Existing Licence holders will be required to provide a basic disclosure certificate as part
of their renewal application from 1st April 2023 onwards. As with new applicants the
Disclosure and Barring Service certificate must be dated no more than 3 calendar months
before the date of application.

	7.4 A Basic Disclosure will be required of all those applicants listed in the application
(individuals, partners, and directors).

	7.5 DBS checks must show that the applicant (or applicants) are not disqualified from
holding a licence, and/or hold no relevant convictions which may affect whether they are a ‘fit
and proper’ person to hold a licence.

	7.6 A licence will only be granted where the Council is satisfied that the applicant is a fit and
proper person to be the operator for the animal licence applied for. Fitness and propriety to
hold a licence is a familiar concept within licensing, but is not legally defined within the
context of animal licensing. For the purpose of this Policy, the Council will consider a ‘fit and
proper person’ to be an individual who can demonstrate upon application that they have:
	 the right to work in the UK

	 no relevant convictions

	 not been disqualified from holding a licence

	 the knowledge, experience, compliance history and ability to give reasonable confidence
that they can comply with licence conditions and safeguard the welfare of animals in their
care

	 made suitable management and training arrangements to ensure the safety and welfare of
any staff and/or members of the public who may be affected by the licensed activity.

	7.7 This does not limit the scope of the fitness and propriety assessment and the Council
may take into account other matters considered relevant to the licensing process.

	Relevance of convictions

	7.8 The purpose of this section is to offer guidance on how the Council will determine
whether an applicant or licence holder is suitable to either be granted a licence in the first
place or retain a licence under the Regulations. In all cases, the Licensing Authority will
consider the conviction or behaviour in question and what weight should be attached to it,
and each and every case will be determined on its own merits, and in the light of these
guidelines.

	7.9 In addition to the nature of the offence, the quantity of matters and the period over which
they were committed will also be considered. Patterns of repeated unacceptable or criminal
behaviour are likely to cause greater concern than isolated occurrences as such patterns
can demonstrate a propensity for such behaviour or offending.

	7.10 Most applicants or licensees will have no convictions and that is clearly the ideal
situation. In relation to other people, it is accepted that human beings do make mistakes and
lapse in their conduct for a variety of reasons, and it is further accepted that many learn from
experience and do not go on to commit further offences. Accordingly, in many cases an
isolated conviction, especially if committed some time ago, may not prevent the grant or
renewal of a licence.

	7.11 Where a situation is not covered by these guidelines, the Licensing Authority will
consider the matter from first principles and determine the fitness and propriety of the
individual.

	7.12 Where an applicant or licensee has been convicted of any offence that is related to
animal cruelty or suffering the recommendation to the Licensing Sub-Committee will be to
refuse the application for a licence, or in the case of an existing licence holder revoke the
licence. The reason for this is that the main purpose of the Animal Licensing Regulations is
to ensure the welfare of animals, and as such these types of offences are highly relevant.

	7.13 The Council will also not normally grant a licence to a person with one (or more)
conviction for any offence that is related to licensing as these offences demonstrate a
disregard for licensing processes and procedures. In such cases the recommendation to the
Licensing Sub-Committee will be to refuse the application for a licence, or in the case of an
existing licence holder revoke the licence.

	7.14 In addition to the above, the Council also has wider obligations to safeguard both
children and vulnerable adults. These obligations arise from the Children Act 2004; and the
Care Act 2014. As a result, the recommendation to the Licensing Sub-Committee will be to
	refuse the application for a licence, or in the case of an existing licence holder revoke the
licence where an applicant or licence holder hasCouncil will not grant a licence to a person
with a conviction for Sex and indecency offences or exploitation offences (abuse,
exploitation, use or treatment of another individual irrespective of whether the victim or
victims were adults or children).

	7.15 In relation to single convictions, the following minimum time periods should elapse
following completion of the sentence (or the date of conviction if a fine was imposed) before
a licence will be granted or renewed without referral to a Licensing Sub-Committee. Where
the time period that has elapsed following completion of the sentence (or the date of
conviction if a fine was imposed) is less than the time periods listed below, the
recommendation to the Licensing Sub-Committee will be to refuse the application. This
places public safety as a highthe priority while enabling past offenders to sufficiently
evidence that they have been successfully rehabilitated so that they might obtain or retain a
licence:

	 Offences involving violence- 10 years;

	 Possession of a weapon- 7 years;

	 Offences involving dishonesty- 7 years;

	 Offences involving drugs- 10 years

	7.16 Upon receipt of the certificate from the Disclosure & Barring Service, an Officer of the
Licensing Authority will compare any disclosed information with the adopted policies relating
to relevance of convictions. Where relevant convictions are disclosed the application will be
referred to and determine whether the applicant should be referred to a Licensing Sub -
committee for them to determine whether the applicant is fit and proper to hold a licence.

	 
	Section 8. Fees

	8.1 The current table of fees for animal licensing can be found on the Council’s webpages:

	https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/council/charges-for-council-facilities-and�services/environmental-health-and-all-licensing-fees/

	8.2 In accordance with relevant legislation on fees and charges by a public authority, the
fees for each licence are made up of two parts, Part A and Part B. Part A covers the direct
costs associated with processing the application and is payable on submission of the
application. Part B covers the costs associated with the running of the licensing function.
This includes dealing with complaints, enforcement and general administration. This fee is
payable once a licence has been granted but must be paid before the licence becomes
operational and valid (the licence will not be issued until such time as Part B of the fee has
been paid in full).

	8.3 In the event that following payment of the Part A fee, the Council determines not to issue
a licence (in accordance with the rationale set out in Section 6 and 7 above), then no refund
will be issued, as the Council will have incurred reasonable costs in determining the
application whether the licence is issued or not.

	8.4 Establishments licensed to hire out horses are required to have an annual veterinary
inspection, the cost of which will be charged to the licence holder after the inspection has
	taken place, unless it is part of the licence renewal application, in which case, please refer to
section 9.2

	 
	Section 9. Application Process

	9.1 Licence applications must be submitted on the relevant application form, accompanied
by any supporting information requested (such as a basic disclosure certificate and proof of
right to work), and with the application fee paid (the Part A fee). Inspection of the proposed
licenced premises to determine the suitability for licensing will only be undertaken once the
above requirements have been satisfied.

	9.2 In the case of an application for breeding of dogs (grant applications only unless
exceptional circumstances), and hiring out horses (grant and renewal applications), the
required veterinary fee will also need to be paid prior to any inspection being undertaken.

	9.3 Once a valid application has been received (all relevant information received/ included,
and Part A fees paid), the Council will in accordance with statutory guidance for animal
activity licensing undertake the following:

	 Consider whether the conduct displayed by the applicant indicates that they are a fit
and proper person to carry out the licensable activity and meet the licence conditions.

	 Consider whether the conduct displayed by the applicant indicates that they are a fit
and proper person to carry out the licensable activity and meet the licence conditions.

	 Consider whether the conduct displayed by the applicant indicates that they are a fit
and proper person to carry out the licensable activity and meet the licence conditions.


	 Inspect the site of the licensable activity and assess if it is likely to meet the licence
conditions. The inspection will be completed by a suitably qualified inspector (as well
as a veterinarian for the initial inspection of a dog breeding establishment, or a listed
veterinarian for inspections of horse-riding establishments). The inspector will
prepare a report, in accordance with the requirements of the Regulations, to be
submitted to the Council following their inspection.

	 Inspect the site of the licensable activity and assess if it is likely to meet the licence
conditions. The inspection will be completed by a suitably qualified inspector (as well
as a veterinarian for the initial inspection of a dog breeding establishment, or a listed
veterinarian for inspections of horse-riding establishments). The inspector will
prepare a report, in accordance with the requirements of the Regulations, to be
submitted to the Council following their inspection.


	 The inspector’s report will contain information about the operator, any relevant
premises, any relevant records, the condition of any animals and any other relevant
matter, and state whether or not the inspector considers that the licence conditions
will be met.

	 The inspector’s report will contain information about the operator, any relevant
premises, any relevant records, the condition of any animals and any other relevant
matter, and state whether or not the inspector considers that the licence conditions
will be met.



	9.4 The inspecting Officers recommendation whether or not to issue a licence will principally
be based on the standards witnessed at the time of inspection.

	9.4 If the Inspecting Officer recommends that a Licence should be issued then the applicant
will be contacted to request the Part B element of the fees be paid. Following receipt of the
Part B fee, the Licence will be issued, accompanied with a covering lettern inspection report
which will contain a detailed written explanation of the star rating awarded.

	9.5 Although not a statutory requirement, the Council will aim to provide licence holders with
3 months’ notice of when their licence is due to expire. Licence holders must then submit an
application at least 10 weeks before their licence expires to continue the activity without a
break. It is the licence holder’s responsibility to ensure that any renewal application is made
in good time, and the Council cannot be held responsible for any delays or lapses of a
licence caused by an incomplete or late application.
	 
	Section 10. Powers of Inspectors

	10.1 Section 30 of the Animal Welfare Act 2006 allows local authorities to prosecute for any
offences under that Act. Prosecution proceedings will be considered in accordance with the
Council Enforcement Policy.

	10.2 The Animal Welfare (Licensing of Activities Involving Animals) (England) Regulations
2018, introduced a range of enforcement powers to allow the Council to issue a suspension,
variation or revocation notice where licence conditions are not being complied with; where
there is a breach of the regulations; or issues relating to the protection of the welfare of an
animal (as set out further in Section 4 previously).

	10.2 Anyone who carries on any of the licensable activities without a licence is committing a
criminal offence and is liable to imprisonment for a term of up to six months, a fine or both.

	10.3 It is a criminal offence to breach any licence condition. It is also a criminal offence not to
comply with an inspector’s request with regards to taking a sample from an animal.

	10.4 It is a criminal offence to obstruct an inspector who has been appointed by a local
authority to enforce the Regulations. Committing any of these offences could result in an
unlimited fine.

	10.5 Inspectors have a right of entry to premises for the purpose of undertaking a licence
inspection or checking whether an animal activity licence is required. An inspector does not
have right of entry to any part of site premises used as a private dwelling, unless they give
24 hours’ notice to the occupier. Section 62 of the Animal Welfare Act 2006 contains a
definition of what would constitute a private dwelling, and an Inspector may enter this part of
the premises without 24-hours-notice if given permission by the occupier. Where a request
for entry is refused, Section 23 of the Animal Welfare Act makes provision for application for
a warrant of entry.

	10.6 The Regulations also make provision for the inspectors to take samples for laboratory
testing from any animals on premises occupied by an operator, for the purposes of ensuring
the licence conditions are being complied with. A licence holder must comply with any
reasonable request of an inspector to facilitate the identification and examination of an
animal and the taking of samples and, in particular, must arrange the suitable restraint of an
animal if requested by an inspector (the provision for sampling is primarily aimed at
veterinarians carrying out inspections on behalf of the Council).

	 
	Section 11. If a Licence Holder Dies

	11.1 If a licence holder dies, the procedure in regulation 12 of the Animal Welfare (Licensing
of Activities Involving Animals) (England) Regulations 2018 applies. This allows the personal
representative of the deceased to take on the licence, provided that they inform the local
authority within 28 days of the death that they are now the operators of the licensable
activity.

	11.2 The licence will remain in place for 3 months from the death of the former licence
holder, or for the rest of the time it was due to remain in force if that time period is shorter.

	11.3 The new licence holder should apply for a new licence one month before the expiry of
this new period. If the personal representative does not notify the local authority within 28
	days of the death of the licence holder, the licence will cease to have effect after those 28
days.

	11.4 The Council will give consideration to extending the 3-month period up to 6 months if
requested by the representative and if they believe this time is needed to wind up the estate
of the former licence holder.

	 
	Section 12. Additional information

	12.1 The Council has additional information available online, including application forms,
guidance documents and details on conditions. These can be seen here:

	https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/animal-licences/
	https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/animal-licences/
	https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/animal-licences/

	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	Appendix A. Providing or Arranging Provision of Boarding for Cats or
Dogs

	 
	A1. All dog and cat boarding activities need a licence if they are carried out as a commercial
business. Further information on whether an activity would be considered a commercial
business is contained in the relevant statutory guidance which the Council will have regard
to.

	A2. To be in scope, they must:

	 provide housing for other people’s dogs or cats, where the provision of that housing
is part or solely the activity of the business

	 provide housing for other people’s dogs or cats, where the provision of that housing
is part or solely the activity of the business

	 provide housing for other people’s dogs or cats, where the provision of that housing
is part or solely the activity of the business


	 arrange housing for other people’s dogs - for example, businesses which connect pet
owners with people willing to look after their animals for no fee, just minor expenses

	 arrange housing for other people’s dogs - for example, businesses which connect pet
owners with people willing to look after their animals for no fee, just minor expenses


	 provide overnight housing for cats in purpose-built cattery units

	 provide overnight housing for cats in purpose-built cattery units


	 home board cats, when they are kept in cattery units

	 home board cats, when they are kept in cattery units


	 provide daytime housing for other people’s dogs, as part of, or as the only activity of,
the business

	 provide daytime housing for other people’s dogs, as part of, or as the only activity of,
the business



	A3. An application for a licence must be made to the Council on its application form, which is
available from the Council’s website:

	https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/animal-licences/animal�welfare-licences/

	https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/animal-licences/animal�welfare-licences/

	https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/animal-licences/animal�welfare-licences/


	 

	A4. Before granting a licence the Council must be satisfied that an establishment is
compliant with at least the minimum standards outlined under the relevant statutory
guidance:

	- Cat boarding Licensing:

	- Cat boarding Licensing:

	- Cat boarding Licensing:



	https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Cat-Boarding�Guidance.pdf

	https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Cat-Boarding�Guidance.pdf

	https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Cat-Boarding�Guidance.pdf


	  

	- Home boarding for dogs licensing:

	- Home boarding for dogs licensing:

	- Home boarding for dogs licensing:



	https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Home�Boarding-for-Dogs-Guidance.pdf

	https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Home�Boarding-for-Dogs-Guidance.pdf

	https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Home�Boarding-for-Dogs-Guidance.pdf


	 

	- Dog day care licensing:

	- Dog day care licensing:

	- Dog day care licensing:



	https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Dog-Day�Care-Guidance.pdf

	https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Dog-Day�Care-Guidance.pdf

	https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Dog-Day�Care-Guidance.pdf


	 

	- Dog kennel boarding licensing:

	- Dog kennel boarding licensing:

	- Dog kennel boarding licensing:



	https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Commercial�Dog-Boarding-Guidance.pdf

	https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Commercial�Dog-Boarding-Guidance.pdf

	https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Commercial�Dog-Boarding-Guidance.pdf


	 

	A5. If the Council are satisfied that the requirements of the statutory guidance
documents are met, and there are no other concerns about the welfare of animals or the
objectives of this policy being undermined, the licence will be granted.

	A6. The Council may attach any condition to the licence that it feels are necessary and
expedient for securing the objectives above.
	A7. If the Council have any concerns about the welfare of the animals kept under this
licence, it may request that a vet conducts a further visit to ascertain if the measures in
place are acceptable which would be chargeable to the licence holder.

	A8 All dog and cat boarding activities undertaken as a commercial business should have
a trade waste contract, and inspecting Officers will request evidence of this at the time of
inspection. For those dog and cat boarding establishments of smaller scale, for the sake
of clarity, Officers will expect to see evidence of a trade waste contract where 5 or more
dogs or cats are accommodated at any time.
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	Appendix B. Selling Animals as Pets Licensing

	B1 All selling animals as pets activities need a licence if they’re carried out as a commercial
business. Further information on whether an activity would be considered a commercial
business is contained in the relevant statutory guidance on selling animals as pets licensing,
which the Council will have regard to. This activity licence does not include the sale of
animals in the course of aquacultural production, or the breeding of dogs (this is a separate
form of animal activity licence).

	B2 An application for a licence must be made to the Council on its application form, which is
available from the Council’s website:

	https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/animal-licences/animal�welfare-licences/

	https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/animal-licences/animal�welfare-licences/

	https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/animal-licences/animal�welfare-licences/


	 

	B3. Before granting a licence the Council must be satisfied that an establishment is
compliant with at least the minimum standards outlined under the statutory guidance:

	https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Selling-Animals-as�Pets-Guidance.pdf

	https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Selling-Animals-as�Pets-Guidance.pdf

	https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Selling-Animals-as�Pets-Guidance.pdf


	 

	B4. If the Council are satisfied that the requirements of the statutory guidance document are
met, and there are no other concerns about the welfare of animals or the objectives of this
policy being undermined, the licence will be granted.

	B5. The Council may attach any condition to the licence that it feels are necessary and
expedient for securing the objectives above.

	B6. If the Council have any concerns about the welfare of the animals kept under this
licence, it may request that a vet conducts a further visit to ascertain if the measures in place
are acceptable which would be chargeable to the licence holder.

	B7 All selling animals as pets undertaken as a commercial business should have a trade
waste contract, and inspecting Officers will request evidence of this at the time of inspection.
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	Appendix C. Hiring out horses licensing

	C1 All activities involving hiring out horses for riding, or instruction in riding, need to have a
licence if they’re carried out as a commercial business. Further information on whether an
activity would be considered a commercial business is contained in the relevant statutory
guidance on Hiring out horses licensing, which the Council will have regard to.

	C2 To be in scope they must hire out horses for riding, or instruction in riding. This could
include:

	- riding schools

	- riding schools

	- riding schools


	- loan horses

	- loan horses


	- hunter hirelings

	- hunter hirelings


	- pony and donkey rides

	- pony and donkey rides


	- polo instruction

	- polo instruction


	- pony parties where the ponies are ridden

	- pony parties where the ponies are ridden



	C3 For the hiring of horses, a listed Veterinarian must be appointed for the initial inspection,
for a renewal inspection, and for the annual inspection for the hiring of horses. It is the
Council’s policy wherever reasonably practicable to appoint athe Veterinarian to undertake
the inspection who will be independent and not one that is retained by the applicant / licence
holder.

	C4 An application for a licence must be made to the Council on its application form, which is
available from the Council’s website:

	https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/animal-licences/animal�welfare-licences/

	https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/animal-licences/animal�welfare-licences/

	https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/animal-licences/animal�welfare-licences/


	 

	C5 Before granting a licence the Council must be satisfied that an establishment is compliant
with at least the minimum standards outlined under the statutory guidance:

	https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Hiring-Out-of-Horses�Guidance.pdf

	https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Hiring-Out-of-Horses�Guidance.pdf

	https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Hiring-Out-of-Horses�Guidance.pdf


	 

	C6 If the Council are satisfied that the requirements of the statutory guidance document are
met, and there are no other concerns about the welfare of animals or the objectives of this
policy being undermined, the licence will be granted.

	C7 The Council may attach any condition to the licence that it feels are necessary and
expedient for securing the objectives above.

	C8 If the Council have any concerns about the welfare of the animals kept under this licence,
it may request that a vet conducts a further visit to ascertain if the measures in place are
acceptable which would be chargeable to the licence holder.

	C9 WhereAll hiring out horses is undertaken as a commercial business Officers will
generally require the business to should have a trade waste contract, and inspecting Officers
will request evidence of this at the time of inspection. Smaller scale operations that are able
to show evidence of satisfactory recycling and waste control may be exempted from being
required to have a trade waste contract.
	 
	 
	 
	Appendix D. Dog Breeding Licensing

	D1 All activities involving dog breeding, need to have a licence if they’re carried out as a
commercial business. Further information on whether an activity would be considered a
commercial business is contained in the relevant statutory guidance on dog breeding
licensing, which the Council will have regard to. In particular, there is a limit on the number of
litters that dog breeders can have without a licence unless a breeder can prove that they will
not sell any of the puppies from these litters as puppies or adults.

	D2 To be in scope, they must:

	 breed 3 or more litters of puppies per year (unless they can show that none of the
puppies have been sold as puppies or adults)

	 breed 3 or more litters of puppies per year (unless they can show that none of the
puppies have been sold as puppies or adults)

	 breed 3 or more litters of puppies per year (unless they can show that none of the
puppies have been sold as puppies or adults)


	 be breeding puppies and advertising a business of selling them (as defined under the
business test)

	 be breeding puppies and advertising a business of selling them (as defined under the
business test)



	D3 A vet must be appointed for the initial inspection for the licensed application for the
breeding of dogs. It is the Council’s policy to appoint the Veterinarian to undertake the
inspection who will be independent and not one that is retained by the applicant / licence
holder.

	D4 An application for a licence must be made to the Council on its application form, which is
available from the Council’s website:

	https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/animal-licences/animal�welfare-licences/

	https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/animal-licences/animal�welfare-licences/

	https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/animal-licences/animal�welfare-licences/


	 

	D5 Before granting a licence the Council must be satisfied that an establishment is compliant
with at least the minimum standards outlined under the statutory guidance:

	https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Dog-Breeding�Guidance.pdf

	https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Dog-Breeding�Guidance.pdf

	https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Dog-Breeding�Guidance.pdf


	 

	D6 If the Council are satisfied that the requirements of the statutory guidance document are
met, and there are no other concerns about the welfare of animals or the objectives of this
policy being undermined, the licence will be granted.

	D7 The Council may attach any condition to the licence that it feels are necessary and
expedient for securing the objectives above.

	D8 If the Council have any concerns about the welfare of the animals kept under this licence,
it may request that a vet conducts a further visit to ascertain if the measures in place are
acceptable which would be chargeable to the licence holder.

	D9 All dog breeding undertaken as a commercial business should have a trade waste
contract, and inspecting Officers will request evidence of this at the time of inspection.
Appendix E. Keeping or Training Animals for Exhibition Licensing
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	Appendix E. Keeping and Training Animals for Exhibition

	E1 All keeping or training animals for exhibition activities need a licence if they’re carried out
as a commercial business. Further information on whether an activity would be considered a
commercial business is contained in the relevant statutory guidance on keeping or training
animals for exhibition activities.

	E2 An application for a licence must be made to the Council on its application form, which is
available from the Council’s website:

	https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/animal-licences/animal�welfare-licences/

	https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/animal-licences/animal�welfare-licences/

	https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/animal-licences/animal�welfare-licences/


	 

	E3. Before granting a licence the Council must be satisfied that an establishment is
compliant with at least the minimum standards outlined under the statutory guidance:

	https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Keeping-or-Training�Animals-for-Exhibition-Guidance.pdf

	https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Keeping-or-Training�Animals-for-Exhibition-Guidance.pdf

	https://localgovernmentanimalwelfare.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Keeping-or-Training�Animals-for-Exhibition-Guidance.pdf


	 

	E4 If the Council are satisfied that the requirements of the statutory guidance document are
met, and there are no other concerns about the welfare of animals or the objectives of this
policy being undermined, the licence will be granted.

	E5 The Council may attach any condition to the licence that it feels are necessary and
expedient for securing the objectives above.

	E6 If the Council have any concerns about the welfare of the animals kept under this licence,
it may request that a vet conducts a further visit to ascertain if the measures in place are
acceptable which would be chargeable to the licence holder.

	E7 As stated in Section 6 above, the Council is not required to undertake a risk rating in
relation to licences for the activity of keeping or training animals for exhibition, and as such
no star rating will be issued for these licences. All licences for the activity of keeping or
training animals for exhibition are granted for 3 years.

	E8 All undertaken as a commercial business should have a trade waste contract, and
inspecting Officers will request evidence of this at the time of inspection.
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	Appendix F. Dangerous Wild Animal Licensing

	F1 Anyone who keeps an animal scheduled as a dangerous wild animal must be licensed
under the Dangerous Wild Animals Act 1976. A full list of animals that need a licence can be
seen here: 
	F1 Anyone who keeps an animal scheduled as a dangerous wild animal must be licensed
under the Dangerous Wild Animals Act 1976. A full list of animals that need a licence can be
seen here: 
	http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2007/2465/schedule/made
	http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2007/2465/schedule/made

	.


	F2 The Dangerous Wild Animals Act (DWA) of 1976 aims to ensure that where private
individuals keep dangerous wild animals they do so in circumstances which create no risk to
the public and safeguard the welfare of the animals.

	F3 When applications for a DWA licence are received, the Council will instruct a suitably
experienced Veterinarian and/or other relevant professionals to obtain the appropriate
advice to ensure that any special needs of the animal are fulfilled and the applicant is a
suitable person to hold such a licence. The Council must also be satisfied that it would not
be contrary to public interest on the grounds of safety or nuisance. Special needs in this
context mean the suitability of accommodation, heating, lighting and appropriate foodstuffs
and enrichment for the species identified in the application.

	F4 A person is held to be the keeper of the animal if they have it in their possession. The
assumption of possession continues even if the animal escapes or it is being transported.
This removes the need for carriers or veterinary surgeons to be licensed.

	F5 An application for a Dangerous Wild Animal licence must be made to the Council on its
application form, which is available on the Council’s website along with detailed guidance
notes:

	https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/animal-licences/animal�welfare-licences/

	https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/animal-licences/animal�welfare-licences/

	https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/animal-licences/animal�welfare-licences/


	 

	F6 In order to ensure compliance with our duties to ensure that an individual has not been
disqualified from holding a licence, upon application the Council will require the applicant for
a DWA Licence to provide a basic disclosure (DBS) certificate issued within 3 months of the
date of application. This check will then be required on a rolling 3-year basis.

	F7 Once the Council receives an application for the grant or renewal of a licence it will do the
following before granting or renewing a licence:

	• The Council will ensure that the applicant has not been disqualified from keeping
dangerous wild animals.

	• An Officer of the Council will inspect the relevant premises in conjunction with a suitably
experienced Veterinarian/ animal expert and assess if it is likely to meet the requirements of
the legislation.

	• Inspection reports will contain information about the suitability of the accommodation,
suitability of the applicant in terms of their handling skill / experience and their views on
qualification relating to species. The vet/ expert will also consider the animal’s ability to
express their natural behaviour, and the knowledge of the owner to promote the animal’s
welfare. The report will then be sent to the Council for consideration.

	• Ensure that the appropriate fees have been paid.

	F8 The Council will not grant a licence unless it is satisfied that:
	 it would not be contrary to the public interest on the grounds of safety, nuisance or
otherwise

	 you are deemed to be a suitable person to hold a licence and are adequately insured

	 animals will be held in secure accommodation to prevent them from escaping

	 accommodation for animals is suitable with regards to the construction, size, temperature
lighting, ventilation, drainage and cleanliness, and which is suitable for the number of
animals proposed to be held in the accommodation

	 animals are provided with adequate food, drink and bedding materials and will be visited at
suitable intervals

	 appropriate steps will be taken for the protection of any animal concerned in case of fire or
other emergency

	 appropriate steps will be taken to prevent and control the spread of infectious diseases

	 while any animal is at the premises where it will normally be held, its accommodation is
such that it can take adequate exercise.

	F9 Where the Council determines that a licence shall be granted it is a requirement of the
legislation to apply several mandatory licence conditions that shall apply for the duration of
the licence:

	- the animal shall be kept by no person other than such person or persons as is or are
specified (whether by name or description) in the licence;

	- the animal shall be kept by no person other than such person or persons as is or are
specified (whether by name or description) in the licence;

	- the animal shall be kept by no person other than such person or persons as is or are
specified (whether by name or description) in the licence;


	- the animal shall normally be held at such premises as are specified in the licence;

	- the animal shall normally be held at such premises as are specified in the licence;


	- the animal shall not be moved from those premises or shall only be moved from them
in such circumstances as are specified in the licence;

	- the animal shall not be moved from those premises or shall only be moved from them
in such circumstances as are specified in the licence;


	- the person to whom the licence is granted shall hold a current insurance policy which
insures him and any other person entitled to keep the animal under the authority of
the licence against liability for any damage which may be caused by the animal; and

	- the person to whom the licence is granted shall hold a current insurance policy which
insures him and any other person entitled to keep the animal under the authority of
the licence against liability for any damage which may be caused by the animal; and


	- the terms of any such policy shall be satisfactory in the opinion of the authority;

	- the terms of any such policy shall be satisfactory in the opinion of the authority;



	F10 The Council may also, in granting a licence under this legislation, specify such
conditions on the licence as it thinks fit. The Council will give careful consideration to
additional conditions proposed for a licence, including the comments of the Veterinarian/
expert on any proposed conditions. Where the Council places conditions on a licence they
will be based, wherever practicable, on existing codes of best practice and industry
standards. At all times the Council will bear in mind it’s primary objectives in relation to
Dangerous Wild Animal Licensing, which are to protect the public, and also to ensure
appropriate animal welfare standards.

	F11 Where a condition is applied on a licence to permit an animal to be, for any continuous
period exceeding 72 hours, at premises outside the area of the Council, the Council will
contact the local authority in whose area those premises are situated.

	F12 The Council is permitted by regulations to vary licenses at any time by specifying new
conditions, or amending or revoking previously applied conditions. Where variation of the
licence conditions is proposed by the licence holder, the variation of the licence will have
immediate effect. In other cases, the Licence Holder will be given a reasonable period of
time to familiarise themselves with the new requirements and ensure compliance.
	F13 Applicants/ licence holders have a right of appeal against the refusal, revocation, or
variation of the licence. Appeals should be made to the Magistrates Court within 21 days of
receiving notification of the refusal/ revocation/ variation.

	F14 In the event of the death of a licence holder the licence shall continue in force for a
period of 28- days as if it had been granted to the personal representatives of the deceased,
and if an application is made for a new licence within the 28-day period, the licence shall be
deemed to be still in force pending the grant or refusal of that application.

	F15 Premises licensed under the Dangerous Wild Animals Act are not risk rated and
licences, if issued, are valid for 2 years.

	F16 Although not a statutory requirement, the Council will aim to provide licence holders with
approximately 4 months’ notice of when their licence is due to expire. Licence holders must
then submit an application at least 10 weeks before their licence expires. It is the licence
holder’s responsibility to ensure that any renewal application is made in good time, and the
Council cannot be held responsible for any delays or lapses of a licence caused by an
incomplete or late application.

	F17 Provided that a valid application is received prior to the expiry the licence, the licence
shall be deemed to be still in force pending the grant or refusal of the said application, and if
it is granted the new licence shall commence from the date of the expiry of the last licence.
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	Appendix G. Zoo Licensing

	 
	Do you need a zoo licence from North Devon Council?

	G1 If you intend to operate a zoo in the North Devon area, it will be necessary for you to gain
a zoo licence from the Council.

	G2 The Zoo Licensing Act 1981 defines a "zoo" as an establishment where wild animals are
kept for exhibition to the public other than for purposes of a circus or in a pet shop (separate
licences are required). This Act applies to any zoo, which members of the public have
access to, with or without an admission charge, on more than seven days in any 12 months.

	G3 An application for a Zoo licence must be made to the Council on its application form,
which is available on the Council’s website along with detailed guidance notes:

	https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/animal-licences/zoo-licences/

	https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/animal-licences/zoo-licences/

	https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/animal-licences/zoo-licences/


	 

	Application process

	G4 The licensing of zoos is a specialist field and the regulations are complex. The Council
works in close partnership with DEFRA. Details on the legislation and the Secretary of
State's Standards of Modern Zoo Practice can be found on the DEFRA website:

	https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/zoo-licensing-act-1981-guide-to-the-act-s�provisions

	https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/zoo-licensing-act-1981-guide-to-the-act-s�provisions

	https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/zoo-licensing-act-1981-guide-to-the-act-s�provisions


	 

	https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/secretary-of-state-s-standards-of-modern-zoo�practice

	https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/secretary-of-state-s-standards-of-modern-zoo�practice

	https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/secretary-of-state-s-standards-of-modern-zoo�practice


	 

	G5 If you are thinking of setting up a zoo, we recommend you contact us first for advice and
guidance. The Council cannot consider an application unless at least two months notice of
the application has been given, plus details have been published in a local and national
newspaper, and a notice has been placed at the site. Once this period of time has lapsed, an
application form can be submitted along with the current fee.

	G6 Before the Council can grant a licence for a zoo, it must be satisfied that:

	 the establishment will not injuriously affect the health and safety of people living in the
neighbourhood

	 the establishment will not affect the preservation of law and order

	 the accommodation, staffing and management are adequate for the proper care and well�being of the animals

	G7 The Council will consult the following in relation to your application:

	 Police

	 Fire authority

	 Governing body of any national institute concerned with the operation of zoos

	 Planning authority
	 The Council's Health and Safety team

	G8 The Council will arrange an inspection by a consultant inspector from a list of suitable
inspectors nominated by the Secretary of State. The inspector will produce a report of their
findings and, based on the report and other considerations, the local authority will grant or
refuse to grant a licence. This process may involve determination by the Council’s Licensing
Committee. If your licence is refused, you will receive a written statement of the grounds for
refusal.

	The applicant

	G9 may refuse to grant a licence if you, or any director, manager, secretary or other similar
officer of the body, or any person employed as a keeper in the zoo, has been convicted of an
offence under the Zoo Licensing Act 1981 or an offence under any of the following involving
the ill-treatment of animals:

	 the Protection of Animals Acts 1911 to 1964

	 the Protection of Animals (Scotland) Acts 1912 to 1964

	 the Pet Animals Act 1951

	 the Animals (Cruel Poisons) Act 1962

	 the Animal Boarding Establishments Act 1963

	 the Riding Establishments Act 1964 and 1970

	 the Breeding of Dogs Act 1973

	 the Dangerous Wild Animals Act 1976

	 the Endangered Species (Import and Export) Act 1976

	 part I of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981

	 sections 4, 5, 6(1) and (2), 7 to 9 and 11 of the Animal Welfare Act 2006

	 section 13(6) of the Animal Welfare Act 2006, so far as the offence arises from the
contravention of section 13(1) of that Act in relation to dog breeding in Wales

	 section 13(6) of the Animal Welfare Act 2006, so far as the offence arises from the
contravention of section 13(1) of that Act in relation to the carrying on of an activity in
England;

	 the Animal Welfare (Breeding of Dogs) (Wales) Regulations 2014

	 Animal Welfare (Licensing of Activities Involving Animals) (England) Regulations 2018

	 sections 28C or 28F(16) of the Animal Health Act 1981

	 sections 19 to 24, 25(7), 29 or 40(11) of the Animal Health and Welfare (Scotland) Act
2006

	G10 In order to ensure compliance with our duties to ensure that an individual has not been
disqualified from holding a licence, upon application the Council will require any director,
manager, secretary or other similar officer of the body, or any person employed as a keeper
	in the zoo, to provide a basic disclosure (DBS) certificate issued within 3 months of the date
of application. This check will then be required on a rolling 3-year basis.

	Planning requirements

	G11 When applying for a licence, you will need to consider whether planning permission is
required for the proposed licensed activity. You should contact the Council’s Planning and
Development Services on 01271 388288 to discuss whether permission will be needed. In
the event that planning permission is required then any decision to grant a zoo licence will
be suspended until such time as the planning application has been granted.

	Licences

	G12 Each original licence will run for four years, with consecutive renewals running for six
years. Failure or late application for renewal may invalidate any public liability insurance for
the premises. A copy of the licence must be displayed at every public entrance of the
establishment.

	G13 Changes to the licence, for example name changes and ownership changes, can be
carried out at the request of the operator. A licence can also be transferred to another
person with the approval of the Council (a basic disclosure certificate will be required for the
proposed new licence holder). There is an application form for the transfer of a licence,
which must be submitted with the relevant fee. The application can be found via the link to
the Council webpages above.

	G14 In the event of a licence holder dying, the licence shall be deemed to be granted to their
personal representatives and will remain in force for up to three months, or longer with our
approval.

	G15 For small zoos, or for a zoo exhibiting only a small number of different kinds of animals,
the Secretary of State has powers to relax the requirements of the Act. In such instances the
Council can seek a direction that the Act shall not apply at all (Section 14(1)(a)) or that
certain category of inspection is not required (Section 14(1)(b)).

	G16 Alternatively, on applying to the Secretary of State for a zoo licence, you may be
granted a dispensation (Section 14(2)) to reduce the number of inspectors to a reasonable
level for a small establishment. This will not reduce the zoo’s obligation to achieve the levels
of animal welfare and public safety set out in the Secretary of State’s Standards.

	What conditions will be attached to a licence?

	G17 The Zoo Licensing Act 1981 specifies various conservation measures that must be
undertaken by a zoo and these will be attached as conditions to a zoo licence (conditions
are available on our website- see link above).

	G18 North Devon Council also has discretion to attach any conditions it deems necessary or
desirable for the proper conduct of the zoo.

	G19 The Secretary of State issues guidance of standards of practice that zoos should meet
which apply in England. Copies of the Secretary of State’s Standards of Modern Zoo
Practice are available on the DEFRA website via the link above.

	Inspection types

	Periodic inspections
	G20 Periodic inspections by inspectors appointed by the Secretary of State will take place at
the following intervals:

	 in the case of an original licence, an inspection will be carried out in the first year and no
later than six months before the end of the fourth year

	 in the case of a renewal inspection in the third year and no later than six months before the
end of the sixth year

	G21 Up to three inspectors appointed by North Devon Council will visit the premises and at
least one of these will be a qualified veterinary surgeon or practitioner. Meanwhile, up to two
may be nominated from the Secretary of State approved list. Only one is necessary if they
fulfil both of the requirements above.

	G22 North Devon Council will give you at least 28 days-notice of our intention to inspect your
premises and will inform you of the names of the inspectors. You can in turn appeal against
all or any of them.

	G23 As the zoo operator, you may allow three representatives to accompany the inspection
team. The inspection team will submit a report to North Devon Council who will in turn send
a copy to you within a month of its receipt.

	Special inspections

	G24 North Devon Council has the right to make special inspections in any circumstances,
which in our opinion call for investigation. As the zoo operator, you must be given notice of
the purpose and scope of the inspection and if the investigation involves animal inspection,
at least one inspector will be a qualified vet with experience of zoos and zoo animals.

	Informal inspections

	G25 In any calendar year where no other inspection has taken place, an informal inspection
will be carried out by an appointed person from North Devon Council.

	Renewing a licence

	G26 North Devon Council will give at least nine months-notice of the expiry date of your
licence. Your application to renew the licence should then be made at least six months
before the expiry of the existing licence.

	Records required to be kept

	G27 The records required to be kept by a zoo will be largely dependent on the conditions
imposed on a particular operator. However, typical requirements include providing North
Devon Council with a copy of a zoo’s public liability insurance, annual stock list, intention of
providing hazardous animals.

	Offences and penalties

	G28 The following offences and penalties are created under Section 19 of the Zoo Licensing
Act 1981:

	 operating a zoo without a licence in contravention of the Act

	 failing without reasonable excuse to comply with any conditions of a licence

	 intentionally obstructing an inspector in the course of an inspection
	 intentionally obstructing someone who is authorised in accordance with Section 16G to
enter the premises of a permanently closed zoos or a dwelling within the zoo grounds

	 failing without reasonable excuse with a direction issued under section 16A(2)(d) to close a
zoo or part of it to the public for a period not exceeding two years

	 failing without reasonable excuse to comply with a zoo closure direction

	 failing without reasonable excuse to supply information requested by the local authority
about the care or disposal of zoo animals in the event of a zoo closure

	 failing without reasonable excuse and without the agreement of the authority, to dispose of
any animal kept at a permanently closed zoo before the plan in section 16E(2) has been
approved by the authority, or other than in accordance with the agreed plan

	 failing without reasonable excuse to comply with a direction issued under section 16E(6)
(direction about the welfare or disposal of animals kept in a permanently closed zoo)

	 failing without reasonable excuse to display the zoo licence or a copy at each entrance of
the zoo

	G29 Under Section 19(4), if you are found guilty of any offence above, you are liable to a
fine of level 4 (currently £2,500), except obstructing an inspector, failing to supply
information about the care or disposal of zoo animals in the event of zoo closure, or failing to
display the licence or copy of it at each zoo entrance area for which are liable to a fine of
level 3 (currently £1,000).

	Rights of entry

	G30 Local authority officers and accompanied by the appointed veterinary surgeon may
inspect zoo premises, having given 28 days’ notice in writing. There is currently no power of
entry to unlicensed premises.

	Fees

	G31 A completed application (for the grant, renewal or transfer of a licence) must be
submitted with the correct fee and in addition the applicant will need to pay any associated
veterinary fees for DEFRA nominated inspectors.

	How long will it take to process my application?

	G32 We will try to contact you within five days of receiving notice of your intention to apply
for a licence. If you have not heard from us within this period, please contact us to ensure
your notice was correctly made and received. We will then have two months to make the
necessary arrangements in preparation of the next stage in the process.

	G33 It is not possible to provide an exact time period for the grant or refusal of a licence.
Timescales will vary depending on the size and nature of each individual application.
Comments gained in the consultation period and from the inspectors report may vary widely,
and some applications may need to go before the council’s Licensing Committee for
determination.

	Right of appeal

	G34 If you wish to challenge a refusal to be granted a licence, or any conditions to a licence,
you can appeal to the magistrates courts.
	Complaints

	G35 If you want to make a complaint about a zoo premises, please contact us. If you feel we
have failed to provide you with good service or are concerned about the progress of your
application, please telephone Customer Services and we will try to resolve any concerns you
may have. The council also has a formal complaints procedure.

	Further information

	G36 Copies of the Zoo Licensing Act 1981 and Zoo Licensing Act 1981 (Amendment)
(England and Wales) Regulations 2002 can be found free online via the links below:

	https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1981/37/contents

	https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1981/37/contents

	https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1981/37/contents


	 

	https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2002/3080/contents

	https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2002/3080/contents

	https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2002/3080/contents


	 

	 
	G37 Further information on zoos operating in England, as well managing health and safety
in zoos, is available from DEFRA.

	G38 The Animal Welfare Act 2006, places responsibilities for care and welfare of an animal,
on persons who are in charge of or are responsible for the animal, whether on a permanent
or temporary basis. Again, more information is available from DEFRA

	Relevant trade associations

	 World Association of Zoos and Aquariums (WAZA)

	 British and Irish Association of Zoos and Aquariums (BIAZA)

	 Royal College of Veterinary Surgeons (RCVS)




	7 Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver Qualification Standards
	2022.12.05 Taxi Driver Standards report
	2022.12.05 APPENDIX A Driver Standards

	8 Review of North Devon Council (Off Street Parking Places) Order
	2022.12.05 Appendix A - Off Street Parking Order 2023 Summary
	2022.12.05 Appendix B - The North Devon (Off Street Parking Places) Order 2023
	Structure Bookmarks
	 
	 
	 
	NORTH DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL

	NORTH DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL

	The North Devon (Off Street Parking Places) Order 2023
	 

	  
	CONTENTS

	 
	 
	PART 1: GENERAL.................................................................................................. 2

	PART 1: GENERAL.................................................................................................. 2

	PART 1: GENERAL.................................................................................................. 2


	 

	1. Commencement and Citation ...................................................................... 2

	1. Commencement and Citation ...................................................................... 2

	1. Commencement and Citation ...................................................................... 2


	 

	2. Revocation .................................................................................................... 2

	2. Revocation .................................................................................................... 2

	2. Revocation .................................................................................................... 2


	 

	3. Interpretation ................................................................................................ 2

	3. Interpretation ................................................................................................ 2

	3. Interpretation ................................................................................................ 2


	 

	PART 2: USE OF LAND AND PARKING PLACE .................................................... 9

	PART 2: USE OF LAND AND PARKING PLACE .................................................... 9

	PART 2: USE OF LAND AND PARKING PLACE .................................................... 9


	 

	PART 3: THE USE OF BARNSTAPLE BUS STATION.......................................... 10

	PART 3: THE USE OF BARNSTAPLE BUS STATION.......................................... 10

	PART 3: THE USE OF BARNSTAPLE BUS STATION.......................................... 10


	 

	PART 4: CHARGES ............................................................................................... 14

	PART 4: CHARGES ............................................................................................... 14

	PART 4: CHARGES ............................................................................................... 14


	 

	PART 5: OTHER PROVISIONS.............................................................................. 16

	PART 5: OTHER PROVISIONS.............................................................................. 16

	PART 5: OTHER PROVISIONS.............................................................................. 16


	 

	PART 6: PENALTY CHARGE ................................................................................ 19

	PART 6: PENALTY CHARGE ................................................................................ 19

	PART 6: PENALTY CHARGE ................................................................................ 19


	 

	PART 7: GENERAL PROVISIONS......................................................................... 20

	PART 7: GENERAL PROVISIONS......................................................................... 20

	PART 7: GENERAL PROVISIONS......................................................................... 20


	 

	PART 8: CAR PARKS ............................................................................................ 23

	PART 8: CAR PARKS ............................................................................................ 23

	PART 8: CAR PARKS ............................................................................................ 23


	 

	BARNSTAPLE................................................................................................. 23

	BARNSTAPLE................................................................................................. 23

	BARNSTAPLE................................................................................................. 23


	 

	BRAUNTON .................................................................................................... 44

	BRAUNTON .................................................................................................... 44

	BRAUNTON .................................................................................................... 44


	 

	COMBE MARTIN............................................................................................. 48

	COMBE MARTIN............................................................................................. 48

	COMBE MARTIN............................................................................................. 48


	 

	CROYDE.......................................................................................................... 52

	CROYDE.......................................................................................................... 52

	CROYDE.......................................................................................................... 52


	 

	ILFRACOMBE ................................................................................................. 52

	ILFRACOMBE ................................................................................................. 52

	ILFRACOMBE ................................................................................................. 52


	 

	INSTOW........................................................................................................... 66

	INSTOW........................................................................................................... 66

	INSTOW........................................................................................................... 66


	 

	LANDKEY AND SWIMBRIDGE....................................................................... 67

	LANDKEY AND SWIMBRIDGE....................................................................... 67

	LANDKEY AND SWIMBRIDGE....................................................................... 67


	 

	LYNTON AND LYNMOUTH............................................................................. 68

	LYNTON AND LYNMOUTH............................................................................. 68

	LYNTON AND LYNMOUTH............................................................................. 68


	 

	MORTEHOE AND WOOLACOMBE ................................................................ 78

	MORTEHOE AND WOOLACOMBE ................................................................ 78

	MORTEHOE AND WOOLACOMBE ................................................................ 78


	 

	SOUTH MOLTON ............................................................................................ 81

	SOUTH MOLTON ............................................................................................ 81

	SOUTH MOLTON ............................................................................................ 81


	 

	PART 9: PERMITS ................................................................................................. 86

	PART 9: PERMITS ................................................................................................. 86

	PART 9: PERMITS ................................................................................................. 86


	 

	CARS............................................................................................................... 87

	CARS............................................................................................................... 87

	CARS............................................................................................................... 87


	 

	COACHES ....................................................................................................... 89

	COACHES ....................................................................................................... 89

	COACHES ....................................................................................................... 89


	 

	LOCAL RESIDENT’S PERMITS (UNRESERVED).......................................... 89

	LOCAL RESIDENT’S PERMITS (UNRESERVED).......................................... 89

	LOCAL RESIDENT’S PERMITS (UNRESERVED).......................................... 89


	 

	EVENING RESIDENT’S PERMITS.................................................................. 91

	EVENING RESIDENT’S PERMITS.................................................................. 91

	EVENING RESIDENT’S PERMITS.................................................................. 91


	 

	BUSINESS PERMITS...................................................................................... 92

	BUSINESS PERMITS...................................................................................... 92

	BUSINESS PERMITS...................................................................................... 92


	 

	RESERVED SPACES...................................................................................... 92

	RESERVED SPACES...................................................................................... 92

	RESERVED SPACES...................................................................................... 92


	 

	SCHEDULE ONE.................................................................................................... 94

	SCHEDULE ONE.................................................................................................... 94

	SCHEDULE ONE.................................................................................................... 94


	 

	SCHEDULE TWO ................................................................................................... 97

	SCHEDULE TWO ................................................................................................... 97

	SCHEDULE TWO ................................................................................................... 97


	 

	SCHEDULE THREE ............................................................................................... 97

	SCHEDULE THREE ............................................................................................... 97

	SCHEDULE THREE ............................................................................................... 97


	 

	SCHEDULE FOUR ................................................................................................. 98

	SCHEDULE FOUR ................................................................................................. 98

	SCHEDULE FOUR ................................................................................................. 98


	 

	SCHEDULE FIVE ................................................................................................... 99

	SCHEDULE FIVE ................................................................................................... 99

	SCHEDULE FIVE ................................................................................................... 99


	 

	SCHEDULE SIX.................................................................................................... 100
	SCHEDULE SIX.................................................................................................... 100
	SCHEDULE SIX.................................................................................................... 100

	 


	 
	 

	 
	NORTH DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL

	 
	THE NORTH DEVON (OFF STREET PARKING PLACES)
ORDER 2023

	 
	 
	PART 1: GENERAL

	 
	The NORTH DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL in exercise of its powers under
Section 32, Section 35 and Section 35(A) of the Road Traffic Regulation Act
1984 and the Traffic Management Act 2004 and of all other enabling powers,
with the consent of the County Council of Devon in accordance with Section
39(3) of the Act and after consulting the Chief Officer of Police in accordance
with Part III of Schedule 9 to the Act, hereby makes the following Order:

	 
	1. Commencement and Citation

	This Order may be cited as the North Devon (Off Street Parking Places)
Order 2023 and shall come into operation at midnight on ------------------

	 
	2. Revocation

	 
	This Order revokes the:

	(1) North Devon (Off Street Parking Places) Order 2019

	(2) North Devon (Off Street Parking Places) (Amendment) Order 2019

	(3) North Devon (Off Street Parking Places) (Amendment) Order 2021

	(4) North Devon (Off Street Parking Places) (Modification) Order 2021

	 
	3. Interpretation

	 
	 
	(1) Any reference in this Order to a numbered Article is a reference to the
Article bearing that number in this Order.

	 
	(2) In this Order the following definitions shall apply:
	 
	 
	 
	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	1984 Act 
	1984 Act 

	means the Road Traffic Regulation Act
1984 and any statutory re-enactment,
amendment or replacement thereof

	means the Road Traffic Regulation Act
1984 and any statutory re-enactment,
amendment or replacement thereof



	TR
	Span
	2004 Act 
	2004 Act 

	means the Traffic Management Act 2004
and any statutory re-enactment,
amendment or replacement thereof

	means the Traffic Management Act 2004
and any statutory re-enactment,
amendment or replacement thereof



	TR
	Span
	Authorised Officer 
	Authorised Officer 

	means an Officer of the Council

	means an Officer of the Council



	TR
	Span
	Barnstaple Bus Station 
	Barnstaple Bus Station 

	means the Bus Station at Queen Street,
Barnstaple, Devon shown for identification
purposes only in part edged red (“the red
land”) and in part edged blue (“the blue
land”) on the Plan

	means the Bus Station at Queen Street,
Barnstaple, Devon shown for identification
purposes only in part edged red (“the red
land”) and in part edged blue (“the blue
land”) on the Plan



	TR
	Span
	Cashless Payment Service 
	Cashless Payment Service 

	means card payments and contactless
card payments by using chip and pin or
tapping a sensor on a Pay and Display
machine and being issued with a ticket, to
include tickets purchased via landline

	means card payments and contactless
card payments by using chip and pin or
tapping a sensor on a Pay and Display
machine and being issued with a ticket, to
include tickets purchased via landline



	TR
	Span
	Civil Enforcement Officer 
	Civil Enforcement Officer 

	means an officer of the North Devon
District Council, or any other person
authorised to issue a PCN or administer
any parking place as defined by Section
76 of the Traffic Management Act 2004

	means an officer of the North Devon
District Council, or any other person
authorised to issue a PCN or administer
any parking place as defined by Section
76 of the Traffic Management Act 2004



	TR
	Span
	Council 
	Council 

	means the North Devon District Council of
Brynsworthy Environment Centre,
Barnstaple, North Devon

	means the North Devon District Council of
Brynsworthy Environment Centre,
Barnstaple, North Devon



	TR
	Span
	Day 
	Day 

	means a 24 (TWENTY FOUR) hour
period from midnight to the following
midnight
	means a 24 (TWENTY FOUR) hour
period from midnight to the following
midnight




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	1984 Act 
	1984 Act 

	means the Road Traffic Regulation Act
1984 and any statutory re-enactment,
amendment or replacement thereof

	means the Road Traffic Regulation Act
1984 and any statutory re-enactment,
amendment or replacement thereof



	TR
	Span
	Days of Operation of the Scale of
Charges

	Days of Operation of the Scale of
Charges


	means the days on which charges apply
for use of the Parking Places specified
within Schedule Two

	means the days on which charges apply
for use of the Parking Places specified
within Schedule Two



	TR
	Span
	Designated Stand 
	Designated Stand 

	means a space or position designated
within Barnstaple Bus Station either by
markings on the ground or otherwise for
the setting down and picking up of
passengers by public service Vehicles

	means a space or position designated
within Barnstaple Bus Station either by
markings on the ground or otherwise for
the setting down and picking up of
passengers by public service Vehicles



	TR
	Span
	Driver 
	Driver 

	means the person who is responsible for
the control of a Vehicle at the time when a
breach of any of the Articles occurs

	means the person who is responsible for
the control of a Vehicle at the time when a
breach of any of the Articles occurs



	TR
	Span
	Disabled Badge Holder 
	Disabled Badge Holder 

	means a disabled person of a description
prescribed in Regulation 5 of the Disabled
Persons (Badges for Motor Vehicles)
Regulations 1982 as amended

	means a disabled person of a description
prescribed in Regulation 5 of the Disabled
Persons (Badges for Motor Vehicles)
Regulations 1982 as amended



	TR
	Span
	Disabled Person’s Badge 
	Disabled Person’s Badge 

	means a badge of a description
prescribed by Regulation 3(1) of the
Disabled Persons (Badges for Motor
Vehicles) Regulations 1982 as amended

	means a badge of a description
prescribed by Regulation 3(1) of the
Disabled Persons (Badges for Motor
Vehicles) Regulations 1982 as amended



	TR
	Span
	Electric Vehicle 
	Electric Vehicle 

	means a Plug-in Electric Vehicle or a
Plug-in Hybrid Vehicle which uses one or
more electric motors for propulsion and
whose battery can be recharged by
plugging it into an external source of
electric power
	means a Plug-in Electric Vehicle or a
Plug-in Hybrid Vehicle which uses one or
more electric motors for propulsion and
whose battery can be recharged by
plugging it into an external source of
electric power




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	1984 Act 
	1984 Act 

	means the Road Traffic Regulation Act
1984 and any statutory re-enactment,
amendment or replacement thereof

	means the Road Traffic Regulation Act
1984 and any statutory re-enactment,
amendment or replacement thereof



	TR
	Span
	Electric Vehicle Charging Bay 
	Electric Vehicle Charging Bay 

	means a parking bay which has been
marked and signed for the exclusive use
of an Electric Vehicle whilst that Vehicle is
being charged by means of an Electric
Vehicle Charging Point

	means a parking bay which has been
marked and signed for the exclusive use
of an Electric Vehicle whilst that Vehicle is
being charged by means of an Electric
Vehicle Charging Point



	TR
	Span
	Electric Vehicle Charging Point 
	Electric Vehicle Charging Point 

	means a purpose built unit designed
specifically for charging Vehicles

	means a purpose built unit designed
specifically for charging Vehicles



	TR
	Span
	Hours of Operation of the Scale of
Charges

	Hours of Operation of the Scale of
Charges


	means the hours at which charges apply
for use of the Parking Places specified
within Schedule Three

	means the hours at which charges apply
for use of the Parking Places specified
within Schedule Three



	TR
	Span
	Long Stay Permit 
	Long Stay Permit 

	Means a virtual permit that allows the
holder to park within the ‘Long Stay’ car
parks specified

	Means a virtual permit that allows the
holder to park within the ‘Long Stay’ car
parks specified



	TR
	Span
	Motor Car 
	Motor Car 

	shall have the meaning assigned to it by
Section 253(2) of the Road Traffic Act
1960 or any statutory re-enactment or
amendment thereof

	shall have the meaning assigned to it by
Section 253(2) of the Road Traffic Act
1960 or any statutory re-enactment or
amendment thereof



	TR
	Span
	No Return Within ‘x’ Hours 
	No Return Within ‘x’ Hours 

	means no return to the same Parking
Place/area is permitted within the
specified hours of departure from that
Parking Place/area

	means no return to the same Parking
Place/area is permitted within the
specified hours of departure from that
Parking Place/area



	TR
	Span
	Operating Centre 
	Operating Centre 

	means, in relation to any Vehicle, the
base or centre at which the Vehicle is
normally kept, and references to an
Operating Centre of the holder of an
operator’s licence are references to any
place which is an Operating Centre for
authorised Vehicles under the licence
	means, in relation to any Vehicle, the
base or centre at which the Vehicle is
normally kept, and references to an
Operating Centre of the holder of an
operator’s licence are references to any
place which is an Operating Centre for
authorised Vehicles under the licence




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	1984 Act 
	1984 Act 

	means the Road Traffic Regulation Act
1984 and any statutory re-enactment,
amendment or replacement thereof

	means the Road Traffic Regulation Act
1984 and any statutory re-enactment,
amendment or replacement thereof



	TR
	Span
	Parking 
	Parking 

	means any Vehicle which is stationary in
a Parking Place for any period of time
whether the Vehicle remains unoccupied
or otherwise, whether the engine is
disengaged or otherwise, and whether in
a designated Parking Bay or otherwise
‘Parking’ and ‘Parked’ shall have the
same meaning

	means any Vehicle which is stationary in
a Parking Place for any period of time
whether the Vehicle remains unoccupied
or otherwise, whether the engine is
disengaged or otherwise, and whether in
a designated Parking Bay or otherwise
‘Parking’ and ‘Parked’ shall have the
same meaning



	TR
	Span
	Parking Bay 
	Parking Bay 

	means any area of a Parking Place which
is provided for the Parking of a Vehicle
and indicated by markings on the surface
of the Parking Place

	means any area of a Parking Place which
is provided for the Parking of a Vehicle
and indicated by markings on the surface
of the Parking Place



	TR
	Span
	Parking Place 
	Parking Place 

	means those areas of land specified by
name and as shown on the Plans in
Schedule 7 for use as a Parking Place

	means those areas of land specified by
name and as shown on the Plans in
Schedule 7 for use as a Parking Place



	TR
	Span
	Parking Session 
	Parking Session 

	means a single, continuous time period in
which a customer pays to Park in a
Parking Place

	means a single, continuous time period in
which a customer pays to Park in a
Parking Place



	TR
	Span
	Pay and Display 
	Pay and Display 

	means a parking system in which the
driver of a Vehicle purchases a ticket
having parked the Vehicle in the Parking
Place, from a card and coin-operated
payment machine and displays it clearly
on the dashboard of the Vehicle

	means a parking system in which the
driver of a Vehicle purchases a ticket
having parked the Vehicle in the Parking
Place, from a card and coin-operated
payment machine and displays it clearly
on the dashboard of the Vehicle



	TR
	Span
	PCN 
	PCN 

	means Penalty Charge Notice

	means Penalty Charge Notice



	TR
	Span
	Penalty Charge 
	Penalty Charge 

	means a Penalty Charge as defined by
Section 92 of the Traffic Management Act
2004

	means a Penalty Charge as defined by
Section 92 of the Traffic Management Act
2004



	TR
	Span
	Permit 
	Permit 

	Shall, where the context so admits include
virtual reserved and resident’s car parking
	Shall, where the context so admits include
virtual reserved and resident’s car parking




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	1984 Act 
	1984 Act 

	means the Road Traffic Regulation Act
1984 and any statutory re-enactment,
amendment or replacement thereof

	means the Road Traffic Regulation Act
1984 and any statutory re-enactment,
amendment or replacement thereof



	TR
	TD
	Span
	Permits, and shall further include any
virtual Permits covering periods of 4
(FOUR) days, weekly or longer periods

	Permits, and shall further include any
virtual Permits covering periods of 4
(FOUR) days, weekly or longer periods



	TR
	Span
	Permitsmarti 
	Permitsmarti 

	Means the platform/system used to
purchase North Devon District Council car
park virtual permits

	Means the platform/system used to
purchase North Devon District Council car
park virtual permits



	TR
	Span
	Public Service Vehicle 
	Public Service Vehicle 

	shall have the meaning assigned to it by
Section 1 of the Public Passenger
Vehicles Act 1981 or any statutory re�enactment or amendment thereof

	shall have the meaning assigned to it by
Section 1 of the Public Passenger
Vehicles Act 1981 or any statutory re�enactment or amendment thereof



	TR
	Span
	Registered Disabled Vehicle 
	Registered Disabled Vehicle 

	means (a) a disabled person’s Vehicle as
defined by the Local Authority Traffic
Orders (Exemptions for Disabled
Persons) (England and Wales)
Regulations 1986 as amended, which is
displaying a valid Disabled Person’s
Badge, or (b) a Vehicle being exempt
from Vehicle excise duty under clauses
18, 19 and 20 of Schedule 2 of the
Vehicle Excise and Registration Act 1994
and which is displaying the exempt
Vehicle excise licence issued for that
Vehicle

	means (a) a disabled person’s Vehicle as
defined by the Local Authority Traffic
Orders (Exemptions for Disabled
Persons) (England and Wales)
Regulations 1986 as amended, which is
displaying a valid Disabled Person’s
Badge, or (b) a Vehicle being exempt
from Vehicle excise duty under clauses
18, 19 and 20 of Schedule 2 of the
Vehicle Excise and Registration Act 1994
and which is displaying the exempt
Vehicle excise licence issued for that
Vehicle



	TR
	Span
	Reserved Bay 
	Reserved Bay 

	means a Parking Bay available for use
only by Vehicles authorised by the
Council to park within that Parking Bay

	means a Parking Bay available for use
only by Vehicles authorised by the
Council to park within that Parking Bay



	TR
	Span
	Reserved Permit 
	Reserved Permit 

	means a virtual permit issued to a specific
holder, permitting them to park within a
designated parking bay, for use only by
	means a virtual permit issued to a specific
holder, permitting them to park within a
designated parking bay, for use only by




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	1984 Act 
	1984 Act 

	means the Road Traffic Regulation Act
1984 and any statutory re-enactment,
amendment or replacement thereof

	means the Road Traffic Regulation Act
1984 and any statutory re-enactment,
amendment or replacement thereof



	TR
	TD
	Span
	Vehicles authorised by the Council to park
within that Parking Bay

	Vehicles authorised by the Council to park
within that Parking Bay



	TR
	Span
	Resident’s Permit 
	Resident’s Permit 

	means a virtual permit issued to a specific
holder, permitting them to park within a
designated parking area, for use only by
Vehicles authorised by the Council to park
within that Parking area

	means a virtual permit issued to a specific
holder, permitting them to park within a
designated parking area, for use only by
Vehicles authorised by the Council to park
within that Parking area



	TR
	Span
	Registered Keeper 
	Registered Keeper 

	means the person by whom such Vehicle
is kept and used as recorded by the
DVLA at the time of the contravention

	means the person by whom such Vehicle
is kept and used as recorded by the
DVLA at the time of the contravention



	TR
	Span
	RingGo 
	RingGo 

	means parking time purchased via the
phone application RingGo which issues a
virtual ticket

	means parking time purchased via the
phone application RingGo which issues a
virtual ticket



	TR
	Span
	Rover Permit 
	Rover Permit 

	means a virtual permit issued to a specific
holder, permitting them to park within a
designated parking areas, for use only by
Vehicles authorised by the Council to park
within that Parking area

	means a virtual permit issued to a specific
holder, permitting them to park within a
designated parking areas, for use only by
Vehicles authorised by the Council to park
within that Parking area



	TR
	Span
	Scale of Charges 
	Scale of Charges 

	means the charges for use of the Parking
Places specified within Schedule One

	means the charges for use of the Parking
Places specified within Schedule One



	TR
	Span
	The Plan 
	The Plan 

	means the Plan of Barnstaple Bus Station
and the other Parking Places specified by
name in Schedule Seven

	means the Plan of Barnstaple Bus Station
and the other Parking Places specified by
name in Schedule Seven



	TR
	Span
	Vehicle 
	Vehicle 

	means any Vehicle, whether motorised or
otherwise, and without prejudice to the
generality of the foregoing shall include
anything attached to, forming part of or
being carried on any Vehicle and shall
also mean any trailer or caravan whether
attached or unattached
	means any Vehicle, whether motorised or
otherwise, and without prejudice to the
generality of the foregoing shall include
anything attached to, forming part of or
being carried on any Vehicle and shall
also mean any trailer or caravan whether
attached or unattached




	 
	 
	PART 2: USE OF LAND AND PARKING PLACE

	 
	2.1 Each area of land specified by name in the Schedule may be used,
subject to the following provisions of this Order as a Parking Place for
such classes of Vehicles in such positions on such days and during
such hours as are specified in relation to that area in the Schedule.

	 
	2.2 Where in the Schedule a Parking Place is described as available for
Vehicles of a specified class or in a specified position, the driver of a
Vehicle shall not permit it to remain in that Parking Place unless it is of
the class and in the position so specified.

	2.3 The permitted classes of Vehicles must park wholly within a Parking
Bay set aside for that class of Vehicle.

	 
	2.4 Where, within a Parking Place, there is a sign or surface marking which
indicates that a Parking Bay is available only for a Disabled Badge
Holder, such indication being either by words or symbols, the driver of
a Vehicle shall not park it nor permit it to remain in that Parking Bay
unless the driver or passenger is a Disabled Badge Holder.

	 
	2.5 Where, within a Parking Place, there is a sign or surface marking
which indicates that the Parking Place, Parking Bay or Bays is/are a
Reserved Bay or Parking Place available for virtual permit holders only,
or is not available for use by members of the general public, such
indication being either by words or symbols, the driver of a vehicle shall
not park it or permit it to remain in that Parking Bay or Parking Place
unless it is a vehicle authorised by the Council to park in that Parking
Place or Parking Bay.

	 
	2.6 The driver of a vehicle of any class driving, reversing or manoeuvring
a vehicle in any Parking Place shall not exceed a speed limit of 5
(FIVE) miles per hour.
	 
	2.7 The Articles of this Order shall apply to each and every Parking Place
for all periods of every day inclusive of bank holidays, irrespective of
whether there is a charge in force at any time for parking in the Parking
Place.

	 
	2.8 The driver of a vehicle shall not permit it to remain in a Parking Place
for longer than the maximum period permitted for parking specified in
the Schedule in relation to that Parking Place.

	 
	2.9 Where a Parking Place named in the Schedule has a restriction
prohibiting a return to that Parking Place within a specified time period,
the driver of a vehicle shall not permit the vehicle to return to that
Parking Place within that time period.

	 
	PART 3: THE USE OF BARNSTAPLE BUS STATION

	 
	3.1 Barnstaple Bus Station (“the Bus Station”) shall be in part used as a
station for public service vehicles and in part as a Parking Place for
certain classes of Vehicles subject to the following provisions of this
Order:

	(a) No vehicle other than a Public Service Vehicle shall be
permitted to use the red land;

	(b) All Public Service Vehicles setting down or picking up passengers
within the red land shall do so only at one of the Designated
Stands and in accordance with any agreement or arrangement
entered into with the Council;

	(c) The driver of any Public Service Vehicle shall not permit it to
remain within the red land for longer than 30 minutes, unless
authorised in writing by the Council;

	(d) The driver of a Public Service Vehicle shall, on using the red land,
pay the appropriate charge in accordance with the Scale of
	Charges specified within the Schedule, or such other charge as
may be agreed in writing with the Council;

	(e) The Charge referred to in (d) above shall be payable by
Arrangement as agreed in writing with the Council;

	(f) The blue land shall only be used by customers or clients of the
“Go North Devon” scheme and shall not be used by any vehicle
apart from a motor car or a disabled badge holder;

	(g) Upon parking the vehicle within the blue land, the driver of the
same will immediately obtain a parking permit from the “Go North
Devon” offices and display the same within the windscreen of the
vehicle;

	(h) Where within the Bus Station there is any sign or surface marking
indicating that the Bus Station, or any designated stand or space
is not available for use by any particular vehicle or vehicles/ class
of vehicle(s), has been closed, the driver of any vehicle shall not
park it nor permit it to remain in the Bus Station or designated
stand unless authorised to do so by the Council;

	(i) The provisions of this Order shall apply to the Bus Station for all
periods of every day, irrespective of bank holidays or weekends;

	(j) The driver of a vehicle using the Bus Station shall stop the engine
as soon as the vehicle is in position in the Bus Station and shall
not start the engine except when about to change the position of
the vehicle or to depart from the Bus Station;

	(k) The driver of any vehicle shall not Park nor be permitted to Park a
vehicle so unreasonably as to obstruct and/or prevent access to
any other part of the Bus Station or any designated stand or
space or so as to become a nuisance to any other user of the Bus
Station;

	(l) Any vehicle in contravention of the provisions of this Order or any
vehicle which is causing an obstruction or nuisance to other users
of the Bus Station may be removed from the Bus Station by any
authorised officer of the Council or on behalf of the Council by any
authorised servant or agent in manner hereinafter appearing:
	(i) the vehicle may be removed by towing or driving the
vehicle or some other method as the Council, its officers
or servant may deem appropriate and necessary to
enable the position of the vehicle to be altered or the
vehicle to be removed;

	(ii) any person moving, removing or arranging the removal of
a vehicle by virtue of this section of the Order shall make
arrangements as he considers reasonably necessary for
the safety of the vehicle in the place to which it is
removed;

	(iii) in exercising its powers under this provision of the Order,
the Council may recover the costs of removal and storage
of the vehicle from the driver of the vehicle.

	(m) Notwithstanding the powers contained within the previous
provision hereof, in the case of a vehicle in respect of which a
breach of any provision of this Order may have occurred, an
officer of the Council or any agents or servants of the Council
may attach to the vehicle or public service vehicle, a PCN which
shall include the following particulars:

	(i) the name of the enforcement authority;

	(ii) the date on which the notice is served;

	(iii) the registration mark of the vehicle involved in the
alleged contravention;

	(iv) the date and time at which the alleged contravention
occurred;

	(v) the grounds on which the civil enforcement officer
serving the notice believed that a penalty charge is
payable;

	(vi) the amount of the penalty charge;

	(vii) the information that the penalty charge must be paid
not later than the last day of the period of 28 days
beginning with the date on which the penalty charge
notice was served;
	(viii) the information that, if the penalty charge is paid not
later than the last day of the period of 14 days
beginning with the date on which the notice is
served, the penalty charge will be reduced by the
amount of any applicable discount;

	(ix) The information that if the penalty charge is not paid
before the end of the period of 28 days a notice to
owner may be served by the enforcement authority
on the owner of the vehicle;

	(x) The manner in which the penalty charge must be
paid.

	(n) When a PCN has been attached to a vehicle in accordance with
any of the foregoing provisions of this Order no person other
than a person authorised by the Council on their behalf or the
driver or a person authorised by the driver on their behalf shall
remove the same from the vehicle;

	(o) Where in the Bus Station, signs are erected or surface markings
laid for the purpose of indicating the entrance to or exit from the
Bus Station or indicating that a vehicle using a parking place
should proceed in a specified direction within the Bus Station,
no persons shall drive or permit to be driven any public service
vehicle so that it enters or leaves the Bus Station otherwise
than by an entrance or exit so indicated or in a direction other
than such specified;

	(p) The Council may at its discretion suspend the operation of this
Order in relation to the whole or any part of the Bus Station at
any time and for whatever purpose it deems fit;

	(q) No person shall cause a nuisance or annoyance to other users
of the Bus Station or to any Council employee nor interfere in
any way with nor obstruct or cause to obstruct any part of the
Bus Station nor any parking bay/area, designated stands,
signs, meters or notices within the Bus Station;
	(r) For the purpose of the instigation of proceedings in respect of
any breach of this Order the person responsible shall be
deemed to be the registered keeper/ hirer of the vehicle;

	(s) Where a PCN has been issued and payment of the Penalty
Charge has not been made within the time stated thereon, the
Council may instigate proceedings in the Civil Court for the
recovery of the penalty charge and any reasonable costs
incurred by the Council in taking such proceedings.

	 
	PART 4: CHARGES

	 
	4.1 The driver of a vehicle using a parking place shall pay the
appropriate charge in accordance with the Scale of Charges specified
in Schedule One provided that no charge shall be payable by the
driver of a vehicle left in that parking place if either the vehicle
displays a valid virtual permit issued in respect of that vehicle in
accordance with the provisions of Paragraph (3) of this Article or, if
that vehicle is parked in a parking place and remains within the
parking place only during those days or hours of the day when no
charge is payable as provided in Schedule One.

	 
	4.2 The charge referred to in paragraph 4.1 shall be payable by one of the
following methods:

	(a) Pay and Display; or

	(b) Payment via mobile phone; or

	(c) some other arrangement as may be agreed in writing with the
Council.

	            
	4.3 The owner of a vehicle may, on application to the Council, purchase a
virtual permit in respect of a vehicle for a charge ascertained by
reference to the Schedule and that virtual permit shall be valid in such
parking places/ areas as are specified thereon during the period for
which it is issued. The use of the said virtual permit shall be subject to
	the terms of this Order and to any additional terms or conditions
specified by the council.

	 
	4.4 (a) Any Pay & Display ticket issued upon the payment of the charge in
accordance with paragraph 4.2(a) ascertained by reference to
Schedule One shall be maintained and continuously and
conspicuously displayed inside the windscreen or on the
dashboard of that vehicle throughout the entire parking period of
the vehicle in respect of which it was issued or purchased;

	(b) Said Pay & Display ticket must remain both visible and legible
throughout that period to any person examining the vehicle from its
exterior;

	(c) Any virtual Parking Session issued in accordance with paragraph
4.3 must refer to that parking place/area in which it is parked at the
time of observation;

	(d) The Parking Session must be valid for the entire period for which
the vehicle remains in that parking place/area and should relate to
the vehicle registration parked during that period.

	 
	4.5 A vehicle shall not remain in a Parking Place if it displays any Pay &
Display ticket or virtual Parking Session referred to in paragraph 4.4
hereof which has expired or is invalidated either in the circumstances
described in 4.6 below or if the Parking Session obtained via RingGo
has expired or for any other reason.

	 
	4.6 Tickets referred to in 4.4 above shall not be transferred between
vehicles, and for the avoidance of doubt, shall become invalid upon
such a transfer taking place. Tickets purchased by RingGo are only valid
if they refer to the correct registration number and Parking Place.

	 
	4.7 The charges payable in accordance with the Scale of Charges specified
within Schedule One shall be payable in respect of all vehicles, including
a Disabled Badge Holder.
	 
	PART 5: OTHER PROVISIONS

	 
	5.1 The driver of a Motor Vehicle shall comply with the terms of this Order
and any ancillary matters specified within Schedule Six.

	 
	5.2 The driver of a Motor Vehicle using a Parking Place, shall stop the
engine as soon as the vehicle is in position in the Parking Place and
shall not start the engine except when about to change the position of
the vehicle or to depart from the Parking Place.

	 
	5.3 No person shall use any part of a Parking Place, or any vehicle left in a
Parking Place, for the purpose of servicing or washing any vehicle or
part thereof other than carrying out such repairs as are reasonably
necessary to enable that vehicle to depart from the Parking Place.

	 
	5.4. The driver of a vehicle using a Parking Place shall not sound any horn
or other similar instrument or cause to be made any loud noise to the
disturbance or annoyance of users of the Parking Place or occupiers of
premises or any other person in and around the neighbourhood.

	 
	5.5 (a) If a vehicle is left in a Parking Place in a position other than in
accordance with the provisions of paragraph 4, a person authorised
by the Council may alter, or cause to be altered, the position of the
vehicle so that its position is in accordance with said provisions;

	 
	(b) For the purpose of meeting the requirements of an emergency, a
person authorised by the Council, or a Police Officer in uniform,
may alter or cause to be altered the position of a vehicle in a
Parking Place or remove or arrange for the removal of a vehicle
from a Parking Place.

	 
	(c) Any person altering or causing the alteration of the position of a
vehicle by virtue of paragraph 5.1, removing or causing the removal
of a vehicle by virtue of paragraph 5.2 may do so by towing or
	driving the vehicle or in such other manner as he may think
reasonably necessary to enable the position of the vehicle to be
altered or the vehicle to be removed.

	 
	(d) Any person moving, removing or arranging the removal of a vehicle
by virtue of paragraphs 5.2 or 5.3 of this Article shall make such
arrangements as he considers to be reasonably necessary for the
safety of the vehicle in the place to which it is removed.

	 
	(e) In exercising any of its powers hereunder, the Council may recover
from the driver of the vehicle any reasonable costs and expenses
which are incurred by the Council or its authorised agents.

	 
	5.6 In a Parking Place, no person shall:

	(a) erect, cause or permit to be erected any tent, booth, stand, building
or other structure without the written consent of the Council;

	(b) light, cause or permit to be lit any fire.

	 
	5.7 No person shall use a Parking Place or any Parking Bay when the
Council have closed that Parking Place or Parking Bay.

	 
	5.8 The driver of a vehicle shall not permit that vehicle to be parked in a
Parking Place, Parking Bay or area which it is stated, either within this
Order, its Schedules, on signs, on the ground or otherwise to be
available for reserved parking only or where “No Parking” signs are
erected or marked out on the ground or in an area marked with cross�hatch markings on the ground or in a Parking Place, Parking Bay or
area which has been closed by the Council by any other method.

	 
	5.9 The driver of a vehicle shall not permit that vehicle to be parked so
unreasonably as to obstruct and/or as to prevent access to any other
Parking Place, Parking Bay or any premises adjoining the Parking
Place or so as to become a nuisance to any other user of the Parking
	Place. Vehicles are not permitted to park beyond the Parking Bay
markings.

	 
	5.10 (a) No person shall abandon a vehicle within a Parking Place or area.

	 
	(b) For the purposes of paragraph 5.1, a person who leaves a vehicle
within a Parking Place in such circumstances or for such a period
that he may reasonably be assumed to have abandoned it, shall be
deemed to have abandoned it there unless a contrary intention is
shown.

	 
	(c) If any boat or other article is left in a Parking Place without the
consent of the Council, the Council may cause a Notice to be
attached to, or placed near to, the boat or other article requiring the
removal of the boat or other article within 7 days of the date of the
Notice.

	 
	(d) If any boat or other article shall remain after the expiry of the said
Notice the Council may remove or cause to be removed the same
and shall recover any costs incurred in so doing from the owner
thereof.

	 
	5.11 (a) Where an authorised officer has reasonable grounds to believe that
a vehicle has contravened any of the conditions within this Order,
they may attach a notice to the vehicle requesting that the vehicle
be removed from the Parking Place within not less than 24 hours of
the time that the notice is affixed and that it should not return
thereto.

	 
	(b) Any vehicle remaining within the Parking Place after the expiry of
the notice period, can be removed by any authorised Officer of the
Council or on behalf of the Council by any authorised servant or
agent in the manner set out in 5.11 above.
	 
	(c) If a vehicle cannot be removed or it is deemed inappropriate for the
Council to remove the vehicle, then an authorised Officer may
serve a further notice by leaving it attached to the vehicle advising
that all rights of occupation of the Parking Place are formally
withdrawn and that unless the vehicle is removed within 24 hours
of the date of service then action will be taken forthwith without
further notice in the appropriate Court to have the vehicle and any
occupiers removed.

	 
	PART 6: PENALTY CHARGE

	 
	6.1 In the case of a vehicle in respect of which a breach of this Order may
have occurred, it shall be the duty of a Civil Enforcement Officer to
provide notification of a Penalty Charge by notice affixed to the vehicle
in a conspicuous position, or by notice given to the person appearing
to be in charge of the vehicle or in such other manner as specified by
Traffic Management Act 2004. The Penalty Charge Notice (“a PCN”)
shall include the following particulars:

	 
	(a) The name of the enforcement authority;

	(a) The name of the enforcement authority;

	(a) The name of the enforcement authority;



	 
	(b) The date on which the notice is served;

	(b) The date on which the notice is served;

	(b) The date on which the notice is served;



	 
	(c) The registration mark of vehicle involved in the alleged
contravention;

	(c) The registration mark of vehicle involved in the alleged
contravention;

	(c) The registration mark of vehicle involved in the alleged
contravention;



	 
	(d) The date and time at which the alleged contravention
occurred;

	(d) The date and time at which the alleged contravention
occurred;

	(d) The date and time at which the alleged contravention
occurred;



	 
	(e) The grounds on which the Civil Enforcement Officer serving
the notice believed that a penalty charge is payable;

	(e) The grounds on which the Civil Enforcement Officer serving
the notice believed that a penalty charge is payable;

	(e) The grounds on which the Civil Enforcement Officer serving
the notice believed that a penalty charge is payable;



	 
	(f) The amount of the penalty charge;
	(f) The amount of the penalty charge;
	(f) The amount of the penalty charge;


	 
	(g) The information that the penalty charge must be paid not later
than the last day of the period of 28 days beginning with the
date on which the penalty charge notice was served;

	(g) The information that the penalty charge must be paid not later
than the last day of the period of 28 days beginning with the
date on which the penalty charge notice was served;

	(g) The information that the penalty charge must be paid not later
than the last day of the period of 28 days beginning with the
date on which the penalty charge notice was served;



	 
	(h) The information that, if the penalty charge is paid not later than
the last day of the period of 14 days beginning with the date
on which the notice is served, the penalty charge will be
reduced by the amount of any applicable discount;

	(h) The information that, if the penalty charge is paid not later than
the last day of the period of 14 days beginning with the date
on which the notice is served, the penalty charge will be
reduced by the amount of any applicable discount;

	(h) The information that, if the penalty charge is paid not later than
the last day of the period of 14 days beginning with the date
on which the notice is served, the penalty charge will be
reduced by the amount of any applicable discount;



	 
	(i) The information that if the penalty charge is not paid before
the end of the period of 28 days a notice to owner may be
served by the enforcement authority on the owner of the
vehicle; and

	(i) The information that if the penalty charge is not paid before
the end of the period of 28 days a notice to owner may be
served by the enforcement authority on the owner of the
vehicle; and

	(i) The information that if the penalty charge is not paid before
the end of the period of 28 days a notice to owner may be
served by the enforcement authority on the owner of the
vehicle; and



	 
	(j) The manner in which the penalty charge must be paid.

	(j) The manner in which the penalty charge must be paid.

	(j) The manner in which the penalty charge must be paid.



	 
	6.2 When a PCN has been attached to a vehicle in accordance with any of
the foregoing provisions of this Order, no person other than a person
authorised by the Council in that behalf or the driver or a person
authorised by the driver in that behalf shall remove the same from the
vehicle.

	 
	PART 7: GENERAL PROVISIONS

	 
	7. Where in a Parking Place signs are erected or surface markings are laid
for the purpose of:

	 
	(a) indicating the entrance to or exit from the Parking Place,

	(a) indicating the entrance to or exit from the Parking Place,

	(a) indicating the entrance to or exit from the Parking Place,



	 
	(b) indicating that a vehicle using a Parking Place shall proceed
in a specified direction within the Parking Place,
	(b) indicating that a vehicle using a Parking Place shall proceed
in a specified direction within the Parking Place,
	(b) indicating that a vehicle using a Parking Place shall proceed
in a specified direction within the Parking Place,


	 
	no person shall drive or permit to be driven any vehicle:

	 
	(i) so that it enters the Parking Place otherwise than by an
entrance or leaves the Parking Place otherwise than by an exit
so indicated; or

	(i) so that it enters the Parking Place otherwise than by an
entrance or leaves the Parking Place otherwise than by an exit
so indicated; or

	(i) so that it enters the Parking Place otherwise than by an
entrance or leaves the Parking Place otherwise than by an exit
so indicated; or



	 
	(ii) in a direction other than so specified.

	 
	7.1 No person shall, except with the permission of a person authorised by
the Council on their behalf, drive or permit to be driven any vehicle in a
Parking Place for any purpose other than the purpose of parking that
vehicle in the Parking Place in accordance with the provisions of this
Order.

	 
	7.2 No person shall use a vehicle while it is in a Parking Place in connection
with the sale of an article to persons in or near the Parking Place or in
connection with the selling or offering to hire of his skill or services except
with the prior written consent of the Council.

	 
	7.3 No person shall use any part of a Parking Place as an “Operating
Centre”, within the meaning of the Transport Act 1968, unless the prior
written consent of the Council in the form of a licence has been granted.

	 
	7.4 No person shall deposit or cause to be deposited, any advertising
handbills, leaflets or circulars on any vehicle in a Parking Place. Without
prejudice to the generality of this article, a person shall be deemed to be
causing an advert, handbill, leaflet or circular to be deposited if his
goods, trade, business or other concerns are being given publicity by the
advert, handbill, leaflet or circular unless he can prove that it was
deposited without his consent.

	 
	7.5 The Council may, at its discretion, suspend the operation of this Order
in relation to the whole or any part of any Parking Place at any time and
for whatever purpose it deems fit. This is without prejudice to the
	Council’s right to close the Parking Place or one or more Parking Bays
within the Parking Place.

	 
	7.6 No person shall cause a nuisance or annoyance to other users of a
Parking Place or to any Council employee nor interfere in any way with,
nor obstruct or cause to obstruct, any Parking Place or any Parking Bay,
sign, meter or notice within any Parking Place.

	 
	7.7 Where a PCN has been issued and payment of the Penalty Charge has
not been made within the time stated thereon, the Council may instigate
proceedings in the Civil Court for the recovery of the penalty charge and
any reasonable costs incurred by the Council in taking such
proceedings.

	 
	7.8 For the purpose of the instigation of proceedings in respect of any breach
of this Order or non-payment of a penalty charge, the person responsible
shall be deemed to be the Registered Keeper or hirer of the vehicle.

	 
	7.9 (a) No vehicle boat or other article or thing shall be left or parked on a
parking place in such a position as may cause a nuisance or danger
to the safety of users of the parking place.

	 
	(b) Any vehicle boat or other article or thing which has been left in a
Parking Place in breach of sub-clause (a) hereof may be removed
from the Parking Place by any person who has been duly authorised
by the Council.

	(b) Any vehicle boat or other article or thing which has been left in a
Parking Place in breach of sub-clause (a) hereof may be removed
from the Parking Place by any person who has been duly authorised
by the Council.

	(b) Any vehicle boat or other article or thing which has been left in a
Parking Place in breach of sub-clause (a) hereof may be removed
from the Parking Place by any person who has been duly authorised
by the Council.



	 
	(c) The Council may make such arrangements as it considers
reasonable for the safe custody of the vehicle, boat or other article
or thing.

	(c) The Council may make such arrangements as it considers
reasonable for the safe custody of the vehicle, boat or other article
or thing.

	(c) The Council may make such arrangements as it considers
reasonable for the safe custody of the vehicle, boat or other article
or thing.



	 
	(d) The Council will, upon being furnished with evidence of ownership,
return the vehicle boat or other article or thing to the person who
appears to the Council to be the owner of the same, SUBJECT TO
	payment of the reasonable costs of the Council incurred in removing
and/or storing the same.

	 
	(e) Any boat vehicle or other article so removed will be deemed to
have been abandoned unless claimed within 3 months of
removal.

	 
	PART 8: CAR PARKS

	 
	N.B. Where a car park has both Pay and Display and Permit
Holder bays, the text in italics relates to Permit Holders only.

	 
	BARNSTAPLE

	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	ALBERT
LANE (BLUE
AREA)

	ALBERT
LANE (BLUE
AREA)


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V7)

	(V7)

	 
	(V18)


	Motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and motor vehicles not
exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and motor vehicles not
exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1)

	(P1)

	 
	(P7)


	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C28) 
	(C28) 

	Reserved Parking Only by arrangement with North Devon District Council

	Reserved Parking Only by arrangement with North Devon District Council



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D3) 
	(D3) 

	Monday to Saturday inclusive

	Monday to Saturday inclusive



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H9)

	(H9)

	(H20)


	All hours

	All hours

	No overnight parking is permitted



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping




	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	BARNSTAPLE
BUS STATION
(RED AREA)

	BARNSTAPLE
BUS STATION
(RED AREA)


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V19)

	(V19)

	(V15)


	Coaches;

	Coaches;

	Public Service Vehicles (excluding Taxis)



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H9)

	(H9)

	(H20)


	All hours

	All hours

	No overnight parking is permitted



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	BEAR
STREET

	BEAR
STREET


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1) 
	(P1) 

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C1)

	(C1)

	 
	 
	 
	(C55)


	1hrs - £1.30 6 hours - £7.80

	1hrs - £1.30 6 hours - £7.80

	2hrs - £2.60 7 hours - £9.10

	3hrs - £3.90 8 hours - £10.40

	4hrs - £5.20 9 hours - £11.70

	5hrs - £6.50 All Day - £13.00

	50p for half an hour



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H2) 
	(H2) 

	8.00am to 6.00pm

	8.00am to 6.00pm



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping




	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	BELLE
MEADOW

	BELLE
MEADOW


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1) 
	(P1) 

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C1) 
	(C1) 
	 
	 
	 

	1hrs - £1.30 6 hours - £7.80

	1hrs - £1.30 6 hours - £7.80

	2hrs - £2.60 7 hours - £9.10

	3hrs - £3.90 8 hours - £10.40

	4hrs - £5.20 9 hours - £11.70

	5hrs - £6.50 All Day - £13.00



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H2) 
	(H2) 

	8.00am to 6.00pm

	8.00am to 6.00pm



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	BICTON
STREET

	BICTON
STREET


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V2)

	(V2)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen
weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen
weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1)

	(P1)

	 
	(P7)


	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C17)

	(C17)

	 
	(C29)


	Permit parking for local residents living within ¼ mile radius of the car park

	Permit parking for local residents living within ¼ mile radius of the car park

	- £100 per year

	1hrs - £0.60

	2hrs - £0.80

	3hrs - £1.20

	All Day - £2.50



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D3) 
	(D3) 

	Monday to Saturday inclusive
	Monday to Saturday inclusive




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	BICTON
STREET

	BICTON
STREET


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H9)

	(H9)

	(H2)


	All hours apply

	All hours apply

	8.00am to 6.00pm



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	BRYNSWORTHY

	BRYNSWORTHY


	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V6)
(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Motor vehicles exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P11) 
	(P11) 

	No permits or tickets required

	No permits or tickets required



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C7) 
	(C7) 

	Free of charge

	Free of charge



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D6) 
	(D6) 

	No charges payable on car park for any day

	No charges payable on car park for any day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H15) 
	(H15) 

	Maximum stay within parking place is 24 hours

	Maximum stay within parking place is 24 hours



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N10) 
	(N10) 

	No sleeping

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	CASTLE
QUAY

	CASTLE
QUAY


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V2)

	(V2)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen
weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen
weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P7)
(P9)

	(P7)
(P9)

	(P20)


	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase;

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase;

	Parking for general public prohibited except for those with reserved permits;

	Permits issued by North Devon Homes



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C12) 
	(C12) 

	Reserved Permit Parking Only

	Reserved Permit Parking Only

	Per Quarter – £170.00

	Per Year - £600.00



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day
	Charges apply every day




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	CASTLE
QUAY

	CASTLE
QUAY


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H9) 
	(H9) 

	All hours

	All hours



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N6)

	 
	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	Parking for visitors to residents of Castle Quay Court permitted only in bays
10-19;

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	CASTLE
QUAY
SLIPWAY

	CASTLE
QUAY
SLIPWAY


	 
	 
	(H21) 

	 
	 
	Parking prohibited at any time





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	CATTLE
MARKET

	CATTLE
MARKET


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1) 
	(P1) 
	 

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C1)

	(C1)

	 
	 
	 
	(C51)

	 
	(C55)


	1hrs - £1.30 6 hours - £7.80

	1hrs - £1.30 6 hours - £7.80

	2hrs - £2.60 7 hours - £9.10

	3hrs - £3.90 8 hours - £10.40

	4hrs - £5.20 9 hours - £11.70

	5hrs - £6.50 All Day - £13.00

	Solo motorcycles free of charge provided they park in specifically designated
spaces for their use, otherwise car park scale of charges applies

	50p for half an hour



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H2) 
	(H2) 

	8.00am to 6.00pm

	8.00am to 6.00pm



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping




	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	COMMERCIAL
ROAD

	COMMERCIAL
ROAD


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1) 
	(P1) 

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C1) 
	(C1) 

	1hrs - £1.30 6 hours - £7.80

	1hrs - £1.30 6 hours - £7.80

	2hrs - £2.60 7 hours - £9.10

	3hrs - £3.90 8 hours - £10.40

	4hrs - £5.20 9 hours - £11.70

	5hrs - £6.50 All Day - £13.00



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H2) 
	(H2) 

	8.00am to 6.00pm

	8.00am to 6.00pm



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	CONGRAMS
CLOSE

	CONGRAMS
CLOSE


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1)

	(P1)

	 
	(P7)


	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C17)

	(C17)

	 
	(C29)


	Permit parking for local residents living within ¼ mile radius of the car park

	Permit parking for local residents living within ¼ mile radius of the car park

	- £100 per year

	1hrs - £0.60

	2hrs - £0.80

	3hrs - £1.20

	All Day - £2.50



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D3) 
	(D3) 

	Monday to Saturday inclusive
	Monday to Saturday inclusive




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	CONGRAMS
CLOSE

	CONGRAMS
CLOSE


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H9)

	(H9)

	(H2)


	All hours apply

	All hours apply

	8.00am to 6.00pm



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	CORONATION
STREET

	CORONATION
STREET


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V2) 
	(V2) 

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen
weight

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen
weight



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P7)

	(P7)

	(P9)


	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase

	Parking for general public prohibited except for those with reserved permits



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C21) 
	(C21) 

	Reserved Parking Only - £500.00 per year

	Reserved Parking Only - £500.00 per year



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H9) 
	(H9) 

	All hours

	All hours



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	FAIRVIEW

	FAIRVIEW


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V4) 
	(V4) 

	Solo motorcycles, motor cars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations, motor
vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight, hitched trailers and hitched
caravans.

	Solo motorcycles, motor cars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations, motor
vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight, hitched trailers and hitched
caravans.



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1)

	(P1)

	 
	(P7)

	(P8)


	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase;

	Vehicle with a trailer/caravan must buy a ticket for each bay occupied



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C30)
(C51)

	(C30)
(C51)


	£2.50 all day

	£2.50 all day

	Solo motorcycles free of charge provided they park in specifically designated
spaces for their use, otherwise car park scale of charges applies




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	FAIRVIEW

	FAIRVIEW


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D3) 
	(D3) 

	Monday to Saturday inclusive

	Monday to Saturday inclusive



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H2) 
	(H2) 

	8.00am to 6.00pm

	8.00am to 6.00pm



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	HARDAWAY
HEAD

	HARDAWAY
HEAD


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1) 
	(P1) 

	- Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	- Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	- Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	- Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;





	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C1) 
	(C1) 

	1hrs - £1.30 6 hours - £7.80

	1hrs - £1.30 6 hours - £7.80

	2hrs - £2.60 7 hours - £9.10

	3hrs - £3.90 8 hours - £10.40

	4hrs - £5.20 9 hours - £11.70

	5hrs - £6.50 All Day - £13.00



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H2) 
	(H2) 

	8.00am to 6.00pm

	8.00am to 6.00pm



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	LITCHDON
STREET

	LITCHDON
STREET


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	LITCHDON
STREET

	LITCHDON
STREET


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1)

	(P1)

	 
	(P7)


	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C1) 
	(C1) 

	1hrs - £1.30 6 hours - £7.80

	1hrs - £1.30 6 hours - £7.80

	2hrs - £2.60 7 hours - £9.10

	3hrs - £3.90 8 hours - £10.40

	4hrs - £5.20 9 hours - £11.70

	5hrs - £6.50 All Day - £13.00



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H2) 
	(H2) 

	8.00am to 6.00pm

	8.00am to 6.00pm



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	LOVERINGS
COURT

	LOVERINGS
COURT


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V2) 
	(V2) 

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen
weight

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen
weight



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P7)

	(P7)

	(P9)


	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase

	Parking for general public prohibited except for those with reserved permits



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C41) 
	(C41) 

	Reserved Parking Only - £500.00 per year

	Reserved Parking Only - £500.00 per year



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H9) 
	(H9) 

	All hours

	All hours



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping




	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	LOWER
PILTON

	LOWER
PILTON


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V2)

	(V2)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen
weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen
weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1)

	(P1)

	 
	(P7)
(P9)


	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase;

	Parking for general public prohibited except for those with reserved permits



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C17)

	(C17)

	 
	(C20)

	(C29)


	Permit parking for local residents living within ¼ mile radius of the car park

	Permit parking for local residents living within ¼ mile radius of the car park

	- £100 per year

	Reserved Parking Available - £300.00 per year

	1hrs - £0.60

	2hrs - £0.80

	3hrs - £1.20

	All Day - £2.50



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D3)

	(D3)

	(D5)


	Monday to Saturday inclusive

	Monday to Saturday inclusive

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H2)
(H9)

	(H2)
(H9)


	8.00am to 6.00pm

	8.00am to 6.00pm

	All hours



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	MAGDALENE
LAWN

	MAGDALENE
LAWN


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V2) 
	(V2) 

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen
weight

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen
weight



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P7)

	(P7)

	(P9)


	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase

	Parking for general public prohibited except for those with reserved permits



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C39) 
	(C39) 

	Annual Reserved Parking Permit - £180.00

	Annual Reserved Parking Permit - £180.00



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H9) 
	(H9) 

	All hours
	All hours




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	MAGDALENE
LAWN

	MAGDALENE
LAWN


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	MARY
MAGDALENE

	MARY
MAGDALENE


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V2)

	(V2)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen
weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen
weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P7)
(P9)

	(P7)
(P9)


	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase

	Parking for general public prohibited except for those with reserved permits



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C7) 
	(C7) 

	Free of charge

	Free of charge



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D6) 
	(D6) 

	No charges payable on car park for any day

	No charges payable on car park for any day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H9) 
	(H9) 

	All hours

	All hours



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	MILL ROAD

	MILL ROAD


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1) 
	(P1) 

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C35) 
	(C35) 

	1hrs – £0.60

	1hrs – £0.60

	2hrs – £0.80

	3hrs - £1.20



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D4) 
	(D4) 

	Monday to Saturday (Including Bank Holidays)
	Monday to Saturday (Including Bank Holidays)




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	MILL ROAD

	MILL ROAD


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H6)

	(H6)

	(H11)

	(H12)


	10.00am to 4.00pm

	10.00am to 4.00pm

	No return within 2 hours

	Maximum stay is 3 hours



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	NORTH WALK

	NORTH WALK


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1)

	(P1)

	 
	(P7)


	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C1)

	(C1)

	 
	 
	 
	(C51)

	 
	(C56)


	1hrs - £1.30 6 hours - £7.80

	1hrs - £1.30 6 hours - £7.80

	2hrs - £2.60 7 hours - £9.10

	3hrs - £3.90 8 hours - £10.40

	4hrs - £5.20 9 hours - £11.70

	5hrs - £6.50 All Day - £13.00

	Solo motorcycles free of charge provided they park in specifically designated
spaces for their use, otherwise car park scale of charges applies

	Motorhome Charge - £15.00



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H2) 
	(H2) 

	8.00am to 6.00pm

	8.00am to 6.00pm



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N12)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	Bike Racks





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	PAIGES LANE

	PAIGES LANE


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	PAIGES LANE

	PAIGES LANE


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1) 
	(P1) 

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C1) 
	(C1) 

	1hrs - £1.30 6 hours - £7.80

	1hrs - £1.30 6 hours - £7.80

	2hrs - £2.60 7 hours - £9.10

	3hrs - £3.90 8 hours - £10.40

	4hrs - £5.20 9 hours - £11.70

	5hrs - £6.50 All Day - £13.00



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H2)

	(H2)

	(H10)
(H12)


	8.00am to 6.00pm

	8.00am to 6.00pm

	Maximum stay within parking place is 1 hour

	No return within 2 hours



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	PORTLAND
BUILDINGS

	PORTLAND
BUILDINGS


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1)

	(P1)

	 
	(P7)
(P9)


	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase

	Parking for general public prohibited except for those with reserved permits



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C1)

	(C1)

	 
	 
	 
	(C48)


	1hrs - £1.30 6 hours - £7.80

	1hrs - £1.30 6 hours - £7.80

	2hrs - £2.60 7 hours - £9.10

	3hrs - £3.90 8 hours - £10.40

	4hrs - £5.20 9 hours - £11.70

	5hrs - £6.50 All Day - £13.00

	Reserved Parking Available - £500.00 per year



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D3) 
	(D3) 

	Charges apply everyday

	Charges apply everyday



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H2)
(H9)

	(H2)
(H9)


	8.00am to 6.00pm

	8.00am to 6.00pm

	All hours




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	PORTLAND
BUILDINGS

	PORTLAND
BUILDINGS


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	PORTMARSH
LANE

	PORTMARSH
LANE


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1)

	(P1)

	 
	(P7)

	(P9)


	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase

	Parking for general public prohibited except for those with reserved permits



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C17)

	(C17)

	 
	(C30)
(C39)


	Permit parking for local residents living within ¼ mile radius of the car park -
£100 per year

	Permit parking for local residents living within ¼ mile radius of the car park -
£100 per year

	£2.50 all day

	Annual Reserved Parking Permit - £180.00



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D3)
(D5)

	(D3)
(D5)


	Monday to Saturday inclusive

	Monday to Saturday inclusive

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H2)
(H9)

	(H2)
(H9)


	8.00am to 6.00pm

	8.00am to 6.00pm

	All hours



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	QUEEN
STREET

	QUEEN
STREET


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1)

	(P1)

	(P7)


	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;
	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	QUEEN
STREET

	QUEEN
STREET


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	TD
	TD
	Span
	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C1)

	(C1)

	 
	 
	 
	(C51)

	 
	(C55)


	1hrs - £1.30 6 hours - £7.80

	1hrs - £1.30 6 hours - £7.80

	2hrs - £2.60 7 hours - £9.10

	3hrs - £3.90 8 hours - £10.40

	4hrs - £5.20 9 hours - £11.70

	5hrs - £6.50 All Day - £13.00

	Solo motorcycles free of charge provided they park in specifically designated
spaces for their use, otherwise car park scale of charges applies;

	50p for half an hour



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H2) 
	(H2) 

	8.00am to 6.00pm

	8.00am to 6.00pm



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)

	(N12)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping;

	Bike Racks





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	RIVERFRONT 
	RIVERFRONT 

	H21 
	H21 

	Parking prohibited at any time

	Parking prohibited at any time





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	ROLLE QUAY

	ROLLE QUAY


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1)

	(P1)

	 
	(P7)

	(P9)


	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase;

	Parking for general public prohibited except for those with reserved tickets



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C4)

	(C4)

	 
	 
	 
	(C57)


	Up to 1hrs - £1.30

	Up to 1hrs - £1.30

	Up to 2hrs - £2.20

	Up to 3hrs - £3.30

	Up to 4hrs - £4.40

	Up to 24hrs - £6.00

	Reserved parking - £450.00 per year




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	ROLLE QUAY

	ROLLE QUAY


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H2)
(H9)

	(H2)
(H9)


	8.00am to 6.00pm

	8.00am to 6.00pm

	All hours



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)

	(N12)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping;

	Bike Racks





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	ROLLE QUAY
SLIPWAY

	ROLLE QUAY
SLIPWAY


	(H21) 
	(H21) 

	Parking prohibited at any time

	Parking prohibited at any time





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	RUGBY CLUB

	RUGBY CLUB


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P7) 
	(P7) 

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C30)
(C52)

	(C30)
(C52)


	£2.50 all day

	£2.50 all day

	Permit Parking from Monday to Friday



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D2) 
	(D2) 

	Monday to Friday inclusive (Excluding Bank Holidays)

	Monday to Friday inclusive (Excluding Bank Holidays)



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H6) 
	(H6) 

	10.00am to 4.00pm

	10.00am to 4.00pm

	 


	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	SEVEN
BRETHREN

	SEVEN
BRETHREN


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V4) 
	(V4) 

	Solo motorcycles, motor cars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations, motor
vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight, hitched trailers and hitched
caravans
	Solo motorcycles, motor cars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations, motor
vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight, hitched trailers and hitched
caravans




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	SEVEN
BRETHREN

	SEVEN
BRETHREN


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1)

	(P1)

	 
	(P7)
(P8)


	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase;

	A vehicle with a trailer/caravan must buy a ticket for each bay occupied



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C30) 
	(C30) 

	£2.50 all day

	£2.50 all day



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D3) 
	(D3) 

	Monday to Saturday inclusive

	Monday to Saturday inclusive



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H2) 
	(H2) 

	8.00am to 6.00pm

	8.00am to 6.00pm



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N8)

	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	Height Barrier (2.8m);

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	SEVEN
BRETHREN
VAN AND
LORRY PARK

	SEVEN
BRETHREN
VAN AND
LORRY PARK


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V6)

	(V6)

	(V8)

	(V10)

	(V11)

	 
	(V13)

	(V14)

	(V18)
(V19)


	Motor vehicles exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Motor vehicles exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Motor homes not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Light commercial vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight only;

	A total maximum of 4 operating licences for vehicles are allowed on the lorry
park and no trailers to be licensed for the Lorry Park;

	Motor homes

	Heavy Goods Vehicles (HGV’s);

	No caravans or trailers;

	Coaches



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1) 
	(P1) 

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C5)

	(C5)

	 
	(C30)


	Per hour - £1.70

	Per hour - £1.70

	All day (24hrs) - £10.00 (lorries only)

	£2.50 all day (vans only)




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	SEVEN
BRETHREN
VAN AND
LORRY PARK

	SEVEN
BRETHREN
VAN AND
LORRY PARK


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D3)

	(D3)

	(D5)


	Monday to Saturday inclusive

	Monday to Saturday inclusive

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H2)

	(H2)

	(H9)

	(H17)


	8.00am to 6.00pm

	8.00am to 6.00pm

	All hours (lorries only)

	Maximum stay is 7 days – no return within 2 hours unless otherwise approved
by the District Council



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1) 
	(N1) 
	 
	 

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	SILVER
STREET

	SILVER
STREET


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1) 
	(P1) 

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C1) 
	(C1) 

	1hrs - £1.30 6 hours - £7.80

	1hrs - £1.30 6 hours - £7.80

	2hrs - £2.60 7 hours - £9.10

	3hrs - £3.90 8 hours - £10.40

	4hrs - £5.20 9 hours - £11.70

	5hrs - £6.50 All Day - £13.00



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H9) 
	(H9) 

	All hours

	All hours



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping




	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	SILVER
STREET
(RESERVED
PERMIT
BAYS)

	SILVER
STREET
(RESERVED
PERMIT
BAYS)


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V2) 
	(V2) 
	 

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen
weight

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen
weight



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P7)

	(P7)

	(P9)


	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase;

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase;

	Parking for general public prohibited except for those with reserved permits.



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C19) 
	(C19) 

	Reserved Parking - £1,000 per year

	Reserved Parking - £1,000 per year



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H9) 
	(H9) 

	All hours

	All hours



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	TARKA

	TARKA


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1)
(P7)

	(P1)
(P7)


	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C29) 
	(C29) 

	1hrs - £0.60

	1hrs - £0.60

	2hrs - £0.80

	3hrs - £1.20

	All Day - £2.50



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D3) 
	(D3) 

	Monday to Saturday inclusive

	Monday to Saturday inclusive



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H2) 
	(H2) 

	8.00am to 6.00pm
	8.00am to 6.00pm




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	TARKA

	TARKA


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N8)

	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	Height Barrier (2.8m);

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	TULY STREET

	TULY STREET


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1)
(P7)

	(P1)
(P7)


	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C1) 
	(C1) 

	1hrs - £1.30 6 hours - £7.80

	1hrs - £1.30 6 hours - £7.80

	2hrs - £2.60 7 hours - £9.10

	3hrs - £3.90 8 hours - £10.40

	4hrs - £5.20 9 hours - £11.70

	5hrs - £6.50 All Day - £13.00



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H2) 
	(H2) 

	8.00am to 6.00pm

	8.00am to 6.00pm



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	MUSEUM OF
NORTH
DEVON

	MUSEUM OF
NORTH
DEVON


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V2)

	(V2)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen
weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen
weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P7)

	(P7)

	(P9)


	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase

	Parking for general public prohibited except for those with reserved permits



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C7) 
	(C7) 

	Free of charge
	Free of charge




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	MUSEUM OF
NORTH
DEVON

	MUSEUM OF
NORTH
DEVON


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D6) 
	(D6) 

	No charges payable on car park for any day

	No charges payable on car park for any day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H9) 
	(H9) 

	All hours

	All hours



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	BICKINGTON
CAR PARK

	BICKINGTON
CAR PARK


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1)

	(P1)

	 
	(P7)


	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C23)

	(C23)

	 
	(C29)


	Residents permit available to those living within ¼ miles of the Parking Place -
£60.00 per year

	Residents permit available to those living within ¼ miles of the Parking Place -
£60.00 per year

	1hrs - £0.60

	2hrs - £0.80

	3hrs - £1.20

	All Day - £2.50



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D3) 
	(D3) 

	Monday to Saturday inclusive

	Monday to Saturday inclusive



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H2) 
	(H2) 

	8.00am to 6.00pm

	8.00am to 6.00pm



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N8)

	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	Height Barrier (2.3m)

	No sleeping




	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	FREMINGTON
CAR PARK

	FREMINGTON
CAR PARK


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1)

	(P1)

	 
	(P7)


	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase

	 


	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C17)

	(C17)

	 
	(C29)


	Parking for local residents living within ¼ mile radius of the car park - £100 per
year

	Parking for local residents living within ¼ mile radius of the car park - £100 per
year

	1hrs - £0.60

	2hrs - £0.80

	3hrs - £1.20

	All Day - £2.50



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D3) 
	(D3) 

	Monday to Saturday inclusive

	Monday to Saturday inclusive



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H2) 
	(H2) 

	8.00am to 6.00pm

	8.00am to 6.00pm



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping





	 
	BRAUNTON

	 
	Please note that permits for Braunton Car Parks are issued by Braunton
Parish Council or the owners of Caen Field Car Park.

	 
	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	CAEN
STREET
(MAIN RED
AREA)

	CAEN
STREET
(MAIN RED
AREA)


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	CAEN
STREET
(MAIN RED
AREA)

	CAEN
STREET
(MAIN RED
AREA)


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1)

	(P1)

	 
	(P15)


	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Permits issued by Braunton Parish Council



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C45)

	(C45)

	 
	 
	 
	 
	(C51)


	First 30 minutes - £0.30

	First 30 minutes - £0.30

	Up to 1hrs - £0.80

	Up to 2hrs - £1.50

	Up to 3hrs - £2.30

	Each additional hour - £0.50

	Solo motorcycles free of charge provided they park in specifically designated
spaces for their use, otherwise car park scale of charges applies



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D3) 
	(D3) 

	Monday to Saturday inclusive

	Monday to Saturday inclusive



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H4) 
	(H4) 

	9.00am to 6.00pm

	9.00am to 6.00pm



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N2)

	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	Not owned by NDDC, but operated by NDDC

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	CAEN
STREET
(BLUE
OVERFLOW
AREA)

	CAEN
STREET
(BLUE
OVERFLOW
AREA)


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1)

	(P1)

	 
	(P7)

	(P15)


	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase;

	Permits issued by Braunton Parish Council




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	CAEN
STREET
(BLUE
OVERFLOW
AREA)

	CAEN
STREET
(BLUE
OVERFLOW
AREA)


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C38)

	(C38)

	 
	(C45)


	From 1 April 2014

	From 1 April 2014

	Annual Residents Permit (available for all Parishioners of Braunton) - £175.00

	First 30 minutes - £0.30

	Up to 1hrs - £0.80

	Up to 2hrs - £1.50

	Up to 3hrs - £2.30

	Each additional hour - £0.50



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D3) 
	(D3) 

	Monday to Saturday inclusive

	Monday to Saturday inclusive



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H4) 
	(H4) 

	9.00am to 6.00pm

	9.00am to 6.00pm



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N2)

	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	Not owned by NDDC, but operated by NDDC;

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	CAEN FIELD
CAR PARK

	CAEN FIELD
CAR PARK


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1)

	(P1)

	 
	(P16)


	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Permits issued by the land owner



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C15) 
	(C15) 

	Up to ½ hr – £0.20 Up to 6hrs - £3.60

	Up to ½ hr – £0.20 Up to 6hrs - £3.60

	Up to 1hrs – £0.60 Up to 7hrs - £4.20

	Up to 2hrs – £1.20 Up to 8hrs - £4.80

	Up to 3hrs – £1.80 Up to 24hrs - £10.00

	Up to 4hrs – £2.40

	Up to 5hrs - £3.00




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	CAEN FIELD
CAR PARK

	CAEN FIELD
CAR PARK


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H9) 
	(H9) 

	All hours

	All hours



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N2)

	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	Not owned by NDDC, but operated by NDDC;

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	CHALONERS
ROAD

	CHALONERS
ROAD


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1)

	(P1)

	 
	(P15)


	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Permits issued by Braunton Parish Council



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C45)

	(C45)

	 
	 
	 
	 
	(C51)


	First 30 minutes - £0.30

	First 30 minutes - £0.30

	Up to 1hrs - £0.80

	Up to 2hrs - £1.50

	Up to 3hrs - £2.30

	Each additional hour - £0.50

	Solo motorcycles free of charge provided they park in specifically designated
spaces for their use, otherwise car park scale of charges applies



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D3) 
	(D3) 

	Monday to Saturday inclusive

	Monday to Saturday inclusive



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H4) 
	(H4) 

	9.00am to 6.00pm

	9.00am to 6.00pm



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N2)

	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	Not owned by NDDC, but operated by NDDC;

	No sleeping




	 
	COMBE MARTIN

	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	CORMELLES
CAR PARK

	CORMELLES
CAR PARK


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1)

	(P1)

	 
	(P7)

	(P16)


	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase

	Permits issued by the land owner



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C10) 
	(C10) 

	Up to 2hrs - £1.00

	Up to 2hrs - £1.00

	Up to 4hrs - £2.00

	Up to 12hrs - £3.00

	Up to 24hrs - £4.00



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H9) 
	(H9) 

	All hours

	All hours



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N3)
(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	Owned and operated by Combe Martin Parish Council;

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	HIGH STREET
COACH/CAR
PARK

	HIGH STREET
COACH/CAR
PARK


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V9)

	(V18)
(V19)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Motor homes and campervans not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers;

	Coaches



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1)

	(P1)

	 
	(P7)

	(P8)


	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase;

	A vehicle with a trailer/caravan must buy a ticket for each bay occupied;




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	HIGH STREET
COACH/CAR
PARK

	HIGH STREET
COACH/CAR
PARK


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	TD
	Span
	(P16) 
	(P16) 

	Permits issued by the land owner.

	Permits issued by the land owner.



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C31)

	(C31)

	 
	(C53)


	Parking by non-transferable permit only after 30 minute free period (except for
motorhomes and campervans which may park for up to 24hrs for £5.00)

	Parking by non-transferable permit only after 30 minute free period (except for
motorhomes and campervans which may park for up to 24hrs for £5.00)

	30 minutes free parking and no return within 2hrs



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H9) 
	(H9) 

	All hours

	All hours



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N3)

	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	Owned and operated by Combe Martin Parish Council;

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	HOLDSTONE
DOWN

	HOLDSTONE
DOWN


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P16) 
	(P16) 

	Permits issued by the land owner

	Permits issued by the land owner



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C7) 
	(C7) 

	Free of charge

	Free of charge



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D6) 
	(D6) 

	No charges payable on car park for any day

	No charges payable on car park for any day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H9)

	(H9)

	(H18)


	All hours

	All hours

	Maximum stay is 7 days - no return within 6 hours



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N3)

	(N10)

	 

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	Owned and operated by Combe Martin Parish Council;

	No sleeping
	 




	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	HOLLANDS
PARK

	HOLLANDS
PARK


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V1) 
	(V1) 

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P16) 
	(P16) 

	Permits issued by the land owner.

	Permits issued by the land owner.



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C7) 
	(C7) 

	Free of charge

	Free of charge



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H18) 
	(H18) 

	Maximum stay is 7 days - no return within 6 hours

	Maximum stay is 7 days - no return within 6 hours



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N3)
(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	Owned and operated by Combe Martin Parish Council;

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	KILN CAR
PARK

	KILN CAR
PARK


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V4) 
	(V4) 

	Solo motorcycles, motor cars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations, motor
vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight, hitched trailers and hitched
caravans

	Solo motorcycles, motor cars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations, motor
vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight, hitched trailers and hitched
caravans



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P8)

	(P8)

	(P16)


	A vehicle with a trailer/caravan must buy a ticket for each bay occupied;

	A vehicle with a trailer/caravan must buy a ticket for each bay occupied;

	Permits issued by the land owner.



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C9)

	(C9)

	 
	 
	 
	(C11)


	From 1 November to 14 March

	From 1 November to 14 March

	Up to 2hrs - £1.00

	Up to 12hrs - £3.00

	All day - £4.00

	From 15 March to 31 October

	Up to 1hrs - £1.30

	Up to 2hrs - £2.60

	Up to 3hrs - £3.90

	Up to 4hrs - £5.20

	Up to 24hrs - £13.00



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day
	Charges apply every day




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	KILN CAR
PARK

	KILN CAR
PARK


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H9) 
	(H9) 

	All hours

	All hours



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N3)
(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	Owned and operated by Combe Martin Parish Council;

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	THE PARADE

	THE PARADE


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V2)

	(V2)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen
weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen
weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P16) 
	(P16) 

	Permits issued by the land owner.

	Permits issued by the land owner.



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C9)

	(C9)

	 
	 
	 
	(C11)


	From 1 November to 14 March

	From 1 November to 14 March

	Up to 2hrs - £1.00

	Up to 12hrs - £3.00

	All day - £4.00

	From 15 March to 31 October

	Up to 1hrs - £1.30

	Up to 2hrs - £2.60

	Up to 3hrs - £3.90

	Up to 4hrs - £5.20

	Up to 24hrs - £13.00



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H9) 
	(H9) 

	All hours

	All hours



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N3)
(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	Owned and operated by Combe Martin Parish Council;

	No sleeping




	 
	CROYDE

	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	CROYDE CAR
PARK

	CROYDE CAR
PARK


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Coaches

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1)

	(P1)

	 
	(P7)


	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C2)

	(C2)

	 
	 
	 
	 
	(C3)

	 
	  
	(C5)

	 
	(C17)

	 
	(C56)


	15 March to 31 October

	15 March to 31 October

	1hrs - £1.50 6 hours - £9.00

	2hrs - £3.00 7 hours - £10.50

	3hrs - £4.50 8 hours - £12.00

	4hrs - £6.00 9 hours - £13.50

	5hrs - £7.50 All Day - £15.00

	From 1 November to 14 March

	1hrs – £0.80 All Day - £2.50

	2hrs - £1.40

	Per hour - £1.70

	All day (24 hrs) - £10.00 (coaches only)

	Parking for local residents living within ¼ mile radius of the car park - £100 per
year

	Motorhome Charge - £15.00



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H9)
(H2)

	(H9)
(H2)


	All hours (Coaches)

	All hours (Coaches)

	8.00am to 6.00pm



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1) 
	(N1) 
	 
	 

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged





	 
	ILFRACOMBE
	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	ADELAIDE
TERRACE

	ADELAIDE
TERRACE


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V2)

	(V2)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen
weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen
weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P7)
(P9)

	(P7)
(P9)


	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase

	Parking for general public prohibited except for those with reserved permits



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C58) 
	(C58) 

	£120 per annum for Adelaide Terrace Resident’s Association Only

	£120 per annum for Adelaide Terrace Resident’s Association Only



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H9) 
	(H9) 

	All hours

	All hours



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	BERRYNARBOR
CAR PARK

	BERRYNARBOR
CAR PARK


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V2)

	(V2)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen
weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen
weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P11) 
	(P11) 

	No permits or tickets required

	No permits or tickets required



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C7) 
	(C7) 

	Free of charge

	Free of charge



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D6) 
	(D6) 

	No charges payable on car park for any day

	No charges payable on car park for any day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H9)

	(H9)

	(H15)


	All hours;

	All hours;

	Maximum stay within parking place is 24 hours



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping




	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	BICCLESCOMBE

	BICCLESCOMBE


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V2)

	(V2)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen
weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen
weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P11) 
	(P11) 

	No permits or tickets required

	No permits or tickets required



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C7) 
	(C7) 

	Free of charge

	Free of charge



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D6) 
	(D6) 

	No charges payable on car park for any day

	No charges payable on car park for any day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H9)
(H18)

	(H9)
(H18)


	All hours

	All hours

	Maximum stay is 7 days - no return within 6 hours



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle
is an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle
is an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	BROOKDALE
(CARS)

	BROOKDALE
(CARS)


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1)

	(P1)

	 
	(P7)


	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C3)

	(C3)

	 
	 
	(C25)


	From 1 November to 14 March

	From 1 November to 14 March

	1hrs – £0.80 All Day - £2.50

	2hrs - £1.40

	From 15 March to 31 October

	1hrs - £1.30

	2hrs - £2.20

	3hrs - £3.30

	All day - £6.00



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H2) 
	(H2) 

	8.00am to 6.00pm
	8.00am to 6.00pm




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	BROOKDALE
(CARS)

	BROOKDALE
(CARS)


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	BROOKDALE
(LORRIES
AND
COACHES)

	BROOKDALE
(LORRIES
AND
COACHES)


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V6)

	(V6)

	(V8)

	(V10)

	(V11)

	 
	(V13)

	(V14)

	(V18)
(V19)


	Motor vehicles exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Motor vehicles exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Motor homes not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Light commercial vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight only;

	A total maximum of 4 operating licences for vehicles are allowed on the lorry
park and no trailers to be licensed for the Lorry Park;

	Motor homes

	Heavy Goods Vehicles (HGV’s);

	No caravans or trailers;

	Coaches



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1) 
	(P1) 

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C5)

	(C5)

	 
	(C30)


	Per hour - £1.70

	Per hour - £1.70

	All day (24hrs) - £10 (lorries only)

	£1.70 all day (vans)



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D3)

	(D3)

	(D5)


	Monday to Saturday inclusive

	Monday to Saturday inclusive

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H2)

	(H2)

	(H9)

	(H17)


	8.00am to 6.00pm

	8.00am to 6.00pm

	All hours (lorries only)

	Maximum stay is 7 days – no return within 2 hours unless otherwise approved
by the District Council



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1) 
	(N1) 
	 
	 

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged
	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged




	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	CHEYNE
BEACH

	CHEYNE
BEACH


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V2)

	(V2)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen
weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen
weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P7)

	(P7)

	(P14)


	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase

	Permits only issued by Ilfracombe Town Council



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C7) 
	(C7) 

	Free of charge

	Free of charge



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D6) 
	(D6) 

	No charges payable on car park for any day

	No charges payable on car park for any day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H9) 
	(H9) 

	All hours

	All hours



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N2)

	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	Not owned by NDDC, but operated by NDDC;

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	COVE

	COVE


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V4) 
	(V4) 

	Solo motorcycles, motor cars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations, motor
vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight, hitched trailers and hitched
caravans

	Solo motorcycles, motor cars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations, motor
vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight, hitched trailers and hitched
caravans



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1)
(P8)

	(P1)
(P8)


	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	A vehicle with a trailer/caravan must buy a ticket for each bay occupied



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C2)

	(C2)

	 
	 
	 
	 
	(C3)

	 
	 
	(C51)


	15 March to 31 October

	15 March to 31 October

	1hrs - £1.50 6 hours - £9.00

	2hrs - £3.00 7 hours - £10.50

	3hrs - £4.50 8 hours - £12.00

	4hrs - £6.00 9 hours - £13.50

	5hrs - £7.50 All Day - £15.00

	From 1 November to 14 March

	1hrs – £0.80 All Day - £2.50

	2hrs - £1.40

	Solo motorcycles free of charge provided they park in specifically designated
spaces for their use, otherwise car park scale of charges applies




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	COVE

	COVE


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H2) 
	(H2) 

	8.00am to 6.00pm

	8.00am to 6.00pm



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	HAGGINGTON
CAR PARK

	HAGGINGTON
CAR PARK


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P11) 
	(P11) 

	No permits or tickets required

	No permits or tickets required



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C7) 
	(C7) 

	Free of charge

	Free of charge



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D6) 
	(D6) 

	No charges payable on car park for any day

	No charges payable on car park for any day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H9)
(H18)

	(H9)
(H18)


	All hours

	All hours

	Maximum stay is 7 days - no return within 6 hours



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)

	(N11)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping;

	No camping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	HELE

	HELE


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V4) 
	(V4) 

	Solo motorcycles, motor cars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations, motor
vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight, hitched trailers and hitched
caravans

	Solo motorcycles, motor cars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations, motor
vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight, hitched trailers and hitched
caravans



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1)

	(P1)

	 
	(P7)

	(P8)


	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase;

	A vehicle with a trailer/caravan must buy a ticket for each bay occupied




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	HELE

	HELE


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C17)

	(C17)

	 
	(C29)


	Parking for local residents living within ¼ mile radius of the car park - £100
per year

	Parking for local residents living within ¼ mile radius of the car park - £100
per year

	1hrs - £0.60

	2hrs - £0.80

	3hrs - £1.20

	All Day - £2.50



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D3) 
	(D3) 

	Monday to Saturday inclusive

	Monday to Saturday inclusive



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H2) 
	(H2) 

	8.00am to 6.00pm

	8.00am to 6.00pm



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N8)

	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	Height Barrier (2.7m);

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	HILLSBOROUGH
(CARS)

	HILLSBOROUGH
(CARS)


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V4) 
	(V4) 

	Solo motorcycles, motor cars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations,
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight, hitched trailers and
hitched caravans

	Solo motorcycles, motor cars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations,
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight, hitched trailers and
hitched caravans



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1)

	(P1)

	 
	(P7)

	(P8)


	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase

	A vehicle with a trailer/caravan must buy a ticket for each bay occupied



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C17)

	(C17)

	 
	(C29)

	 
	 
	 
	(C56)


	Parking for local residents living within ¼ mile radius of the car park - £100
per year

	Parking for local residents living within ¼ mile radius of the car park - £100
per year

	1hrs - £0.60

	2hrs - £0.80

	3hrs - £1.20

	All Day - £2.50

	Motorhome Charge - £15.00



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D3) 
	(D3) 

	Monday to Saturday inclusive

	Monday to Saturday inclusive



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H2) 
	(H2) 

	8.00am to 6.00pm
	8.00am to 6.00pm




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	HILLSBOROUGH
(CARS)

	HILLSBOROUGH
(CARS)


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle
is an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle
is an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	HILLSBOROUGH
LORRIES AND
VANS

	HILLSBOROUGH
LORRIES AND
VANS


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V6)

	(V6)

	(V8)

	(V10)

	(V11)

	 
	(V13)

	(V14)

	(V18)
(V19)


	Motor vehicles exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Motor vehicles exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Motor homes not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Light commercial vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight only;

	A total maximum of 4 operating licences for vehicles are allowed on the
lorry park and no trailers to be licensed for the Lorry Park;

	Motor homes

	Heavy Goods Vehicles (HGV’s);

	No caravans or trailers;

	Coaches



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1) 
	(P1) 

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C5)

	(C5)

	 
	(C30)

	(C56)


	Per hour - £1.70

	Per hour - £1.70

	All day (24hrs) - £10.00 (lorries only)

	£1.70 all day (vans only)

	Motorhome Charge - £15.00



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D3)

	(D3)

	(D5)


	Monday to Saturday inclusive

	Monday to Saturday inclusive

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H2)

	(H2)

	(H9)

	(H17)


	8.00am to 6.00pm

	8.00am to 6.00pm

	All hours (lorries only)

	Maximum stay is 7 days – no return within 2 hours unless otherwise
approved by the District Council



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1) 
	(N1) 
	 
	 

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle
is an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged
	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle
is an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged




	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	JUBILEE
GARDENS

	JUBILEE
GARDENS


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
CHARGES

	PERMITS AND
CHARGES


	(P1)

	(P1)

	 
	(P7)


	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C2)

	(C2)

	 
	 
	 
	 
	(C3)


	15 March to 31 October

	15 March to 31 October

	1hrs - £1.50 6 hours - £9.00

	2hrs - £3.00 7 hours - £10.50

	3hrs - £4.50 8 hours - £12.00

	4hrs - £6.00 9 hours - £13.50

	5hrs - £7.50 All Day - £15.00

	From 1 November to 14 March

	1hrs – £0.80 All Day - £2.50

	2hrs - £1.40



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H2) 
	(H2) 

	8.00am to 6.00pm

	8.00am to 6.00pm



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle
is an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle
is an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	JUBILEE
GARDENS
(MUSEUM
CAR PARK)

	JUBILEE
GARDENS
(MUSEUM
CAR PARK)


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1)

	(P1)

	 
	(P7)


	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C35) 
	(C35) 

	1hrs – £0.60

	1hrs – £0.60

	2hrs – £0.80




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	JUBILEE
GARDENS
(MUSEUM
CAR PARK)

	JUBILEE
GARDENS
(MUSEUM
CAR PARK)


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	TD
	TD
	Span
	3hrs - £1.20

	3hrs - £1.20



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H2)
(H11)

	(H2)
(H11)

	(H12)


	8.00am to 6.00pm

	8.00am to 6.00pm

	No return within 2 hours

	Maximum stay is 3 hours



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	LARKSTONE
LANE

	LARKSTONE
LANE


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1)

	(P1)

	 
	(P7)


	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C3)

	(C3)

	 
	 
	(C25)


	From 1 November to 14 March

	From 1 November to 14 March

	1hrs – £0.80 All Day - £2.50

	2hrs - £1.40

	From 15 March to 31 October

	1hrs - £1.30

	2hrs - £2.20

	3hrs - £3.30

	All day - £6.00



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H2) 
	(H2) 

	8.00am to 6.00pm
	8.00am to 6.00pm




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	LARKSTONE
LANE

	LARKSTONE
LANE


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N8)

	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	Height Barrier (2.8m)

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	MARINE
DRIVE

	MARINE
DRIVE


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V4)

	(V4)

	 
	(V16)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations, motor
vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight and trailers;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations, motor
vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight and trailers;

	Boats and trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1)

	(P1)

	 
	(P7)

	(P8)


	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase;

	A vehicle with a trailer/caravan must buy a ticket for each bay occupied



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C2)

	(C2)

	 
	 
	 
	 
	(C3)


	15 March to 31 October

	15 March to 31 October

	1hrs - £1.50 6 hours - £9.00

	2hrs - £3.00 7 hours - £10.50

	3hrs - £4.50 8 hours - £12.00

	4hrs - £6.00 9 hours - £13.50

	5hrs - £7.50 All Day - £15.00

	From 1 November to 14 March

	1hrs – £0.80 All Day - £2.50

	2hrs - £1.40



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H2) 
	(H2) 

	8.00am to 6.00pm

	8.00am to 6.00pm



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping




	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	OXFORD
GROVE

	OXFORD
GROVE


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1)

	(P1)

	 
	(P7)


	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C3)

	(C3)

	 
	 
	(C17)

	 
	(C25)

	 
	 
	 
	 
	(C40)

	(C51)


	From 1 November to 14 March

	From 1 November to 14 March

	1hrs – £0.80 All Day - £2.50

	2hrs - £1.40

	Parking for local residents living within ¼ mile radius of the car park - £100
per year

	From 15 March to 31 October

	1hrs - £1.30

	2hrs - £2.20

	3hrs - £3.30

	All day - £6.00

	Annual Reserved Parking Permit - £220.00

	Solo motorcycles free of charge provided they park in specifically designated
spaces for their use, otherwise car park scale of charges applies



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H2)
(H9)

	(H2)
(H9)


	8.00am to 6.00pm

	8.00am to 6.00pm

	All hours



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	PIER

	PIER


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1) 
	(P1) 

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times
	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	PIER

	PIER


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C2)

	(C2)

	 
	 
	 
	 
	(C3)

	 
	 
	(C51)


	15 March to 31 October

	15 March to 31 October

	1hrs - £1.50 6 hours - £9.00

	2hrs - £3.00 7 hours - £10.50

	3hrs - £4.50 8 hours - £12.00

	4hrs - £6.00 9 hours - £13.50

	5hrs - £7.50 All Day - £15.00

	From 1 November to 14 March

	1hrs – £0.80 All Day - £2.50

	2hrs - £1.40

	Solo motorcycles free of charge provided they park in specifically designated
spaces for their use, otherwise car park scale of charges applies



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H2) 
	(H2) 

	8.00am to 6.00pm

	8.00am to 6.00pm



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	QUAY HEAD 
	QUAY HEAD 

	(H21) 
	(H21) 

	Parking prohibited at any time

	Parking prohibited at any time





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	ROPERY
ROAD

	ROPERY
ROAD


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1)

	(P1)

	 
	(P7)

	(P16)


	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase;

	Permits issued by the land owner



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C49) 
	(C49) 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	15 March to 31 October

	15 March to 31 October

	Up to 1hrs - £1.50 Up to 5hrs - £6.40

	Up to 2hrs - £2.80 Up to 6hrs - £7.50

	Up to 3hrs - £4.00 Up to 24hrs - £9.50

	Up to 4hrs - £5.20




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	ROPERY
ROAD

	ROPERY
ROAD


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	TD
	Span
	(C50) 
	(C50) 

	1 November to 14 March

	1 November to 14 March

	Up to 1hrs - £0.80

	Up to 2hrs - £1.70

	All day - £2.50



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H2) 
	(H2) 
	 

	8am to 6pm

	8am to 6pm



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N2)

	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	Not owned by NDDC, but operated by NDDC

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	SEA FRONT 
	SEA FRONT 

	(H21) 
	(H21) 

	Parking prohibited at any time

	Parking prohibited at any time





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	WILDER
ROAD

	WILDER
ROAD


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	 

	(P1)

	(P1)

	 
	(P7)


	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C1)

	(C1)

	 
	 
	 
	 
	(C3)

	 
	 
	(C51)

	 

	From 15 March to 31 October

	From 15 March to 31 October

	1hrs - £1.30 6 hours - £7.80

	2hrs - £2.60 7 hours - £9.10

	3hrs - £3.90 8 hours - £10.40

	4hrs - £5.20 9 hours - £11.70

	5hrs - £6.50 All Day - £13.00

	From 1 November to 14 March

	1hrs – £0.80 All Day - £2.50

	2hrs - £1.40

	Solo motorcycles free of charge provided they park in specifically designated
spaces for their use, otherwise car park scale of charges applies




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	WILDER
ROAD

	WILDER
ROAD


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	TD
	Span
	(C55) 
	(C55) 

	50p for half an hour

	50p for half an hour



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H2) 
	(H2) 

	8.00am to 6.00pm

	8.00am to 6.00pm



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping





	 
	 
	INSTOW

	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	INSTOW
MARINE CAR
PARK

	INSTOW
MARINE CAR
PARK


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V1) 
	(V1) 

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1)

	(P1)

	 
	(P7)

	(P13)


	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase;

	Permits issued by Instow Parish Council.



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C16)

	(C16)

	(C51)


	£1.20 per hour

	£1.20 per hour

	Solo motorcycles free of charge provided they park in specifically designated
spaces for their use, otherwise car park scale of charges applies



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H2) 
	(H2) 

	8.00am to 6.00pm

	8.00am to 6.00pm



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N2)
(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	Not owned by NDDC, but operated by NDDC;

	No sleeping




	 
	LANDKEY AND SWIMBRIDGE

	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	BAKERY WAY

	BAKERY WAY


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V2)

	(V2)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen
weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen
weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P11) 
	(P11) 

	No permits or tickets required

	No permits or tickets required



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C7) 
	(C7) 

	Free of charge

	Free of charge



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D6) 
	(D6) 

	No charges payable on car park for any day

	No charges payable on car park for any day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H15) 
	(H15) 

	Maximum stay within parking place is 24 hours

	Maximum stay within parking place is 24 hours



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N10) 
	(N10) 

	No sleeping

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	CHURCH
LAKE

	CHURCH
LAKE


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V2)

	(V2)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen
weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen
weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P11) 
	(P11) 

	No permits or tickets required

	No permits or tickets required



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C7) 
	(C7) 

	Free of charge

	Free of charge



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D6) 
	(D6) 

	No charges payable on car park for any day

	No charges payable on car park for any day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H9)
(H18)

	(H9)
(H18)


	All hours

	All hours

	Maximum stay is 7 days - no return within 6 hours



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping




	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	MILLENNIUM
GREEN

	MILLENNIUM
GREEN


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V6)
(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Motor vehicles exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P11) 
	(P11) 

	No permits or tickets required

	No permits or tickets required



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C7) 
	(C7) 

	Free of charge

	Free of charge



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D6) 
	(D6) 

	No charges payable on car park for any day

	No charges payable on car park for any day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H15) 
	(H15) 

	Maximum stay within parking place is 24 hours

	Maximum stay within parking place is 24 hours



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N10) 
	(N10) 

	No sleeping

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	SWIMBRIDGE
CAR PARK

	SWIMBRIDGE
CAR PARK


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V2)

	(V2)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen
weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen
weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P11) 
	(P11) 

	No permits or tickets required

	No permits or tickets required



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C7) 
	(C7) 

	Free of charge

	Free of charge



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D6) 
	(D6) 

	No charges payable on car park for any day

	No charges payable on car park for any day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H9) 
	(H9) 

	All hours

	All hours



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping





	 
	LYNTON AND LYNMOUTH
	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	BOTTOM
MEADOW

	BOTTOM
MEADOW


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1)

	(P1)

	 
	(P7)

	(P17)


	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase;

	Permits issued by Lynton and Lynmouth Town Council



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C6)

	(C6)

	 
	 
	 
	 
	(C51)

	 

	1hrs - £1.30 6hrs - £7.80

	1hrs - £1.30 6hrs - £7.80

	2hrs - £2.60 7hrs - £9.10

	3hrs - £3.90 All Day - £10.00

	4hrs - £5.20

	5hrs - £6.50

	Solo motorcycles free of charge provided they park in specifically designated
spaces for their use, otherwise car park scale of charges applies



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H8)
(H20)

	(H8)
(H20)


	10.00am to 6.00pm

	10.00am to 6.00pm

	No overnight parking is permitted



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N5)

	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	Owned by NDDC but operated by Lynton and Lynmouth Town Council;

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	BOTTOM
MEADOW
(LORRIES,
MOTOR
HOMES AND
COACHES)

	BOTTOM
MEADOW
(LORRIES,
MOTOR
HOMES AND
COACHES)


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V6)

	(V6)

	(V19)
(V13)

	(V14)


	Motor vehicles exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Motor vehicles exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Coaches

	Motor homes

	Heavy Goods Vehicles (HGV’s)




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	BOTTOM
MEADOW
(LORRIES,
MOTOR
HOMES AND
COACHES)

	BOTTOM
MEADOW
(LORRIES,
MOTOR
HOMES AND
COACHES)


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1)

	(P1)

	 
	(P7)


	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C6)

	(C6)

	 
	 
	 
	 
	(C56)


	1hrs - £1.30 6hrs - £7.80

	1hrs - £1.30 6hrs - £7.80

	2hrs - £2.60 7hrs - £9.10

	3hrs - £3.90 All Day - £10.00

	4hrs - £5.20

	5hrs - £6.50

	Motorhome Charge - £15.00



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H8) 
	(H8) 

	10.00am to 6.00pm

	10.00am to 6.00pm



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N5)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	Owned by NDDC but operated by Lynton and Lynmouth Town Council





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	CROSS
STREET

	CROSS
STREET


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1)

	(P1)

	 
	(P7)


	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C6) 
	(C6) 
	 
	 
	 

	1hrs - £1.30 6hrs - £7.80

	1hrs - £1.30 6hrs - £7.80

	2hrs - £2.60 7hrs - £9.10

	3hrs - £3.90 All Day - £10.00

	4hrs - £5.20




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	CROSS
STREET

	CROSS
STREET


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	TD
	Span
	 
	 
	(C51)


	5hrs - £6.50

	5hrs - £6.50

	Solo motorcycles free of charge provided they park in specifically designated
spaces for their use, otherwise car park scale of charges applies



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H8)

	(H8)

	(H20)


	10.00am to 6.00pm

	10.00am to 6.00pm

	No overnight parking is permitted



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N5)

	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	Owned by NDDC but operated by Lynton and Lynmouth Town Council;

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	ESPLANADE

	ESPLANADE


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1) 
	(P1) 

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C59)

	(C59)

	 
	 
	 
	 
	(C51)


	1hrs - £1.50 6hrs - £9.00

	1hrs - £1.50 6hrs - £9.00

	2hrs - £3.00 7hrs - £10.50

	3hrs - £4.50 All Day - £12.00

	4hrs - £6.00

	5hrs - £7.50

	Solo motorcycles free of charge provided they park in specifically designated
spaces for their use, otherwise car park scale of charges applies



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H8)

	(H8)

	(H20)


	10.00am to 6.00pm

	10.00am to 6.00pm

	No overnight parking is permitted



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N5)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	Owned by NDDC but operated by Lynton and Lynmouth Town Council;




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	ESPLANADE

	ESPLANADE


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	TD
	Span
	(N10) 
	(N10) 

	No sleeping

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	LOWER
LYNDALE

	LOWER
LYNDALE


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V4) 
	(V4) 
	 
	 

	Solo motorcycles, motor cars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations, motor
vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight, hitched trailers and hitched
caravans

	Solo motorcycles, motor cars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations, motor
vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight, hitched trailers and hitched
caravans



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1)

	(P1)

	 
	(P7)

	(P8)


	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase;

	A vehicle with a trailer/caravan must buy a ticket for each bay occupied



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C6)

	(C6)

	 
	 
	 
	 
	(C51)

	 

	1hrs - £1.30 6hrs - £7.80

	1hrs - £1.30 6hrs - £7.80

	2hrs - £2.60 7hrs - £9.10

	3hrs - £3.90 All Day - £10.00

	4hrs - £5.20

	5hrs - £6.50

	Solo motorcycles free of charge provided they park in specifically designated
spaces for their use, otherwise car park scale of charges applies



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H8)
(H20)

	(H8)
(H20)


	10.00am to 6.00pm

	10.00am to 6.00pm

	No overnight parking is permitted



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N5)

	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	Owned by NDDC but operated by Lynton and Lynmouth Town Council;

	No sleeping




	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	LOWER
LYNDALE
(LORRIES,
MOTOR
HOMES AND
COACHES)

	LOWER
LYNDALE
(LORRIES,
MOTOR
HOMES AND
COACHES)


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V6)
(V19)
(V13)
(V14)

	(V6)
(V19)
(V13)
(V14)


	Motor vehicles exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Motor vehicles exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Coaches

	Motor homes

	Heavy Goods Vehicles (HGV’s)



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1)

	(P1)

	 
	(P7)

	(P12)


	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase;

	If parking in car spaces a ticket must be purchased for each bay occupied



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C44) 
	(C44) 
	 
	 

	Up to 1hrs - £1.70

	Up to 1hrs - £1.70

	Up to 2hrs - £3.40

	Up to 3hrs - £5.10

	Up to 4hrs - £6.80

	Up to 5hrs - £8.50

	All day - £10.00



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H8)
(H20)

	(H8)
(H20)


	10.00am to 6.00pm

	10.00am to 6.00pm

	No overnight parking is permitted



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N5)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	Owned by NDDC but operated by Lynton and Lynmouth Town Council





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	LYNBRIDGE

	LYNBRIDGE


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V1)

	(V1)

	(V10)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations;

	Parking for general public prohibited except for those with permits



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P7) 
	(P7) 

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C18) 
	(C18) 

	Permit Holders Only - £235.00 per year
	Permit Holders Only - £235.00 per year




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	LYNBRIDGE

	LYNBRIDGE


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H9) 
	(H9) 

	All hours

	All hours



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N5)

	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	Owned by NDDC but operated by Lynton and Lynmouth Town Council;

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	MANOR
GARDENS
ROADWAY

	MANOR
GARDENS
ROADWAY


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V7)

	(V7)

	 
	(V18)


	Motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and motor vehicles not
exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and motor vehicles not
exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P11) 
	(P11) 

	No permits or tickets required

	No permits or tickets required



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C6) 
	(C6) 

	1hrs - £1.30 6hrs - £7.80

	1hrs - £1.30 6hrs - £7.80

	2hrs - £2.60 7hrs - £9.10

	3hrs - £3.90 All Day - £10.00

	4hrs - £5.20

	5hrs - £6.50



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D6) 
	(D6) 

	No charges payable on car park for any day

	No charges payable on car park for any day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H8) 
	(H8) 

	10.00am to 6.00pm

	10.00am to 6.00pm



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	(N10)

	(N13)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping;

	Owned and operated by Lynton and Lynmouth Town Council





	 
	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	SLIPWAY 
	SLIPWAY 

	(H21) 
	(H21) 

	Parking prohibited at any time
	Parking prohibited at any time




	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	TOWN HALL
FORECOURT

	TOWN HALL
FORECOURT


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V1) 
	(V1) 

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P5) 
	(P5) 

	Free for use by visitors to Town Hall or Tourist Information Office,
otherwise parking to general public prohibited, except those with reserved
permits

	Free for use by visitors to Town Hall or Tourist Information Office,
otherwise parking to general public prohibited, except those with reserved
permits



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C7) 
	(C7) 

	Free of charge

	Free of charge



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D6) 
	(D6) 

	No charges payable on car park for any day

	No charges payable on car park for any day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H8) 
	(H8) 

	10.00am to 6.00pm

	10.00am to 6.00pm



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N5)

	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle
is an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle
is an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	Owned by NDDC but operated by Lynton and Lynmouth Town Council;

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	UPPER
LYNDALE

	UPPER
LYNDALE


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1)

	(P1)

	 
	(P7)


	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C6)

	(C6)

	 
	 
	 
	 
	(C51)


	1hrs - £1.30 6hrs - £7.80

	1hrs - £1.30 6hrs - £7.80

	2hrs - £2.60 7hrs - £9.10

	3hrs - £3.90 All Day - £10.00

	4hrs - £5.20

	5hrs - £6.50

	Solo motorcycles free of charge provided they park in specifically designated
spaces for their use, otherwise car park scale of charges applies



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H8)

	(H8)

	(H20)


	10.00am to 6.00pm

	10.00am to 6.00pm

	No overnight parking is permitted




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	UPPER
LYNDALE

	UPPER
LYNDALE


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N5)

	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	Owned by NDDC but operated by Lynton and Lynmouth Town Council;

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	UPPER
VALLEY OF
THE ROCKS

	UPPER
VALLEY OF
THE ROCKS


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V4) 
	(V4) 

	Solo motorcycles, motor cars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations,
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight, hitched trailers and
hitched caravans

	Solo motorcycles, motor cars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations,
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight, hitched trailers and
hitched caravans



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1)

	(P1)

	 
	(P7)

	(P8)


	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase;

	A vehicle with a trailer/caravan must buy a ticket for each bay occupied



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C6)

	(C6)

	 
	 
	 
	 
	(C51)

	 

	1hrs - £1.30 6hrs - £7.80

	1hrs - £1.30 6hrs - £7.80

	2hrs - £2.60 7hrs - £9.10

	3hrs - £3.90 All Day - £10.00

	4hrs - £5.20

	5hrs - £6.50

	Solo motorcycles free of charge provided they park in specifically
designated spaces for their use, otherwise car park scale of charges applies



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H8)
(H20)

	(H8)
(H20)


	10.00am to 6.00pm

	10.00am to 6.00pm

	No overnight parking is permitted



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)

	(N13)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping

	Owned and operated by Lynton and Lynmouth Town Council




	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	VALLEY OF
THE ROCKS

	VALLEY OF
THE ROCKS


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V4) 
	(V4) 

	Solo motorcycles, motor cars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations, motor
vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight, hitched trailers and hitched
caravans

	Solo motorcycles, motor cars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations, motor
vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight, hitched trailers and hitched
caravans



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1)

	(P1)

	 
	(P8)


	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	A vehicle with a trailer/caravan must buy a ticket for each bay occupied



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C6)

	(C6)

	 
	 
	 
	 
	(C51)


	1hrs - £1.30 6hrs - £7.80

	1hrs - £1.30 6hrs - £7.80

	2hrs - £2.60 7hrs - £9.10

	3hrs - £3.90 All Day - £10.00

	4hrs - £5.20

	5hrs - £6.50

	Solo motorcycles free of charge provided they park in specifically designated
spaces for their use, otherwise car park scale of charges applies



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H8)

	(H8)

	(H20)


	10.00am to 6.00pm

	10.00am to 6.00pm

	No overnight parking is permitted



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)

	(N13)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping;

	Owned and operated by Lynton and Lynmouth Town Council





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	WATERSMEET

	WATERSMEET


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
CHARGES

	PERMITS AND
CHARGES


	(P1)

	(P1)

	 
	(P7)


	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C6) 
	(C6) 
	 
	 
	 

	1hrs - £1.30 6hrs - £7.80

	1hrs - £1.30 6hrs - £7.80

	2hrs - £2.60 7hrs - £9.10

	3hrs - £3.90 All Day - £10.00

	4hrs - £5.20




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	WATERSMEET

	WATERSMEET


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	TD
	Span
	 
	 

	5hrs - £6.50

	5hrs - £6.50



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H8)

	(H8)

	(H20)


	10.00am to 6.00pm

	10.00am to 6.00pm

	No overnight parking is permitted



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N5)

	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	Owned by NDDC but operated by Lynton and Lynmouth Town Council;

	No sleeping





	 
	MORTEHOE AND WOOLACOMBE

	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	MORTEHOE
CAR PARK
(INC.
RESIDENTS)

	MORTEHOE
CAR PARK
(INC.
RESIDENTS)


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V2)

	(V2)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen
weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen
weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1)

	(P1)

	 
	(P7)

	(P18)


	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase;

	Permits issued by Mortehoe Parish Council



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C2)

	(C2)

	 
	 
	 
	 
	(C3)

	 
	 
	(C51)

	 

	15 March to 31 October

	15 March to 31 October

	1hrs - £1.50 6 hours - £9.00

	2hrs - £3.00 7 hours - £10.50

	3hrs - £4.50 8 hours - £12.00

	4hrs - £6.00 9 hours - £13.50

	5hrs - £7.50 All Day - £15.00

	From 1 November to 14 March

	1hrs – £0.80 All Day - £2.50

	2hrs - £1.40

	Solo motorcycles free of charge provided they park in specifically designated
spaces for their use, otherwise car park scale of charges applies




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	MORTEHOE
CAR PARK
(INC.
RESIDENTS)

	MORTEHOE
CAR PARK
(INC.
RESIDENTS)


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	TD
	Span
	(C56)

	(C56)

	(C60)


	Motorhome Charge - £15.00

	Motorhome Charge - £15.00

	Permits for residents only - £75 per year



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H2) 
	(H2) 

	08.00am to 6.00pm

	08.00am to 6.00pm



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N2)

	(N10)

	(N11)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	Not owned by NDDC, but operated by NDDC;

	No sleeping;

	No Camping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	MORTEHOE
CEMETERY

	MORTEHOE
CEMETERY


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P11) 
	(P11) 

	No permits or tickets required

	No permits or tickets required



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C7) 
	(C7) 

	Free of charge

	Free of charge



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D6) 
	(D6) 

	No charges payable on car park for any day

	No charges payable on car park for any day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H9)
(H19)
(H20)

	(H9)
(H19)
(H20)


	All hours

	All hours

	Parking for visitors to Mortehoe Cemetery only. Maximum stay 2 hours

	No overnight parking is permitted



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N2)

	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	Not owned by NDDC, but operated by NDDC

	No sleeping




	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	MARINE DRIVE,
WOOLACOMBE

	MARINE DRIVE,
WOOLACOMBE


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V12)
(V17)

	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No lorries or coaches;

	No horseboxes;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1) 
	(P1) 
	 

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C33) 
	(C33) 

	All day - £15.00

	All day - £15.00



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day (for period 1.03 – 5.11)

	Charges apply every day (for period 1.03 – 5.11)



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H1)
(H20)

	(H1)
(H20)


	7.00am to 10.00pm

	7.00am to 10.00pm

	No overnight parking is permitted



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N4)

	(N10)

	(N11)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	Owned and enforced by Mortehoe Parish Council;

	No sleeping;

	No camping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	MEADOW
PLAYING
FIELDS

	MEADOW
PLAYING
FIELDS


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C7) 
	(C7) 

	Free of charge

	Free of charge



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D6) 
	(D6) 

	No charges payable on car park for any day

	No charges payable on car park for any day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H9) 
	(H9) 

	All hours

	All hours



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping;




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	MEADOW
PLAYING
FIELDS

	MEADOW
PLAYING
FIELDS


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	TD
	Span
	(N11) 
	(N11) 

	No camping

	No camping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	WOOLACOMBE
VILLAGE HALL

	WOOLACOMBE
VILLAGE HALL


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V2)

	(V2)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen
weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen
weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P3)

	(P3)

	(P7)

	(P10)


	Parking for village hall users and permit holders only;

	Parking for village hall users and permit holders only;

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase

	No overnight parking



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C7) 
	(C7) 

	Free of charge

	Free of charge



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D6) 
	(D6) 

	No charges payable on car park for any day

	No charges payable on car park for any day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H9) 
	(H9) 

	All hours

	All hours



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N4)

	(N)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	Owned and enforced by Mortehoe Parish Council;

	No sleeping





	 
	SOUTH MOLTON

	 
	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	CENTRAL
(LONG STAY)

	CENTRAL
(LONG STAY)


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V4) 
	(V4) 

	Solo motorcycles, motor cars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations, motor
vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight, hitched trailers and hitched
caravans

	Solo motorcycles, motor cars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations, motor
vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight, hitched trailers and hitched
caravans



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1)

	(P1)

	 
	(P7)
(P8)


	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times;

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase;

	A vehicle with a trailer/caravan must buy a ticket for each bay occupied




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	CENTRAL
(LONG STAY)

	CENTRAL
(LONG STAY)


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C17)

	(C17)

	 
	(C24)

	(C51)


	Parking for local residents living within ¼ mile radius of the car park - £100
per year

	Parking for local residents living within ¼ mile radius of the car park - £100
per year

	£0.60 per hour

	£2.50 All Day

	Solo motorcycles free of charge provided they park in specifically designated
spaces for their use, otherwise car park scale of charges applies



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D3) 
	(D3) 

	Monday to Saturday inclusive

	Monday to Saturday inclusive



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H2) 
	(H2) 

	8.00am to 6.00pm

	8.00am to 6.00pm



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	EAST STREET

	EAST STREET


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P11) 
	(P11) 

	No permits or tickets required (contact South Molton Town Council)

	No permits or tickets required (contact South Molton Town Council)



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D6) 
	(D6) 

	No charges payable on car park for any day

	No charges payable on car park for any day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H9) 
	(H9) 

	All hours

	All hours



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	LORRY AND
COACH PARK

	LORRY AND
COACH PARK


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V6)
(V19)

	(V6)
(V19)


	Motor vehicles exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Motor vehicles exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Coaches;

	Motor homes;




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	LORRY AND
COACH PARK

	LORRY AND
COACH PARK


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	TD
	Span
	(V13)
(V14)

	(V13)
(V14)


	Heavy Goods Vehicles (HGV’s)

	Heavy Goods Vehicles (HGV’s)



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1) 
	(P1) 

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C5) 
	(C5) 

	Per hour - £1.70

	Per hour - £1.70

	All day (24 hrs) - £10.00



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5)
(D7)

	(D5)
(D7)


	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day

	Livestock transporters free of charge on Market Day. Unhitched trailers
prohibited at all times



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H2)

	(H2)

	(H17)


	8.00am to 6.00pm

	8.00am to 6.00pm

	Maximum stay is 7 days – no return within 2 hours unless otherwise approved
by North Devon District Council



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1) 
	(N1) 
	 
	 

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	LORRY WASH

	LORRY WASH


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V6)
(V14)
(V19)

	(V6)
(V14)
(V19)


	Motor vehicles exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Motor vehicles exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Heavy Goods Vehicles (HGV’s);

	Coaches

	 


	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P11) 
	(P11) 

	No permits or tickets required

	No permits or tickets required



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C7) 
	(C7) 

	Free of charge

	Free of charge



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D6) 
	(D6) 

	No charges payable on car park for any day

	No charges payable on car park for any day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H15) 
	(H15) 

	Maximum stay within Parking Place is 24 hours

	Maximum stay within Parking Place is 24 hours



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N7)

	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	For washing of vehicles only;

	No sleeping




	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	NEW ROAD

	NEW ROAD


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P7)

	(P7)

	(P19)


	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase;

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase;

	Permits issued by South Molton Town Council



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C14) 
	(C14) 

	Reserved Parking

	Reserved Parking

	Per Half Year - £200.00



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H9) 
	(H9) 

	All hours

	All hours



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)

	(N14)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping;

	Owned and operated by South Molton Town Council





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	PANNIER
MARKET

	PANNIER
MARKET


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1) 
	(P1) 

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C37)
(C51)

	(C37)
(C51)


	£0.60 per hour

	£0.60 per hour

	Solo motorcycles free of charge provided they park in specifically designated
spaces for their use, otherwise car park scale of charges applies



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D3) 
	(D3) 

	Monday to Saturday inclusive

	Monday to Saturday inclusive



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H2)
(H12)

	(H2)
(H12)


	8.00am to 6.00pm

	8.00am to 6.00pm

	Maximum stay is 3 hours



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping;




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	PANNIER
MARKET

	PANNIER
MARKET


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	TD
	Span
	(N14) 
	(N14) 

	Owned and operated by South Molton Town Council

	Owned and operated by South Molton Town Council





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	SHEEP PEN
(SHORT
STAY)

	SHEEP PEN
(SHORT
STAY)


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V2)

	(V2)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen
weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen
weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P1) 
	(P1) 

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper
tickets must be clearly displayed in the vehicle at all times



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C51)

	(C51)

	 
	(C61)


	Solo motorcycles free of charge provided they park in specifically designated
spaces for their use, otherwise car park scale of charges applies;

	Solo motorcycles free of charge provided they park in specifically designated
spaces for their use, otherwise car park scale of charges applies;

	1hrs - £0.60 6hrs - £3.60

	2hrs - £1.20 7hrs - £4.20

	3hrs - £1.80 8hrs - £4.80

	4hrs - £2.40 9hrs - £5.40

	5hrs - £3.00 All day - £6.00



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D3) 
	(D3) 

	Monday to Saturday inclusive

	Monday to Saturday inclusive



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H2) 
	(H2) 

	8.00am to 6.00pm

	8.00am to 6.00pm



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping





	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	SOUTHLEY
ROAD

	SOUTHLEY
ROAD


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	CLASS OF
VEHICLE

	CLASS OF
VEHICLE


	(V3)

	(V3)

	 
	(V18)


	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and
motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight;

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	PERMITS AND
TICKETS

	PERMITS AND
TICKETS


	(P7)

	(P7)

	(P19)


	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase;

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase;

	Permits issued by South Molton Town Council



	TR
	Span
	CHARGES 
	CHARGES 

	(C14) 
	(C14) 

	Reserved Parking
	Reserved Parking




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	SOUTHLEY
ROAD

	SOUTHLEY
ROAD


	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	TD
	TD
	Span
	Per Half Year - £200.00

	Per Half Year - £200.00



	TR
	Span
	DAYS OF
OPERATION

	DAYS OF
OPERATION


	(D5) 
	(D5) 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	HOURS OF
OPERATION

	HOURS OF
OPERATION


	(H9) 
	(H9) 

	All hours

	All hours



	TR
	Span
	ANCILLARY
MATTERS

	ANCILLARY
MATTERS


	(N1)

	(N1)

	 
	 
	(N10)

	(N14)


	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is
an electric vehicle or a hybrid, and the vehicle is connected to the electric
vehicle charging point and is being charged;

	No sleeping;

	Owned and operated by South Molton Town Council





	 
	 
	 
	8.1 Further conditions to the use of all Parking Places in this Part 8 for
overnight sleeping:

	8.1.1 the maximum permitted stay is two consecutive nights only and
no return within 48 hours;

	8.1.2 motorhomes must not exceed a maximum length of 8 metres;

	8.1.3 the Parking Charge for the appropriate Parking Place as shown
in Schedule One has been paid;

	8.1.4 the driver of a motorhome must maintain a minimum distance of
6 metres from another motorhome;

	8.1.5 the motorhome must be self-contained.

	 
	PART 9: PERMITS

	General Information

	 
	The number of vehicle registrations allowed varies between permits. All
permits (except Reserved Permits) will require the customer to select an
active vehicle registration via their Permitsmarti account. Except where
otherwise stated in this Schedule, the charges for Permits are as follows:
	CARS

	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	CAR PARK 
	 

	 
	 
	DURATION 

	 
	 
	PRICE 

	 
	 
	AVAILABLE FROM



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	4 & 7 DAY PERMITS

	 
	All North Devon District Council
Long Stay Car Parks

	 

	 
	 
	 
	7 Days

	 
	4 Days


	 
	 
	 
	£25.00

	 
	£15.00


	 
	 
	 
	 
	Permitsmarti



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	7-DAY ROVER

	 
	All North Devon District Council
Pay and Display Car Parks:

	Barnstaple (excluding Cattle
Market)

	Croyde

	Ilfracombe (excluding Pier)

	Mortehoe

	South Molton

	Lynton & Lynmouth (excluding
Lower Lyndale)

	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	7 Days 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	£50.00 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	Permitsmarti



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	BARNSTAPLE LONG STAY

	 
	Bickington

	Congrams Close

	Fairview

	Fremington

	Hardaway Head

	Lower Pilton

	Portland Buildings

	Portmarsh Lane

	Seven Brethren (Long Stay
only)

	Rolle Quay

	Tarka

	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	Annual

	 
	 
	Quarterly

	 
	 
	Monthly


	 
	 
	 
	 
	£225.00

	 
	 
	£70.00

	 
	 
	£25.00


	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	Permitsmarti



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	COMBE MARTIN

	 
	All Combe Martin Parish Council
Car Parks:

	Cormelles

	High Street

	Holdstone Down

	Hollands Park

	Kiln

	Parade


	 
	 
	 
	 
	6 Months

	non�transferable

	  
	 
	12 Months

	non�transferable

	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	£100.00

	 
	 
	 
	 
	£180.00

	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	Combe Martin Parish
Council




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	TD
	TD
	Span
	6 Months
transferable

	6 Months
transferable

	 
	 
	4 Days

	 
	7 Days

	 
	10 Days


	£160.00

	£160.00

	 
	 
	 
	£18.00

	 
	£30.00

	 
	£40.00

	 


	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	ILFRACOMBE LONG STAY

	 
	Brookdale (not in Coach Area)

	Hele

	Hillsborough (not in Coach
Area)

	Larkstone Lane

	Oxford Grove

	Marine Drive (Winter Season
only)

	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	Annual

	 
	 
	Quarterly

	 
	 
	Monthly

	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	£225.00

	 
	 
	£70.00

	 
	 
	£25.00


	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	Permitsmarti



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	 
	ILFRACOMBE ROPERY ROAD 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	Weekly 

	 
	 
	 
	£47.50 

	 
	 
	 
	Ilfracombe Town Council



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	ILFRACOMBE WINTER
PERMIT

	 
	Brookdale

	Cove

	Hillsborough

	Jubilee Gardens

	Larkstone Lane

	Marine Drive

	Oxford Grove

	Wilder Road


	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	1st November
to 14th March


	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	£100.00


	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	Permitsmarti



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	INSTOW

	 
	Marine Drive 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	Annual
Season Ticket
(April to
March)


	 
	 
	 
	 
	£150.00 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	Instow Parish Council



	TR
	Span
	 
	 

	 
	 
	Annual 

	 
	 
	£100.00 

	 
	 
	Permitsmarti




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	TD
	TD
	TD
	Span
	LARKSTONE
LANE/HILLSBOROUGH
(ILFRACOMBE)

	LARKSTONE
LANE/HILLSBOROUGH
(ILFRACOMBE)

	 


	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	LYNTON AND LYNMOUTH

	 
	For all motorcars valid in all
Lynton and Lynmouth Car
Parks EXCEPT Esplanade and
Lower Lyndale

	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	4 Days

	 
	7 Days

	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	£15.00

	 
	£25.00

	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	Lynton and Lynmouth
Town Council



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	RUGBY CLUB (BARNSTAPLE) 
	 

	 
	 
	Annual

	 
	 
	Quarterly

	 
	 
	Monthly

	 

	 
	 
	£140.00

	 
	 
	£40.00

	 
	 
	£12.50


	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	Permitsmarti



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	SOUTH MOLTON LONG STAY

	 
	South Molton Central Car Park
only


	 
	 
	Annual

	 
	 
	Quarterly

	 
	 
	Monthly


	 
	 
	£225.00

	 
	 
	£70.00

	 
	 
	£25.00

	 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	Permitsmarti




	 
	COACHES

	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	CAR PARK 
	 

	 
	 
	DURATION 

	 
	 
	PRICE 

	 
	 
	AVAILABLE FROM



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	Barnstaple

	Seven Brethren Lorry
Park

	Ilfracombe

	Brookdale

	Hillsborough

	South Molton

	South Molton Lorry Park

	 

	 
	 
	7 Days

	 
	6 Days

	 
	4 Days


	 
	 
	£55.00

	 
	£45.00

	 
	£30.00


	 
	 
	 
	 
	Permitsmarti





	 
	LOCAL RESIDENT’S PERMITS (UNRESERVED)

	 
	Only available for residents within a quarter of a mile radius by application.

	Maximum of 2 per household. Car registration documents and current utility bill (less
than 3 months old) will be required. Subject to availability.

	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	CAR PARK 
	 

	 
	 
	DURATION 

	 
	 
	PRICE 

	 
	 
	AVAILABLE FROM



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	Bickington 
	 

	 
	 
	Annual 

	 
	 
	£60.00 

	 
	 
	Permitsmarti



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	Bicton Street 
	 

	 
	 
	Annual 

	 
	 
	£100.00 (max. 7 in
circulation)

	 

	 
	 
	Permitsmarti



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	Congrams Close 
	 

	 
	 
	Annual 

	 
	 
	£100.00 

	 
	 
	Permitsmarti



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	Croyde 
	 

	 
	 
	Annual 

	 
	 
	£100.00 

	 
	 
	Permitsmarti



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	Fremington 
	 

	 
	 
	Annual 

	 
	 
	£100.00 

	 
	 
	Permitsmarti



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	Hele 
	 

	 
	 
	Annual 

	 
	 
	£100.00 

	 
	 
	Permitsmarti



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	Hillsborough 
	 

	 
	 
	Annual 

	 
	 
	£100.00 

	 
	 
	Permitsmarti



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	Lower Pilton 
	 

	 
	 
	Annual 

	 
	 
	£100.00 

	 
	 
	Permitsmarti



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	Marine Drive,
Woolacombe

	(non-transferable)


	 
	 
	Annual
(Parishioners
Only)

	 
	Annual

	 

	 
	 
	£55.00

	 
	 
	 
	£130.00


	 
	 
	 
	 
	Mortehoe Parish Council



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	Mortehoe 
	 

	 
	 
	Annual 

	 
	 
	£100.00 

	 
	 
	Permitsmarti



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	Oxford Grove 
	 

	 
	 
	Annual 

	 
	 
	£100.00 

	 
	 
	Permitsmarti



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	Portmarsh Lane 
	 

	 
	 
	Annual 

	 
	 
	£100.00 

	 
	 
	Permitsmarti



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	South Molton 
	 

	 
	 
	Annual 

	 
	 
	£100.00 

	 
	 
	Permitsmarti




	 
	EVENING RESIDENT’S PERMITS

	 
	For local residents of Barnstaple and Ilfracombe for the nominated long stay car park
closest to their home, by application. Subject to availability.

	Valid from 4:45pm until Midnight only.

	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	CAR PARK 
	 

	 
	 
	DURATION 

	 
	 
	PRICE 

	 
	 
	AVAILABLE FROM



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	Belle Meadow 
	 

	 
	 
	Annual 

	 
	 
	£21.00 

	 
	 
	Permitsmarti



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	Bickington 
	 

	 
	 
	Annual 

	 
	 
	£21.00 

	 
	 
	Permitsmarti



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	Brookdale 
	 

	 
	 
	Annual 

	 
	 
	£21.00 

	 
	 
	Permitsmarti



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	Congrams Close 
	 

	 
	 
	Annual 

	 
	 
	£21.00 

	 
	 
	Permitsmarti



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	Croyde 
	 

	 
	 
	Annual 

	 
	 
	£21.00 

	 
	 
	Permitsmarti



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	Fairview 
	 

	 
	 
	Annual 

	 
	 
	£21.00 

	 
	 
	Permitsmarti



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	Fremington 
	 

	 
	 
	Annual 

	 
	 
	£21.00 

	 
	 
	Permitsmarti



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	Hele 
	 

	 
	 
	Annual 

	 
	 
	£21.00 

	 
	 
	Permitsmarti



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	Hillsborough 
	 

	 
	 
	Annual 

	 
	 
	£21.00 

	 
	 
	Permitsmarti



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	Larkstone Lane 
	 

	 
	 
	Annual 

	 
	 
	£21.00 

	 
	 
	Permitsmarti



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	Lower Pilton 
	 

	 
	 
	Annual 

	 
	 
	£21.00 

	 
	 
	Permitsmarti



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	Marine Drive 
	 

	 
	 
	Annual 

	 
	 
	£21.00 

	 
	 
	Permitsmarti



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	Mortehoe 
	 

	 
	 
	Annual 

	 
	 
	£21.00 

	 
	 
	Permitsmarti



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	Oxford Grove 
	 

	 
	 
	Annual 

	 
	 
	£21.00 

	 
	 
	Permitsmarti



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	Portmarsh Lane 
	 

	 
	 
	Annual 

	 
	 
	£21.00 

	 
	 
	Permitsmarti




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	CAR PARK 
	 

	 
	 
	DURATION 

	 
	 
	PRICE 

	 
	 
	AVAILABLE FROM



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	Portland Buildings 
	 

	 
	 
	Annual 

	 
	 
	£21.00 

	 
	 
	Permitsmarti



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	Rolle Quay 
	 

	 
	 
	Annual 

	 
	 
	£21.00 

	 
	 
	Permitsmarti



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	Seven Brethren 
	 

	 
	 
	Annual 

	 
	 
	£21.00 

	 
	 
	Permitsmarti



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	South Molton 
	 

	 
	 
	Annual 

	 
	 
	£21.00 

	 
	 
	Permitsmarti



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	Tarka 
	 

	 
	 
	Annual 

	 
	 
	£21.00 

	 
	 
	Permitsmarti





	 
	BUSINESS PERMITS

	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	CAR PARK 
	 

	 
	 
	DURATION 

	 
	 
	PRICE 

	 
	 
	AVAILABLE FROM



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	Bickington and
Fremington

	 

	 
	 
	Annual 

	 
	 
	£80.00 

	 
	 
	Permitsmarti



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	Lynton and Lynmouth

	(except Esplanade and
Lower Lyndale)

	 

	 
	 
	Annual (April to
March)


	 
	 
	£140.00 

	 
	 
	Lynton and Lynmouth Town
Council





	RESERVED SPACES

	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	CAR PARK 

	 
	 
	PRICES

	 


	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	Castle Quay – Barnstaple 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	£600.00 per annum

	£170.00 per quarter

	 


	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	Coronation Street – Barnstaple 
	 

	 
	 
	£500.00 per annum


	TR
	Span
	 
	 

	 
	 




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	CAR PARK 

	 
	 
	PRICES

	 


	TR
	Span
	Loverings Court – Barnstaple 
	Loverings Court – Barnstaple 
	 

	£500.00 per annum

	£500.00 per annum



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	Lower Pilton – Barnstaple 
	 

	 
	 
	£300.00 per annum



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	Magdalene Lawn – Barnstaple 
	 

	 
	 
	£180.00 per annum (proof of residency required)



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	Portmarsh Lane – Barnstaple 
	 

	 
	 
	£180.00 per annum



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	Portland Buildings – Barnstaple 
	 

	 
	 
	£500.00 per annum



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	Rolle Quay – Barnstaple 
	 

	 
	 
	£450.00 per annum



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	Silver Street – Barnstaple 
	 

	 
	 
	£1,000.00 per annum



	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	Oxford Grove – Ilfracombe 
	 

	 
	 
	£220.00 per annum





	 
	 
	Penalty Charge referred to in the Conditions hereto:

	 
	There are 2 (TWO) levels of penalty charge according to the seriousness of
the parking contravention. The penalty charge levels are as follows:

	 
	Off-Street Higher Band: £70 discounted to £35 if paid within 14 days;

	Off-Street Lower Band: £50 discounted to £25 if paid within 14 days.

	Higher Level Penalty Charge after service of a Charge Certificate: £105.00

	Lower Level Penalty Charge after service of a Charge Certificate: £75.00

	 
	Full details of the parking contraventions attracting the higher and lower levels
of penalty charge are available upon request at the Council’s Offices.
	 
	SCHEDULE ONE

	SCHEDULE OF CHARGES

	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	C1 
	C1 

	1hrs - £1.30 6hrs - £7.80

	1hrs - £1.30 6hrs - £7.80

	2hrs - £2.60 7hrs - £9.10

	3hrs - £3.90 8hrs - £10.40

	4hrs - £5.20 9hrs - £11.70

	5hrs - £6.50 All Day - £13.00


	C2 
	C2 

	15 March to 31 October

	15 March to 31 October

	1hrs - £1.50 6hrs - £9.00

	2hrs - £3.00 7hrs - £10.50

	3hrs - £4.50 8hrs - £12.00

	4hrs - £6.00 9hrs - £13.50

	5hrs - £7.50 All Day - £15.00



	TR
	Span
	C3 
	C3 

	1 November to 14 March

	1 November to 14 March

	1hrs - £0.80

	2hrs - £1.40

	All day - £2.50


	C4 
	C4 

	Up to 1hrs - £1.30

	Up to 1hrs - £1.30

	Up to 2hrs - £2.20

	Up to 3hrs - £3.30

	Up to 4hrs - £4.40

	Up to 24hrs - £6.00



	TR
	Span
	C5 
	C5 

	Per Hour - £1.70

	Per Hour - £1.70

	All Day (24 hours) - £10.00


	C6 
	C6 

	1hrs - £1.30 6hrs - £7.80

	1hrs - £1.30 6hrs - £7.80

	2hrs - £2.60 7hrs - £9.10

	3hrs - £3.90 All Day - £10.00

	4hrs - £5.20

	5hrs - £6.50



	TR
	Span
	C7 
	C7 

	Free of Charge 
	Free of Charge 

	C8 
	C8 

	1hrs - £1.00

	1hrs - £1.00

	2hrs - £2.20

	3hrs - £3.30

	4hrs - £4.40



	TR
	Span
	C9 
	C9 

	1 November to 14 March

	1 November to 14 March

	Up to 2hrs - £1.00

	Up to 12hrs - £3.00

	All day - £4.00


	C10 
	C10 

	Up to 2hrs - £1.00

	Up to 2hrs - £1.00

	Up to 4hrs - £2.00

	Up to 12hrs - £3.00

	Up to 24hrs - £4.00



	TR
	Span
	C11 
	C11 

	15 March to 31 October

	15 March to 31 October

	Up to 1hrs - £1.30

	Up to 2hrs - £2.60

	Up to 3hrs - £3.90

	Up to 4hrs - £5.20

	Up to 24hrs - £13.00


	C12 
	C12 

	Reserved Permit Parking Only

	Reserved Permit Parking Only

	£170.00 per quarter

	£600.00 per year



	TR
	Span
	C13 
	C13 

	Up to 3 hrs - £3.30

	Up to 3 hrs - £3.30

	Up to 4hrs - £4.40

	All Day - £5.00


	C14 
	C14 

	Reserved Parking

	Reserved Parking

	£200.00 per half year



	TR
	Span
	C15 
	C15 

	Up to ½ hr – £0.20 Up to 6hrs - £3.60

	Up to ½ hr – £0.20 Up to 6hrs - £3.60

	Up to 1hrs – £0.60 Up to 7hrs - £4.20

	Up to 2hrs – £1.20 Up to 8hrs - £4.80

	Up to 3hrs – £1.80 Up to 24hrs - £10.00


	C16 
	C16 

	£1.20 per hour
	£1.20 per hour




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	TD
	TD
	TD
	Span
	Up to 4hrs – £2.40

	Up to 4hrs – £2.40

	Up to 5hrs - £3.00



	TR
	Span
	C17 
	C17 

	Permit parking for local residents living
within ¼ mile radius of the car park

	Permit parking for local residents living
within ¼ mile radius of the car park

	£100 per year


	C18 
	C18 

	Permit Holders Only

	Permit Holders Only

	£235.00 per year



	TR
	Span
	C19 
	C19 

	Reserved Parking Available

	Reserved Parking Available

	£1000.00 per year


	C20 
	C20 

	Reserved Parking Available

	Reserved Parking Available

	£300.00 per year



	TR
	Span
	C21 
	C21 

	Reserved Parking Only

	Reserved Parking Only

	£500.00 per year


	C22 
	C22 

	Reserved Parking

	Reserved Parking

	£631.00 per year



	TR
	Span
	C23 
	C23 

	Resident’s Permit available to those living
within ¼ miles of the Parking Place

	Resident’s Permit available to those living
within ¼ miles of the Parking Place

	£60.00 per year


	C24 
	C24 

	£0.60 per hour

	£0.60 per hour

	£2.50 All Day



	TR
	Span
	C25 
	C25 

	15 March to 31 October

	15 March to 31 October

	1hrs - £1.30

	2hrs - £2.20

	3hrs - £3.30

	All Day - £6.00


	C26 
	C26 

	1 April to 31 October

	1 April to 31 October

	1hrs - £0.50 Overnight - £25.00

	2hrs - £1.00

	3hrs - £2.00

	4hrs - £4.00



	TR
	Span
	C27 
	C27 

	Permits Only from 10pm to 9am 
	Permits Only from 10pm to 9am 

	C28 
	C28 

	Reserved Parking Only by arrangement with
North Devon District Council

	Reserved Parking Only by arrangement with
North Devon District Council



	TR
	Span
	C29 
	C29 

	1hrs - £0.60

	1hrs - £0.60

	2hrs - £0.80

	3hrs - £1.20

	All Day - £2.50


	C30 
	C30 

	£2.50 all day

	£2.50 all day



	TR
	Span
	C31 
	C31 

	Parking by non-transferable Permit only
after 30 minute free period (except for
motorhomes and campervans which may
park for up to 24hrs for £5.00)

	Parking by non-transferable Permit only
after 30 minute free period (except for
motorhomes and campervans which may
park for up to 24hrs for £5.00)


	C32 
	C32 

	Annual Residential Parking Permit

	Annual Residential Parking Permit

	£45.00



	TR
	Span
	C33 
	C33 

	All day - £15.00 
	All day - £15.00 

	C34 
	C34 

	Reserved Parking Only

	Reserved Parking Only

	£38.50 per quarter

	£132 per year



	TR
	Span
	C35 
	C35 

	1hrs - £0.60

	1hrs - £0.60

	2hrs - £0.80

	3hrs - £1.20


	C36 
	C36 

	1hrs - £0.20

	1hrs - £0.20

	£0.50 per hour thereafter



	TR
	Span
	C37 
	C37 

	£0.60 per hour 
	£0.60 per hour 

	C38 
	C38 

	From 1 April 2014

	From 1 April 2014

	Annual Resident’s Permit available for all
Parishioners of Braunton - £175.00




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	C39 
	C39 

	Annual Reserved Parking Permit

	Annual Reserved Parking Permit

	£180.00


	C40 
	C40 

	Annual Reserved Parking Permit

	Annual Reserved Parking Permit

	£220.00



	TR
	Span
	C41 
	C41 

	Reserved Parking Only

	Reserved Parking Only

	£500.00 per year


	C42 
	C42 

	£0.50 per hour and £1.50 All Day

	£0.50 per hour and £1.50 All Day



	TR
	Span
	C43 
	C43 

	£1.00 All Day 
	£1.00 All Day 

	C44 
	C44 

	Up to 1hrs - £1.70

	Up to 1hrs - £1.70

	Up to 2hrs - £3.40

	Up to 3hrs - £5.10

	Up to 4hrs - £6.80

	Up to 5hrs - £8.50

	All day - £10.00



	TR
	Span
	C45 
	C45 

	First 30 minutes - £0.30

	First 30 minutes - £0.30

	Up to 1hrs - £0.80

	Up to 2hrs - £1.50

	Up to 3hrs - £2.30

	Each additional hour - £0.50


	C46 
	C46 

	Lost Ticket Charge of £11.60

	Lost Ticket Charge of £11.60



	TR
	Span
	C47 
	C47 

	2hrs - £1.00

	2hrs - £1.00

	3hrs - £2.00

	4hrs - £3.00

	All Day - £5.00


	C48 
	C48 

	Reserved Parking Available

	Reserved Parking Available

	£500.00 per year



	TR
	Span
	C49 
	C49 

	15 March to 31 October

	15 March to 31 October

	Up to 1hrs - £1.50 Up to 5hrs - £6.40

	Up to 2hrs - £2.80 Up to 6hrs - £7.50

	Up to 3hrs - £4.00 Up to 24hrs - £9.50

	Up to 4hrs - £5.20


	C50 
	C50 

	1 November to 14 March

	1 November to 14 March

	Up to 1hrs - £0.80

	Up to 2hrs - £1.70

	All day - £2.50



	TR
	Span
	C51 
	C51 

	Solo motorcycles free of charge provided
they park in specifically designated
spaces for their use, otherwise car park
scale of charges applies

	Solo motorcycles free of charge provided
they park in specifically designated
spaces for their use, otherwise car park
scale of charges applies


	C52 
	C52 

	Permit Parking from Monday to Friday

	Permit Parking from Monday to Friday



	TR
	Span
	C53 
	C53 

	30 minutes free parking and no return
within 2hrs

	30 minutes free parking and no return
within 2hrs


	C54 
	C54 

	1 hour £1.10 - Max stay 1 hour, no return
within 2 hours

	1 hour £1.10 - Max stay 1 hour, no return
within 2 hours



	TR
	Span
	C55 
	C55 

	50p for half an hour 
	50p for half an hour 

	C56 
	C56 

	Motorhome Charge - £15.00

	Motorhome Charge - £15.00



	TR
	Span
	C57 
	C57 

	Reserved Parking - £450.00 per year 
	Reserved Parking - £450.00 per year 

	C58 
	C58 

	£120 per annum for Adelaide Terrace
Resident’s Association Only

	£120 per annum for Adelaide Terrace
Resident’s Association Only



	TR
	Span
	C59 
	C59 

	1hrs - £1.50 6hrs - £9.00

	1hrs - £1.50 6hrs - £9.00

	2hrs - £3.00 7hrs - £10.50

	3hrs - £4.50 All Day - £12.00


	C60 
	C60 

	Permits for residents only - £75 per year
	Permits for residents only - £75 per year




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	TD
	TD
	TD
	Span
	4hrs - £6.00

	4hrs - £6.00

	5hrs - £7.50



	TR
	Span
	C61 
	C61 

	1hrs - £0.60 6hrs - £3.60

	1hrs - £0.60 6hrs - £3.60

	2hrs - £1.20 7hrs - £4.20

	3hrs - £1.80 8hrs - £4.80

	4hrs - £2.40 9hrs - £5.40

	5hrs - £3.00 All day - £6.00

	 
	 

	 
	 




	 
	SCHEDULE TWO

	DAYS OF OPERATION OF THE SCALE OF CHARGES

	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	D1 
	D1 

	Monday to Friday inclusive

	Monday to Friday inclusive



	TR
	Span
	D2 
	D2 

	Monday to Friday inclusive (excluding Bank Holidays)

	Monday to Friday inclusive (excluding Bank Holidays)



	TR
	Span
	D3 
	D3 

	Monday to Saturday inclusive

	Monday to Saturday inclusive



	TR
	Span
	D4 
	D4 

	Monday to Saturday (including Bank Holidays)

	Monday to Saturday (including Bank Holidays)



	TR
	Span
	D5 
	D5 

	Charges apply every day

	Charges apply every day



	TR
	Span
	D6 
	D6 

	No charges payable on car park for any day

	No charges payable on car park for any day



	TR
	Span
	D7 
	D7 

	Livestock transporters free of charge on Market Day. Unhitched trailers prohibited at all times

	Livestock transporters free of charge on Market Day. Unhitched trailers prohibited at all times



	TR
	Span
	D8 
	D8 

	1 July – 31 August plus 28 ad hoc days

	1 July – 31 August plus 28 ad hoc days





	 
	SCHEDULE THREE

	HOURS OF OPERATION OF THE SCALE OF CHARGES

	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	H1 
	H1 

	7.00am to 10.00pm

	7.00am to 10.00pm



	TR
	Span
	H2 
	H2 

	8.00am to 6.00pm

	8.00am to 6.00pm



	TR
	Span
	H3 
	H3 

	8.00am to 8.00pm

	8.00am to 8.00pm



	TR
	Span
	H4 
	H4 

	9.00am to 6.00pm

	9.00am to 6.00pm



	TR
	Span
	H5 
	H5 

	9.00am to 10.00pm

	9.00am to 10.00pm



	TR
	Span
	H6 
	H6 

	10.00am to 4.00pm

	10.00am to 4.00pm



	TR
	Span
	H7 
	H7 

	10.00am to 5.30pm

	10.00am to 5.30pm



	TR
	Span
	H8 
	H8 

	10.00am to 6.00pm

	10.00am to 6.00pm



	TR
	Span
	H9 
	H9 

	All hours

	All hours





	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	H1 
	H1 

	7.00am to 10.00pm

	7.00am to 10.00pm



	TR
	Span
	H10 
	H10 

	Maximum stay within parking place is 1 hour

	Maximum stay within parking place is 1 hour



	TR
	Span
	H11 
	H11 

	No return within 2 hours

	No return within 2 hours



	TR
	Span
	H12 
	H12 

	Maximum stay is 3 hours

	Maximum stay is 3 hours



	TR
	Span
	H13 
	H13 

	Maximum stay in car park during the day is 4 hours

	Maximum stay in car park during the day is 4 hours



	TR
	Span
	H14 
	H14 

	Maximum 12 hours stay with no return within 2 hours, applicable every day

	Maximum 12 hours stay with no return within 2 hours, applicable every day



	TR
	Span
	H15 
	H15 

	Maximum stay within parking place is 24 hours

	Maximum stay within parking place is 24 hours



	TR
	Span
	H16 
	H16 

	Maximum stay 3 days with no return within 6 hours

	Maximum stay 3 days with no return within 6 hours



	TR
	Span
	H17 
	H17 

	Maximum stay is 7 days – no return within 2 hours unless otherwise approved by North Devon
District Council

	Maximum stay is 7 days – no return within 2 hours unless otherwise approved by North Devon
District Council



	TR
	Span
	H18 
	H18 

	Maximum stay is 7 days - no return within 6 hours

	Maximum stay is 7 days - no return within 6 hours



	TR
	Span
	H19 
	H19 

	Parking for visitors to Mortehoe Cemetery only. Maximum stay 2 hours

	Parking for visitors to Mortehoe Cemetery only. Maximum stay 2 hours



	TR
	Span
	H20 
	H20 

	No overnight parking is permitted

	No overnight parking is permitted



	TR
	Span
	H21 
	H21 

	Parking prohibited at any time

	Parking prohibited at any time





	 
	SCHEDULE FOUR

	CLASSES OF VEHICLE

	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	V1 
	V1 

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations



	TR
	Span
	V2 
	V2 

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars and vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight



	TR
	Span
	V3 
	V3 

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and motor vehicles not
exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and motor vehicles not
exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight



	TR
	Span
	V4 
	V4 

	Solo motorcycles, motor cars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations, motor vehicles not
exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight, hitched trailers and hitched caravans

	Solo motorcycles, motor cars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations, motor vehicles not
exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight, hitched trailers and hitched caravans



	TR
	Span
	V5 
	V5 

	Solo motorcycles only

	Solo motorcycles only



	TR
	Span
	V6 
	V6 

	Motor vehicles exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight

	Motor vehicles exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight



	TR
	Span
	V7 
	V7 

	Motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg
unladen weight

	Motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations and motor vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg
unladen weight



	TR
	Span
	V8 
	V8 

	Motor homes not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight

	Motor homes not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight



	TR
	Span
	V9 
	V9 

	Motor homes and campervans not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight

	Motor homes and campervans not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight



	TR
	Span
	V10 
	V10 

	Light commercial vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight only

	Light commercial vehicles not exceeding 3,500 kg unladen weight only



	TR
	Span
	V11 
	V11 

	A total maximum of 4 operating licences for vehicles are allowed on the lorry park and no trailers
to be licensed for the Lorry Park
	A total maximum of 4 operating licences for vehicles are allowed on the lorry park and no trailers
to be licensed for the Lorry Park




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	V1 
	V1 

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations

	Solo motorcycles, motorcars, quad bikes and motorcycle combinations



	TR
	Span
	V12 
	V12 

	No lorries or coaches

	No lorries or coaches



	TR
	Span
	V13 
	V13 

	Motor homes

	Motor homes



	TR
	Span
	V14 
	V14 

	Heavy Goods Vehicles (HGV’s)

	Heavy Goods Vehicles (HGV’s)



	TR
	Span
	V15 
	V15 

	Public Service Vehicles (excluding Taxis)

	Public Service Vehicles (excluding Taxis)



	TR
	Span
	V16 
	V16 

	Boats and trailers

	Boats and trailers



	TR
	Span
	V17 
	V17 

	No horseboxes

	No horseboxes



	TR
	Span
	V18 
	V18 

	No caravans or trailers

	No caravans or trailers



	TR
	Span
	V19 
	V19 

	Coaches

	Coaches





	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	SCHEDULE FIVE

	PERMITS AND TICKETS

	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	P1 
	P1 

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper tickets must be clearly
displayed in the vehicle at all times

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper tickets must be clearly
displayed in the vehicle at all times



	TR
	Span
	P2 
	P2 

	Free parking for visitors in specifically designated spaces and permit holders only

	Free parking for visitors in specifically designated spaces and permit holders only



	TR
	Span
	P3 
	P3 

	Parking for village hall users and permit holders only

	Parking for village hall users and permit holders only



	TR
	Span
	P4 
	P4 

	No ticket necessary. Loading and unloading permitted for up to a maximum of 10 minutes,
otherwise no parking permitted. No return within 1 hour

	No ticket necessary. Loading and unloading permitted for up to a maximum of 10 minutes,
otherwise no parking permitted. No return within 1 hour



	TR
	Span
	P5 
	P5 

	Free for use by visitors to Town Hall or Tourist Information Office, otherwise parking to general
public prohibited, except those with reserved permits

	Free for use by visitors to Town Hall or Tourist Information Office, otherwise parking to general
public prohibited, except those with reserved permits



	TR
	Span
	P6 
	P6 

	No ticket required but maximum stay half an hour or such period as agreed by Lynton and
Lynmouth Town Council

	No ticket required but maximum stay half an hour or such period as agreed by Lynton and
Lynmouth Town Council



	TR
	Span
	P7 
	P7 

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase

	Permit conditions are made available at the time of purchase



	TR
	Span
	P8 
	P8 

	A vehicle with a trailer/caravan must buy a ticket for each bay occupied

	A vehicle with a trailer/caravan must buy a ticket for each bay occupied



	TR
	Span
	P9 
	P9 

	Parking for general public prohibited except for those with reserved permits

	Parking for general public prohibited except for those with reserved permits



	TR
	Span
	P10 
	P10 

	No overnight parking

	No overnight parking



	TR
	Span
	P11 
	P11 

	No permits or tickets required

	No permits or tickets required



	TR
	Span
	P12 
	P12 

	If parking in car spaces a ticket must be purchased for each bay occupied
	If parking in car spaces a ticket must be purchased for each bay occupied




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	P1 
	P1 

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper tickets must be clearly
displayed in the vehicle at all times

	Virtual and paper tickets are only valid for the period of purchase. Paper tickets must be clearly
displayed in the vehicle at all times



	TR
	Span
	P13 
	P13 

	Permits issued by Instow Parish Council

	Permits issued by Instow Parish Council



	TR
	Span
	P14 
	P14 

	Permits issued by Ilfracombe Town Council

	Permits issued by Ilfracombe Town Council



	TR
	Span
	P15 
	P15 

	Permits issued by Braunton Parish Council

	Permits issued by Braunton Parish Council



	TR
	Span
	P16 
	P16 

	Permits issued by the land owner

	Permits issued by the land owner



	TR
	Span
	P17 
	P17 

	Permits issued by Lynton and Lynmouth Town Council

	Permits issued by Lynton and Lynmouth Town Council



	TR
	Span
	P18 
	P18 

	Permits issued by Mortehoe Parish Council

	Permits issued by Mortehoe Parish Council



	TR
	Span
	P19 
	P19 

	Permits issued by South Molton Town Council

	Permits issued by South Molton Town Council



	TR
	Span
	P20 
	P20 

	Permits issued by North Devon Homes

	Permits issued by North Devon Homes





	 
	 
	 
	SCHEDULE SIX

	ANCILLARY MATTERS

	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	N1 
	N1 

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is an electric vehicle,
and the vehicle is connected to the electric vehicle charging point and is being charged

	No parking in designated electric vehicle charging bays unless the vehicle is an electric vehicle,
and the vehicle is connected to the electric vehicle charging point and is being charged



	TR
	Span
	N2 
	N2 

	Not owned by NDDC, but operated by NDDC

	Not owned by NDDC, but operated by NDDC



	TR
	Span
	N3 
	N3 

	Owned and operated by Combe Martin Parish Council

	Owned and operated by Combe Martin Parish Council



	TR
	Span
	N4 
	N4 

	Owned and enforced by Mortehoe Parish Council

	Owned and enforced by Mortehoe Parish Council



	TR
	Span
	N5 
	N5 

	Owned by NDDC but operated by Lynton and Lynmouth Town Council

	Owned by NDDC but operated by Lynton and Lynmouth Town Council



	TR
	Span
	N6 
	N6 

	Parking for visitors to residents of Castle Quay Court permitted only in bays 10-19

	Parking for visitors to residents of Castle Quay Court permitted only in bays 10-19



	TR
	Span
	N7 
	N7 

	Washing of vehicles only

	Washing of vehicles only



	TR
	Span
	N8 
	N8 

	Height Barrier

	Height Barrier



	TR
	Span
	N9 
	N9 

	No parking all year except by specific arrangement with North Devon District Council

	No parking all year except by specific arrangement with North Devon District Council



	TR
	Span
	N10 
	N10 

	No sleeping

	No sleeping



	TR
	Span
	N11 
	N11 

	No camping

	No camping



	TR
	Span
	N12 
	N12 

	Bike Racks

	Bike Racks



	TR
	Span
	N13 
	N13 

	Owned and operated by Lynton and Lynmouth Town Council

	Owned and operated by Lynton and Lynmouth Town Council



	TR
	Span
	N14 
	N14 

	Owned and operated by South Molton Town Council
	Owned and operated by South Molton Town Council




	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 




	9 Lynton Agency Performance Review
	APPX A - FINAL_LLTC annual report_2022
	APPX B - Budget Statement Statement 20-21
	APPX C - Budget Monitoring Statement 21-22


